
 

April 2, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 1 
 

 

JOINT MEETING OF THE  
MILPITAS CITY COUNCIL AND  

MILPITAS HOUSING AUTHORITY AGENDA  
TUESDAY, APRIL 2, 2013 

 

455  EAST CALAVERAS BLVD ,  MILPITAS ,  CA 

6:00  P .M .  (CLOSED SESSION)  ●  7:00  P .M .  (PUBLIC BUSINESS )  

 
 

SUMMARY OF CONTENTS 
 

 I. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL by the Mayor (6:00 p.m.) 
 

II. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
 
1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

Pursuant to California Government Code §54956.9(b), (c)  
City of Milpitas as Plaintiff or Defendant  

 
2. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - COLLECTIVE BARGAINING 
 Pursuant to California Government Code §54957.6, City Negotiator: Carmen Valdez  

Employee Groups:  Milpitas Employees Association (MEA), Milpitas Police Officers Association 
(MPOA), International Association of Fire Fighters (IAFF) 

 Under Negotiation: Wages, Hours, Benefits, and Working Conditions 
 

 III. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Report on action taken in Closed Session, if required, pursuant 
to Government Code Section 54957.1, including the vote or abstention of each member present 

 
 IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (7:00 p.m.) 
 
 V. INVOCATION (Councilmember Montano) 
 
 VI. APPROVAL OF COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – March 19, 2013 
 
 VII. SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS  –  COUNCIL CALENDAR – April 2013 
 
 VIII. PUBLIC FORUM 
 

Members of the audience are invited to address the Council on any subject not on tonight’s agenda.  Speakers must 
come to the podium, state their name and city of residence for the Clerk's record, and limit their remarks to three 
minutes.  As an unagendized item, no response is required from City staff or the Council and no action can be taken; 
however, the Council may instruct the City Manager to agendize the item for a future meeting. 

 
 IX. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 X. ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
 XI. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
 XII. CONSENT CALENDAR (Items with asterisks*) 
 

Consent calendar items are considered to be routine and will be considered for adoption by one motion.  There will 
be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the City Council, member of the audience, or staff 
requests the Council to remove an item from or be added to the consent calendar.  Any person desiring to speak on 
any item on the consent calendar should ask to have that item removed from the consent calendar.  If removed, this 
item will be discussed in the order in which it appears on the agenda. 

 



 

April 2, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 2 
 

 
 XIII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

 1. Hold a Public Hearing, Introduce Ordinance No. 38.807 Approving a Development 
Agreement and Adopt a Resolution Approving a Site Development Permit and Certifying 
the Final Environmental Impact Report for the I-880 Billboard Project (Staff Contact:  
Sheldon Ah Sing, 408-586-3278) 
 

 2. Hold a Public Hearing and Adopt a Resolution Approving Recreation Services’ 
Registration Software Upgrade and Transaction Fee to be Applied to All Recreation 
Programs and Services (Staff Contact:  Jaime Chew, 408-586-3234) 

 
 XIV. JOINT MILPITAS HOUSING AUTHORITY AND CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
*HA1. Adopt a Resolution Approving a Loan from the Housing Authority to the City of Milpitas 

for Demolition of City Buildings at 1650-1690 and 1740-1830 McCandless Drive and 
Authorize the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with DR Horton (Staff Contact:  
Felix Reliford, 408-586-3071) 
 

 XV. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
* 3. Receive the March 2013 Odor Control Report (Staff Contact:  Kathleen Phalen, 

408-586-3345) 
 

 XVI. REPORT OF MAYOR 
 

* 4. Consider Mayor’s Recommendations for Appointments to Four Milpitas Commissions 
(Contact:  Mayor Esteves, 408-586-3029) 

 
 XVII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 5. Receive Report on Updated Milpitas Emergency Operations Plan and Approve the Plan 
(Staff Contact:  Sean Simonson, 408-586-2810) 

 
 XVIII. RESOLUTION 
 

* 6. Authorize the Purchase of 25 CopVu Wearable Cameras from Watch Guard for Police 
Utilizing the 2012 Citizens Option for Public Safety (COPS) Grant and Adopt a Resolution 
Designating Watch Guard as a Sole Source Vendor and Standardize CopVu Cameras  
(Staff Contact:  Chris Schroeder, 408-586-3161) 

 
 XIX. BID AND CONTRACTS 
 

* 7. Award Construction Contract to DRT Grading & Paving Inc. for Park Renovation 2011 
Project No. 5091, Approve Budget Appropriation, and Authorize Staff to Execute Contract 
Change Orders (Staff Contact:  Steve Erickson, 408-586-3301) 

 
* 8. Authorize the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 3 to the Agreement with 

CalRecovery, Inc. for Solid Waste Consulting Services (Staff Contact:  Kathleen Phalen, 
408-586-3345) 

 
* 9. Authorize the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement with Santa 

Clara County for the Countywide Household Hazardous Waste Collection Program (Staff 
Contact:  Kathleen Phalen, 408-586-3345) 
 



 

April 2, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 3 
 

* 10. Authorize the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Pyro Spectaculars for the Not-
to-Exceed Amount of $21,600 for the Annual 4th of July Fireworks Display (Staff Contact:  
Chris Schroeder, 408-586-3161)  
 

 XX. DEMAND 
 

* 11. Receive Report of Emergency Repair and Equipment Replacement for the Police/Public 
Works Building Emergency Generator Fuel Lines and Authorize Staff to Pay Invoices 
(Staff Contact:  Kathleen Phalen, 408-586-3345) 

 
 XXI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 

NEXT REGULARLY SCHEDULED COUNCIL MEETING 
TUESDAY, APRIL 16, 2013 AT 7:00 P.M. 

 
 

 
KNOW YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE OPEN GOVERNMENT ORDINANCE 

 
Government’s duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public.   

Commissions, boards, and other agencies of the City exist to conduct the people’s business.  This ordinance assures 
that deliberations are conducted before the people and the City operations are open to the people’s review. 

For more information on your rights under the Open Government Ordinance or to report a violation, 
contact the City Attorney’s office at Milpitas City Hall, 455 E. Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas, CA  95035 

e-mail:  mogaz@ci.milpitas.ca.gov / Fax:  408-586-3056 / Phone:  408-586-3040 
 

The Open Government Ordinance is codified in the Milpitas Municipal Code as Title I Chapter 310 and is 

available online at the City’s website www.ci.milpitas.ca.gov by selecting the Milpitas Municipal Code link. 
 

Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the City Council after initial distribution of the  
agenda packet are available for public inspection at the City Clerk’s office at Milpitas City Hall, 3rd floor  

455 E. Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas and on the City website. 
 

All City Council agendas and related materials can be viewed online here:  
www.ci.milpitas.ca.gov/government/council/agenda_minutes.asp (select meeting date) 

 

APPLY  TO  BECOME A CITY COMMISSIONER!  
Current vacancies exist on the:  

 

Public Art Committee (Alliance for the Arts member) 

Community Advisory Commission (alternate) 
 

Commission application forms are available online at www.ci.milpitas.ca.gov or at Milpitas City Hall. 
Contact the City Clerk’s office (408-586-3003) for more information. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

If you need assistance, per the Americans with Disabilities Act, for any City of Milpitas public meeting, call the City 

Clerk at (408) 586-3001 or send an e-mail to mlavelle@ci.milpitas.ca.gov prior to the meeting.  You may request a 

larger font agenda or arrange for mobility assistance.  For hearing assistance, headsets are available in the 

Council Chambers for all meetings. 



 

April 2, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 4 
 

AGENDA REPORTS 
 
 XIII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

 1. Hold a Public Hearing, Introduce Ordinance No. 38.807 Approving a Development 
Agreement and Adopt a Resolution Approving a Site Development Permit and Certifying 
the Final Environmental Impact Report for the I-880 Billboard Project (Staff Contact:  
Sheldon Ah Sing, 408-586-3278) 
 
Background:  The City expressed interest in a revenue generating citywide signage program and 
issued requests for proposals in July of 2008. Milpitas Sign Company (a partnership between 
McCarthy Land Development and Clear Channel Outdoor) was awarded the ability to construct a 
portion of the sign program on May 5, 2009. This application represents two of the three signs 
awarded to Milpitas Sign Company.  
 
Design Review and Development Agreement 
The proposed signs are consistent with the City’s Sign Ordinance provisions for off-site 
advertising displays including height, size and operations. The Planning Commission reviewed 
the architectural design of the sign and recommended the City Council approve the project. 
Detailed information regarding the project, including the design, size and location, is included in 
the Planning Commission staff report and the exhibits to the project plan. 
 
The development agreement identifies the timeframe for responsibilities, obligations and shared 
benefits of erecting and managing the off-site advertising displays. Milpitas Sign Company, LLC, 
will operate the sign and will be responsible for selling advertising displays. The City will 
receive ten percent of the annual adjusted gross revenue.  
 
Environmental Review 
The scope of the Environmental Impact Report includes installation of three separate billboards 
containing a total of six advertising facings, two per structure, along the east side of I-880, south 
of Dixon Landing Road.  While the EIR includes four possible locations where three of the 
billboards could be located, signs will only be located at two of the locations based on leasing 
negotiations with property owners and distance limitations imposed by state law.  The Notice of 
Preparation for the EIR was circulated for public review between July 25, 2010 and August 25, 
2010. The Draft EIR was completed on May 18, 2011 and circulated for public review for 45 
days. Impacts identified in the EIR affect aesthetics at the project and cumulative levels. 
Mitigation measures are suggested, however, some impacts cannot be reduced to a level of less 
than significant and therefore, adoption of statements of overriding considerations is necessary 
regarding aesthetics. The Planning Commission staff report, the project’s EIR, and the project 
resolution provide additional detailed information (material included in the agenda packet). 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None. 
 
Attachments: 
1. Resolution 
2. Ordinance No. 38.807 
3. Project Plans 
4. Final Environmental Impact Report  
5. Planning Commission staff report and meeting minutes from 1/23/2013 
6. Public Comment 
 
Recommendations:    
1. Hold a public hearing to receive comments, then move to close the public hearing.  
2. Move to waive the first reading beyond the title of Ordinance No. 38.807. 
3. Introduce Ordinance No. 38.807 to approve a Development Agreement between Milpitas 

Sign Company, LLC and City of Milpitas.  



 

April 2, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 5 
 

4. Adopt a resolution approving a Site Development Permit and certifying the Final EIR for 
the McCarthy Billboards project. 

 
 2. Hold a Public Hearing and Adopt a Resolution Approving Recreation Services’ 

Registration Software Upgrade and Transaction Fee to be Applied to All Recreation 
Programs and Services (Staff Contact:  Jaime Chew, 408-586-3234) 
 
Background:  Starting in October of 2013, Recreation Services’ registration software, RecWare 
Safari, will no longer receive tech support.  This lack of support will also affect Recreation’s 
online registration abilities as well.  After much research and deliberation, Recreation staff needs 
to upgrade the registration software to ActiveNet by Active Network.  The ActiveNet software 
would not only provide additional features to enhance service and financial reporting, but it 
would also allow for complete data transfer from the previous registration software.  This will 
significantly reduce the amount of staff time needed for the software upgrade. 
 
The new registration software, ActiveNet, is a hosted technology which provides cloud 
computing.  Essentially, Active Network would be providing the software via the internet which 
eliminates the need for in-house servers or system maintenance.  With ActiveNet software, there 
will be no annual maintenance cost because it is a hosted technology.  However, because it is a 
hosted technology, Active Network will be assessing a 1.5% transaction fee on every transaction.  
This includes not only online transactions but in-person transactions which occur at all three 
Recreation sites—the Community Center, Barbara Lee Senior Center and the Sports Center. 
 
To compensate for this, staff proposes implementing a new Transaction Fee on all Recreation 
programs and services.  The fee would be on all transactions – a Transaction Fee of 1.5%. 
 
Example: A customer registers his/her child for an art class that is $50.  He would be assessed a 
1.5% Transaction Fee which would be $0.75 and would bring the registration total to $50.75.  
Or, a customer registers his/her child for a music class that is $140.  He would be assessed a 
1.5% Transaction Fee which would be $2.10 and would bring the registration total to $142.10. 
 
If approved, the new software would “go live” and the new Transaction Fee would be effective 
starting January 2014. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  The software upgrade from RecWare Safari to ActiveNet would cost $15,000.  
However, if Recreation Services is able to commit to the software upgrade by April 30, 2013, 
Active Network will discount the upgrade by $10,000 which would bring the total software 
upgrade to $5,000. 
 
Although there is no annual maintenance cost for the ActiveNet registration software, Active 
Network will be assessing a 1.5% transaction fee on all transactions.  In Fiscal Year 2011–12, 
Recreation Services brought in a total of $2,156,065.48 in revenue.  From this, it is predicted the 
transaction fee assessed by Active Network would result in payment of $32,340.98 to the vendor 
for the year.  The incurred cost of Active Network’s transaction fee would be passed through to 
the customer via Recreation Services’ 1.5% Transaction fee.  As such, the Recreation Services’ 
Transaction Fee would not exceed the reasonable cost to provide this service with the new 
registration software. 
 
Attachments: 
1. Resolution 
2. Recreation Master Fee Schedule Exhibit A 
 
Recommendations:   
1. Open the public hearing for comments, then move to close the public hearing. 
2. Approve Recreation Services’ software upgrade to ActiveNet by Active Network. 



 

April 2, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 6 
 

3. Adopt a resolution for the new Transaction Fee to be added to the Recreation Master Fee 
schedule, and apply it to all Recreation programs and services. 

 
 XIV. JOINT MILPITAS HOUSING AUTHORITY AND CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
*HA1. Adopt a Resolution Approving a Loan from the Housing Authority to the City of Milpitas 

for Demolition of City Buildings at 1650-1690 and 1740-1830 McCandless Drive and 
Authorize the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with DR Horton (Staff Contact:  
Felix Reliford, 408-586-3071) 
 
Background:  On February 19, 2013, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8227 delegating 
the Public Works Director the authority to take emergency action and allow emergency contracts 
to be executed without giving notice soliciting competitive bids. Since that time, the site has been 
fenced for security, demolition contractors have been conducting site inspections to bid the job 
(including asbestos removal) and staff has had ongoing discussions with DR Horton (Harmony 
Project is adjacent to the City buildings) regarding demolition of the buildings. Based on 
economy of scale, potential costs saving to the City and to expedite the demolition, staff 
recommends the City Council authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with DR 
Horton for demolition of City buildings on McCandless Drive. 
 
DR Horton solicited three bids from its contractors. Three contractor bids are included in the 
agenda packet. Staff recommends the selection of Gilroy Construction, Inc., the lowest bidder. In 
general, the demolition work will include: 
 

Demolition of Site - $415,000 
Utility Allowance - $75,000 
Asbestos Removal Allowance - $75,000___ 
   Subtotal:  $565,000 
 
General Contractor Fee (5% x $565,000) - $28,250 
Housing Authority Interest Rate (5% x $565,000) - $28,250 
   Grand Total:  $621,500 

 
Staff further recommends the Housing Authority authorize a loan to the City in the amount of 
$621,500 to pay for the demolition of the buildings on site. Once the City starts collecting Park-
In-Lieu fees from developers in the Transit Area, the loan will be paid back to the Housing 
Authority within one year. The City’s intra-fund for loans requires a 5% interest rate.  
 
Fiscal Impact:  None. There are sufficient funds in the Housing Authority to provide the loan to 
the City. 

 
Recommendation:  Adopt a resolution approving a loan from the Housing Authority to the City 
of Milpitas, and authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with DR Horton for the 
selection of Gilroy Construction, Inc. for the demolition of City buildings at 1650-1690 and 
1740-1830 McCandless Drive, at a total cost not-to-exceed $621,500.  
 

 XV. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
* 3. Receive the March 2013 Odor Control Report (Staff Contact:  Kathleen Phalen, 

408-586-3345) 
 
Background:  From February 19 through March 18, 2013, the Bay Area Air Quality 
Management District (BAAQMD) received thirty-eight odor complaints originating in Milpitas.  
Twenty-four complaints identified a garbage-related odor, two identified a sewage-related odor 
and thirteen did not identify an odor source. As of the last Council update, the City’s odor 
reporting website has received forty-eight reported complaints.  



 

April 2, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 7 
 

 
Fiscal Impact:  None. 
 
Recommendation:  Receive the March odor report. 

 
 XVI. REPORT OF MAYOR 
 

* 4. Consider Mayor’s Recommendations for Appointments to Four Milpitas Commissions 
(Contact:  Mayor Esteves, 408-586-3029) 
 
Background:  Mayor Esteves recommends the following new appointments: 
 
Arts Commission/Public Art Committee  
Newly appoint Marsha Tran as Alternate No. 2 to a term that will expire in October 2013. 
 
Community Advisory Commission 
Move Ray Maglalang from Alternate No. 2 to a regular voting member with a term to expire in 
January 2015. 
Move Van Lan Truong from Alternate No. 3 to Alternate No. 1 to a term that will expire in 
January 2015. 
Move Jacqueline Holland from Alternate No. 4 to Alternate No. 2 to a term that will expire in 
January 2015.  
Newly appoint Willy Wong as Alternate No. 3 to a term that will expire in January 2014. 
 
Economic Development Commission 
Newly appoint Mark Wong as Alternate No. 2 to a term that will expire in April 2014. 
 
Senior Advisory Commission 
Newly appoint Patrick Yung to Alternate No. 2 to a term that will expire in December 2014. 
 
Copies of all applications on file (for new appointments) are included in Council agenda packets.  
 
Recommendation:  Approve the appointment of seven people to four City of Milpitas 
Commissions. 
 

 XVII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 5. Receive Report on Updated Milpitas Emergency Operations Plan and Approve the Plan 
(Staff Contact:  Sean Simonson, 408-586-2810) 
 
Background:  Staff from the Milpitas Office of Emergency Services will provide a brief 
presentation on the updated City of Milpitas Emergency Operations Plan at the City Council 
meeting.  A copy of the Plan is included in the Council’s agenda packet.  
 
Fiscal Impact:  None.  
 
Recommendation:   Accept the report on the Milpitas Emergency Operations Plan as presented 
by Milpitas Office of Emergency Services and approve the Milpitas Emergency Operations Plan. 
 

 XVIII. RESOLUTION 
 
* 6. Authorize the Purchase of 25 CopVu Wearable Cameras from Watch Guard for Police 

Utilizing the 2012 Citizens Option for Public Safety (COPS) Grant and Adopt a Resolution 
Designating Watch Guard as a Sole Source Vendor and Standardize CopVu Cameras  
(Staff Contact:  Chris Schroeder, 408-586-3161) 
 



 

April 2, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 8 
 

Background:  In December of 2011, the Milpitas Police Department solicited three quotes and 
purchased 17 wearable cameras from Watch Guard through the Association of Bay Area 
Governments (ABAG) PLAN grant. The cameras use proprietary software that was further 
adjusted to the specific requirements of the Milpitas Police Department. 
 
On January 17, 2012, the Council accepted the 2012 Citizens Option for Public Safety grant for 
Milpitas Police. The Police Department received funds to purchase assorted equipment including 
wearable cameras.  The Police Department seeks to purchase 25 more wearable CopVu cameras 
from Watch Guard. Funds for the purchase will come from the remaining balance of the COPS 
grant of $21,298.64. The difference between the purchase price of the cameras $21,874.90 and 
the balance of the COPS Grant, $576.26 will come from the Police Department supplies budget. 
 
The Police Department also seeks approval for standardization of the CopVu cameras, pursuant 
to Municipal Code Section I-2-3.13, “Standardization” and the designation of “Sole Source” for 
Watch Guard as the sole distributor per Municipal Code I-2-3.09 “Sole Source Procurement.”  
 
Fiscal Impact:  None. This is a programmed purchase approved in the 2012 COPS Grant and 
remaining funds are budgeted in the Police Department’s supplies budget. 
 
Recommendations:   
1. Authorize the purchase of 25 CopVu wearable cameras from Watch Guard utilizing the 

COPS 2012 grant (approved by Council on January 17, 2012) and the Police Department 
supplies budget, in an amount not to exceed $22,000. 

2. Adopt a resolution designating Watch Guard as a “Sole Source” vendor and the 
standardization of the CopVu cameras for Milpitas Police Department.  

 
 XIX. BID AND CONTRACTS 
 

* 7. Award Construction Contract to DRT Grading & Paving Inc. for Park Renovation 2011 
Project No. 5091, Approve Budget Appropriation, and Authorize Staff to Execute Contract 
Change Orders (Staff Contact:  Steve Erickson, 408-586-3301) 
 
Background:  On May 1, 2012, the City Council approved the project plans and specifications 
and authorized the advertisement for construction bid proposals for the “Pathways” Park 
Renovation 2011. The project provides for repairs to pathways at Pinewood Park and Albert J. 
Augustine Jr. Memorial Park. The installation of new Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
compliant curb ramps connecting the pathways to City sidewalks is also included.  The 
Engineer’s Estimate for the base bid project work is $165,000.  
 
On April 17, 2012, the City Council approved grant funding for this project in the amount of 
$77,777.78 through the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program. These funds 
now need to be appropriated into Project No. 5091. 
 
The project was advertised and five sealed bids were received on March 20, 2013.  Bid proposals 
ranged from $109,510.20 to $205,279.20, with the lowest responsible base bid submitted by 
DRT Grading & Paving Inc. in the amount of $ 109,510.20.  
 
As was approved for the successful completion of the Senior Center, Public Library, Parking 
Garage, and other recent projects with tight completion and grant funding schedules, staff is 
requesting the use of the same change order policy to allow for the timely completion of this 
project.  This policy authorizes staff to execute change orders in order to respond swiftly to 
construction conditions in order to limit potential claims or risk to the City.  The construction 
contingency established for this project is $30,000, and the change order authority would not 
exceed this amount and would not require additional appropriation. 
 



 

April 2, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 9 
 

Fiscal Impact:  A budget appropriation to add the CDBG funding obtained in the amount of 
$77,777.78 is required in order to award this project.  The remainder of the funds is available in 
the project budget.   
 
Recommendations:   
1. Award a construction contract to DRT Grading & Paving Inc. for the Park Renovation 2011, 

Project No. 5091, in the amount of $109,510.20. 
2. Approve a budget appropriation of $77,777.78 from the Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG) into the Park Renovation 2011, Project No. 5091. 
3. Authorize staff to execute change orders up to $30,000 for the Park Renovation 2011, 

Project No. 5091. 
 

* 8. Authorize the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 3 to the Agreement with 
CalRecovery, Inc. for Solid Waste Consulting Services (Staff Contact:  Kathleen Phalen, 
408-586-3345) 
 
Background:  The City has an on-call agreement with CalRecovery to provide expert consulting 
services for odor issues and other solid waste related matters.  CalRecovery is currently working 
on odor issues related to the Newby Island landfill expansion. To continue CalRecovery’s 
support, staff recommends increasing the contract amount by $20,000 for a total contract value 
not to exceed $49,000 and exercising the second 12-month option to extend the term to June 30, 
2014. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None.  There are sufficient funds available in the Engineering operating budget. 
 
Recommendation:  Authorize the City Manager to execute Amendment No. 3 to the agreement 
with CalRecovery Inc. for solid waste consulting services for an amount not to exceed $20,000. 

 
* 9. Authorize the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement with Santa 

Clara County for the Countywide Household Hazardous Waste Collection Program (Staff 
Contact:  Kathleen Phalen, 408-586-3345) 
 
Background:  The Santa Clara County Department of Environmental Health has administered a 
countywide household hazardous waste collection program since October 1991.  An agreement 
dated May 22, 2012 between the County and each participating jurisdiction, including the City of 
Milpitas, allows the program to continue for a three-year period and it must be renewed each year 
with an amendment.  The landfill disposal facilities collect a tipping fee surcharge to fund this 
County-administered program. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None. 
 
Recommendation:  Authorize the City Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 to the agreement 
with Santa Clara County for the FY 2013-14 Countywide Household Hazardous Waste 
Collection Program. 
 

* 10. Authorize the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Pyro Spectaculars for the Not-
to-Exceed Amount of $21,600 for the Annual 4th of July Fireworks Display (Staff Contact:  
Chris Schroeder, 408-586-3161)  
 
Background:  The 4th of July is traditionally marked by a display of fireworks. There are only 
two fireworks vendors in the Bay Area. With offices in Oakland, Pyro Spectaculars is the only 
full service provider of “PyromusicalTM” fireworks displays in the Bay Area. The company is also 
the premier provider of pyrotechnic devices and aerial fireworks displays in the world. Based on 
its track record of excellence, safety, custom designed set pieces and bright work, Pyro 
Spectaculars has been the vendor of choice for the Milpitas Fire Department and the City of 
Milpitas for the past fifteen years. For the above mentioned reasons, this purchase was 



 

April 2, 2013 Milpitas City Council Agenda Page 10 
 

designated as a “sole source,” as sanctioned in Section I-2-3.09 of the Milpitas Municipal Code, 
by the City Council on April  5, 2011. The designation is good for four more years. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  $21,600. Funds for this purchase are yet to be determined but will come from 
one of two sources: either from a combination of donations and fundraising activities similar to 
last year or the City of Milpitas will fund the event from the Contingency Reserve.  
 
Recommendation:  Authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with Pyro Spectaculars 
for the not-to-exceed amount of $21,600 for the annual 4th of July 2013 fireworks display in the 
City of Milpitas.  
 

 XX. DEMAND 
 
* 11. Receive Report of Emergency Repair and Equipment Replacement for the Police/Public 

Works Building Emergency Generator Fuel Lines and Authorize Staff to Pay Invoices 
(Staff Contact: Kathleen Phalen, 408-586-3345) 
 
Background:  Pursuant to state public contracting law and Council Resolution No. 7779, the 
Director of Public Works may authorize emergency work, but must provide the City Council a 
report of all such work.  As required by Senate Bill 989, staff had Balch Petroleum test and 
inspect the Police/Public Works building emergency generator diesel fuel line secondary 
containment system.  This generator stands by to power the Police and Public Works Building in 
the event of a PG&E power outage.  It is fueled from the underground diesel tank at the 
Corporation Yard vehicle fuel island via 80-foot fuel line pipes.  These fuel lines are 
underground for most of their run, but surface into a trench alongside the aboveground generator.  
The piping secondary containment is a larger pipe sleeve that surrounds the fuel lines to capture 
and contain any fuel that might leak if the fuel line should break.  Testing the secondary 
containment consists of pressurizing the annular space between the fuel line and its secondary 
containment pipe with an inert gas and using a detector to locate any leaks of this gas. 
 
Balch’s initial testing identified two locations of the secondary containment requiring repair. In 
November, the Director approved and reported to Council Balch’s estimated cost of $6,950 to 
complete these emergency repairs.  Balch completed the identified repairs and, upon retesting, 
found additional leaks in the secondary containment that it repaired at an additional cost of 
$15,257.  Balch has now identified further needed work, including replacing the aboveground 
sections of secondary pipe, and replacing the leak monitor and leak sensors at an estimated cost 
of $24,300. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None.  
 
Recommendations:   
1. Receive this report of the Police/Public Works of emergency repairs and equipment 

replacement for the Police/Public Works building emergency generator fuel lines. 
2. Authorize staff to pay invoices for the repair work on the fuel lines.  
 

 XXI. ADJOURNMENT 
 

NEXT REGULARLY SCHEDULED COUNCIL MEETING 
TUESDAY, APRIL 16, 2013 AT 7:00 P.M. 

 



 
Milpitas City Council Minutes 

Draft MEETING MINUTES 
CITY OF MILPITAS 

 
Minutes of: Regular Meeting of Milpitas City Council  
Date: Tuesday, March 19, 2013 
Time: 6:00 PM 
Location: Council Chambers, Milpitas City Hall,  

455 East Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas  
 

 
ROLL CALL Mayor Esteves called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. The City Clerk noted the roll.  
 

PRESENT:  Mayor Esteves, Vice Mayor Polanski, Councilmembers Giordano and Montano  
 

ABSENT: Councilmember Gomez was absent at roll call and arrived in Closed Session at 6:15 
PM 

 
CLOSED SESSION City Council convened in Closed Session to discuss labor negotiations and one litigation matter. 
 

City Council then convened in Open Session at 7:20 PM. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT No announcement out of Closed Session.  
 
PLEDGE Boy Scouts Troop No. 92 presented the flags and led the pledge of allegiance. 
  
INVOCATION Councilmember Montano offered a prayer to start the meeting.  
 
MINUTES Motion:   to approve meeting minutes of March 5, 2013 City Council meeting, as amended  
  
 One correction was requested by the City Clerk, on page 4, recording the vote on the resolution as 

zero “No” votes (not one, as typewritten on the draft minutes). 
  
 Motion/Second:             Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 
 
 Motion carried by a vote of:    AYES:  5 
   NOES:  0  
 
SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS Motion: to approve Council Calendars/Schedule of Meetings for March and April 2013, as 

amended  
 

City Manager Tom Williams stated the San Jose/Santa Clara Treatment Plant Advisory 
Committee (TPAC) meeting was scheduled on Monday, March 25 at 1:30 p.m.  The City’s 
Economic Development Commission meeting met the previous evening on March 18 at 6:00 PM. 

 
 Motion/Second:          Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  

 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES:  5   
   NOES:  0 
 
PRESENTATION Mayor Esteves presented a Certificate of Recognition to the Art of Living Foundation.  Several 

representatives from the non-profit organization gave a presentation to inform the community 
about its current stress free, violence free community campaign. 

 
    Councilmember Gomez left the dais at this time for several minutes and returned later.  

 
PUBLIC FORUM Rob Means, 1421 Yellowstone, Milpitas resident, noted the comment “infeasible” stated at a 

previous meeting in reference to railroad crossing at Yosemite.  He researched it further.  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  March 19, 2013  2 

 
 Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, discussed the way that sewer costs were calculated.  
 
 Gary Roope, Mente Linda Loop, Milpitas resident, asked the City to do something on the parking 

situation, kitty corner to the newest auto dealerships on Thompson. Too many auto dealer 
employees were parking next to the City’s new parks in that neighborhood.  

 
 Frank DeSmidt of the Milpitas Rotary Club announced a free e-waste event at Huntford Printing 

on Saturday, March 30.  Also, the 39th annual celebration for the Milpitas Citizen of the Year was 
planned for April 13 at Pavalkis Hall, sponsored by the Knights of Columbus. 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS Chief Building Keyvan Irannejad introduced the City’s newly hired Principal Civil Engineer Mr. 

Ebby Sohradi, in land use engineering. 
 
 Vice Mayor Polanski thanked City staff, the Milpitas Historical Society and others who 

coordinated the fine opening of the beautiful new Alviso Adobe Park last Saturday morning.  
 
 Mayor Esteves congratulated the India Community Center upon ten years in the City of Milpitas. 

He announced two current art exhibits, one at City Hall and one at the Milpitas Library. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF   
CONFLICT OF INTEREST None. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA Motion:  to approve the agenda, as submitted 
 
    Motion/Second:                 Vice Mayor Polanski/Councilmember Giordano  
 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES:  5 
   NOES:  0  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR Motion:  to approve the Consent Calendar (items noted with *asterisk), as amended  
 
 Councilmember Montano requested to remove agenda item No. 5 on the Public Art Master Plan 

from consent for discussion.  
 
 Motion/Second:               Vice Mayor Polanski/Councilmember Giordano  
 
 Motion carried by a vote of: AYES:  5 
   NOES:  0  
 

* 4. Commission Appointments Newly appointed Melanie Holthaus to Economic Development Commission as Alternate 
No. 1 to a term that will expire in April 2015, and newly appointed Nonie McDonald to 
the Library Commission as Alternate No. 2 to a term that will expire in June 2013. 

  
* 7. Resolution Adopted Resolution No. 8238 granting initial acceptance of VTA’s Water, Storm, and 

Sewer Utility Relocation at Piper Dr. VTA Project No. C610, subject to 1 year warranty. 
  
* 8. Resolution  Adopted Resolution No. 8239 granting initial acceptance of Abel Street Transit 

Connection Project, Project No. 4260, Federal Project No. CML-5314 (003), subject to a 
one year warranty and reduction of the faithful performance bond to $103,440.04. 

  
* 9. Resolution  Adopted Resolution No. 8240 approving the Donation Policy and Procedures for the City 

of Milpitas Parks and Recreation Programs. 
  
*10. Resolution and other 
actions for Trumark project  

Adopted Resolution No. 8241 annexing properties known as “Pace Project” into 
Community Facility District 2008-1. 

  
*11. Resolution  Adopted Resolution No. 8242 authorizing the City Manager to execute a separate contract 

with Iteris, Inc., selected by the originating agency, the City of San Jose and incorporating 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  March 19, 2013  3 

by reference the original solicitation, terms, conditions, and pricing for the not-to-exceed 
amount of $73,600.  

  
*12. Bid to Crisp  Approved the award for On-Call Pavement Striping and Marking at various City of 

Milpitas locations to Chrisp Company for an annual not-to-exceed amount of $100,000. 
Allowed the City Manager to approve annual increases per the terms of the agreement 
without further action by City Council.   

  
*13. Bid to JJR  Approved the award to On-Call Sidewalk Repair Curbs & Gutters at various City of 

Milpitas locations to JJR Construction, Inc. for an annual not-to-exceed amount of 
$150,000.  Allowed the City Manager to approve annual increases per the terms of the 
agreement without further action by City Council.   

  
*14. Agreement with Contour 
Trade Zone  

Authorized the City Manager to execute an agreement with Contour Trade Zone LLC for 
fee credit reimbursement in the amount of $1,907,200 for TASP Public Facilities and 
Improvements.  

  
*15. Agreement for Pinewood 
Park  

Approved and authorized the City Manager to execute an agreement with Bellinger Foster 
Steinmetz Landscape Architecture, in the amount of $250,000 for Project No. 5096, 
subject to approval as to form by the City Attorney. 

  
*16. Telescoping Boom for 
Vactor Sewer Truck  

Approved the purchase of telescoping boom for the Vactor sewer truck for an amount not 
to exceed $25,000, and approve a budget appropriation. 

  
PUBLIC HEARING  
  
1.  S Milpitas Blvd Plan Line Transportation Engineer Steve Chan introduced the plan line for South Milpitas Blvd. 

designed in anticipation of the BART station and other development in the Transit Area 
Specific Plan area in the south end of Milpitas. He displayed maps and overhead slides to 
show where this line would be established. 
 
Mayor Esteves asked several questions, which were responded to by Ms. Carolyn Gonot, 
Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority’s project manager for the BART extension. 
She discussed plans for property acquisition, stating that VTA must follow the law in 
discussion with all property owners prior to any assessments and purchase of any parcels.  
 
Councilmember Montano inquired if there were any Santa Clara Valley Water District 
creeks near the plan line and staff replied yes, right next to the proposed roadway 
extension. Mr. Chan reported that City staff had coordinated with the County and Water 
District carefully on this plan line and the newer roadway portion would not encroach on 
the District’s property.  
 
Mayor Esteves opened the public hearing and invited speakers. 
 
Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, did not see any plans for bicycling on the maps 
displayed.  He wanted to know if there were plans for bicycle lanes.  
 
Rob Means, Milpitas resident, responded to previous speaker “yes” and said thanks to 
City staff for good job on complete streets implementation in this area with wide bike 
lanes and sidewalks.  
 
(1) Motion:   to close the public hearing  
 
Motion/Second:      Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                       AYES:  5 
                                                                                    NOES:  0 
 
 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  March 19, 2013  4 

(2) Motion:  to adopt Resolution No. 8237 establishing the South Milpitas Boulevard Plan 
Line from Montague Expressway to Capitol Avenue in the City of Milpitas  
 
Motion/Second:       Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                       AYES:  5 
                                                                                    NOES:  0 

  
UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
  
2.  BART Project Update  City Manager Tom Williams commended Ms. Carolyn Gonot - Santa Clara Valley 

Transportation Authority (VTA) BART project manager - and her staff, who were doing a 
fantastic job working with the City on the progress of BART coming to Milpitas.  
 
Acting City Engineer Kathleen Phalen introduced Ms. Gonot from VTA to provide an 
update on the BART construction status in Milpitas.  Additionally, from VTA staff, Mr. 
Mark Massman, VTA Silicon Valley BART Extension (SVBX) Project Director and Ms. 
Bernice Alaniz , VTA SVBX Communications Director, addressed the Council. 
 
Ms. Alaniz described current project activity, with over eleven major utilities moved for 
grade separation.  She discussed the stakeholder outreach performed in a three tier 
approach.  Ms. Gonot provided more details on the project in the near future. The project 
includes a Residential Noise Insulation Program underway, with 246 homes near the new 
BART station eligible for sound improvements, including 97 in Milpitas.  
 
Mr. Massman next spoke on the plan for MOTA, Maintenance of Traffic and Access for 
the BART construction project.   
 
Councilmember Montano inquired about the Kato Rd./Dixon Landing area, and Mr. 
Massman responded with some accomplishments there, and work remaining.  
 
For contact and communications, there were three BART project offices, with the main 
office in Milpitas on California Circle.  Mayor Esteves thanked all three VTA speakers for 
their presentations. 
 
The Mayor next invited speakers from audience. 
 
Carol Kassab, CEO of Milpitas Chamber of Commerce, addressed Ms. Montano, 
explaining that the Chamber had put Milpitas Materials (a local supplier) in touch with the 
VTA at the start of the project.  
 
Councilmember Giordano asked when would the next report be provided to City Council 
and Ms. Gonot responded, in about four months.  VTA staff reported that on April 5, 
VTA would celebrate the re-opening of Kato Road and the milestone one-year 
anniversary of the start of BART construction.  
 
Motion:    to receive the report given at the Council meeting by Valley Transportation 
Authority’s staff on construction of the Bay Area Rapid Transit extension 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                       AYES:  5 
                                                                                    NOES:  0 

  
3.  Fire Department Update  City Manager Tom Williams reviewed for the City Councilmembers why this matter was 

presented this date, arriving one month after a vote of the Council to work toward solution 
on the issue of significant overtime expenses in the Fire Department, well over what was 
budgeted in FY 2012-13.   
 



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  March 19, 2013  5 

Fire Chief Brian Sturdivant gave a progress report on addressing the minimum staffing 
flexibility and control on overtime costs.  IAFF Local #1699 employees did not vote to 
affirm the plan that the Council authorized on February 19.  He identified the containment 
measures in that previous vote: four firefighter layoffs effective on Wednesday, March 20, 
one fire apparatus taken out of service, and six firefighter personnel demoted (per City’s 
employment regulations upon reduction in force). 
 
Councilmember Giordano thought this issue was done.  The Council did not change 
anything as presented last month when the agreement was presented, so she was shocked 
at this outcome.  
 
Councilmember Gomez asked about overtime costs over the last two months.  Chief  
Sturdivant responded it was about $75,000 per month, slightly down from last fall.  Mr. 
Gomez also sought additional explanation on the federal SAFER grant. 
 
Vice Mayor Polanski asked if the federal sequester being implemented had any impact on 
the SAFER grant award. Chief Sturdivant replied, none right now, while he would need to 
determine that after October 1, when the new federal fiscal year started.  
 
Councilmember Montano wanted to know if the City had mutual aid with the City of 
Fremont. The Fire Chief confirmed Milpitas did have an agreement with both larger cities 
to the north and south of Milpitas, and he had recently received a letter of support from 
the Fremont Fire Chief.  
 
Mayor Esteves stated he was looking more for long term stability of the City’s Fire 
Department and related costs for the service. His priority was cost containment.  
 
Next, the Mayor invited comments from the audience. 
 
Robert Marini, Milpitas resident, said one thing Council could do was not increase the 
number of housing units. 
 
Firefighter Geoff Maloon sought more than three minutes to speak, which the Mayor did 
not grant, so he left the dais making no comments.  
 
Steve King, President of IAFF, wanted to tell one side of story.  He discussed some of the 
overtime issues, and reminded the Council that Battalion Chiefs had no overtime.  They 
had worked hard to bring down overtime expenses and wanted the Council to accept the 
SAFER grant.  The Fire Department could “upstaff” with those funds.   He wondered why 
they should lower minimum staffing while accepting grant funds to hire six more.  
 
Councilmember Giordano responded to Mr. King, stating she held up her end of the 
bargain, and supported the agreement last month, but now the union said no.  
 
Vice Mayor Polanski spoke on behalf of Council’s Task Force, made up of her and Mr. 
Gomez, and the work they had done to come up with a fair plan.  She was very 
disappointed in the position the Council was put it in, at this meeting, since the vote of the 
firefighters did not support the plan.  
 
Councilmember Gomez questioned the Fire Chief to fully understand the SAFER grant. 
He asked if the Chief would continue to pursue the grant even after layoffs were 
implemented. Chief Sturdivant noted the grant was awarded, and there was a 30 day 
window to work out issues to be able to implement the terms. Mr. Gomez did not want to 
see the money go away.  
 
City Manager Williams addressed flexibility on staffing in the Fire Department, stating 
there was none under the current Memorandum of Understanding.  With a number of 59 
firefighters total - once the grant was accepted and implemented - for the 24 months 
performance period.  That could not change at all, if the funds were accepted.  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  March 19, 2013  6 

 
City Attorney Mike Ogaz remarked on the wording of the motion recommended by staff 
on the agenda, and it could be broken into two parts, if desired.  
 
Motion:  to direct the Milpitas Fire Chief to implement the plan to brown out one fire 
apparatus and implement layoffs of four Milpitas firefighters effective March 20, 2013, 
and to reject the SAFER grant  
 
Motion/Second:     Councilmember Giordano/Mayor Esteves   
 
Vice Mayor Polanski asked staff about the SAFER grant, and its specific timelines 
necessary in the details of the grant. Chief Sturdivant confirmed the $2.1 million amount 
to hire six firefighters by an April deadline, with the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA) willing to entertain adjustments to the final amount.  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                       AYES:  5 
                                                                                    NOES:  0 

  
REPORTS   
  
5. Public Art Committee Councilmember Montano had removed this item from consent, and she had read the goals 

of the Public Art program and Master Plan.  She highlighted one type of funding, from the 
City of Brea, which had an ordinance to require developers pay into a fund over time for 
these projects. She wanted to consider such ordinance in Milpitas.  She also inquired 
about the “Cartwheel Kids” sculpture at City Hall and how to move forward to getting it 
over to the Library (it was not on the list of projects for approval). 
 
Recreation staff Renee Lorentzen responded on costs to move the sculpture, with $15,000 
as the estimated maximum provided by the artist some time ago.  Councilmember 
Montano wanted to see the art moved but hoped actual cost would be lower.  
 
Vice Mayor Polanski agreed with moving the “Kids” even if the recommendation from 
the Committee was to hold off.  She preferred the Minute Man statue to be installed in 
place of the Kids statue at City Hall.  She referred to the 60th anniversary of City next 
January and hoped to see the Minute Man in place by then.  
 
Councilmember Gomez felt art was wonderful, but he opposed spending up to $166,000 
City funds on an art project, however.   He would vote against such expenditure. 
 
Mayor Esteves asked if the cost (of moving Cartwheel Kids) had gone out for bid.  Ms. 
Lorentzen replied that staff only had an estimate to date, and certainly could solicit bids.  
 
(1) Motion:   to move the Cartwheel Kids sculpture from City Hall to the front of the 
Milpitas Library  
 
Motion/Second:         Councilmember Montano/Vice Mayor Polanski 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                     AYES:  4 
                                                                                  NOES:  1 (Gomez) 
 
The next action then would be to install the Minute Man as art in front of City Hall, and 
the Mayor wanted to put that issue on the Council’s agenda.  
 
Councilmember Montano wanted the issue of seeking funds from developers for Public 
Art into a special fund on the agenda and to study an ordinance.  The City Manager 
responded that nearby cities, such as Fremont, had a similar ordinance.  
 
(2)  Motion:  to review ordinances in other cities related to public art and its funding; and, 
to approve the Public Art Committee Master Plan  



 

Draft Milpitas City Council Meeting Minutes                                                  March 19, 2013  7 

 
Motion/Second:         Councilmember Montano/Vice Mayor Polanski 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                     AYES:  4 
                                                                                  NOES:  1 (Gomez)   

  
ORDINANCE  
  
6.  Ordinance No. 284 City Attorney Ogaz reviewed the genesis of this new ordinance, along with edits he’d 

made to the earlier draft version as directed at the last City Council meeting.  
 
Mayor Esteves wanted to add a request for announcement of any donations from 
employee unions to the ordinance.  Mr. Ogaz responded that the Mayor’s goal was already 
reached, by the language included on “contracts” since employee groups’ Memorandums 
of Understanding were, in fact, contracts that came before the Council for a vote. 
 
Ordinance No. 284 was “An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Milpitas Adding 
Milpitas Municipal Code Section I-210-5.20 Requiring Disclosure of Developer 
Contributions to City Council.”  
 
(1) Motion:   to waive the second reading of Ordinance No. 284 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski 
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                  AYES:  5  
                                                                               NOES:  0 
 
(2) Motion:  to adopt Ordinance No. 284 
 
Motion/Second:            Councilmember Giordano/Vice Mayor Polanski  
 
Motion carried by a vote of:                                  AYES:  5 
                                                                               NOES:  0 

  
RESOLUTIONS Five Resolutions were approved on consent calendar.  
  
BIDS & CONTRACTS Five items were approved on consent calendar. 
  
ADJOURNMENT Mayor Esteves adjourned the meeting at 9:37 PM. 

 
Meeting minutes respectfully submitted by  

Mary Lavelle, City Clerk 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Counci l  Ca lendar   
April 2013 

 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

 
 

 1 
7:00 PM-Parks, Recreation & 
Cultural Resources Commission 
(AP) 
 

 2 
6:00 PM-Closed Session 
7:00 PM-City Council 
 

 3 
7:30 AM-VTA Northeast Group 
(JE) 
5:30 PM-Veterans Commission 
(DG) 
7:00 PM-Community Advisory 
Commission  (AG) 
 

 4 
5:30 PM-VTA Board of Directors (JE) 
 

 5 
 

 6 
 

 7 
 

 8 
6:00 PM-Economic Development 
Commission (CM) 
 

 9 
 

 10 
12:00 PM-Santa Clara Valley 
Water Commission (AG) 
7:00 PM-Planning Commission 
 

 11 
4:00 PM-VTA Policy Advisory 
Committee (AG) 
4:30 PM-Treatment Plant Advisory 
Committee (JE)   
(San Jose)  
6:00 PM-Cities Assn of SCC (JE) 
7:00 PM-Youth Advisory Commission 
(DG) 
 

 12 
 

 13 
12:00 PM 
Commissioners 
Luncheon at  
Milpitas  
Community  
Center 
 

 14 
 

 15 
7:00 PM-Telecommunications 
Commission (AP) 
 

 16 
6:00 PM-Closed Session  
7:00 PM-City Council 
 

 17 
 

 18 
12:30 PM-VTA Admin & Finance 
Committee (JE)  
7:00 PM-Bay Area Water Supply 
Consv. Agency (AG) (Foster City) 
 

 19 
9:00 AM-VTA Board 
Workshop Meeting 
(JE) 

 20 
 

 21 
 

 22 
 

 23 
1:30 PM-Senior Advisory 
Commission (JE) 
6:00 PM-Recycling & Source 
Reduction Adv. Comm. (CM) 
 

 24 
7:00 PM-Planning Commission 
 

 25 
7:00 AM-Milpitas Chamber of 
Commerce Board (DG) 
12:00 PM-Terrace Gardens Board of 
Directors (DG) 
1:30 PM-SCC Library JPA Board (CM) 
7:00 PM-Sister Cities Commission 
(CM) 
 
 

 26 
 

 27 
 

 28 
 

 29 
 

 
 

 
 

 30 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Updated 03/27/2013 

May 2013 

S M T W T F S 
    1  2  3  4 

 5  6  7  8  9  10  11 

 12  13  14  15  16  17  18 

 19  20  21  22  23  24  25 

 26  27  28  29  30  31  

       

March 2013 

S M T W T F S 
      1  2 

 3  4  5  6  7  8  9 

 10  11  12  13  14  15  16 

 17  18  19  20  21  22  23 

 24  25  26  27  28  29  30 

 31       



   

Resolution No.___ 1

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MILPITAS APPROVING SITE 
DEVELOPMENT PERMIT NO. SD12-0007, A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND CERTIFYING 

THE FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE I-880 MILPITAS BILLBOARDS 
PROJECT AND ADOPTING RELATED MITIGATION FINDINGS, FINDINGS REGARDING 

ALTERNATIVES, AND A STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS PURSUANT TO 
THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 

 
WHEREAS, on September 28, 2012, an application was submitted by Milpitas Sign Company, LLC for 

site development approval for the erection and operation of a freestanding off-site advertising display including 
an agreement between the City and the applicant. The project is located at 1301 California Circle (APN: 022-37-
002) and 1545 California Circle (APN: 022-37-049); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Division completed an environmental assessment for the project in 
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), and determined that an Environmental 
Impact Report (EIR) would be required for the project and circulated a Notice of Preparation dated July 25, 
2010 to public agencies and interested parties for consultation on the scope of the EIR; and 

 
WHEREAS, based on the responses to the Notice of Preparation, the City prepared a Draft 

Environmental Impact Report (“Draft EIR”) dated May 2011 (SCH No. 201062083) which reflected the 
independent judgment of the City as to the potential environmental effects of the Project.  The Draft EIR was 
circulated for a 45 day public review and comment period, from May 18, 2011; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project was the subject of public meetings and the Project and Final EIR were the 
subject of a public meeting held on January 23, 2013; and 
 

WHEREAS, City staff reviewed all comments received on the Draft EIR during the public review 
period and prepared written responses providing the City’s good faith, reasoned analysis on the environmental 
issues raised by the comments.  Revisions to the Draft EIR were identified as appropriate. City staff reviewed all 
written responses to comments and all revisions to the Draft EIR and determined that none of the responses 
and/or revisions included significant new information requiring recirculation of the Draft EIR pursuant to CEQA 
Guidelines § 15088.5.  The comment letters, written responses to comments and revisions to the Draft EIR are 
contained in a separately bound Final EIR dated March 2012.  The May 2011 Draft EIR and the March 2012 
Final EIR, both of which are included in the Council packet and available for public review at the Office of the 
City Clerk, together constitute the final Environmental Impact Report for the Project pursuant to CEQA 
Guidelines §§ 15089 and 15132, and reflect the City’s independent judgment and analysis on the potential 
environmental impacts of the Project; and 
 

WHEREAS, on January 23, 2013 the Planning Commission held a noticed public hearing on the 
Project at which time the Commission considered a written staff report as to the proposed application and its 
conformity with the requirements of Milpitas Municipal Code § XI-10-24.05.G (Off-Site Advertising Displays 
Adjacent to Interstate Highways and State Routes), the Draft EIR, written and oral comments on the Draft EIR, 
the Final EIR, and all other oral and written comments presented to them.  Based on this evidence, the Planning 
Commission recommended that the City Council certify the EIR and approve the Site Development Permit No. 
SD12-0007 (Resolution No. 13-004); and 

 
WHEREAS, the EIR identifies the potential for significant effects on the environment from 

development of the Project, not all of which can be substantially reduced through implementation of mitigation 
measures; therefore, approval of the Project must include findings regarding mitigation measures and 
alternatives as set forth in Exhibit B; and 
 

1



   

Resolution No.___ 2

WHEREAS, some of the significant effects identified in the EIR cannot be lessened to a level of less 
than significant; therefore, approval of the Project must include a Statement of Overriding Considerations as set 
forth in Exhibit C; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City has prepared a Mitigation, Monitoring and Reporting Program to ensure 
monitoring and implementation of the mitigation measures set forth in Exhibit D; and 
 

WHEREAS, on April 2, 2013, the City Council held a noticed public hearing to consider certification 
of the EIR, and approval of the Project. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the foregoing recitals are true and correct and made a 
part of this Resolution. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Milpitas City Council determines, finds and certifies as 
follows: 
 
1.  Regarding the Site Development Permit: 
 

a. The proposed display will not create a hazard to vehicular or pedestrian traffic, and measures have been 
taken to reduce potential impacts upon the existing visual character of the site and surrounding in that 
the displays are angled away from neighboring properties and will include automatic dimming devices 
to ensure the appropriate glare level. 

 
b. All advertising on the off-site advertising display will conform with the Outdoor Advertising Act in the 

California Business and Professions Code and other applicable State and federal rules and regulations. 
 

c. The development of the off-site advertising display will result in a public benefit to the City 
outweighing any adverse impacts that might be caused by the advertising display.  The proposed display 
will present a positive image of the City of Milpitas and increase its visibility and presence to the 
traveling public, thereby informing travelers of amenities and products available in the project area.  
The proposed display will also provide opportunities for advertising or information regarding 
community events and programs. 

 
d. The development of the off-site advertising display will promote economic development within the City 

in that the signs provide for additional commercial corridor communication, thereby advertising the 
availability of goods and services. 

 
e. The design, including lighting, scale, size and materials, of the off-site advertising display is consistent 

with the intent of the design criteria of the off-site advertising display provisions in that the sign is 
consistent with the height, size, and lighting and is compatible in design and appearance to the 
commercial, office and retail structures in the surrounding area. 

 
f. The development and location of the proposed off-site advertising display is consistent with the goals of 

the Milpitas General Plan in that the sign: 
 

i.  provides a partnership with local business entities and provides an opportunity to promote 
economic activity within the City. 

 
ii.  allows the City to position itself for appropriate identification for businesses and projects a 

positive quality image for Milpitas. 
 
iii.  promotes and balances economic development by creating a medium for local businesses to 

advertise and ensures quality identification. 



   

Resolution No.___ 3

 
2.  Regarding the EIR: 
 

a. That the final EIR for the Project has been completed in compliance with CEQA and the CEQA 
Guidelines. 

 
b. That the EIR was presented to the City Council who reviewed and considered the information contained 

therein prior to approving the Project. 
 

c. That the Final EIR reflects the City’s independent judgment and analysis on the potential for 
environmental effects of the Project. 

 
d. That the custodian of the documents and other materials which constitute the record of proceedings for 

the Project is the City of Milpitas Planning Division located at City Hall, 455 East Calaveras Boulevard, 
Milpitas, California 95035. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Milpitas City Council adopts the Conditions of Approval set 

forth in Exhibit A, the Findings for the EIR set forth in Exhibit B, the Statement of Overriding Considerations 
set forth in Exhibit C, and the Mitigation, Monitoring and Reporting Program set forth in Exhibit D. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of _____________. 
 
AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

 
ATTEST: APPROVED: 
 
 
   

Mary Lavelle, City Clerk     Jose S. Esteves, Mayor 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 

Michael J. Ogaz, City Attorney 



   

Resolution No.___ 4

EXHIBIT A 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Site Development Permit No. SD12-0007 
A request for off-site advertising displays 

1301 California Circle (APN: 022-038-002) and 1541 California Circle (APN: 022-37-049) 
 
General Conditions 
 
1.  The owner or designee shall develop the approved project in conformance with the approved plans approved 

by the City Council, in accordance with these Conditions of Approval.  Any deviation from the approved 
site plan, floor plans, elevations, materials, colors, landscape plan, or other approved submittal shall require 
that prior to the issuance of building permits, the owner or designee shall submit modified plans and any 
other applicable materials as required by the City for review and obtain the approval of the Planning 
Director or Designee.  If the Planning Director or designee determines that the deviation is significant, the 
owner or designee shall be required to apply for, review and obtain approval of the City Council, in 
accordance with the Zoning Ordinance. (P) 

 
SD12-0007 shall become null and void if the project is not commenced within two (2) years from the date of 
approval.  Pursuant to Section 64.06(B) of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Milpitas:  
 
a.  Completes a foundation associated with the project; or 
b.  Dedicates any land or easement as required from the zoning action; or 
c.  Complies with all legal requirements necessary to commence the use, or obtains an occupancy permit, 

whichever is sooner. 
 
2.  Pursuant to Section 64.06(1), the owner or designee shall have the right to request an extension of SD12-

0007 if said request is made, filed and approved by the Planning Commission prior to expiration dates set 
forth herein. (P)  

 
3.  Prior to the issuance of building permits, the owner or designee shall include within the four first pages of 

the working drawings for a plan check, a list of all conditions of approval imposed by the final approval of 
the project. (P) 
 

4.   Prior to issuance of a building permit, the owner or designee shall provide a landscape plan showing native 
and drought tolerant plants such as, but not limited to rosemary, California Poppy species to be planted at 
the base of the sign. (P) 

 
5.  Prior to issuance of building permit final, the owner or designee shall demonstrate that the plantings 

pursuant to the landscape plan are in place. (P) 
 
6.   Prior to issuance of a building permit, the owner or designee shall demonstrate final project design 

specifications to include a combination of display angle, display light source shielding, LED display 
brightness control; illumination aim, focus and shielding; etc., sufficient to shield nearby residential vantage 
point direct views of the displays and to prevent excessive glare, and stray (overcast) illumination. In 
addition, require the Project Development Agreement to include a process for modifying these various 
displays and lighting specifications, if deemed necessary over time by the City, based upon directives 
received from Caltrans, or the California Highway Patrol, complaints received, or the City’s own periodic 
visual inspection and consideration of billboard operational characteristics.   (MM) 

 
7. The Project Development Agreement shall include a process for modifying display and lighting 

specifications, if deemed necessary over time by the City. Modifications could include adjustments to digital 
display brilliance, content, motion, recess, aim, focus, shielding, etc. (MM) 



   

Resolution No.___ 5

 
(P) = Planning 
(B) = Building 
(E) = Engineering 
(F) = Fire Prevention  
(MM) = Mitigation Measure 



   

Resolution No.___ 6

EXHIBIT B 
 

MITIGATION FINDINGS AND FINDINGS CONCERNING ALTERNATIVES FOR 
THE I-880 BILLBOARD PROJECT LOCATED AT 1301 CALIFORNIA CIRCLE AND  

1545 CALIFORNIA CIRCLE 
 
SECTION 1: MITIGATION FINDINGS PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 15091 
 
Pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21081 and CEQA Guidelines Sections 15091 and 15163(e), the City 
Council hereby makes the following findings with respect to the potential for significant environmental impacts 
from the project located at 1301 California Circle and 1545 California Circle (“Project”) and means for 
mitigating those impacts. The impacts and mitigations included in the following findings are summarized rather 
than set forth in full. The Draft and Final EIR documents are incorporated herein by reference and should be 
consulted for a complete description of the impacts and mitigations. 
 
Less than Significant Impact with Mitigation 
 
Aesthetics Impact 4-2: Project Spill Light and Sky Glow Impacts. A number of federal, state, and city laws and 
regulations have been adopted to regulate the brilliance of billboard lighting so as to not impair the vision of 
drivers. Digital billboards are also equipped with sensors that modify the brightness of the LED display in 
response to ambient lighting conditions, so that the brightness of the display at night does not present a traffic 
safety hazard. These brightness regulations and controls are not intended, and may not be sufficient, to 
effectively control the potential for billboard sign spill light and sky glow impacts. Mitigation features to be 
included in the project to shield nearby residences from spill light and to limit sky glow have not yet been 
specified—e.g., display brilliance (light intensity), static display light source shielding, electronic display 
dimming controls, and other specifications (display orientation, aim focus and shielding) sufficient to prevent 
excessive glare or overcast illumination). 
 
Depending upon such specifications, the project could cause excessive spill light and sky glow (especially 
during nighttime foggy conditions) that may create a nuisance for adjacent sensitive residential uses on Heath 
Street, Redwood Avenue, Glenmoor Circle, N. Abbott Avenue, and east of the Penitencia Creek channel. As a 
result, sky glow caused by the project could substantially degrade the quality of nighttime views and night sky 
access from these nearby vantage points. These possible light, glare and sky glow effects represent a potentially 
significant impact.   
 
Mitigation MeasureAES-4.2: As a condition of approval, require final project design specifications to include a 
combination of display angle, display light source shielding, LED display brightness control; illumination aim, 
focus and shielding; etc., sufficient to shield nearby residential vantage point direct views of the displays and to 
prevent excessive glare, and stray (overcast) illumination. In addition, require the Project Development 
Agreement to include a process for modifying these various displays and lighting specifications, if deemed 
necessary over time by the City, based upon directives received from Caltrans, or the California Highway Patrol, 
complaints received, or the City’s own periodic visual inspection and consideration of billboard operational 
characteristics.    
 
Finding:  Implementation of these measures to the satisfaction of the City’s Planning and Neighborhood 
Services Director would reduce the potential light, glare and sky glow impacts of the project to a less than 
significant level. 
 
SECTION 2: FINDINGS CONCERNING ALTERNATIVES 
 
CEQA requires that an EIR identify alternatives to a project as proposed. CEQA Guidelines §15126.6(a) 
specifies that the EIR identify alternatives which “would feasibly attain most of the basic objectives of the 
project, but would avoid or substantially lessen many of the significant environmental effects of the project.” 



   

Resolution No.___ 7

Feasible means capable of being accomplished in a successful manner within a reasonable period of time, taking 
into account economic, environmental, social and technological factors. In addition, consistent with CEQA § 
21002, a project should not be approved if feasible alternatives would substantially lessen the Project’s 
significant effects.  CEQA requires that an EIR identify alternatives to the project as proposed.  The CEQA 
Guidelines [Section 15126.6(a)] specify that an EIR identify alternatives which “would feasibly attain most of 
the basic objectives of the project but would avoid or substantially lessen any of the significant effects of the 
project.”  Chapter 7 Alternatives of this EIR analyzes several alternatives to the proposed project.  A brief 
summary of these alternatives and their impacts is provided below.  
 
Alternative 1: No Project Alternative 

 
Under the No Project alternative, the project sites would remain as is with no new impacts.  The No Project 
alternative would avoid all the environmental impacts of the proposed project.  The No Project alternative would 
not meet any of the project objectives, but it would avoid all of the impacts of the proposed project.  For this 
reason, the No Project Alternative is an environmentally superior alternative to the proposed project. 
 

Alternative 2: Lower Height 
 
Alternative 2, Lower Height, would involve installing three billboard structures along the east side of I-880 
south of Dixon Landing Road, similar to the Project. However, Alternative 2 would reduce the height of 
billboards to 50 feet, down from 70 feet with the Project. All other location, design and operational 
characteristics of Alternative 2 would remain similar to the Project.  
 
Impacts and Mitigations 
 
a.  Aesthetics. Alternative 2 would reduce significant impacts of the project on I-880 gateway visual character 

and spill light, glare and sky glow impacts. Impacts on I-880 gateway visual character would be reduced, 
but the reduction would not be substantial—i.e., this identified impact would remain significant and 
unavoidable. At a height of 50 feet, the billboards would not be blocked from view by roadside vegetation 
and would still be visible to approaching freeway drivers for considerable distance, but would likely not be 
visible from adjacent residential uses on Glenmoor Circle, North Abbott Avenue, and east of the Penitencia 
Creek channel. The sky glow impacts and mitigation needs of Alternative 2 would be similar to the project. 

 
b.  Transportation. Alternative 2 would not be visible from as great of a distance or as long a time from the 

freeway view as the Project, but would still result in traffic safety effects similar to but less than the Project.  
 
c.  Other Impacts. Alternative 2 would have similar less-than-significant impacts with respect to all other 

environmental topics included in CEQA Guidelines Appendix G and evaluated in Section 6.4, Effects 
Found Not to be Significant, of the EIR. 

 
Attainment of Project Alternatives 
 
Alternative 2 would reduce or avoid Project visual and noise impacts on nearby residential and hotel uses, and 
would be substantially as effective in meeting the basic Project objective of erecting new freeway billboards 
with high visibility, as well as providing advertising revenue to the applicant and the City. 
 

Alternative 3: Fewer Billboards 

 
Figure 7.1 of the EIR shows seven possible locations, Site Options 1 through 7, where the proposed three digital 
billboard structures may be located. Under the proposed Project, all three billboard structures would be located 
on the east side of I-880, at three of the four east side Site Options 1 through 4. 
 



   

Resolution No.___ 8

Under Alternative 3, Fewer Billboards, two billboard structures rather than three would be installed along the 
east side of I-880 south of Dixon Landing Road. The proposed east side billboard at Site Option 4 would be 
eliminated in order to reduce the potential for traffic safety hazards associated with driver distraction near driver 
decision and action points and official traffic control signs associated with the northbound off-ramp of the Dixon 
Landing Road interchange. The two billboards retained would be located on Project Site Options 1, 2 or 3. All 
other design and operational characteristics of Alternative 3 would also be similar to the Project. 
 
Impacts and Mitigations 
 
a.  Aesthetics. Alternative 3 would allow for optimal placement of the billboards to reduce or avoid visual 

impacts on nearby homes. With only two billboards instead of three there would be a proportional decrease 
in impacts on light, glare and sky glow. Alternative 3 would also reduce or avoid Project visual impacts on 
sensitive residential uses east of the Penitencia Creek channel near Dixon Landing Road. Impacts on I-880 
gateway visual character would be reduced but would nevertheless remain significant and unavoidable. 
There would be less interference with future City implementation of gateway landscaping and signage 
treatments recommended in the General Plan and Streetscape Master Plan. Nevertheless, impact and 
mitigation findings 4-1 through 4-3 for the proposed Project would continue to apply. 

 
b.  Transportation. With only two billboards instead of three, there would be some decrease in potential Project 

effects on driver attention. 
 
c.  Other Impacts. Alternative 3 would have similar less-than-significant impacts with respect to all other 

environmental topics included in CEQA Guidelines Appendix G and evaluated in Section 6.4, Effects 
Found Not to be Significant, of this EIR. 

 
Attainment of Project Objectives 
 
Alternative 3 would achieve the basic Project objectives of erecting new freeway digital billboards, as well as 
providing benefits to the applicant and City in terms of local business promotion and generation of associated 
advertising revenue. However, with only two billboards instead of three, there would be a proportional decrease 
in benefits accruing to the billboard owner and operator, as well as to the City. 
 
Alternative 4: All Non-Led Billboards 

 
Under Alternative 4, All Non-LED Billboards, three billboard structures would be installed on three of the 
same four site options along the east side of I-880 as under the proposed Project, but without “digital” LED 
displays. Instead, all three would include externally illuminated facings, two per structure. The locations, height 
and size of the three “non-digital” billboards would be similar to the Project. 
 
Impacts and Mitigations 
 
a.  Aesthetics. Alternative 4 would be less visually conspicuous because non-LED billboards would not have 

changing messages. In addition, the light sources used for sign illumination could be more effectively 
shielded. Therefore, Alternative 4 could be designed to reduce spill light, glare and sky glow impacts. 
Alternative 4 would still cause a significant and unavoidable impact on gateway visual character. In 
summary, impact and mitigation findings 4-1 through 4-3 for the proposed Project would continue to apply 
under Alternative 4. 

 
b.  Transportation. Alternative 4 would reduce the traffic safety effects of the project. Non-LED billboards 

would be less distracting to drivers because they would be less bright and would not have changing 
messages, which are more noticeable and distracting. 

 



   

Resolution No.___ 9

c.  Other Impacts. Alternative 4 would have similar less-than-significant impacts with respect to all other 
environmental topics included in CEQA Guidelines Appendix G and evaluated in Section 6.4, Effects 
Found Not to be Significant, of this EIR. 

 
Attainment of Project Objectives 
 
Alternative 4 would partially achieve the basic Project objectives of erecting new freeway billboards, though not 
digital billboards, and would provide similar but reduced benefits to the applicant and City in terms of 
advertising revenue and promotion of local businesses. 
 
Alternative 5: Alternative Location--Two Billboards On East Side And One Billboard On West Side Of I-880 

 
Under Alternative 5, two of the three proposed billboard structures would be located on the east side of I-880 at 
two of the four east side Site Options 1 through 4, and one of the three would be located on the west side of I-
880 at one of the three west side Site Options 6 through 7. All other design and operational characteristics would 
be similar to the Project. 
 
Impacts and Mitigations 
 
a.  Aesthetics. Similar to Alternative 3, Alternative 5 would reduce the number of billboards on the east side of 

the freeway where potential impacts on nearby homes could occur. Alternative 5 would allow for optimal 
placement of the two billboards on the east side to avoid or reduce visual impacts on nearby homes. With 
only two billboards instead of three on the east side of I- 880, there would be a proportional decrease in 
impacts on light, glare and sky glow. Alternative 5 would also reduce or avoid Project visual impacts on 
sensitive residential uses east of the Penitencia Creek channel near Dixon Landing Road. There would be 
less interference with future City implementation of gateway landscaping and signage treatments 
recommended in the General Plan and Streetscape Master Plan. Impacts on I-880 gateway visual character 
would be reduced but would nevertheless remain significant and unavoidable. Impact and mitigation 
findings 4-1 through 4-3 for the proposed Project would continue to apply. 

 
b.  Transportation. With only two billboards instead of three on the east side of I-880, there would be some 

decrease in potential Project effects on driver attention. 
 
c.  Other Impacts. Alternative 5 would have similar less-than-significant impacts with respect to all other 

environmental topics included in CEQA Guidelines Appendix G and evaluated in Section 6.4, Effects 
Found Not to be Significant, of this EIR. 

 
Attainment of Project Objectives 
 
Alternative 5 would achieve most of the basic Project objectives by erecting three new freeway digital 
billboards, as well as providing benefits to the applicant and City in terms of local business promotion and 
generation of associated advertising revenue. 
 
Alternative 6: Alternative Location--One Billboard On East Side And Two Billboards On West Side Of 

Interstate 880 

 
Under Alternative 6, one of the three proposed billboard structures would be located on the east side of I-880 at 
one of the four east side site options, and the other two billboards would be located on the west side of I-880 at 
two of the three west side site options. All other design and operational characteristics would be similar to the 
Project. 
 
 
 



   

Resolution No.___ 10 

Impacts and Mitigations 
 
a.  Aesthetics. Alternative 6 would allow for optimal placement of the one billboard on the east side of I-880 to 

reduce or avoid visual impacts on nearby homes. With only one billboard on the east side instead of three 
there would be a proportional decrease in impacts on light, glare and sky glow. Alternative 6 would also 
reduce or avoid Project visual impacts on sensitive residential uses east of the Penitencia Creek channel near 
Dixon Landing Road. 

 
The two billboards located on the west side of I-880 would result in similar significant and unavoidable 
impacts on the Dixon Landing Road interchange gateway to Milpitas. Due to the interchange overpass and 
southbound on-ramp embankment, the two billboards on the west side of the freeway would be visible to 
drivers entering Milpitas for a shorter distance. 

 
b.  Transportation. With only one billboard instead of three on the east side of I-880, there would be a 

substantial decrease in potential Project effects on driver attention. 
 
c.  Other Impacts. Alternative 6 would have similar less-than-significant impacts with respect to all other 

environmental topics included in CEQA Guidelines Appendix G and evaluated in Section 6.4, Effects 
Found Not to be Significant, of this EIR. 

 
Attainment of Project Objectives 
 
Alternative 6 would achieve most of the basic Project objectives by erecting three new freeway digital 
billboards, as well as providing benefits to the applicant and City in terms of local business promotion and 
generation of associated advertising revenue. 
 
Alternative 7: Alternative Location--All Three Billboards On West Side Of Interstate 880 

 
Under Alternative 7, All Three Billboards on West Side of Interstate 880, all three billboard structures would 
be installed along the west side of I-880 rather than along the east side of the freeway, either on: the three west 
side Site Options 5 through 7 shown on Figure 7.1, or on undeveloped land west of N. McCarthy Boulevard, or 
on some combination of these various options. All other design and operational characteristics would be similar 
to the Project. 
 
Impacts and Mitigations 
 
a.  Aesthetics. Billboards located on the west side of I-880 south of Dixon Landing Road would result in 

similar significant and unavoidable impacts on the Dixon Landing Road interchange gateway to Milpitas. 
Due to the interchange overpass and southbound on-ramp embankment, billboards at these west side 
locations would be visible to drivers entering Milpitas for a shorter distance. 

 
Billboards located on the west side of N. McCarthy Boulevard within the McCarthy Center office, industrial 
and commercial park areas and/or the adjacent WalMart site would be farther away from the Dixon Landing 
Road interchange gateway to Milpitas, and thus would have a less substantial impact on this important 
gateway view. However, this reduction in impact would be offset by increased visibility from the SR 237 
gateway to Milpitas. Therefore, the impact on gateway visual character would still be significant and 
unavoidable. As a result, impact and mitigation findings 4-1 ad 4-3 would continue to apply. 

 
b.  Transportation. In general, digital billboards located on the west side of I-880 would have traffic safety 

effects similar to the proposed Project. Billboards located on lands east or west of N. McCarthy Boulevard 
would be less distracting to drivers because they would be farther away from the freeway and, due to the 
interchange overpass and southbound on-ramp embankment, would be visible to approaching drivers for a 
shorter distance. 



   

Resolution No.___ 11 

EXHIBIT C 
 

STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 
 
General 
 
Prior to approving a project for which an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) is certified and for which findings 
are made that one or more significant impacts would result because mitigation measures or alternatives 
identified in the EIR are infeasible, the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) mandates that the lead 
agency  state in writing the specific overriding economic, legal, social, technological, or other benefits of the 
project that outweigh the significant effects on the environment. This must be a written finding stating the 
agency’s specific reasons supporting its action based on the Final EIR and/or other information in the record. 
The requirements for a Statement of Overriding Considerations are established in Section 15093 of the CEQA 
Guidelines and in the CEQA provisions set forth in Public Resource Code Section 21081 et seq.   
 
Accordingly, the City Council of the City of Milpitas makes this Statement of Overriding Considerations for 
those impacts identified in the Project as significant and unavoidable. 
 
The City Council has carefully considered each impact in reaching its decision to approve the “Project” whose 
primary focus is providing advertising near a major freeway. Although the City Council believes that the 
unavoidable environmental effects identified in the EIR will be substantially lessened by mitigation measures 
and regulations incorporated into the Project, the Council recognizes that implementation of the Project carries 
with it unavoidable adverse environmental effects. 
 
The City Council specifically finds that to the extent that the identified adverse or potentially adverse impacts of 
the Project have not been mitigated to acceptable levels, there are specific economic, legal, social, technological, 
environmental, land use, and other considerations that support approval of the Project. 
 
Unavoidable Significant Adverse Impacts 
 
The following unavoidable significant environmental impacts are associated with the proposed Project as 
identified in the EIR. The impacts cannot be mitigated to less than significant by changes or alterations to the 
Project. 
 
Impact 4-1: Project Impacts on I-880 Gateway Visual Character. The three project billboard structures may 
be perceived by many as substantially degrading the visual character and quality of the General Plan identified 
southbound I-880 “gateway” to Milpitas.  
 
A mitigation is proposed that would require modifications and adjustments to the displays to reduce the impact, 
however, implementation of these measures cannot assure the impact is reduced to a less than significant level.  
 
Impact 4-3: Cumulative Impact on Community Aesthetic Character. The previous EIR that evaluated five 
new freeway billboards in Milpitas concluded that there would be significant and unavoidable impacts related to 
community aesthetic character. Based on those findings, the current project along with the previous project 
would still result in a significant and unavoidable impact. No mitigations can assure that the impacts of the 
project would be reduced to a level of less than significant. 
 
The City Council has balanced the benefits of the Project to the City of Milpitas against the significant and 
potentially significant adverse impacts identified in the EIR that have not been eliminated or mitigated to a level 
of insignificance. To the extent that the Project would result in unavoidable significant impacts described in the 
EIR, the City Council hereby determines that such unavoidable impacts are outweighed by the benefits of the 
Project as further set forth below. The City Council, acting pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15093, hereby 
determines that unavoidable impacts of the Project are outweighed by the need to provide a media for 



   

Resolution No.___ 12 

advertising commercial and non-commercial messages along I-880. The City Council has considered the public 
record of proceedings on the proposed Project and has determined that approval of the Project would result in 
the increase revenue to the City and provide a means to communicate community events and services. 
 
Upon consideration of the public record of proceedings on the Project, the City Council hereby determines that 
substantial evidence is included in the record demonstrating the economic, awareness and other benefits that the 
City will derive from implementation of the Project. The City Council further determines that approval and 
implementation of the Project will result in the following substantial public benefits. 



   

Resolution No.___ 13 

EXHIBIT D 
 

MITIGATION, REPORTING AND MONITORING PROGRAM 
 

(SCH2010062083) 



 
 

Page 1       T:\10681\FEIR\mmcht (10681).doc 
 

MITIGATION MONITORING CHECKLIST--INTERSTATE 880 BILLBOARDS PROJECT 
The environmental mitigation measures listed in column two below have been incorporated into the conditions of approval for the Interstate 880 Billboards Project in order to mitigate identified environmental impacts. 
 A completed and signed chart will indicate that each mitigation requirement has been complied with, and that City and state monitoring requirements have been fulfilled with respect to Public Resources Code 
section 21081.6. 
 
 

 
 

 
MONITORING 

 
VERIFICATION 

 
IDENTIFIED IMPACT 

 
RELATED MITIGATION MEASURE 
(Performance Criteria) 

 
Implementation 
Entity 

 
Monitoring and 
Verification Entity 

 
Timing 
Requirements 

 
Signature 

 
Date 

 
AESTHETICS 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Impact 4-1:  Project Impacts on I-880 
Gateway Visual Character.  The 
General Plan identifies the southbound 
I-880 freeway segment at the northern 
city limits at Dixon Landing Road as a 
major visual “gateway” into the city.  The 
City’s Streetscape Master Plan includes 
landscaping and signage 
recommendations for the seven General 
Plan-identified major “gateways,” 
including the I-880 “gateway” segment.  
The three Project billboard structures 
may be perceived by many as 
substantially degrading the visual 
character and quality of the General 
Plan-identified southbound I-880 
“gateway” to Milpitas, which would 
represent a potentially significant 
impact. 

Mitigation 4-1.  Require the Project 
Development Agreement to include a 
process for modifying display and 
lighting specifications, if deemed 
necessary over time by the City.  
Modifications could include 
adjustments to digital display 
brilliance, content, motion, recess, 
aim, focus, shielding, etc. 

Planning Division Planning Division Before approving 
development 
agreement 

  

Impact 4-2:  Project Spill Light and 
Sky Glow Impacts.  A number of 
federal, State and City laws and 
regulations have been adopted to 
regulate the brilliance of billboard 
lighting so as to not impair the vision of 
drivers.  Digital billboards are also 
equipped with sensors that modify the 
brightness of the LED display in 
response to ambient lighting conditions, 
so that the brightness of the display at 
night does not present a traffic safety 
hazard.  These brightness regulations 
and controls are not intended, and may 
not be sufficient, to effectively control 
the potential for billboard sign spill light 

Mitigation 4-2.  Require the final 
Project design specifications to include 
a combination of display shielding, 
display angle, display light source 
shielding, LED display brightness 
control; illumination aim, focus and 
shielding; etc., sufficient to shield 
nearby residential vantage point direct 
views of the displays and to prevent 
excessive glare, and stray (overcast) 
illumination.  In addition, require the 
Project Development Agreement to 
include a process for modifying these 
various display and lighting 
specifications, if deemed necessary 
over time by the City, based upon 

Applicant Planning Division Before issuing 
building permit 

  

E
X

H
IB

IT D



 
 

Page 2       T:\10681\FEIR\mmcht (10681).doc 
 

 
 

 
 

 
MONITORING 

 
VERIFICATION 

 
IDENTIFIED IMPACT 

 
RELATED MITIGATION MEASURE 
(Performance Criteria) 

 
Implementation 
Entity 

 
Monitoring and 
Verification Entity 

 
Timing 
Requirements 

 
Signature 

 
Date 

and sky glow impacts.  The Project 
could cause excessive spill light and sky 
glow (especially during nighttime foggy 
conditions) that may create a nuisance 
for adjacent sensitive residential uses on 
Heath Street, Redwood Avenue, 
Glenmoor Circle, N. Abbott Avenue, and 
east of the Penitencia Creek channel.  
Sky glow caused by the Project could 
substantially degrade the quality of 
nighttime views and night sky access 
from these nearby vantage points.  
These possible light, glare and sky glow 
effects represent a potentially 
significant impact. 

directives received from Caltrans or 
the California Highway Patrol, 
complaints received, or the City’s own 
periodic visual inspection and 
consideration of billboard operational 
characteristics. 

Impact 4-3:  Cumulative Impact on 
Community Aesthetic Character.  An 
EIR certified by the City in 2006 which 
evaluated the impacts of five new 
freeway billboards, including two digital 
billboards, along I-880 and I-680, 
concluded that the billboards would 
result in unavoidable significant impacts 
related to community character and 
visual intrusion on nearby residential 
and hotel uses.  The current Project 
together with the other five anticipated 
billboards evaluated in the 2006 EIR, 
would result in significant cumulative 
impacts rated to community character, 
nearby residential area visual character, 
and light, glare and sky glow.  The 
Project could result in a considerable 
contribution to this significant 
cumulative impact. 

Mitigation 4-3:  Mitigations 4-1 and 4-
2 in Chapter 4, Aesthetics, would 
reduce the Project contribution to this 
previously identified significant 
cumulative impact on community 
aesthetic character, but not assuredly 
to a less than considerable level.  The 
potential Project contribution to this 
cumulative impact would therefore 
represent a significant and 
unavoidable impact. 

Planning Division 
and applicant 

Planning Division Before approving 
development 
agreement/before 
issuing building 
permit 

  

 

E
X

H
IB

IT D



 1 Ordinance 38.807 

REGULAR 
 
NUMBER:  38.807 
 
TITLE:  AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MILPITAS 

APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
MILPITAS AND MILPITAS SIGN COMPANY, LLC  

 
HISTORY: This Ordinance was introduced (first reading) by the City Council at its meeting of , upon 

motion by ________________ and was adopted (second reading) by the City Council at 
its meeting of _______________, upon motion by __________________. The Ordinance 
was duly passed and ordered published in accordance with law by the following vote:  

 
AYES:  
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  

 
 
 
ATTEST:  
        APPROVED:  
 
________________________________     __________________________  
Mary Lavelle, City Clerk      Jose S. Esteves, Mayor  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
 
________________________________  
Michael J. Ogaz, City Attorney  



 2 Ordinance No. 38.807  

RECITALS AND FINDINGS:  
 

WHEREAS, on January 7, 2011, an application was submitted by Milpitas Sign Company, LLC., 
555 12th Street, #950, Oakland, CA 94607, for the construction and operation of two freestanding off-site 
advertising displays (“Project”) to be located at 1545 California Circle (APN: 22-37-049) and 1301 
California Circle (APN: 22-38-002).  The properties are located within the Industrial Park Zoning 
District; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City and the applicant wish to memorialize the rights to design, construct, 

install, operate, maintain, manage and market advertising opportunities on said advertising display in the 
document entitled “Development Agreement By and Between the City of Milpitas and Milpitas Sign 
Company, LLC,” (hereinafter referred to herein as the “Development Agreement”), a draft of which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit A; and  

 
WHEREAS, the environmental effects of the Project were considered in the Final Environmental 

Impact Report, State Clearinghouse No. 201062083 (“EIR”) prepared pursuant to the California 
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) and certified by the Milpitas City Council on April 2, 2013.  The 
terms and conditions of this Development Agreement are consistent with and within the scope of the EIR. 
Accordingly, no further environmental analysis is necessary or required under CEQA to enter into the 
Development Agreement and undertake its terms and conditions; and  

 
WHEREAS, on January 23, 2013, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing 

on the subject application, and considered evidence presented by City staff, the applicant, and other 
interested parties, and unanimously recommended to the City Council to approve the accompanying sign 
proposal and the environmental assessment performed by City staff; and  

 
WHEREAS, on April 2, 2013, the City Council held a duly noticed public hearing and 

considered the proposed Development Agreement for compliance with City of Milpitas Resolution No. 
6642 and Government Code Section 65864 et seq. 

  
NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Milpitas does ordain as follows:  

 
SECTION 1. RECORD AND BASIS FOR ACTION  
 
The City Council has duly considered the full record before it, which may include but is not limited to 
such things as the City staff report, testimony by staff and the public, and other materials and evidence 
submitted or provided to the City Council. Furthermore, the recitals set forth above are found to be true 
and correct and are incorporated herein by reference.  
 
SECTION 2. FINDINGS  
 
A.  The City Council finds that the proposed Development Agreement is consistent with the City's 

General Plan and other applicable plans, policies and regulations of the City currently in effect, is not 
detrimental to the health, safety and general welfare of the citizens of the City, is entered into and 
constitutes an appropriate exercise of the City's police power, and is entered into in compliance with 
applicable State law and City Resolution No. 6642, as amended.  

 
B.  The City Council finds that the proposed Development Agreement complies with all the applicable 

procedural and eligibility requirements for the approval and execution of development agreements set 
forth in City of Milpitas Resolution No. 6642 and Government Code Section 65864 et seq.  A valid 
application was submitted to the Planning & Neighborhood Services Director by an applicant with 



 3 Ordinance No. 38.807  

proper legal standing.  The proposed Development Agreement would eliminate uncertainty in land 
use planning and help ensure the orderly development of an advertising display in an appropriate 
zoning district and location.  The proposed Development Agreement would also result in a project 
which would be significantly superior in terms of its overall effect on the environment and the 
community than would otherwise result without such a development agreement.  The proposed 
Development Agreement would also be beneficial to the health, safety, and general welfare of the 
community.  

 
C.  The Development Agreement is consistent with the General Plan in that the advertising display 

would promote business development, appropriately identify local commercial activity and project a 
positive image of the City and the community.  

 
SECTION 3. APPROVAL AND AUTHORIZATION  
 
The City Council hereby approves and authorizes the City Manager or his or her designee to execute the 
Development Agreement between the City of Milpitas and Milpitas Auto Properties, LLC, attached 
hereto as Exhibit A.  Within ten (10) days of the effective date of this Ordinance, the City Clerk shall 
have the Development Agreement recorded with the Santa Clara County Recorder.  
 
SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY  
 
The provisions of this Ordinance are separable, and the invalidity of any phrase, clause, provision or part 
shall not affect the validity of the remainder.  
 
SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE AND POSTING  
 
In accordance with Section 36937 of the Government Code of the State of California, this Ordinance shall 
take effect thirty (30) days from and after the date of its passage.  The City Clerk of the City of Milpitas 
shall cause this Ordinance or a summary thereof to be published in accordance with Section 36933 of the 
Government Code of the State of California.  



 

 
This document is recorded for the 
benefit of the City of Milpitas and 
is entitled to be recorded free 
of charge in accordance with 
Section 6103 of the Government Code. 
 
After recordation, mail to: 
 
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 
City of Milpitas 
455 E. Calaveras Blvd. 
Milpitas, CA95035 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 

by and between 
 
 

THE CITY OF MILPITAS, 
a municipal corporation, 

 
and 

 
MILPITAS SIGN COMPANY, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company 

 
 



 

 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 
THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT is made and entered into this ___ day of 

____________________, 2013 (the "Effective Date"), by and between Milpitas Sign Company, 
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Developer"), and the City of Milpitas, a municipal 
corporation ("City") pursuant to the authority of Sections 65864 through 65869.5 of the 
Government Code of the State of California and Ordinance No. ____________of the City of 
Milpitas. 

 
RECITALS 

 
A.  To strengthen the public planning process, encourage private participation in 

comprehensive planning and reduce the economic risk of development, the Legislature of the 
State of California enacted Government Code Section 65864 - 65869.5, authorizing 
municipalities to enter into property development agreements with persons having a legal or 
equitable interest in real property. 

 
B. The purpose of Government Code Sections 65864 & 65869.5 is to authorize 

municipalities, in their discretion, to establish certain development rights in real property for a 
period of years regardless of intervening changes in land use regulations. 

 
C. Developer is a Delaware limited liability company having its principal place of 

business and authorized to do business in California and engaged in the business of outdoor 
advertising. 

 
D. Developer has entered into leases or license agreements with the owners of the 

real property described on Exhibit A (collectively, the “Properties”), for the sole purpose of 
erecting, maintaining, operating, improving, supplementing, posting, painting, illuminating, 
repairing, repositioning and/or removing a maximum of three (3) outdoor advertising structures 
on such Properties, including, without limitation, fixture connections, electrical supply and 
connections, panels, signs, copy and any equipment and accessories as Developer may place 
thereon, for purposes of advertising to be visible from U.S. Interstate 880. 

 
E. Developer shall file applications for sign permits to erect and operate at most 

three (3) outdoor advertising displays on portions of the Properties for consideration by the City 
at the same time that this Agreement is considered. 
 
 F. Developer desires this Agreement with City to assure that Developer will, at the 
time of application, be issued a sign development permit for each Developer’s outdoor 
advertising displays and may, except as expressly provided herein, proceed to construct and 
operate Developer’s outdoor advertising display on each of the parcels that make up the 
Properties (each hereinafter described as the “Project Site”) within the term of this Agreement in 
accordance with all applicable laws and regulations in effect at the Effective Date.   
 



 

 G. City has examined the environmental effects of this Agreement and Developer’s 
proposed outdoor advertising displays in the environmental impact report (“EIR”) prepared 
pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"). On, April 2, 2013,  the City 
Council for the City reviewed and approved the EIR as adequate to assess the environmental 
effects of this Agreement and the Project. The terms and conditions of this Agreement are 
consistent with and within the scope of the EIR.  Accordingly, no further environmental analysis 
is necessary or required under CEQA to enter into this Agreement and undertake its terms and 
conditions. 

 
H. After conducting a duly noticed public hearing on April 2, 2013, the City Council 

for the City approved this Agreement by ordinance, authorizing its execution and finding that the 
provisions of the Agreement are consistent with the City's General Plan, are compatible with the 
requirements of the Zoning Ordinance, comply with applicable state law and City Resolution No. 
6642, as amended, and provide substantial public benefits to the community, beyond the normal 
exactions for public benefit imposed in the development review process.  

 
I. For the reasons recited herein, the City has determined that the construction and 

operation of Developer’s proposed outdoor advertising display is a development for which this 
Agreement is appropriate.  City finds that a substantial public benefit will accrue to City by 
reason of the advertising revenue that will be generated by Developer’s outdoor advertising 
displays and shared with City, which adds value to the community by enabling City to undertake 
projects, programs and other activities for the benefit of City and its businesses and residents.  In 
exchange for providing these public benefits, Developer receives assurance that it may proceed 
with the construction and operation of Developer’s outdoor advertising displays and the Project 
in accordance with ordinances, resolutions and regulations existing as of the date of this 
Agreement, subject only to the terms and conditions contained herein.  

 
AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained 
herein and other considerations, the value and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, the 
parties agree as follows:  

 
1. Definitions 
 
The following definitions apply to this Development Agreement: 
 

A. Agreement. The term “Agreement” shall mean this entire Development 
Agreement, including all appendices, exhibits and other documents attached hereto or 
incorporated herein by reference. 

 
B. City. The term “City” shall mean the City of Milpitas, a municipal corporation, 

having its offices at 455 E. Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas, California95035. 
 
C. City Laws. The term “City Laws” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3.B. 

 



 

D. Commencement Date.  The term “Commencement Date” shall mean the date of 
the complete erection and construction of the outdoor advertising display on the Project Site and 
receipt of the Certificate of Occupancy from the City by Developer.  Developer shall provide to 
the City a Commencement Certificate to confirm the Commencement Date for each outdoor 
advertising display to insure that all parties have written confirmation of the appropriate 
Commencement Date to apply to such display. 
 

E. Developer. The term “Developer” shall mean Milpitas Sign Company, LLC, a 
Delaware limited liability company, with leases or license agreements with the owners of the 
Properties. 

 
F. Gross Revenue. The term “Gross Revenue” shall mean all money generated by 

the advertising displays subject to this Agreement, before deductions for expenses. 
 
G. New City Laws. The term “New City Laws” shall have the meaning set forth in 

Section 3.C. 
 

H. Project. The term “Project” shall mean the design, construction, installation, 
operation, maintenance, management, and marketing of advertising displays on the Properties. 

 
I. Properties. The term “Properties” shall mean those parcels more particularly 

described in Exhibit A attached hereto and as otherwise referred to in Recital D above. 
 
2. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 
 

A.  City and State Laws.  This Agreement is subject to applicable laws pertaining to 
development agreements, specifically City Resolution No. 6642, and any of its amendments, and 
Government Code Sections 65864 et seq. 

 
B.  Vested Rights.  The provisions of this Agreement shall create rights which shall 

vest in Developer.  The burdens and benefits hereof shall bind and inure to the benefit of all 
successors in interest to the parties hereto.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 
Agreement and for purposes of clarification, City and Developer acknowledge and agree that 
Developer is the real party in interest under this Agreement and that all rights accruing hereunder 
shall accrue to Developer and its permitted successors and assigns, notwithstanding the fact that 
leases and/or license agreements for the Properties have been entered into with third parties, it 
being the intent of the parties that Developer may place the outdoor advertising structures and 
accomplish the Project on the Properties or any other real properties to which Developer secures 
the relevant rights under applicable laws and regulation. Accordingly, any such lessors or 
licensors shall not be entitled to exercise any of the rights, or receive any of the benefits, granted 
to Developer under this Agreement. 

 
C. Term.  This Agreement shall be effective as of the Effective Date, and shall be for 

a term of thirty (30) years ("Term") commencing upon the Commencement Date and expiring 
thirty (30) years from the Commencement Date, unless terminated, modified or extended as 
provided herein or under City Resolution No. 6642 or Government Code Sections 65864 - 



 

65869.5 or by mutual consent of the parties hereto. Commencement Date for the purposes hereof 
shall be as defined in Section 1.D above.   Developer shall have the option to extend the Term of 
this Agreement for up to six (6) additional periods of five (5) years each by delivery of written 
notice to City no later than six (6) months prior to the expiration of the then current Term 
provided that at the time of such written notice Developer has not received a written notice of 
default under this Development Agreement which remains uncured. 

 
D. Assignment.  The rights of the Developer under this Agreement may not be 

transferred or assigned without the written consent of City.  Developer may, however, assign its 
rights and obligations hereunder to (i) Clear Channel Outdoor, Inc. or an affiliate of Clear 
Channel Outdoor, Inc., or (ii) Sign-Co East, LLC, or a limited liability company or other entity 
in which Sign-Co East, LLC, or an affiliate of Sign-Co East, LLC, is a member, in each instance 
upon not less than sixty (60) days prior written notice to City.  

 
E. Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein and constitute an 

integral part of this Agreement. 
 

3. DEVELOPMENT. 
 

A.  Development of Project.  City hereby grants to Developer the exclusive right to 
construct and operate a maximum of three (3) outdoor advertising displays on the Properties, 
with back-to-back digital or static displays of up to 20 feet by 60 feet (collectively, the 
“Project”), subject to the condition that Developer complies with all conditions of approval 
issued in connection with Developer’s sign permits for such Project Site. Development and 
construction of the Project shall be in accordance with Site Development Permit issued for each 
Project Site and the terms of corresponding development approvals, the terms of this Agreement 
and City Laws (as that term is defined herein) and all applicable State and Federal laws and 
permit requirements in effect on the Effective Date. The maximum height, size, location and 
design of Developer’s outdoor advertising displays (including materials, color palate, and 
landscaping) shall be essentially as shown on the approved planning application drawings 
attached hereto as Exhibit B (the "Approved Planning Application Drawings").Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, Developer agrees that the first two (2) outdoor advertising structures for displays 
constructed under this Agreement shall contain only digital display at the time of construction. 

 
B.  City Laws.  Except as provided herein, City's laws, ordinances, rules, regulations 

and official policies applicable to the Project shall be those City laws, ordinances, rules, 
regulations and official policies in force as of  the Effective Date governing uses of the 
Properties, and the maximum height, size, design and location of Developer’s outdoor 
advertising displays (herein collectively referred to as "City Laws").  City agrees that under City 
Laws, the Project can be built and operated. 

 
C.  Applicable Future Laws and Regulations.  Notwithstanding Paragraph 2.B. above, 

City may apply the following new City laws to the Project (as applied, such laws shall be defined 
as “New City Laws”): 

 



 

(1) New City Laws which do not conflict with the existing City Laws or with 
the General Plan land use designations, permitted uses, density and intensity of use, height, size 
or location of the Project, or which do not diminish any of Developer's rights granted herein, or 
which are not in conflict with any of the terms and conditions hereof; and  

 
(2) City Laws that are applicable to the following and are in effect at the time 

Developer submits an application for a building permit for the Project: 
 

(a) Procedural requirements for building permit application submittal 
and issuance;  

 
(b) Construction standards pursuant to all Uniform Building Codes 

incorporated by the Milpitas Municipal Code;  
 
(c) Permit fees applicable to all similar parties and properly approved 

under the Code then in effect;  
 
(d) Any fees payable upon issuance of a building permit for which 

City acts as a collecting agent for another governing agency provided such fees are applicable to 
all similar parties and properly approved under the Code then in effect; and 

 
(e) Any requirements applicable upon issuance of a building permit 

for which City acts as an administering agent for another governing agency provided such 
requirement is applicable to all similar parties and properly approved under the Code then in 
effect. 

 
D.  Developer Obligations.   
  

(1) Initial Payment. After the commencement of power service by Pacific Gas 
& Electric and concurrent with final inspection approval by the City under the Milpitas Building 
Code of each outdoor advertising structure with at least one digital display, the Developer shall 
pay a Fifty Thousand Dollar ($50,000.00) advance to the City as to each digital advertising 
display.  Thus, for example, an outdoor advertising structure with two back-to-back digital 
displays would require the payment of a One Hundred Thousand Dollar ($100,000) advance.  
Such advance shall be deducted from future annual payments by Developer to the City under 
Section 3.D.2 below.  
 

(2) Revenue Sharing. The following requirements shall apply to each 
advertising display. For the first three (3) years of this Agreement, Commencing on the date that 
is one (1) year from the Commencement Date, and continuing thereafter annually on each 
anniversary of the Commencement Date, Developer shall pay City within forty five (45) days 
following December 31st of each year during the Term an amount equal to ten percent (10%) of 
the Gross Revenue generated by Developer’s outdoor advertising displays for the prior 12 month 
period (or in the case of the first partial year such prorated period between the Commencement 
Date and December 31 of such year).  Along with each annual payment, Developer shall provide 
an accounting demonstrating the breakdown of Gross Revenue and payments provided.  For each 



 

digital display installed by the Developer, and commencing on the date that is four (4) full 
calendar years from the Commencement Date, Developer shall pay City annually an amount 
equal to the greater of (a) ten percent (10%) of the Gross Revenue generated by Developer’s 
digital outdoor advertising displays, or (b) a minimum quarterly payment of $10,000.00 per 
digital advertising display, and such minimum payment shall be increased annually by 2.5%. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if at any time during the Term of this Agreement Developer is 
not operating any or all of Developer’s digital advertising displays in the Project for more than 
six (6) months in any annual period, then Developer shall only be required to pay City ten 
percent (10%) of the total Gross Revenue generated by each advertising display per year.  
Developer shall maintain adequate books and records with respect to the revenue generated by 
Developer’s outdoor advertising displays in the Project, consistent with industry standards.  City 
shall be permitted to review and audit Developer’s books and records with respect to the revenue 
generated by Developer’s outdoor advertising displays in the Project at any time during the Term 
of this Agreement, upon not less than thirty (30) days prior written notice to Developer.  Any 
such review and/or audit shall be conducted during normal business hours at the office of 
Developer. 
 

(3) Local Tax Issues. In order to assist City in its efforts to receive direct 
distribution of the local tax on materials associated with the development and operation of the 
Project, the California Sales and Use Tax (the “Local Tax”) shall be allocated to the Project site, 
within the City, to the maximum extent reasonably possible.  The Project, as currently 
envisioned, has the potential to be a significant source of additional local use tax revenue to the 
City.  The Developer and all of its contractors, subcontractors, and suppliers shall cooperate with 
the City to the extent reasonably possible to maximize the allocation of the Local Tax to the City.  
Such cooperation shall include but not be limited to: 

 
(a) Purchases: To the extent commercially reasonable, the Developer and 

its contractor and sub-contractor shall require equipment and material vendors and suppliers 
from which they make any individual purchases, which are subject to use tax and are to be used 
in the City, to allocate the local use tax to the City to the extent authorized by law. The 
incremental Local Tax generated from the construction of Project shall accrue to the City in 
accordance with applicable law.  
 

(4) Public Use of Outdoor Advertising Displays.  City shall have the right to 
use a portion of the advertising space available on Developer’s outdoor advertising displays in 
the Project, not to exceed 5% of the total display time, on a space and/or time available basis for 
advertising non-commercial City sponsored programming.  In no event shall City be required to 
pay Developer or any third party for any such use of the advertising displays on the outdoor 
advertising displays in the Project for the right to use such advertising space as provided above, 
provided, however, that City shall be solely responsible for payment of any and all production 
costs and expenses incurred in connection with creating the advertising copy or material in a 
format acceptable to Developer. The City shall be responsible for providing Developer with 
approved advertising copy which may be updated by the City at any time. By January 1st of each 
year City shall provide stock advertising copy or copies with artwork in acceptable format which 
may be utilized by Developer for that calendar year. City’s use is subject to the following 
conditions and parameters:  all copy must be submitted to Developer at least five (5) days before 



 

the proposed display date and will be subject to Developer’s standard advertising copy rejection 
and removal policies, which allow Developer, in its sole discretion, to approve or disapprove 
copy and remove copy once posted or displayed.  If new copy is not provided by the City within 
such five (5) day period, Developer shall be entitled to substitute any stock copy provided to 
Developer.  Developer may grant additional display time to the City as the sole discretion of 
Developer. 
 

E.  City Obligations.   
 

 No Additional Sign Rights.  City and Developer acknowledge that Developer has been 
granted the exclusive right to construct and operate a maximum of three (3) outdoor advertising 
displays within the non-landscaped sections of U.S. Interstate 880 within the City limits north of 
State Route 237, subject to the contingencies set forth in this Agreement.  This exclusive right 
excludes any area of land which falls within the Piercey Automotive property and an advertising 
display on Assessor’s Parcel Number 086-03-019, bordered on its western side by Barber Lane 
and on its eastern side by a freeway interchange connecting the Interstate 880 Freeway and the 
Montague Expressway (“Barber Lane Property”).  Furthermore, this exclusive right shall be 
reduced or extinguished in its entirety, in the event of removal or inactivity of Developer-
operated displays or termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 3.F.   

 
Subject to such contingencies, during the Term of this Agreement, City shall not grant any 
additional rights to construct and operate outdoor advertising displays within the non-landscaped 
sections of U.S. Interstate 880 within the City limits, other than any rights which may be granted 
to (a) a third party to construct and operate a single outdoor advertising display on the Piercey 
Automotive property or some other location in lieu of said site, (b) a third party to construct and 
operate an advertising display at the Barber Lane Property or some other location in lieu of said 
site, and (c) a third party to construct and operate displays to replace inactive or removed 
displays of the Developer in accordance with this Agreement. 

 
F. Development Not Required.  Developer is not obligated to develop any part or all 

of the Project on the Project Site.  In addition, Developer is the owner of the outdoor advertising 
display in the Project to the extent they are developed in whole or in part and has the right to 
remove any or all of the outdoor advertising displays in the Project at any time during the Term 
of this Agreement or at the expiration thereof, subject to any rights that the fee simple owners or 
tenants of the Properties may have under California law which have not been otherwise waived 
or modified in accordance with agreements relating to the Project Site.  But in the event that the 
Developer does not perform and commence operations of at least one (1) display within twenty-
four (24) months of the Effective Date, the Agreement shall be terminated as to all the Project 
Sites and the City shall be free to grant land use entitlements and other approvals for the 
development and operation of alternative advertising display by a third party. Once Developer 
meets the requirements of commencing operation under one (1) display within twenty-four 
months of the Effective Date, then Developer shall have up to five (5) years from the Effective 
Date of this Agreement to commence operation of the remaining displays under this Agreement.  
If any Project Sites have not commenced operation of a display within five (5) years following 
the Effective Date of this Agreement, the Agreement shall be terminated as to such Project Sites 



 

and the City shall be free to grant land use entitlements and other approvals for the development 
and operation of alternative advertising display by a third party.  

 
Furthermore, in the event that once constructed, any outdoor advertising display that is 

removed or goes inactive for a period of twenty four (24) months or more, the Agreement shall 
be terminated as to only the display which shall have been inactive or removed for such period.  
Such terminations shall be automatically incorporated into the Agreement and notices of 
termination of the Agreement shall be recorded on respective Properties at the Developer’s 
expense.  Furthermore, for each advertising display that is removed or goes  inactive for a period 
of twenty four (24) months or more, the competing display restrictions of Section E.1. of this 
Agreement shall be automatically modified so as to allow third parties to develop a 
commensurate number of competing signs, if permitted by law.  Any advance payment made by 
the Developer pursuant to Section 3.D.1. shall be considered non-refundable and the sole 
property of the City.  
 
4. AMENDMENT/RELOCATION. 
 

A.  Mutual Consent.  This Agreement may be amended, or cancelled in whole or in 
part, at any time and from time to time by mutual consent of the parties or their successors in 
interest.  Notice of, and a public hearing regarding an intention to amend or cancel any portion of 
this Agreement shall be given and held in the manner provided in City Resolution No. 6642. 

 
B. Procedure for Modification or Termination Due to Conflict with State or Federal 

Laws.  In the event that state or federal laws or regulations enacted after the Effective Date of 
this Agreement prevent or preclude compliance with one or more provisions of this Agreement, 
or require changes in plans, maps or permits approved by the City, the parties shall meet and 
confer in good faith in a reasonable attempt to modify this Agreement to comply with such 
federal or state law or regulation. Any such amendment or suspension of the Agreement shall be 
approved by the City Council in accordance with Resolution No. 6642.  If any such state or 
federal laws or regulations enacted after the Effective Date of this Agreement prohibit or prevent 
Developer from operating any of its outdoor advertising displays on the Properties and/or the 
parties are unable to reach a good faith accord and understanding as to the amendment of the 
Agreement, then Developer or the City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon not 
less than thirty (30) days prior written notice to any or all of its outdoor advertising displays in 
the Project.  Upon such termination, no further payments shall be due to City under Section 
3.D.2. of this Agreement other than any payments which may be due with respect to Project 
revenue earned through the date of termination.  If, however, Developer or City elects to 
terminate this Agreement with respect to less than all of Developer’s outdoor advertising 
displays, then any payments due to the City under Paragraph 3.D.2. of this Agreement shall be 
reduced as provided therein. In no event shall Developer be entitled to reimbursement for 
payments made to City under this Agreement. 

 
C. Relocation; Damage; Destruction.  If at any time during the Term of this 

Agreement or prior to commencement of construction, Developer determines that (1) the 
location of any or all of the outdoor advertising displays in the Project is or has become visually 
impaired, or (2) the location of any or all of the outdoor advertising displays in the Project is no 



 

longer beneficial for, or is adversely affecting or limiting, the actual or prospective revenue 
generation of the other outdoor advertising display(s) in the Project, or (3) the economic benefit 
of the location of any or all of the locations that the outdoor advertising structures are 
diminished, Developer and City may agree to allow Developer to relocate the outdoor 
advertising display(s) to another location in the City of Milpitas and/or terminate this Agreement 
with respect to the applicable outdoor advertising display, subject to Developer’s receipt of any 
necessary approvals from the City and the California Department of Transportation. Upon any 
such relocation, this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect in accordance with its 
terms.  If for any reason any of the outdoor advertising displays, are removed, materially 
damaged or destroyed, then Developer, at its sole election, may reduce any guaranteed payments 
due to the City under Section 3.D.2. of this Agreement as provided therein until such time as the 
applicable outdoor advertising display(s) are fully operable and/or terminate this Agreement with 
respect to the applicable outdoor advertising display. If Developer elects to terminate this 
Agreement with respect to less than all of Developer’s outdoor advertising displays, then any 
payments due to the City under Section 3.D.2. of this Agreement shall be reduced as provided 
therein. In the event the owner of the real property for any Project Site requests that Developer 
relocate a display on such Project Site in order to assist with development of the Project Site by 
such owner of real property, the City shall permit such relocation hereunder if requested by 
Developer and following such relocation, subject to Developer’s receipt of any necessary 
approvals from the City and the California Department of Transportation, this Agreement shall 
continue in full force and effect in accordance with its terms.   

 
5. DEFAULT, TERMINATION AND REMEDIES. 
 

A. General Provisions.  Any failure to perform, or any delay in performing, the terms 
and conditions hereof shall constitute a default under this Agreement.  Any party alleging a 
default under this Agreement shall give the other party not less than sixty (60) days’ notice in 
writing, specifying the nature of the alleged default and the manner in which it may be 
satisfactorily cured.  During the period specified in the notice, the alleged default shall not be 
considered a default for purposes of termination or institution of legal proceedings.  If the default 
is cured within the period specified in the notice, the noticing party shall take no further action. 
 

B.  Periodic Reviews.  During the Term of this Agreement, the City may conduct 
annual reviews of Developer’s good faith compliance with the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 8.0 of Resolution 6642.  
Failure of the City to conduct an annual review shall not constitute a waiver by the City of its 
rights to otherwise enforce the provisions of this Agreement, nor shall Developer have or assert 
any defense to such enforcement by reason of any such failure to conduct an annual review.  
 

C.  Default and Remedies.  Developer shall be in default under this Agreement upon 
the happening of one or more of the following events: 

 
(1) A finding and determination by the City is made following an annual or 

special review under the procedure provided for in Resolution No. 6642 and Government Code 
Section 65865.1 that, upon the basis of substantial evidence, Developer has not complied in good 



 

faith with the terms and conditions of this Agreement following all applicable notice and cure 
periods; or 

(2) Developer fails to fulfill any of its obligations set forth in this Agreement 
and such failure continues beyond any applicable cure period provided in this Agreement. This 
provision shall not be interpreted to create a cure period for any event of default where such cure 
period is not specifically provided for in this Agreement; provided, however, that if such default 
is not capable of being cured within such 60 day period, Developer shall have such additional 
time to cure as is reasonably necessary. 

D. Procedures upon Default 

(1) Upon the occurrence of an event of default after the expiration of all 
applicable notice and cure periods provided herein, City may terminate or modify this 
Agreement in accordance with the provisions of Government Code Section 65865.1 and 
Resolution No. 6642. 

(2) The City shall not be deemed to have waived any claim of defect in 
Developer’s performance if, on annual or special review, the City does not propose to terminate 
this Agreement. 

(3) No waiver or failure by the City or Developer to enforce any provision of 
this Agreement shall be deemed to be a waiver of any provision of this Agreement or of any 
subsequent breach of the same or any other provision. 

(4) Any actions for breach of this Agreement shall be decided in accordance 
with California law.  The remedy for breach of this Agreement shall be limited to specific 
performance.  

(5) The Parties shall give  written notice of any default under this Agreement 
as provided in Section 3.D(1) herein. 

E. Enforceability.  Except as otherwise provided herein, the rights of the parties 
under this Agreement shall be enforceable notwithstanding any change subsequent to the 
Effective Date in any applicable General or Specific Plan or building, zoning, subdivision or 
other land use ordinance, including any ordinance governing or relating to signs or outdoor 
advertising displays.  The City shall not attempt to enforce any ordinance against Developer if 
such ordinance became effective following the Effective Date, except as provided herein.  Any 
attempt by the City to enforce such subsequent ordinances contrary to the provisions of this 
Agreement shall result in an event of default by the City hereunder. 
 
6. INDEMNIFICATION. 
 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Developer shall indemnify, defend with counsel of 
the City’s reasonable choosing that is mutually acceptable to both parties, and hold harmless 
City, its City Council, its boards and commissions, officials, officers, employees, from and 
against any and all claims, demands, obligations, damages, actions, causes of action, suits, 
losses, judgments, fines, penalties, liabilities, costs and expenses (including without limitation, 



 

reasonable attorney's fees, disbursements and court costs) of every kind and nature whatsoever 
which may arise from or relate (directly or indirectly) to the construction, operation, 
maintenance, repair and/or removal of the outdoor advertising displays at the Properties. This 
indemnification shall include, but not be limited to, damages awarded against the City, if any, 
costs of suit, attorneys' fees, and other expenses incurred in connection with such claim, action, 
causes of action, suit or proceeding incurred by, City, its City Council, its boards and 
commissions, officials, officers, employees.  The Developer shall indemnify the City for all of 
City's costs, attorneys' fees, and damages which City incurs in enforcing the indemnification 
provisions set forth in this condition.  The Developer shall pay to the City upon demand or, as 
applicable, to counsel of City’s choosing, any amount owed pursuant to the indemnification 
requirements prescribed in this condition. City shall promptly notify the Developer of any claim, 
action, or proceeding and engage in reasonable efforts to cooperate with Developer in the 
defense against the claim, demand, obligation, damage, action, or suit.  If City fails to so 
promptly notify the Developer, then the Developer’s indemnification obligations as set forth in 
this condition of approval shall thereafter terminate.  The Developer shall not be required to pay 
or perform any settlement unless the settlement is approved by the applicant. 

 
7. NOTICES. 
 

Any notice or communication hereunder must be in writing and may be given either by 
personal service or by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested. Any notice or 
communication personally served shall be deemed given and received on the date of personal 
service on the party noticed at the appropriate address designated below, and any notice or 
communication sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, properly addressed 
to the appropriate address designated below, with postage prepaid, shall be deemed given and 
received on the fifth (5th) day after the date appearing on the signed return receipt. Any party 
hereto may at any time and from time to time, in the manner provided herein, designate any other 
address in substitution of the address to which such notice or communication shall be given. All 
such notices or communications shall be given to the parties at their addresses hereinafter set 
forth: 
 

IF TO CITY: 
 
City Clerk, City of Milpitas 
City Hall 
455 E. Calaveras Blvd. 
Milpitas, CA 95035 
ATTN: City Manager 

 
IF TO DEVELOPER: 
 
Milpitas Sign Company, LLC 
c/o Clear Channel Outdoor, Inc. 
555 12th Street, Suite 950 
Oakland, CA  94607 
Attn: President - San Francisco Division 



 

With a copy to: 
 
McCarthy Ranch 
15425 Los Gatos Blvd., Suite 102 
Los Gatos, CA  95032-2541 
Attn:  Joey McCarthy 
 

8. NO WAIVER. 
 

No failure, delay or omission by a party in exercising or asserting any right, power or 
remedy hereunder shall impair such right, power or remedy, and no failure, delay or omission by 
a party occurring upon the other party's noncompliance with or failure to perform the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement shall be construed as a waiver thereof.  A waiver by either party of 
any failure on the part of the other party to perform any of the terms or conditions to be 
performed by such other party shall not be construed as a waiver of any succeeding failure of the 
same or other terms or conditions hereof, nor shall any failure, delay or omission by a party in 
asserting any of its rights or remedies hereunder deprive such party of its right to institute and 
maintain any action or proceeding which it may deem necessary to protect, assert or enforce any 
such rights or remedies. 

 
9. RECORDING. 
 

After this Agreement is approved and executed by the parties hereto, either party may 
submit it to the Santa Clara County Recorder to be recorded.  Such recording shall occur within 
ten (10) days of the effective date of the ordinance adopting this Agreement.  Upon the earlier of 
the expiration or sooner termination of this Agreement or any applicable lease/license agreement, 
Developer shall promptly execute and deliver to the applicable lessor/licensor a quitclaim deed 
or other appropriate documentation to release this Agreement from record title to the Properties.  
 
10. MISCELLANEOUS. 
 

A. No Joint Venture or Partnership.  Nothing contained herein or in any document 
executed in connection herewith shall be construed as making City and Developer joint venturers 
or partners. 

 
B. Severability.  If any term, provision, covenant or condition of this Agreement is 

held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect. 

 
C. Attorneys' Fees.  In the event a lawsuit is filed to resolve any dispute between the 

parties involving the covenants or conditions contained herein, the prevailing party in such suit 
shall be entitled to recover its reasonable expenses, including attorneys' fees and all costs of suit.  
If any person or entity not a party to this Agreement initiates an action at law or in equity to 
challenge the validity of any provision of this Agreement or the Project Approvals, the parties 
shall cooperate in defending such action.  Each party shall be responsible for its own court costs 
and attorneys' fees expended by such party in defense of any such action or other proceeding. 



 

 
D.  Further Assurance; Covenant to Sign Documents.  Each party covenants, on 

behalf of itself and its successors, heirs and assigns, to take all actions and do all things, and to 
execute, with acknowledgment or affidavit if required, any and all documents and writings that 
may be reasonably necessary or proper to achieve the purposes and objectives of this Agreement. 

 
E. Time.  Time is of the essence to this Agreement and to each and every term and 

condition hereof.  
 
F. Force Majeure.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, either 

party shall be excused for the period of any delay in the performance of any of its obligations 
hereunder, except the payment of money, when prevented or delayed from so doing by certain 
causes beyond its control, including, and limited to, major weather differences from the normal 
weather conditions for the South San Francisco area, war, acts of God or of the public enemy, 
fires, explosions, floods, earthquakes, invasions by non-United States armed forces, failure of 
transportation due to no fault of the parties, unavailability of equipment, supplies, materials or 
labor when such unavailability occurs despite the applicable party’s good faith efforts to obtain 
same (good faith includes the present and actual ability to pay market rates for said equipment, 
materials, supplies and labor), strikes of employees other than Developer’s, freight embargoes, 
sabotage, riots, acts of terrorism or results therefrom, and acts of the government (other than the 
City).  The party claiming such extension of time to perform shall send written notice of the 
claimed extension to the other party within thirty (30) days from the commencement of the cause 
entitling the party to the extension.  

 
G. Incorporation of Exhibits.  Each of the exhibits attached hereto are incorporated 

herein by this reference and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Developer and City have executed this Agreement as of the 

day and year first written above. 
 

CITY OF MILPITAS,     MILPITAS SIGN COMPANY, LLC, A 
Municipal Corporation    a Delaware limited liability company 
 
By: ______________________________  By: Clear Channel Outdoor, Inc., 

Jose Esteves, Mayor            a Delaware corporation, 
               Manager 
ATTEST: 
               By: ____________________________ 
By: ______________________________ 
       Mary Lavelle, City Clerk            Its: ____________________________ 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By: ______________________________ 
       Michael J. Ogaz, City Attorney 



Exhibit A 

Legal Description of Real Property 

REAL PROPERTY IN CITY OF MILPITAS, COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA, STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

PARCEL ONE: 

PARCEL 3 AS SAID PARCEL IS SHOWN UPON THAT CERTAIN PARCEL MAP (THE 
MAP) WHICH MAP WAS FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER, COUNTY OF 
SANTA CLARA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ON MAY 19, 1994 IN BOOK 655 OF MAPS, AT 
PAGES 23 AND 24. 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION OF LAND CONVEYED TO THE CITY OF 
MILPITAS, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
RECORDED JULY 22, 2002 AS DOCUMENT NO. 16377445 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS 

PARCEL TWO: 

A NON-EXCLUSIVE JOINT ACCESS EASEMENT (J.A.E.) FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
PEDESTRIAN AND VEHICULAR ACCESS AND INCIDENTS THERETO OVER, UPON 
AND ACROSS A PORTION OF PARCEL 1 AND PARCEL 2 AS SAID PARCELS AND 
EASEMENT ARE DELINEATED UPON THE MAP. 

PARCEL THREE: 

A NON-EXCLUSIVE PRIVATE STORM DRAIN EASEMENT (P.S.D.E.) FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTING, MAINTAINING AND REPAIRING PRIV ATE STORM 
DRAINAGE FACILITIES AND THEIR APPURTENANCE UNDER, UPON AND OVER A 
PORTION OF PARCEL 4 AS SAID PARCEL AND EASEMENT IS DELINEATED UPON 
THE MAP. 

PARCEL FOUR: 

A NON-EXCLUSIVE PRIVATE WATER LINE EASEMENT (p.W.L.E.) FOR THE PURPOSE 
OF CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTAINING PRIVATE WATER LINES AND THEIR 
APPURTENANCES AND PRIVATE FIRE LINES AND THEIR APPURTENANCE, UNDER, 
UPON AND OVER A PORTION OF PARCEL 1 AND 2 AS SAID PARCELS AND 
EASEMENT IS DELINEATED UPON THE MAP. 

APN: 022-37-049 



All that certain real property situated in the City of Milpitas, County of Santa Clara, State of 
California and more particularly described as follows : 

Parcel 7, as said Parcel is shown on that certain Parcel Map, which Map was filed for record in the 
Office of the Recorder of the County of Santa Clara, State of California, on January 27, 1983 in 
Book 508 of Maps, Pages 38, 39 and 40. 

APN: 022-38-002 



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



 
10681 
T:\10681\FEIR\f-cover (10681).doc 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT 
INTERSTATE 880 BILLBOARDS PROJECT 

 
 

STATE CLEARINGHOUSE #2010062083 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by 
 

CITY OF MILPITAS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

With the Assistance of 
 

WAGSTAFF/MIG 
Urban and Environmental Planners 

 
 
 
 

March 2012 

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards Project  Final EIR 
City of Milpitas    Contents 
March 14, 2012    Page i 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\f-contents (10681).doc 

CONTENTS 

 
 
 
        Page 
 
1. INTRODUCTION ...............................................................................................................1-1 
 
 1.1 Relationship Between Draft EIR and Final EIR ........................................................1-1 
 1.2 Proposed Project Summary .....................................................................................1-1 
 
2. RESPONSES TO COMMENTS ON THE DRAFT EIR......................................................2-1 
 
 2.1 List of Draft EIR Commenters ..................................................................................2-1 
 2.2 Responses to Written Comments Received on the Draft EIR..................................2-3 
 
3. REVISIONS TO THE DRAFT EIR .....................................................................................3-1 
 
 

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards Project  Final EIR 
City of Milpitas    Contents 
March 14, 2012    Page ii 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\f-contents (10681).doc 

 
 
 

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards Project  Final EIR 
City of Milpitas    1.  Introduction  
March 14, 2012    Page 1-1 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\F-1 (10681).doc 

1.  INTRODUCTION 

 
 
 
1.1  RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN DRAFT EIR AND FINAL EIR 
 
The Final Environmental Impact Report (Final EIR) for the proposed Interstate 880 Billboards 
Project has been prepared by the City of Milpitas (City), the Lead Agency, in keeping with state 
environmental documentation requirements set forth in the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA).  The City has prepared the Final EIR pursuant to the CEQA Guidelines, including 
sections 15086 (Consultation Concerning Draft EIR), 15088 (Evaluation of and Response to 
Comments), and 15132 (Contents of Final Environmental Impact Report).  In conformance with 
these guidelines, the Final EIR consists of the following two volumes: 
 
(1) the Draft EIR, which was circulated for a 45-day public review and comment period on 
May 20, 2011 and circulated for a 45-day State agency review and comment period on May 18, 
2011; and 
 
(2) this Final EIR document, which includes a list of all commenters on the Draft EIR during 
and immediately after the Draft EIR public review period; verbatim versions of all 
communications (letters) received during and immediately after the Draft EIR review period; the 
responses of the EIR authors to all environmental points raised in these communications; and 
associated revisions to the Draft EIR. 
 
Both volumes of the Final EIR are available for public review at the City of Milpitas Planning 
Department, 455 East Calaveras Boulevard, Milpitas. 
 
The responses to comments included in this document are correlated to the letters by code 
numbers, which have been posted in the right hand margin of the letters. 
 
 
1.2  PROPOSED PROJECT 
 
1.2.1  Proposed Project Summary 
 
This summary should not be relied upon for a thorough understanding of the details of the 
project, its individual impacts, and related mitigation needs.  Please refer to Draft EIR Chapter 3 
for a complete description of the project, and Chapters 4 through 7 for a complete description of 
identified environmental impacts, mitigation measures, and alternatives. 
 
The project consists of the installation of three new billboard structures at three separate 
locations along the Interstate 880 (I-880) freeway in the City of Milpitas.  The proposed three 
billboards would be located on three of four possible sites currently under consideration.  The 
four possible sites are located along the western boundary of commercial and industrial parcels 
on California Circle and Cadillac Court, adjacent to the east edge of I-880, south of the Dixon 
Landing Road interchange.   
 

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards Project  Final EIR 
City of Milpitas    1.  Introduction  
March 14, 2012    Page 1-2 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\F-1 (10681).doc 

Each of the three billboards would include two approximately 14-foot high by 48-foot wide 
displays facing opposite directions, mounted on a single sign column.  The overall height of the 
billboards would be 70 feet.  Initially, four static and two electronic “digital” facings are proposed.  
As market demand increases, it is anticipated that the four static facings would also be 
converted to electronic “digital” facings incrementally over a period of approximately five years 
or longer.  Each of the electronic billboard facings would display a number of static LED images 
in continuous rotation, with each image displayed for no less than four seconds.   
 
As used in this Final EIR, the term "project" is defined to mean the proposed I-880 Billboards 
Project and all associated discretionary approvals, including the requested Development 
Agreement and Site Development Permit from the City of Milpitas, the Highway Outdoor 
Advertising Permit from Caltrans, as well as other local and state approvals, entitlements, 
permits, and actions that may be required to implement the project.   
 
1.2.2  Changes to the Proposed Project Since Public Review of the Draft EIR 
 
There have been minor changes to the proposed project since public review of the Draft EIR: 
 
 The location of Site Option 1, the southernmost site option under consideration, has been 

changed from parcel 002-38-020 (1001 Cadillac Court) to the northwest corner of the 
adjacent parcel to the south, parcel 002-38-019 (901 Cadillac Court). 

 
 The Draft EIR explains that initially, two of the six advertising facings on the three billboard 

structures would be digital LED displays and, ultimately, up to all six of the facings would be 
LED displays.  Due to market conditions, the project applicant now anticipates that four of 
the six facings may initially contain LED displays.   

 
The responses to comments on the Draft EIR in Section 2 and revisions to the Draft EIR in 
Section 3 reflect these minor changes to the project.   
 
According to CEQA Guidelines Section 15088.5, “A lead agency is required to recirculate an 
EIR when significant new information is added to the EIR after public notice is given of the 
availability of the draft EIR for public review under Section 15087 but before certification.  As 
used in this section, the term “information” can include changes in the project or environmental 
setting as well as additional data or other information.  New information added to an EIR is not 
“significant” unless the EIR is changed in a way that deprives the public of a meaningful 
opportunity to comment upon a substantial adverse environmental effect of the project or a 
feasible way to mitigate or avoid such an effect (including a feasible project alternative) that the 
project’s proponents have declined to implement.”   
 
The impact analyses and conclusions presented in Chapters 4 through 6 of the Draft EIR 
remain valid for the change in location of Site Option 1.  The changed location would be closer 
to adjacent residential uses (as close as approximately 300 feet from multiple family residential 
buildings on N. Abbott Avenue, 400 feet from homes on Glenmoor Circle, and 600 feet from 
homes on Heath Street and Redwood Avenue).  At these distances, at relatively the same 
elevation as the nearest homes, with partial blockage by the approximately 30-foot high 
industrial building and the eight-foot-high masonry block wall on the site, and within the context 
of the surrounding industrial and commercial development, the billboard displays would not be 
highly prominent in daytime views from these nearest residential vantage points, and the 
impacts of the project on adjacent residential visual character would still be less-than-significant.  

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards Project  Final EIR 
City of Milpitas    1.  Introduction  
March 14, 2012    Page 1-3 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\F-1 (10681).doc 

With the change in location of Site Option 1, the project would have a similar significant 
unavoidable impact related to I-880 gateway visual character and similar significant and 
mitigatable light, glare and sky glow impacts.   
 
The visual simulations presented in Figures 4.2 through 4.7 are also adequately representative 
of project aesthetic effects for these minor changes to the proposed project.  The 
photosimulations depict the size, shape, height, placement, design character and daytime 
visibility of the proposed billboards and provide an approximate indication of the visibility of the 
billboards from key public vantage points.  Figures 4.2, 4.3, 4.6 and 4.7, which illustrate Site 
Option 1 and Site Option 3 in views from northbound and southbound I-880, are also adequately 
representative of the visibility and character of the minor change in location of Site Option 1.  No 
new photosimulation of Site Option 1 is necessary.   
 
The Draft EIR evaluates an ultimate scenario with all six of the facings containing LED displays, 
which represents a “worst-case” scenario with respect to potential aesthetic and transportation 
impacts.  The potential impacts of some number of static displays and fewer LED displays 
would be similar to and less substantial than the impacts of the scenario of all facings containing 
LED displays evaluated in the Draft EIR.  Alternative 4: All Non-LED Billboards evaluated in 
Chapter 7, Alternatives, of the Draft EIR compares the impacts and mitigation needs of all non-
LED billboards to those of the project.  As indicated by the evaluation of Alternative 4, some 
number of static displays and fewer LED displays would have a similar significant unavoidable 
impact related to I-880 gateway visual character and less substantial but still significant and 
mitigatable light, glare and sky glow impacts as the project.  The Draft EIR evaluations of the 
project and of Alternative 4 adequately cover the range of potential impacts of the possible 
combinations of static displays and LED displays.    
 
In accordance with CEQA Guidelines Section 15088.5, the new information explained in this 
section and added in revisions to the Draft EIR in Section 3 does not disclose a new significant 
impact, a substantial increase in the severity of an impact, or a different feasible alternative or 
mitigation measure that the project proponent declines to adopt, and so does not constitute 
significant new information requiring recirculation. 

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards Project  Final EIR 
City of Milpitas    1.  Introduction  
March 14, 2012    Page 1-4 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\F-1 (10681).doc 

 
 
 

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards  Project  Final EIR 
City of Milpitas    2.  Responses to Comments on the Draft EIR 
March 14, 2012    Page 2-1 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\F-2 (10681).doc 

2.  RESPONSES TO COMMENTS ON THE DRAFT EIR 

 
 
 
After completion of the Draft EIR, the Lead Agency (the City) is required under CEQA 
Guidelines sections 15086 (Consultation Concerning Draft EIR) and 15088 (Evaluation of and 
Response to Comments) to consult with and obtain comments from other public agencies 
having jurisdiction by law with respect to the project, and to provide the general public with an 
opportunity to comment on the Draft EIR.  Under CEQA Guidelines section 15088, the Lead 
Agency is also required to respond in writing to substantive environmental points raised in this 
Draft EIR review and consultation process. 
 
The Draft EIR was circulated for public review and comment on May 20, 2011 and for State 
agency review and comment on May 18, 2011.  The required 45-day public review period (for 
State review) on the Draft EIR began on May 18, 2011 and ended on July 1, 2011.   
 
Comments on the Draft EIR were submitted in the form of four letters received by the City 
during the Draft EIR review period.   
 
CEQA Guidelines section 15132 (Contents of Final Environmental Impact Report), subsection 
(b), requires that the Final EIR include the full set of "comments and recommendations received 
on the Draft EIR either verbatim or in summary"; section 15132, subsection (c), requires that the 
Final EIR include "a list of persons, organizations, and public agencies commenting on the Draft 
EIR"; and section 15132, subsection (d), requires that the Final EIR include "the responses of 
the Lead Agency to significant environmental points raised in the review and consultation 
process."  In keeping with these guidelines, this Responses to Comments chapter includes the 
following sections: 
 
 a list of Draft EIR commenters (section 2.1) which lists each individual and organization 

that submitted written comments (letters) to the City during the Draft EIR review period; 
 
 a responses to written comments section (section 2.2), which includes copies of the three 

letters received, followed by a summary of and response to each comment therein 
pertaining to Draft EIR content or adequacy. 

 
 
2.1 LIST OF DRAFT EIR COMMENTERS 
 
The individuals and organizations who commented on the Draft EIR in writing during the Draft 
EIR review period are listed below alphabetically.  Each letter received is also identified by a 
code in parentheses--e.g., letters L 1, L 2, L 3, etc.  The code numbers are chronological in the 
general order that the letters were received. 
  
Raluca Nitescu, PE, Project Engineer, County of Santa Clara, Roads and Airports Department 

(L 1); 
Gary Arnold, District Branch Chief, Local Development-Intergovernmental Review, California 

Department of Transportation, District 4 (L 2); 

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards  Project  Final EIR 
City of Milpitas    2.  Responses to Comments on the Draft EIR 
March 14, 2012    Page 2-2 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\F-2 (10681).doc 

Scott Morgan, Director, State Clearinghouse, Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (L 3); 
and 

Roy Molseed, Senior Environmental Planner, Santa Clara County Valley Transportation 
Authority (L 4). 

 
 

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards  Project  Final EIR 
City of Milpitas    2.  Responses to Comments on the Draft EIR 
March 14, 2012    Page 2-3 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\F-2 (10681).doc 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.2  RESPONSES TO WRITTEN COMMENTS  
RECEIVED ON THE DRAFT EIR  

 
The following section includes copies of letters received during the Draft EIR public review 
period, each followed by written responses to each comment on the content or adequacy of the 
Draft EIR or on a substantive environmental point.  The comments and responses are 
correlated by code numbers added to the right margin of each letter. 

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards  Project  Final EIR 
City of Milpitas    2.  Responses to Comments on the Draft EIR 
March 14, 2012    Page 2-4 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\F-2 (10681).doc 

Attachment D



L 1

L1.01

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards  Project  Final EIR 
City of Milpitas    2.  Responses to Comments on the Draft EIR 
March 14, 2012    Page 2-6 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\F-2 (10681).doc 

L 1  Raluca Nitescu, PE, Project Engineer, County of Santa Clara, Roads and Airports 
Department, June 20, 2011   
 
Comment L 1.01:  Letter acknowledges that the County reviewed the Draft EIR and has no 
comments.  
 
 Response:  Comment acknowledged.  No further response is required. 

Attachment D



L 2

L2.01

L2.02

L2.03

Attachment D
Sent By: CAL TRANS TRANSPORTATIO PLANNING; 510 286 5560; 
To: MILPITAS At: 914085863293 

Jun-30-11 4:25PM; Page 1/3 

EDMUND G, B!\OWN, 1<. Gov,""", 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
P,O. BOX 23660 
OAKLAND, CA 94623-0660 
PHONE (510) 286·5541 

'.',,"""""'.',' 
" 

FAX (510) 286-5559 
TIY 711 

n", ll11Jf powttl 
Be ene'T,l' .!fiei .. /! 

JlUle 30, 2011 

Mr. Sheldon AhSing 
City ofMilpita&, Platllling Division 
455 East Calaveras Boulevard 
Milpitas, CA 95035 

Dear Mr. AhSing: 

, set·880/lOA 
SCL880240 
,SCH# 2010062083 

Intentate 880Dlgitill BDlboardsProject- Draft EnvironmentaJlmpact Report (DE,IR) 

Thank you for including the Califumia Department ofTransportati~n(Department) in the 
environmental review process for the above·referenced project. We have reviewed the proposed 
project's DEIR and ate pleased to oirer the following comments., 

As lead agency, the City of Milpitas (City) is responsible for allprO.leet mitigation, including any 
needed improvements to state highways. The project's flrlr shareOOhtribution, financing, 
scheduling, implementation responsibilities and lead agency moniti>ringsbould be fully disCIlllSed 
for all proposed mitigation measures. The project's traffic mitigation fees should be specifically 
identified in the environmental document. Any required roadway improvements should be 
completed prior to issuance of projectoccuplU'lcy.pennits. While aj1encroachment permit is only 
required when theproject.invoives work in the State Right of Way (ROW), the Department will 
nt'lt i$suean encroachmilnt permit until our concems are adequately addressed. Therefore, we 
strongly recommendthatthelead.agenoy ensure resolution of the ()i:partment's California 
Envirnnmental QualityAet (CEQA)concerm prior to submittal of the encroachment permit 
application. Furthercornments will be provided during the encroa~ent pennit process if 
required; see the end of this letter for more in:furmation regarding the encroachment permit 
process. 

Design plans for any proposlld freeway monument signage sbould be provided to the Department 
:fur review and, dependihgonproposedsign location, approval. 1."litplansshould depict the 
layout, roadway setback,orientation. ·glare intensity, and sign size .. ·• The.Department is required by 
law to enforce the Outd00r.Advertising Act and Regulations regarding the placement of 
advertising along the highways. TIlatdocwnentis available ontheitltemet at 
http://www.dot.ca.govlhqlOdaidownloadlODA_Act_&_Regulations.pdf. For additional 
information, please contact Mr. James Arbis at (916) 654-6413. 

"Calt"" ... impro.<s mobility aero •• Califo,.,.",' 



L 2

L2.04

L2.05

L2.06

L2.07

L2.08

L2.09

L2.10
L2.11

L2.12

Attachment D
Sent By: CAL TRANS TRANSPORTATIO PLANNING; 510 286 5560; 

Mr. Sheldon AhSinglClty of Milpitas 
June 30, 2011 
Page 2 

Traffic Safety 

Jun-30-11 4:25PM; Page 2/3 

The "Traffic Safety Impacts" analysis of Section 5.3.2. (see page$~Il) correctly states the potential 
impacts of the proposed displays to tr!Iffic safety, due to the mesSlIge.dutation, location, and 
particularly the message sequencing .. However, theDepartment~not concur with the 
determination.by the City thafthese potential impacts are "less thattsignificant" to traffic safety. 
We believe the.projectposes potentially significant impacts, based ¢t the analysis below lUlder the 
"Roadside Management& Landscape Architecture" comments. .. 

Roadside Management&. LimdsctljUlArchitecture. .. 
The proposed project description of SectiOn 1.1PtoposedProject($eepagel-l) describes four 
signage locations as being 1,000 feet apart. However, Site Option 2.isdepicted in Figure 4,1 (see .. 
page 4-8) as being closer tlIlu:i 1,000 feet from both Site Option .1aildSite Option 3, so there 
cannot be three billboard,st:r\lCtures.ifSiteOption 2 iii selected. Ad4itionally, there is no visu!l1 
billboard structure simulation provided for Site Option 2. 

Also, the project descriptiollstates that, initially,friur statiearidtw()(jlectronie "digital" facings are 
planned with the four static facings being converted to digital inlhifuture. Please identifyWbich 
display facing .will bedfgitalandwhiclrstaticdisplay facings willbe oonverted. Also, the City's 
General Plan diSCllSsespOssible future llU)dscaping. If the Cityadd~landscaping to this section of 
interstate (1-) 880, this section ofI-880 could be reclassified at that time as a landscaped freeway. 

~~~ . 

Generally, the Departmerttfinds the DEIR la(:king in spccificity.Ilorexample, as discussooabove 
in the "Roadside Management & Landscape ArChitecture" commtil1ts,the DEIR does not specify 
which display facing is to be digital and which static facings may later be converted to digitaL 
Also, the DElR does not discuss possible future landscaping in the project area lUlder the City's 
General Plan. The Department prefen "Alternative 3: Fewer BillbOards" (see Section 7. 
Alternatives, page 7-1). 

EncrOllchmentPermit .. 
Work that encroacllesonto the State ROW requires an encroacInUCAt permit that is issued by the 
Department. To apply, aCll111pleted encroaclunentptmnit application, environmental 
documentation,and five (5) sets of plans clearly.irtdicating State RpW must be submitted to the 
address below. Traffic~telatcd mitigation measures should be i:ilCOI(porated into the construction 
plans during the encroachment permit process. 

Office of Permits 
Clilifotrtl8 DOT, District 4 

P.O. Bo" 23660 
Oakland, CA 94623-0660 

See the website link below formoreinfonnation. 
http://www.dot.ea.govlhqltraffopsldevelopserv/permitsi 

Further comments may be forthcoming, as the CEQA and review processes continue. 



L 2

Attachment D
Sent By: CAL TRANS TRANSPORTATIO PLANNING; 510 286 5560; 

Mr. Sheldon AhSing/City of Milpitas 
June 30, 2011 
Page 3 

Jun-30-11 4:26PM; 

Please feel free to oorltliet Brian Brandertat (S10}286-S50S, ifyollliave any questions 
regarding this letter. 

Dis Branch Chief 
Local Development"lntergovemmental Review 

c: Soott Morgan (State Clearinghouse) 

Page 3/3 



Interstate 880 Billboards  Project  Final EIR 
City of Milpitas    2.  Responses to Comments on the Draft EIR 
March 14, 2012    Page 2-10 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\F-2 (10681).doc 

L 2  Gary Arnold, District Branch Chief, Local Development-Intergovernmental Review, 
California Department of Transportation, District 4 
 
Comment L 2.01:  As Lead Agency, the City is responsible for all project mitigation.  Mitigation 
details should be fully discussed.  The project’s traffic mitigation fees should be identified.  Any 
required roadway improvements should be completed before issuance of occupancy permits.  
 

Response:  The project would not generate any new vehicle trips, cause any change in 
traffic patterns, or change the traffic capacity of the local circulation system.  The project 
would not directly or indirectly affect traffic operations on Interstate 880 or local streets.  
The project would have no impact related to traffic capacity and operations.  The project 
would not require roadway improvements, improvements to State highways, payment of 
traffic mitigation fees, or any other traffic mitigations.   

 
Comment L 2.02:  Caltrans will not issue an encroachment permit until its CEQA concerns are 
addressed.  
 

Response:  The project is not expected to require an encroachment permit from 
Caltrans.  Although the proposed billboards would be located near the eastern edge of 
the I-880 right-of-way, the billboards would be located on private property and no part of 
the billboards would overhang the freeway right-of-way.  As explained on pages 1-1 and 
3-21 of the Draft EIR, the project would require a Highway Outdoor Advertising Permit 
from Caltrans to allow the placement of off-premise advertising displays adjacent to a 
Caltrans facility. 

 
Comment L 2.03:  Caltrans enforces the Outdoor Advertising Act and regulations regarding the 
placement of advertising along highways.  The project would require a Highway Outdoor 
Advertising Permit from Caltrans.  Design plans should be provided for Caltrans review. 
 

Response:  As explained on pages 1-1 and 3-21 of the Draft EIR, the project would 
require a Highway Outdoor Advertising Permit from Caltrans to allow the placement of 
off-premise advertising displays adjacent to a Caltrans facility.  Design plans for the 
proposed billboards would be provided to Caltrans for review and approval with the 
Highway Outdoor Advertising Permit application.   

 
Comment L 2.04:  The project poses potentially significant impacts on traffic safety, based on 
the analysis in comments 2.05 through 2.08.  
 

Response:  The comment notes that Caltrans believes that the project poses a 
potentially significant impact on traffic safety based on the analysis contained in 
comments 2.05 through 2.08.  Comment 2.05 pertains to billboard spacing.  Comment 
2.06 pertains to aesthetic impacts.  Comment 2.07 pertains to which of the billboard 
facings would be LED displays and which would initially be static displays.  Comment 
2.08 pertains to possible future reclassification of the subject segment of I-880 as a 
landscaped freeway.  
 
The Draft EIR on page 5-8 notes that the project could reduce traffic safety due to the 
digital billboard message duration, location, and message sequencing.  The proposed 4 
second message duration is less than the minimum message duration of 8 seconds 
recommended by the FHWA and the longer message durations recommended by some 

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards  Project  Final EIR 
City of Milpitas    2.  Responses to Comments on the Draft EIR 
March 14, 2012    Page 2-11 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\F-2 (10681).doc 

traffic safety experts, research studies and governmental agencies, and this shorter 
message duration has the potential to increase driver distraction.  The placement of the 
proposed digital billboard at Site Option 4 adjacent to driver decision and action points 
and official traffic control signs associated with the northbound off-ramp to California 
Circle and Dixon Landing Road could reduce traffic safety.  Due to their proximity to one 
another and their placement in succession, the three billboards could be used for 
message sequencing, which would also have the potential for driver distraction and 
could reduce traffic safety. 
 
However, the Draft EIR concludes that there are no known existing standards or 
significance thresholds that would definitively indicate that reduced traffic safety due to 
the digital billboard message duration, location, and message sequencing would 
represent a potentially significant impact.  
 
Although not identified as a mitigation measure, the Draft EIR nonetheless suggests that 
the Agreement between the project applicant and the City required by Title XI, Chapter 
10, Section 24.05(G)(3)(a) of the Milpitas Municipal Code include provisions to enable 
the City to maintain limited ongoing oversight of billboard operation, and to facilitate 
updates to operational control requirements should new technologies emerge or should 
new operational data or research findings suggest needed changes to sign physical or 
operating characteristics.   

 
Comment L 2.05:  The Draft EIR on page 1-1 incorrectly states that the four possible sign 
locations under consideration are spaced at least 1,000 feet apart.  Site Option 2 is located less 
than 1,000 feet from Site Option 1 and Site Option 3, so there could not be three billboards if 
Site Option 2 is selected. 
 

Response:  The proposed billboards would be spaced at least 1,000 feet apart, as 
required for digital billboards under the federal Highway Beautification Act of 1965, the 
California Outdoor Advertising Act, and the Milpitas Municipal Code.  The federal 
Highway Beautification Act of 1965 and the California Outdoor Advertising Act require a 
minimum spacing of 1,000 feet between LED displays, and 500 feet between non-LED 
displays.  The Milpitas Municipal Code requires a minimum spacing of 1,000 feet 
between off-site advertising displays adjacent to Interstate highways regardless of LED 
or non-LED displays.  
 
The locations of the proposed billboards within each parcel at Site Option 1, Site Option 
2 and Site Option 3 shown on Figures 3.2 through 3.6 are only approximate locations.  
The proposed billboards may be located anywhere along the western boundary of the 
subject parcels, Assessor Parcel Number (APN) 022-38-019, APN 022-38-010, and APN 
022-38-002, but at no time would the locations be closer than 1,000 feet.   
 
The location of the proposed billboard at Site Option 4 shown on Figures 3.2, 3.3 and 
3.7, within the parking area at the southwestern corner of the lot with its site constraints, 
is a more precise location; the proposed billboard at Site Option 4 would replace the 
existing approximately 45-foot high freeway-oriented on-premise advertising sign at this 
location. 
  

Attachment D



Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards  Project  Final EIR 
City of Milpitas    2.  Responses to Comments on the Draft EIR 
March 14, 2012    Page 2-13 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\F-2 (10681).doc 

 
Only three out of the four locations will be chosen and at no time will the signs be closer 
than 1,000 feet.  This spacing requirement may preclude choosing certain locations.  As 
shown on the assessor parcel map on the following page, Site Option 2 (APN 022-38-
010), Site Option 3 (APN 022-38-002) and the parcel between them (APN 022-38-009) 
combined have a total freeway frontage of 1,039.63 feet.  Site Option 1 (APN 022-38-
019), Site Option 2 (APN 022-38-010) and the intervening parcels (APNs 022-38-020 
and 022-38-021) combined have a total freeway frontage of 1,104.20 feet.  Billboards 
placed near the southern boundary of Site Option 2 and the northern boundary of Site 
Option 3 would be at least 1,000 feet apart.  Billboards placed near the southern 
boundary of Site Option 2 and on Site Option 1 would be at least 1,000 feet apart.  With 
the change in the location of Site Option 1 to APN 022-38-019, three billboards could be 
placed on Site Option 1, Site Option 2 and Site Option 3 at least 1,000 feet apart.   
 
Draft EIR pages 3-5 and 3-18 have been revised to reflect that the proposed billboards 
at Site Option 1, Site Option 2 and Site Option 3 are only approximate.  The visual 
simulations presented in Figures 4.2 through 4.7 are adequately representative of 
project aesthetic effects for any given location along the western boundary of Site 
Option 1, Site Option 2 and Site Option 3.  The impact analyses and conclusions 
presented in Chapters 4 though 6 of the Draft EIR remain valid for any given location 
along the western boundary of Site Option 1, Site Option 2 and Site Option 3.   

 
Comment L 2.06:  The Draft EIR does not include a visual simulation of Site Option 2.  
 

Response:  The six viewpoints considered most representative of project aesthetic 
effects were selected for simulation and presented in Figures 4.2 through 4.7 of the Draft 
EIR: 
 
 Site Options 1 and 3 from Northbound I-880, 
 Site Options 3 and 4 from Northbound I-880, 
 Site Option 4 from California Circle, 
 Site Option 4 from East Side of Penitencia Creek Channel, 
 Site Option 3 from Southbound I-880, and 
 Site Option 1 from Southbound I-880.  

 
The photosimulations depict the size, shape, height, placement, design character and 
daytime visibility of the proposed billboards and provide an approximate indication of the 
visibility of the billboards from key public vantage points.  All of the billboards would be 
similar in size, shape, height, orientation and design character.  Figures 4.2, 4.3, 4.6 and 
4.7, which illustrate Site Option 1 and Site Option 3 in views from northbound and 
southbound I-880, are also adequately representative of the visibility and character of 
Site Option 2.  No additional photosimulation of Site Option 2 is necessary. 

 
Comment L 2.07:  Please identify which of the billboard facings would be LED displays and 
which would be static displays initially and later converted to LED displays.  
 

Response:  The Draft EIR explains that initially, two of the six advertising facings on the 
three billboard structures would be digital LED displays and, ultimately, up to all six of 
the facings would be LED displays.  Due to market conditions, the project applicant now 

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards  Project  Final EIR 
City of Milpitas    2.  Responses to Comments on the Draft EIR 
March 14, 2012    Page 2-14 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\F-2 (10681).doc 

anticipates that four of the six facings may initially contain LED displays.  The Draft EIR 
have been revised to reflect this possibility. 
 
The Draft EIR evaluates an ultimate scenario with all six of the facings containing LED 
displays, which represents a “worst-case” scenario with respect to potential aesthetic 
and transportation impacts.  The potential impacts of some number of static displays and 
fewer LED displays would be similar to and less substantial than the impacts of the 
scenario of all facings containing LED displays evaluated in the Draft EIR.  Alternative 4: 
All Non-LED Billboards evaluated in Chapter 7, Alternatives, of the Draft EIR compares 
the impacts and mitigation needs of all non-LED billboards to those of the project.  As 
indicated by the evaluation of Alternative 4, some number of static displays and fewer 
LED displays would have a similar significant unavoidable impact related to I-880 
gateway visual character and less substantial but still significant and mitigatable light, 
glare and sky glow impacts as the project.  The Draft EIR evaluations of the project and 
of Alternative 4 adequately cover the range of potential impacts of the possible 
combinations of static displays and LED displays.    

 
Comment L 2.08:  If the City adds landscaping to this segment of I-880 as identified in the 
General Plan, the segment of the freeway could be reclassified as a landscaped freeway.  
 

Response:  As explained on page 3-13 of the Draft EIR, a “landscaped freeway” is 
defined in the California Outdoor Advertising Act as a Caltrans-designated freeway 
segment that is now, or may in the future be, improved by the planting of lawns, trees, 
shrubs, flowers or other ornamental vegetation requiring reasonable maintenance on 
one or both sides of the freeway (Government Code Section 5216).  Under the Outdoor 
Advertising Act, off-premise signs are not allowed along Caltrans-designated 
“landscaped freeways,” except when approved as part of relocation agreements 
involving the removal of an existing billboard elsewhere along the “landscaped freeway.”  
Within Milpitas, I-880 is designated a “landscaped freeway” from Montague Expressway 
to Great Mall Parkway (postmile (PM) 5.97 to PM 7.48) and from SR 237 to the southern 
boundary of Site Option 1 (PM 8.01 to PM 9.45).  Remaining segments of I-880 within 
Milpitas, including the portion containing the project sites, are non-landscaped freeways 
and so the proposed billboards would not be precluded.  

 
As explained on pages 4-6 through 4-8 of the Draft EIR, General Plan Open Space & 
Environmental Conservation Element Figure 4-6, Scenic Resources and Routes, 
identifies the southbound I-880 freeway segment at the northern city limits at Dixon 
Landing Road as a major visual “gateway” into Milpitas.  The City’s Streetscape Master 
Plan includes landscaping and signage recommendations for General Plan-identified 
major “gateways,” including the I-880 “gateway” segment.  The project would not 
preclude the potential future installation of “gateway” freeway landscaping along I-880 at 
Dixon Landing Road, although it may limit the extent of the landscaping south along I-
880, so as not to conflict with State law and the objectives of this project. 

 
Comment L 2.09:  The Draft EIR lacks specificity.  The document does not specify which 
billboard facings would be LED displays and which would be static displays initially and later 
converted to LED displays.  
 

Response:  As stipulated by the CEQA Guidelines, the project description has been 
detailed to the extent needed for evaluation and review of environmental impacts.  The 

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards  Project  Final EIR 
City of Milpitas    2.  Responses to Comments on the Draft EIR 
March 14, 2012    Page 2-15 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\F-2 (10681).doc 

Draft EIR explains that initially, two of the six advertising facings on the three billboard 
structures would be digital LED displays and, ultimately, up to all six of the facings would 
be LED displays.  Due to market conditions, the project applicant now anticipates that 
four of the six facings may initially contain LED displays.  The Draft EIR have been 
revised to reflect this possibility. 
 

Comment L 2.10:  The Draft EIR does not discuss possible future landscaping along this 
segment of I-880 as identified in the General Plan.  
 

Response:  General Plan Open Space & Environmental Conservation Element Figure 4-
6, Scenic Resources and Routes, identifies the southbound I-880 freeway segment at 
the northern city limits at Dixon Landing Road and the eastbound SR 237 highway 
segment at the western city limits as major visual “gateways” into Milpitas.  The City’s 
Streetscape Master Plan includes landscaping and signage recommendations for 
General Plan-identified major “gateways,” including the I-880 “gateway” segment.  
Pages 4-6 through 4-8 of the Draft EIR describe these City policies from the Milpitas 
General Plan and the Milpitas Streetscape Master Plan.  

 
Impact 4-1 on page 4-16 of the Draft EIR explains that the project may be perceived by 
many as substantially degrading the visual character and quality of the General Plan-
identified southbound I-880 “gateway” to Milpitas, which would represent a potentially 
significant impact. Mitigation 4-1 on pages 4-16 and 4-17 would require changes in the 
Agreement between the project applicant and the City required by Title XI, Chapter 10, 
Section 24.05(G)(3)(a) of the Milpitas Municipal Code to include provisions to enable the 
City to require adjustments to the digital display brilliance, content, motion, recess, aim, 
focus, shielding, etc. if deemed necessary over time.  However, despite these measures, 
the impact on the southbound I-880 gateway visual character would remain significant 
and unavoidable. 

 
Comment L 2.11:  Caltrans prefers Alternative 3: Fewer Billboards.  
 

Response:  Comment acknowledged.  No further response is required. 
 
Comment L 2.12:  Work that encroaches into the State right-of-way would require an 
encroachment permit from Caltrans.  Traffic-related mitigation measures should be incorporated 
into the construction plans during the encroachment permit process.  
 

Response:  The project is not expected to require an encroachment permit from 
Caltrans.  Although the proposed billboards would be located near the eastern edge of 
the I-880 right-of-way, the billboards would be located on private property and no part of 
the billboards would overhang the freeway right-of-way.  As explained on pages 1-1 and 
3-21 of the Draft EIR, the project would require a Highway Outdoor Advertising Permit 
from Caltrans to allow the placement of off-premise advertising displays adjacent to a 
Caltrans facility.  Design plans for the proposed billboards would be provided to Caltrans 
for review and approach with the Highway Outdoor Advertising Permit application.  The 
project would have no traffic impacts and would not require any traffic-related 
mitigations. 

Attachment D



L 3

L3.01

Attachment D

S TAT E OF CAL I FOR N I A 

Governor's Office of Planning and Research 

State Clearinghouse and Planning Unit 
Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

Governor 

July 5, 2011 

Sheldon AhSing 
City of Milpitas 
455 E. Calaveras Boulevard 
Milpitas, CA 95035 

Subject: Interstate 880 Digital Billboards Project 
SCH#: 2010062083 

Dear Sheldon AhSing: 

The State Clearinghouse submitted the above named Draft EIR to selected state agencies for review. On 
the enclosed Document Details Report please note that the Clearinghouse has listed the state agencies that 
reviewed your document. The review period closed on July I, 2011, and the comments from the . 
responding agency (ies) is (are) enclosed. If this comment package is not in order, please notify the State 
Clearinghouse immediately. Please refer to the project's ten-digit State Clearinghouse number in future 
cOITespondence so that we may respond promptly. 

Please note that Section 21104(c) of the California Public Resources Code states that: 

"A responsible or other public agency shall only make substantive comments regarding those 
activities involved in a project which are within an area of expertise of the agency or which are 
required to be caJTied out or approved by the agency. Those comments shall be supported by 
specific documentation. " 

These comments are forwarded for use in preparing your final environmental document. Should you need 
more infoJTnation or clarification of the enclosed comments, we recommend that you contact the 
commenting agency directly. 

This letter acknowledges that you have complied with the State ClearinghoUf , review requirements for 
draft enviromnental documents, pursuant to the California Enviromnental Quality Act. Please contact the 

. State Clearinghouse at (916) 445-0613 if you have any questions regarding the enviromnental review 
process. 

Director, State Clearinghouse 

Enclosures 
cc: Resources Agency 

1400 TENTH STREET P.O. BOX 3044 SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95812-3044 
TEL (916) 445-0613 FAX (916) 323-3018 www.opr.ca.gov 



L 3

Attachment D

SCH# 
Project Title 

Lead Agency 

2010062083 

Document Details Report 
State Clearinghouse Data Base 

Interstate 880 Digital Billboards Project 
Milpitas, City of 

Type EIR Draft EIR 

Description The project applicant, SignCo East, LLC, is proposing to install up to three separate billboard 

structures containing two advertising facings per structure along the 1-880 freeway corridor in Milpitas. 

The three new signs are proposed to include electronic digital reader board components. The signs 

are proposed to be similar in size to existing digital reader board signs located along other stretches of 

1-880 in the subregion. Top-of-sign heights of up to 70 ft. and maximum sign areas of 14 by 48 ft. are 

proposed. 

Lead Agency Contact 
Sheldon AhSing Name 

Agency 
Phone 

email 
Address 

City 

City of Mil pitas 
408-586-3278 
sahsing@ci.milpitas.ca.gov 
455 E. Calaveras Boulevard 
Milpitas 

Fax 408-586-3305 

State CA Zip 95035 

Project Location 
County Santa Clara 

City Milpitas 
Region 

LatlLong 
Cross Streets 

Parcel No. 
Township 

1-880 East Frontage & Cadillac Court, CA Circle, & Dixon Landing Rd. 
022-38-020, -010, -002; 022-37-049 

Proximity to: 
Highways SR-237 

Airports 
Railways 

Waterways 
Schools 

Range 

Land Use Industrial Park (MP) 

Section 

Project Issues AestheticNisual; Traffic/Circulation; Cumulative Effects 

Base 

Reviewing Resources Agency; Department of Fish and Game, Region 3; Department of Parks and Recreation; 

Agencies Department of Water Resources; California Highway Patrol; Caltrans, District 4; Regional Water 

Quality Control Board, Region 2; Native American Heritage Commission 

Date Received 05/18/2011 Start of Review 05/18/2011 End of Review 07/01/2011 

Note: Blanks in data fields result from insufficient information provided by lead agency. 



Interstate 880 Billboards  Project  Final EIR 
City of Milpitas    2.  Responses to Comments on the Draft EIR 
March 14, 2012    Page 2-18 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\F-2 (10681).doc 

L 3  Scott Morgan, Director, State Clearinghouse, Governor’s Office of Planning and Research, 
July 5, 2011 
 
Comment L 3.01:  Letter lists the State agencies that reviewed the Draft EIR, transmits 
comments from responding State agencies, and acknowledges that the City has complied with 
State Clearinghouse requirements for draft environmental documents pursuant to CEQA.  
 

Response:  Comment acknowledged.  No further response is required. 

Attachment D



L 4

Attachment D

SANTA (LARA 

Valley Transportation Authority 

July 8, 2011 

City of Milpitas 
Planning Division 
455 East Calaveras Boulevard 
Milpitas, CA 95035-5479 

Attention: Sheldon Ah Sing 

Subject: 1-880 Digital Billboards 

Dear Mr. Sing: 

Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority (VTA) staff have reviewed the Draft EIR for three 
new digital signs on 1-880 between Dixon Landing Road and SR 237. We have no comments at 
this time. 

Thank you for the opportunity to review this project. If you have any questions, please call me at 
(408) 321-5784. 

Sincerely, ~ 

f2~ 
Roy Molseed 
Senior Environmental Planner 



Interstate 880 Billboards  Project  Final EIR 
City of Milpitas    2.  Responses to Comments on the Draft EIR 
March 14, 2012    Page 2-20 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\F-2 (10681).doc 

L 4  Roy Molseed, Senior Environmental Planner, Santa Clara County Valley Transportation 
Authority, July 8, 2011   
 
Comment L 1.01:  Letter acknowledges that the Santa Clara County Valley Transportation 
Authority (VTA) reviewed the Draft EIR and has no comments.  
 

Response:  Comment acknowledged.  No further response is required. 
 
 

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards Project  Final EIR 
City of Milpitas    3.  Revisions to the Draft EIR 
March 14, 2012    Page 3-1 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\F-3 (10681).doc 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3.  REVISIONS TO THE DRAFT EIR 
 
 
The following section includes all revisions to the May 18, 2011 Draft EIR made in response to 
comments received during the Draft EIR comment period.  All text revisions are indicated by a 
bracket in the left margin next to the revised line(s).  All of the revised pages supersede the 
corresponding pages in the May 18, 2011 Draft EIR.  None of the criteria listed in CEQA 
Guidelines section 15088.5 (Recirculation of an EIR Prior to Certification) indicating the need for 
recirculation of the EIR has been met as a result of the revisions which follow.  In particular: 
 
 no new significant environmental impact due to the project or due to a new mitigation 

measure has been identified; 
 
 no substantial increase in the severity of an environmental impact has been identified; and 
 
 no additional feasible project alternative or mitigation measure considerably different from 

others previously analyzed in the Draft EIR has been identified that would clearly lessen the 
significant environmental impacts of the project, but the project proponents decline to adopt. 

 

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards Project  Final EIR 
City of Milpitas    3.  Revisions to the Draft EIR 
March 14, 2012    Page 3-2 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\F-3 (10681).doc 

 
 

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards Project  Revisions to the Draft EIR 
City of Milpitas    1.  Introduction 
March 14, 2012    Page 1-1 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\1-r (10681).doc 

1.  INTRODUCTION 

 
 
 
This Draft Environmental Impact Report (Draft EIR) has been prepared by the City of Milpitas in 
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)1 and associated CEQA 
Guidelines2 to describe the potential environmental consequences of the proposed Interstate 
880 Billboards Project (Project).  The Project applicant, SignCo East, LLC, proposes to install 
three separate billboard structures containing a total of six advertising facings, two per structure, 
along the east side of Interstate 880 (I-880) south of Dixon Landing Road in Milpitas.  This Draft 
EIR is intended to serve as an informational document for use by public agency decision 
makers and the public in their consideration of the Project.   
 
 
1.1  PROPOSED PROJECT 
 
Four possible sites are under consideration for the three proposed billboard structures.  The four 
possible sites are located along the western boundary of commercial and industrial parcels 
adjacent to the east edge of the I-880 freeway right-of-way.  Initially, two static and four 
electronic “digital” facings are planned.  As market demand increases, it is anticipated that the 
two static facings would also be converted to electronic “digital” facings. 
 
Each billboard structure would include two approximately 14-foot high by 48-foot wide displays 
facing opposite directions, mounted on a single sign column.  The overall height of the 
billboards would be 70 feet.  Each of the electronic billboard facings would display a number of 
static LED images in continuous rotation, with each image displayed for no less than four 
seconds.   
 
The Project would require City of Milpitas (City) approval of a Development Agreement and Site 
Development Permit, as well as building permits.  Each billboard would also require a Highway 
Outdoor Advertising Permit from the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans).  A 
detailed description of the Project is provided in Chapter 3, Project Description, herein. 
 
As used in this EIR, the term "Project" is defined to mean the proposed Interstate 880 Billboards 
Project and all associated discretionary approvals, including the requested Development 
Agreement and Site Development Permit from the City, the Highway Outdoor Advertising Permit 
from Caltrans, as well as other local and state approvals, entitlements, permits, and actions that 
may be required to implement the Project.   
 
 

                                                 
     1The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) is codified in section 21000, et seq., of the 
California Public Resources Code. 
 
     2The CEQA Guidelines are set forth in sections 15000 through 15387 of the California Code of 
Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3. 

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards Project  Revisions to the Draft EIR 
City of Milpitas    2.  Summary 
March 14, 2012    Page 2-1 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\2-r (10681).doc 

2.  SUMMARY 

 
 
 
This EIR chapter provides a summary description of the proposed action (the Interstate 880 
Billboards Project), a list of associated environmental issues to be resolved, a summary 
identification of significant impacts and mitigation measures associated with the Project, and a 
summary identification of possible alternatives to the Project (pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15123, Summary). 
 
This summary should not be relied upon for a thorough understanding of the details of the 
Project, its individual impacts, and related mitigation needs.  Please refer to Chapter 3 for a 
complete description of the Project, Chapters 4 and 5 for a complete description of 
environmental impacts and associated mitigation measures, Chapter 6 for CEQA-required 
assessment conclusions, and Chapter 7 for a complete description and evaluation of identified 
alternatives to the Project. 
 
 
2.1  PROPOSED PROJECT 
 
2.1.1  Project Area Location and Site Characteristics 
 
(a) Regional and Local Setting.  The proposed three billboard structures would be located 
along the east side of the Interstate 880 (I-880) freeway segment south of the Dixon Landing 
Road interchange, in the northwestern corner of the city of Milpitas in Santa Clara County.  The 
three billboard structures would be located between the interchange and a point approximately 
two miles south of the interchange.  Lands east of this two-mile segment of I-880 are developed 
with suburban, low- to medium-density industrial, commercial and residential uses; lands west 
of this segment of I-880 are mostly undeveloped agricultural land and baylands.   
 
(b) Project Site Characteristics.  The three billboard structures would be located on already 
developed properties on the east side of the freeway and along the west side of California Circle 
and Cadillac Court containing industrial, office and commercial uses.  The three structures 
would be located on three of four possible sites currently under consideration.  The four possible 
sites are referred to in this EIR, in order from south to north, as Site Option 1, Site Option 2, Site 
Option 3, and Site Option 4--i.e.:  
 
 Site Option 1:  assessor’s parcel number (APN) 022-38-019 at 901 Cadillac Court; 
 
 Site Option 2:  APN 022-38-010 at 1181 Cadillac Court;  
 
 Site Option 3:  APN 022-38-002 at 1301 California Circle; and 

 
 Site Option 4:  APN 022-37-049 at 1545-1547 California Circle. 
 

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards Project  Revisions to the Draft EIR 
City of Milpitas    2.  Summary 
March 14, 2012    Page 2-2 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\2-r (10681).doc 

2.1.2  Project Background 
 
(a) Digital Billboards.  Electronic “digital” billboard facings are an emerging media type.  A 
digital billboard facing typically contains a light emitting diode (LED) display that produces 
images controlled remotely by computer.  Typically, approximately eight advertisements rotate 
continuously, each displaying a static image for about eight seconds.   Scrolling, flashing, or 
moving images are generally prohibited by current federal, State and local regulations.   
 
Currently, approximately 200 of the more than 10,000 freeway billboards in California are digital 
billboards.  As of January 1, 2010, there were 35 digital billboards in the San Francisco Bay 
Area, including one on U.S. Highway 101 in Santa Clara County and five on I-880 in Alameda 
County. 
 
(b) Digital Billboards in Milpitas.  Over the past few years, there has been an emerging interest 
by the City and private entities in installing digital billboards at selected locations along the 
Milpitas segments of I-880, Interstate 680 (I-680), and State Route 237 (SR 237).  The City has 
been interested in considering digital billboards as a potential source of municipal revenue and 
for possible use of a portion of the advertising in rotation to promote local businesses and 
economic development.   
 
In November 2006, the City certified an EIR which identified the impacts of locating three new 
freeway billboards and replacing the two existing freeway billboards along I-680 and I-880.  Two 
of the freeway billboards considered in 2006 were to be digital billboards.  At the time, the City’s 
Sign Ordinance prohibited freeway billboards.  In August 2010, the City adopted a new Sign 
Ordinance which authorizes City consideration of freeway billboards along I-880, I-680, and SR 
237.   
 
(c) Billboard Regulation.  Freeway billboards, including digital billboards, are regulated at the 
federal, State and local levels.  The primary federal and State laws pertaining to billboards along 
highways are the federal Highway Beautification Act of 1965 and the State’s Outdoor 
Advertising Act.  At the local level, the City’s Sign Ordinance establishes minimum City 
standards for billboards and specifies required findings for City approval of a proposed digital 
billboard.  A Development Agreement and Site Permit Approval for one of the five billboards, the 
“Toyota sign,” located at 950 Thompson Street (APN 086-05-026) in the northeast quadrant of 
the I-880/Great Mall Parkway interchange, were approved in June 2010.   
 
2.1.3  Project Objectives 
 
The Project applicant, SignCo East, LLC, has identified the following basic objectives of the 
Project: 
 
 Install up to three new digital billboard structures at a Milpitas freeway location with high 

traffic volumes and visibility; 
 
 Provide substantial billboard-generated economic benefits to the applicant and City, 

including new revenues and promotion of local businesses; 
 
 Minimize associated visual and noise impacts on vicinity residential and hotel uses; and 
 

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards Project  Revisions to the Draft EIR 
City of Milpitas    2.  Summary 
March 14, 2012    Page 2-3 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\2-r (10681).doc 

 Comply with all federal, State, City and outdoor advertising industry laws, regulations and 
standards in order to adequately address potential billboard-related light, glare, traffic safety, 
and other impacts.   

 
2.1.4  Project Characteristics 
 
The Project consists of the installation of three new separate billboard structures containing a 
total of six advertising facings, two per structure, along the east side of I-880 south of Dixon 
Landing Road in Milpitas.  Initially, two static and four digital facings are planned.  As market 
demand increases, the two static facings would be converted to digital facings. 
 
(a) Proposed Billboards Locations.  The three billboard structures would be installed along the 
western boundary of three of four possible sites currently under consideration, parcels 002-038-
019 (Site Option 1), 002-038-010 (Site Option 2), 022-38-002 (Site Option 3), and 002-037-049 
(Site Option 4), adjacent to the freeway, and spaced at least 1,000 feet apart.  If Site Option 4 is 
selected, the Project would also require removal of one existing free-standing advertising sign 
located on Site Option 4.   
 
(b) Digital Billboards Characteristics.  All three billboard structures would be identical in 
design.  The advertising displays would be mounted on a single approximately eight-foot 
diameter sign column.  The bottom of the displays would be approximately 56 feet above 
ground level.  The top of the displays and overall height of the billboard structure would be 70 
feet.  Each billboard would have two 14-foot high by 48-foot wide displays facing opposite 
directions and slightly angled toward freeway viewers.  Each of the digital facings would display 
a number of static images in continuous rotation, with each image displayed for no less than 
four seconds.   
 
(c) Project Construction.  One drilling rig, one crane, and one four- or five-person crew would 
be used for all three Project sites.  A hole five feet in diameter and 32 feet deep would be drilled 
for each sign.  Construction would last approximately five days. 
 
2.1.5 Required Project Approvals 
 
(a) City of Milpitas.  The Project would require City approval of a Development Agreement and 
Site Development Permit.  Each billboard would also require a City building permit. 

 
(b) Caltrans.  Each billboard would also require a Highway Outdoor Advertising Permit from 
Caltrans to allow the placement of an “off-premise” advertising display adjacent to a Caltrans 
facility. 
 
 
2.2  ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES 
 
As required by the State CEQA Guidelines, the scope of this EIR includes all environmental 
issues to be resolved and all areas of controversy known to the Lead Agency (the City), 
including those issues and concerns identified as possibly significant by the City, and by other 
agencies, organizations, and individuals in response to the City’s Notice of Preparation dated 
June 28, 2010.  These areas of environmental concern include aesthetics (Chapter 4) and 
transportation (Chapter 5). 
 

Attachment D



!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

SITE OPTION 4
APN 022-38-002

1301 California Circle

SITE OPTION 2
APN 022-37-010

1181 Cadillac Court

DIXON LANDING RD

DIXON LANDING RD

FREMONT CITY LIMITS

MILPITA
S CITY LIMITS

C
A

D
ILLA

C
 C

T
C

A
D

ILLA
C

 C
T

P
E

N
ITE

N
C

IA
 C

R
E

E
K

 C
H

A
N

N
E

L
P

E
N

ITE
N

C
IA

 C
R

E
E

K
 C

H
A

N
N

E
L

H
E

ATH
 S

T
H

E
ATH

 S
T

MILMONT DR

MILMONT DR

M
ILP

ITA
S

 B
LV

D
M

ILP
ITA

S
 B

LV
D

880

SITE OPTION 1
 APN 022-38-019

901 Cadillac Court

SITE OPTION 1
 APN 022-38-019

901 Cadillac Court

SITE OPTION 2
APN 022-38-010

1181 Cadillac Court

SITE OPTION 3
APN 022-38-002

1301 California Circle

SITE OPTION 4
APN 022-37-049

1545-1547 California Circle

SITE OPTION 4
APN 022-37-049

1545-1547 California Circle

C
ALIFO

R
N

IA
 C

IR

C
ALIFO

R
N

IA
 C

IR

REDWOOD AVEREDWOOD AVE

GLENMOOR CIRGLENMOOR CIR

N
. A

B
BOTT AVE

N
. A

B
BOTT AVE

McCarthy
Center

McCarthy
Center

N. McCARTH
Y B

LVD

N. McCARTH
Y B

LVD

SA
N J

O
SE

 C
IT

Y 
LI

M
IT

S

M
IL

PI
TA

S 
CIT

Y 
LI

M
IT

S

Figure 3.2
LOCAL PROJECT MAP:

SITE OPTIONS 1, 2, 3 AND 4

0                       FEET                    1000

N

Wagstaff/MIG    Urban and Environmental Planners                                                      Interstate 880 Digital Billboards Project

SOURCE: Google; McCarthy Ranch

Attachment D



SITE OPTION 4

SITE OPTION 3

DIXON LANDING RD

DIXON LANDING RD

C
A

D
ILLA

C
 C

T
C

A
D

ILLA
C

 C
T

P
E

N
ITE

N
C

IA
 C

R
E

E
K

 C
H

A
N

N
E

L
P

E
N

ITE
N

C
IA

 C
R

E
E

K
 C

H
A

N
N

E
L

H
E

ATH
 S

T
H

E
ATH

 S
T

MILMONT DR

MILMONT DR

M
ILP

ITA
S

 B
LV

D
M

ILP
ITA

S
 B

LV
D880

SITE OPTION 1SITE OPTION 1

SITE OPTION 2SITE OPTION 2

SITE OPTION 4

SITE OPTION 3

C
ALIFO

R
N

IA
 C

IR

C
ALIFO

R
N

IA
 C

IR

                                                                  N
. M

cC
A

R
TH

Y
 B

LV
D

                                                                  N
. M

cC
A

R
TH

Y
 B

LV
D

REDWOOD AVEREDWOOD AVE

GLENMOOR CIRGLENMOOR CIR

N
. A

B
BOTT AVE

N
. A

B
BOTT AVE

McCarthy
Center

McCarthy
Center

Figure 3.3
LOCAL PROJECT AERIAL:

SITE OPTIONS 1, 2, 3 AND 4

0                       FEET                    1000

N

Wagstaff/MIG    Urban and Environmental Planners                                                      Interstate 880 Digital Billboards Project

SOURCE: Google; McCarthy Ranch

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards Project  Revisions to the Draft EIR 
City of Milpitas    3.  Project Description 
March 14, 2012    Page 3-5 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\3-r (10681).doc 

single family homes on Glenmoor Circle; a multiple family residential complex containing 
approximately 30 two-story buildings located off of N. Abbott Avenue; and two-story single 
family homes and three-story townhomes and apartments further to the east, off of Milmont 
Drive, east of the Penitencia Creek channel.   
 
(c) South.  Single-story single family homes are located on Heath Street and Redwood 
Avenue south of the Project sites.  The SR 237 interchange is located approximately one mile 
south of the Project sites. 
 
(d) West.  I-880 is located adjacent to the Project sites on the west.  North McCarthy 
Boulevard, a four-lane, roadway, is located on the opposite (west) side of I-880.  The 
undeveloped lands on the west side of North McCarthy Boulevard are within the 203-acre 
McCarthy Ranch Master Plan area, and were approved in 2009 for an office park, industrial 
park, and general commercial uses (the Campus at McCarthy Ranch Project and the McCarthy 
Ranch Mixed Use Project).  The 68-acre McCarthy Center complex, which contains 
approximately one million square feet of office and research and development uses spread 
among 19 two-story buildings in a campus setting, is located further south along North 
McCarthy Boulevard.   
 
3.1.2  Project Site Characteristics 
 
The three billboard structures would be located on three of four possible sites currently under 
consideration.  All four possible sites are located on already developed properties containing 
industrial park and general commercial uses, located east of I-880 and south of Dixon Landing 
Road, on California Circle and Cadillac Court.  The four Project site options are referred to in 
this EIR, from south to north, as Site Option 1, Site Option 2, Site Option 3 and Site Option 4.  
The four Project site options are shown in Figures 3.2 and 3.3.  Each of the four site options is 
shown in greater detail in Figures 3.4 through 3.7, and is further described below.  The locations 
of the proposed billboards within each parcel are approximately only.  The proposed billboards 
may be located anywhere along the western boundary of the subject parcels, but at no time will 
the signs be located closer than 1,000 feet.  
 
(a) Site Option 1.  Site Option 1 is located adjacent to the I-880 freeway right-of-way at 901 
Cadillac Court on assessor’s parcel number (APN) 022-38-019.  As shown on Figure 3.4, Site 
Option 1 is developed with one freestanding, approximately 30-foot high, flex industrial building 
surrounded by parking and loading areas.  An electrical transmission line on wooden poles and 
a drainage channel are located along the western edge of Site Option 1, and on the western 
edges of Site Options 2 and 3.  Residential uses are located to the south and east of Site Option 
1.  
 
(b) Site Option 2.  Site Option 2 is located adjacent to the I-880 freeway right-of-way at 1181 
Cadillac Court on APN 022-38-010.   As shown on Figure 3.5, Site Option 2 is developed with 
one freestanding, approximately 30-foot high flex industrial building surrounded by parking and 
loading areas.   
 
(c) Site Option 3.  Site Option 3 is located adjacent to the I-880 freeway right-of-way at 1301 
California Circle on APN 022-38-002.   As shown on Figure 3.6, Site Option 3 is developed with 
one freestanding, approximately 30-foot high flex industrial building surrounded by parking and 
loading areas.  

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards Project  Revisions to the Draft EIR 
City of Milpitas    3.  Project Description 
March 14, 2012    Page 3-5A 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\3-r (10681).doc 

(d) Site Option 4.  Site Option 4 is located adjacent to the I-880 freeway right-of-way at 1545-
1547 California Circle on APN 022-37-049, adjacent to the I-880 northbound off-ramp to Dixon 
Landing Road.  As shown on Figure 3.7, Site Option 3 contains a one-story Starbucks coffee 

Attachment D



C
A

D
ILLA

C
 C

T
C

A
D

ILLA
C

 C
T

880
SITE OPTION 1SITE OPTION 1

SOURCE: Google; McCarthy Ranch

N 0                            100

Feet

PROJECT SITE OPTION 1

Figure 3.4

Wagstaff and Associates     Urban and Environmental Planners                                                                                                                      Interstate 880 Digital Billboards Project

Attachment D



N. McCARTHY BLVD

REDWOOD AVE

G
LE

N
M

O
O

R
 C

IR
G

LE
N

M
O

O
R

 C
IR

N. McCARTHY BLVD

McCarthy
Center

McCarthy
Center

880

SITE OPTION 1SITE OPTION 1

SITE OPTION 2SITE OPTION 2

CADILLAC CTCADILLAC CT

N. ABBOTT AVE
N. ABBOTT AVE

SOURCE: Google; McCarthy Ranch

N

 0                           200

Feet

PROJECT SITE OPTIONS 1 AND 2

Figure 3.5

Wagstaff and Associates     Urban and Environmental Planners                                                                                                                      Interstate 880 Digital Billboards Project

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards Project  Revisions to the Draft EIR 
City of Milpitas    3.  Project Description 
March 14, 2012    Page 3-15 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\3-r (10681).doc 

j.  Any off-site advertising display shall include the words “City of Milpitas” and/or the City 
insignia somewhere on the structure. 

 
k.  Digital Billboard (changeable copy signs) Limitations.  

 
i.  Digital billboards shall contain static messages only, and shall not have movement, 

or the appearance or optical illusion of movement, of any part of the sign structure, 
design, or pictorial segment of the sign, including the movement or appearance of 
movement of any illumination or flashing or scintillating light. 

 
ii. Minimum display time. In compliance with State standards, each message on the 

sign must be displayed for a minimum of four (4) seconds. 
 
iii. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Code, digital billboards shall not 

operate at brightness levels of more than 0.3 foot candles above ambient light, as 
measured using a foot candle meter at a pre-set distance consistent with acceptable 
practices. 

 
6. Required Findings. In order to grant a Site Development Permit for the proposed off-site 

advertising display, the Planning Commission and the City Council must determine that the 
following objective requirements have been met: 
  

a.   The proposed off-site advertising display will not create a hazard to vehicular or 
pedestrian traffic, and measures have been taken to reduce potential impacts upon the 
existing visual character of the site and its surroundings. 

 
b.   All advertising on the off-site advertising display will conform with the Outdoor 

Advertising Act in the California Business and Professions Code and other applicable 
state and federal rules and regulations. 

 
c.   The development of the off-site advertising display will result in a public benefit to the 

City outweighing any adverse impacts that might be caused by the advertising display. 
 
d. The development of the off-site advertising display will promote economic development 

within the City.    
 
e. The design, including lighting, scale, size and materials, of the off-site advertising display 

is consistent with the intent of the design criteria of the off-site advertising display 
provisions. 

 
f. The development and location of the proposed off-site advertising display is consistent 

with the goals of the Milpitas General Plan. 
 
 
3.3  PROJECT OBJECTIVES 
 
The Project applicant has identified the following basic objectives of the Project: 
 
 Install up to three new billboard structures at a Milpitas freeway location with high traffic 

volumes and visibility; 

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards Project  Revisions to the Draft EIR 
City of Milpitas    3.  Project Description 
March 14, 2012    Page 3-18 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\3-r (10681).doc 

 
 Provide billboard-generated economic benefits to the applicant and City, including 

advertising revenue and promotion of local business;  
 
 Minimize associated visual and noise impacts on vicinity residential and hotel uses; and 
 
 Comply with all federal, State, City and outdoor advertising industry laws, regulations and 

standards in order to adequately address potential billboard-related light, glare and traffic 
safety impacts. 

 
 
3.4  PROJECT CHARACTERISTICS 
 
The Project consists of the installation of three new billboard structures at three separate 
locations along the east side of the I-880 freeway south of Dixon Landing Road in Milpitas.   
 
3.4.1  Possible Billboard Locations 
 
The proposed three new billboard structures would be located on three of four possible sites 
currently under consideration.  The locations of the proposed billboards within each parcel are 
approximately only.  The proposed billboards may be located anywhere along the western 
boundary of the subject parcels.  The four Project site options are shown in Figures 3.4 through 
3.7 and are described below: 
 
 Site Option 1.  The southernmost site option under consideration is along the western 

boundary of parcel 002-038-019 at 901 Cadillac Court (Figure 3.4). 
 
 Site Option 2.  The second site option under consideration is along the western boundary of 

parcel 002-038-010 at 1181 Cadillac Court (Figure 3.5). 
 
 Site Option 3.  The third site option under consideration is along the western boundary of 

parcel 002-038-002 at 1301 California Circle (Figure 3.6). 
 
 Site Option 4.  The northernmost billboard would be installed along the western boundary of 

parcel 002-037-049 at 1545-1547 California Circle, in the southwestern corner of the 
Starbucks coffee parking lot, at the location of an existing off-premise advertising sign which 
would be removed, and adjacent to the I-880 northbound off-ramp to Dixon Landing Road 
(Figure 3.7).   

 
At no time will the locations of the 3 selected sites be closer than 1,000 feet. 
 
3.4.1  Proposed Digital Billboard Characteristics  
 
All three billboard structures would be basically identical.  Initially, four static and two electronic 
“digital” facings are planned.  As market demand increases, the four static facings would be 
converted to digital facings incrementally over the course of the project.  The proposed billboard 
characteristics are illustrated by Figures 3.8 and 3.9, and are described below: 

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards Project  Revisions to the Draft EIR 
City of Milpitas    3.  Project Description 
March 14, 2012    Page 3-19 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\3-r (10681).doc 

(a) Billboard Structure.  On each of the three proposed billboard structures, the billboard 
advertising displays, both static and digital, would be mounted on a steel, approximately eight-
foot diameter, circular sign column.  Each sign column would be placed directly into the ground 
with no built-up sign base. 
 
The bottom of the displays would be approximately 56 feet above ground level.  The top of the 
displays and the overall height of the billboard structure would be 70 feet above ground level. 
 
(b) Displays.  Each billboard would have two 14-foot high by 48-foot wide displays facing in 
opposite directions and slightly angled toward freeway viewers.  The precise angle has not been 
specified by the Project applicant.   
 
(c) Operational Characteristics.  Initially, four of the six advertising facings on the three 
billboard structures would be digital LED displays.  Ultimately, up to all six of the facings would 
be LED displays.  LED display operational characteristics would comply with federal, State, City 
and outdoor advertising industry laws, regulations and standards.  Lighting levels on each LED 
display would not exceed 0.3 foot candles over ambient levels.  Light sensors would be installed 
with each sign to measure ambient light levels and to adjust light intensity to respond to ambient 
conditions. 
 
Each LED display would display a number of static images in continuous rotation, with each 
image displayed for no less than four seconds.  Due to their proximity to one another and their 
placement in succession, the three billboards would have the capability to be used together to 
describe a single advertisement message over two or three successive billboards.   
 
(d) Design Character.  Each of the three billboard structure columns would have a brushed 
aluminum finish and a six-inch recessed accent.  No other sign base structure is proposed.  
Landscaping would be provided at the base of each sign in accordance with the City’s Sign 
Ordinance.  The applicant would conduct a geotechnical study to evaluate soil conditions at 
each of the Project sites to determine structural design specifications.  Unusual soil conditions 
may affect the final design of the sign structure.   
 
(e) Additional Signs.  At this initial implementation phase, it is anticipated that an 
approximately nine-foot wide by 14-inch high “Clear Channel” identification LED display would 
be located beneath each of the initial two main LED displays.  Additionally, a “Milpitas” 
identification sign would be located on the sign column beneath each main display.  The City’s 
Sign Ordinance allows such additional fixed signs on a billboard’s supporting structure, which do 
not count towards the maximum display area.  No additional fixed signs have been specified by 
the Project applicant. 
 
3.4.2  Project Construction 
 
(a) Construction Equipment and Personnel.  One drilling rig, one crane, and one crew (usually 
four or five persons) would be used for sign installation at all three Project sites.  Crews and 
equipment would move from one site to another as work progresses.   
 
(b) Construction Duration and Sequencing.  Construction would typically proceed as follows 
for each site. 
 

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards Project  Revisions to the Draft EIR 
City of Milpitas    4.  Aesthetics 
March 14, 2012    Page 4-2 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\4-r (10681).doc 

freestanding, approximately 30-foot high, concrete tilt-up flex light industrial buildings of various 
sizes, fronting on California Circle and Cadillac Court.  The buildings are placed at the center of 
the sites surrounded by surface parking and loading areas, with landscaped planters at the 
edges and entries of buildings, along the rear and sides of some of the lots, and within 
landscaped islands within the parking lots.  Existing exterior lighting at each of the three sites 
generally consists of approximately 20- to 30-foot high parking lot lights as well as wall-mounted 
building lights.  Existing signage consists of low monument signs at the entry to each individual 
building site.  An electrical transmission line on wooden poles is located along the western edge 
of the three properties, adjacent to the freeway right-of-way. 
 
(d) Surrounding Commercial Center Uses.  As shown on Figure 3.7, at the north end of the 
Project area, adjacent to the Dixon Landing Road interchange, there are a Chevron gas station 
and car wash, a Starbucks coffee commercial “pad” with drive-thru, two two-story office 
buildings, and a three-story Residence Inn.  Existing signage includes an approximately 20-foot 
high on-premise pole sign for the Residence Inn and an approximately 45-foot high on-premise 
sign for the commercial center.  Both of these signs are oriented toward the freeway.   
 
(e) Adjacent Residential Neighborhoods.  As shown on Figures 3.3 and 3.4, residential uses 
are located to the south and east, as well as east of the Penitencia Creek channel. 
 
 North Abbott Avenue.  A multiple family residential complex containing approximately 30 

two-story buildings is located off of North Abbott Avenue, approximately 300 feet east of Site 
Option 1, across a drainage channel/detention lagoon.  There is no property line fence along 
this portion of Site Option 1.  A number of large trees, shrubs and grasses line the drainage 
channel but are not sufficiently dense to screen views from these homes. 

 
 East of Penitencia Creek Channel.  Two-story single family homes and three-story 

townhomes and apartments are located on the east side of the Penitencia Creek channel, 
off of Milmont Drive, approximately 1,000 to 1,500 feet from the Project sites. 

 
 Heath Street and Redwood Avenue.  Single-story, single family homes on small lots are 

located on Heath Street and Redwood Avenue approximately 600 feet south of Site Option 
1.  There is an approximately eight-foot high masonry block wall along the northern 
boundary of these lots.   

 
 Glenmoor Circle.  Two-story single family homes are located on Glenmoor Circle 

approximately 400 feet southeast of Site Option 1.    
 
(e) Areas West of I-880.  North McCarthy Boulevard, a four-lane, roadway, is located on the 
opposite, west side of I-880.  The remaining undeveloped land west of North McCarthy 
Boulevard between SR 237 and Dixon Landing road has been recently approved office park, 
industrial park and general commercial development (The Campus at McCarthy Ranch and the 
McCarthy Ranch Mixed Use Project).  Coyote Creek is located west of these two projects.  The 
Coyote Creek Trail, a Class I bicycle/pedestrian trail, part of the San Francisco Bay Trail and the 
Juan Bautista de Anza National Historic Trail, parallels the east side of the creek.  The 68-acre 
McCarthy Center complex, which contains approximately one million square feet of office, 
research and development and commercial uses spread among 19 two-story buildings in a 
campus setting, is located to the southwest.   
 

Attachment D



SITE OPTION 4

SITE OPTION 3

DIXON LANDING RD

DIXON LANDING RD

C
A

D
ILLA

C
 C

T
C

A
D

ILLA
C

 C
T

P
E

N
ITE

N
C

IA
 C

R
E

E
K

 C
H

A
N

N
E

L
P

E
N

ITE
N

C
IA

 C
R

E
E

K
 C

H
A

N
N

E
L

H
E

ATH
 S

T
H

E
ATH

 S
T

MILMONT DR

MILMONT DR

M
ILP

ITA
S

 B
LV

D
M

ILP
ITA

S
 B

LV
D

880

SITE OPTION 1SITE OPTION 1

SITE OPTION 2SITE OPTION 2

SITE OPTION 4

SITE OPTION 3

         C
ALIFO

R
N

IA
 C

IR

         C
ALIFO

R
N

IA
 C

IR

                                                                  N
. M

cC
A

R
TH

Y
 B

LV
D

                                                                  N
. M

cC
A

R
TH

Y
 B

LV
D

REDWOOD AVEREDWOOD AVE

GLENMOOR CIRGLENMOOR CIR

N
. A

B
BOTT AVE

N
. A

B
BOTT AVE

McCarthy
Center

McCarthy
Center

4

3

2

1

5

6

Figure 4.1

VISUAL SIMULATION VIEWPOINTS

0                       FEET                    1000

N

Wagstaff/MIG    Urban and Environmental Planners                                                      Interstate 880 Digital Billboards Project

SOURCE: McCarthy Ranch; Clear Channel Communications, Inc.

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards Project  Revisions to the Draft EIR 
City of Milpitas    4.  Aesthetics 
March 14, 2012    Page 4-17 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\4-r (10681).doc 

project refinements would not change the basic visual impact and mitigation conclusions in 
this EIR. 

_______________________________ 
 

Impacts on Adjacent Residential Area Visual Character.  A billboard display at Site Option 1 
would be visible from multiple family residential buildings on N. Abbott Avenue (approximately 
300 feet away) and single family homes on Glenmoor Circle (approximately 600 feet away).  
Site Option 1 would likely not be visible to homes on Heath Street or Redwood Avenue, which 
are approximately 800 feet away and whose views towards the freeway are blocked by an 
approximately eight-foot-high masonry block wall located along the northern boundary of these 
lots, an approximately 30-foot high building at 875 Cadillac Court, and adjacent homes. 
 
A billboard display at Site Option 2 may be visible from multiple family residential buildings on 
N. Abbott Avenue and homes on Glenmoor Circle. 
 
A billboard at Site Option 3 would likely not be highly visible from any residential uses. 
 
A billboard at Site Option 4 would be visible from three-story residential buildings located east of 
the Penitencia Creek channel (approximately 1,000 feet away). 
 
At these distances of 300 feet or more, at relatively the same elevation as the nearest homes, 
and within the context of the surrounding industrial and commercial development, the billboard 
displays would not be highly prominent in views from these nearest residential vantage points.  
The Project would therefore not substantially degrade the existing visual character and quality of 
views from these residences.  Impacts on adjacent residential visual character would therefore 
be less than significant.  Project spill light and sky glow impacts are discussed in Impact 4-2 
below.   

 
Mitigation.  No significant impact has been identified; no mitigation is required. 

_____________________________ 
 
Impacts on Scenic Vistas.   There are no scenic vistas officially designated by the City or 
State along I-880 within Milpitas.  However, as described in section 4.1.2 above, the Mission 
Hills and Monument Peak form a distinctive scenic backdrop to Milpitas and are important to the 
Milpitas community identity and character.  The Mission Hills are visible in the background of 
views to the east from I-880 in the Project vicinity, and provide an orienting feature that frames 
views of the surrounding area.  Due to the flat terrain, the width of the freeway and the low 
prevailing heights of surrounding buildings, the proposed billboard structures would not obstruct 
or substantially degrade views of the Mission Hills from the freeway during the day.  The 
proposed billboard facings would be the brightest and most visually prominent at night, but the 
Mission Hills are generally not visible at night.  Therefore, the Project would not have a 
substantial adverse effect on scenic vistas; i.e., the Project impact on scenic vistas would be 
less than significant.   
 
Mitigation.  No significant impact has been identified; no mitigation is required. 

_____________________________ 
 

Impacts on State Scenic Highways.   There are no officially designated or eligible State 
Scenic Highways within Milpitas or along I-880.  The Project impact on State Scenic Highways 
would therefore be less than significant. 

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards Project  Revisions to the Draft EIR 
City of Milpitas    7.  Alternatives 
March 14, 2012    Page 7-4 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\7-r (10681).doc 

 
7.2.3  Attainment of Project Objectives 
 
Alternative 2 would reduce or avoid Project visual and noise impacts on nearby residential and 
hotel uses, and would be substantially as effective in meeting the basic Project objective of 
erecting new freeway billboards with high visibility, as well as providing associated advertising 
revenue to the applicant and City. 
 
 
7.3  ALTERNATIVE 3:  FEWER BILLBOARDS 
 
7.3.1  Principal Characteristics 
 
Figure 7.1 shows seven possible locations, Site Options 1 through 7, where the proposed three 
digital billboard structures may be located.  Under the proposed Project, all three billboard 
structures would be located on the east side of I-880, at three of the four east side Site Options 
1 through 4. 
 
Under Alternative 3, Fewer Billboards, two billboard structures rather than three would be 
installed along the east side of I-880 south of Dixon Landing Road.  The proposed east side 
billboard at Site Option 4 would be eliminated in order to reduce the potential for traffic safety 
hazards associated with driver distraction near driver decision and action points and official 
traffic control signs associated with the northbound off-ramp of the Dixon Landing Road 
interchange.  The two billboards retained would be located on Project Site Options 1, 2 or 3.  All 
other design and operational characteristics of Alternative 3 would also be similar to the Project. 
 
7.3.2  Impacts and Mitigations     
 
(a) Aesthetics.  Alternative 3 would allow for optimal placement of the billboards to reduce or 
avoid visual impacts on nearby homes.  With only two billboards instead of three, there would 
be a proportional decrease in impacts on light, glare and sky glow.  Alternative 3 would also 
reduce or avoid Project visual impacts on sensitive residential uses east of the Penitencia Creek 
channel near Dixon Landing Road.  Impacts on I-880 gateway visual character would be 
reduced but would nevertheless remain significant and unavoidable.  There would be less 
interference with future City implementation of gateway landscaping and signage treatments 
recommended in the General Plan and Streetscape Master Plan.  Nevertheless, impact and 
mitigation findings 4-1 through 4-3 for the proposed Project would continue to apply. 
 
(b) Transportation.  With only two billboards instead of three, there would be some decrease in 
potential Project effects on driver attention. 
 
(c) Other Impacts.  Alternative 3 would have similar less-than-significant impacts with respect 
to all other environmental topics included in CEQA Guidelines Appendix G and evaluated in 
Section 6.4, Effects Found Not to be Significant, of this EIR. 
  
7.3.3  Attainment of Project Objectives 
 
Alternative 3 would achieve the basic Project objectives of erecting new freeway digital 
billboards, as well as providing benefits to the applicant and City in terms of local business  

Attachment D



SITE OPTION 6

SITE OPTION 7

SITE OPTION 4

SITE OPTION 3

DIXON LANDING RD

DIXON LANDING RD

C
A

D
ILLA

C
 C

T
C

A
D

ILLA
C

 C
T

P
E

N
ITE

N
C

IA
 C

R
E

E
K

 C
H

A
N

N
E

L
P

E
N

ITE
N

C
IA

 C
R

E
E

K
 C

H
A

N
N

E
L

H
E

ATH
 S

T
H

E
ATH

 S
T

MILMONT DR

MILMONT DR

M
ILP

ITA
S

 B
LV

D
M

ILP
ITA

S
 B

LV
D880

SITE OPTION 1SITE OPTION 1

SITE OPTION 2SITE OPTION 2

SITE OPTION 4

SITE OPTION 7

SITE OPTION 3

SITE OPTION 6

SITE OPTION 5SITE OPTION 5

C
ALIFO

R
N

IA
 C

IR

C
ALIFO

R
N

IA
 C

IR

                                                                  N
. M

cC
A

R
TH

Y
 B

LV
D

                                                                  N
. M

cC
A

R
TH

Y
 B

LV
D

REDWOOD AVEREDWOOD AVE

GLENMOOR CIRGLENMOOR CIR

N
. A

B
BOTT AVE

N
. A

B
BOTT AVE

McCarthy
Center

McCarthy
Center

Note:

Seven "site options" are shown on this map.

Under the proposed Project, all three billboards 
would be located on the east side of I-880 (at three 
of the four east side "site options" 1 through 4).

Under Alternative 5, two of the three billboards would 
be located on the east side of I-880 (at two of the four
east side "site options" 1 through 4) and one billboard 
would be located on the west side of I-880 (at one of 
the three west side "site options" 5 through 7).

Under Alternative 6, one of the three billboards would 
be located on the east side of I-880 (at one of the four
east side "site options" 1 through 4) and two billboards 
would be located on the west side of I-880 at two of the 
three west side "site options" 5 through 7).

Under Alternative 7, all three billboards would be
located on the west side of I-880 (at the three west side 
"site options" 5 through 7 or similar locations).

Figure 7.1

ALTERNATIVE BILLBOARD LOCATIONS

0                       FEET                    1000

N

Wagstaff/MIG    Urban and Environmental Planners                                                      Interstate 880 Digital Billboards Project

SOURCE: Wagstaff/MIG

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards Project  Revisions to the Draft EIR 
City of Milpitas    7.  Alternatives 
March 14, 2012    Page 7-6 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\7-r (10681).doc 

promotion and generation of associated advertising revenue.  However, with only two billboards 
instead of three, there would be a proportional decrease in benefits accruing to the billboard 
owner and operator, as well as to the City.  
 
 
7.4  ALTERNATIVE 4:  ALL NON-LED BILLBOARDS 
 
7.4.1  Principal Characteristics 
 
Under Alternative 4, All Non-LED Billboards, three billboard structures would be installed on 
three of the same four site options along the east side of I-880 as under the proposed Project, 
but without “digital” LED displays.  Instead, all three would include externally illuminated facings, 
two per structure.  The locations, height and size of the three “non-digital” billboards would be 
similar to the Project. 
 
7.4.2  Impacts and Mitigations   
 
(a) Aesthetics.  Alternative 4 would be less visually conspicuous because non-LED billboards 
would not have changing messages.  In addition, the light sources used for sign illumination 
could be more effectively shielded.  Therefore, Alternative 4 could be designed to reduce spill 
light, glare and sky glow impacts.  Alternative 4 would still cause a significant and unavoidable 
impact on gateway visual character.  In summary, impact and mitigation findings 4-1 through 4-3 
for the proposed Project would continue to apply under Alternative 4. 
 
(b) Transportation.  Alternative 4 would reduce the traffic safety effects of the project.  Non-
LED billboards would be less distracting to drivers because they would be less bright and would 
not have changing messages, which are more noticeable and distracting.   
 
(c) Other Impacts.  Alternative 4 would have similar less-than-significant impacts with respect 
to all other environmental topics included in CEQA Guidelines Appendix G and evaluated in 
Section 6.4, Effects Found Not to be Significant, of this EIR. 
  
7.4.3  Attainment of Project Objectives 
 
Alternative 4 would partially achieve the basic Project objectives of erecting new freeway 
billboards, though not digital billboards, and would provide similar but reduced benefits to the 
applicant and City in terms of advertising revenue and promotion of local businesses.  
 
 
7.5  ALTERNATIVE 5:  ALTERNATIVE LOCATION--TWO BILLBOARDS ON EAST SIDE 
AND ONE BILLBOARD ON WEST SIDE OF I-880 
 
7.5.1  Principal Characteristics 
 
Under Alternative 5, two of the three proposed billboard structures would be located on the 
east side of I-880 at two of the four east side Site Options 1 through 4, and one of the three 
would be located on the west side of I-880 at one of the three west side Site Options 6 through 
7.  All other design and operational characteristics would be similar to the Project. 
 

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards Project  Revisions to the Draft EIR 
City of Milpitas    7.  Alternatives 
March 14, 2012    Page 7-7 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\7-r (10681).doc 

7.5.2  Impacts and Mitigations 
 
(a) Aesthetics.  Similar to Alternative 3, Alternative 5 would reduce the number of billboards on 
the east side of the freeway where potential impacts on nearby homes could occur.  Alternative 
5 would allow for optimal placement of the two billboards on the east side to avoid or reduce 
visual impacts on nearby homes.  With only two billboards instead of three on the east side of I-
880, there would be a proportional decrease in impacts on light, glare and sky glow.  Alternative 
5 would also reduce or avoid Project visual impacts on sensitive residential uses east of the 
Penitencia Creek channel near Dixon Landing Road.  There would be less interference with 
future City implementation of gateway landscaping and signage treatments recommended in the 
General Plan and Streetscape Master Plan.  Impacts on I-880 gateway visual character would 
be reduced but would nevertheless remain significant and unavoidable.  Impact and mitigation 
findings 4-1 through 4-3 for the proposed Project would continue to apply. 
 
(b) Transportation.  With only two billboards instead of three on the east side of I-880, there 
would be some decrease in potential Project effects on driver attention. 
 
(c) Other Impacts.  Alternative 5 would have similar less-than-significant impacts with respect 
to all other environmental topics included in CEQA Guidelines Appendix G and evaluated in 
Section 6.4, Effects Found Not to be Significant, of this EIR. 
  
7.3.3  Attainment of Project Objectives 
 
Alternative 5 would achieve most of the basic Project objectives by erecting three new freeway 
digital billboards, as well as providing benefits to the applicant and City in terms of local 
business promotion and generation of associated advertising revenue. 
 
 
7.6  ALTERNATIVE 6:  ALTERNATIVE LOCATION--ONE BILLBOARD ON EAST SIDE AND 
TWO BILLBOARDS ON WEST SIDE OF INTERSTATE 880 
 
7.6.1  Principal Characteristics 
 
Under Alternative 6, one of the three proposed billboard structures would be located on the 
east side of I-880 at one of the four east side site options, and the other two billboards would be 
located on the west side of I-880 at two of the three west side site options.  All other design and 
operational characteristics would be similar to the Project. 
 
7.6.2  Impacts and Mitigations 
 
(a) Aesthetics.  Alternative 6 would allow for optimal placement of the one billboard on the 
east side of I-880 to reduce or avoid visual impacts on nearby homes.  With only one billboard 
on the east side instead of three, there would be a proportional decrease in impacts on light, 
glare and sky glow.  Alternative 6 would also reduce or avoid Project visual impacts on sensitive 
residential uses east of the Penitencia Creek channel near Dixon Landing Road. 
 
The two billboards located on the west side of I-880 would result in similar significant and 
unavoidable impacts on the Dixon Landing Road interchange gateway to Milpitas.  Due to the  

Attachment D



Interstate 880 Billboards Project  Revisions to the Draft EIR 
City of Milpitas    7.  Alternatives 
March 14, 2012    Page 7-8 
 
 
 

 
 
T:\10681\FEIR\7-r (10681).doc 

interchange overpass and southbound on-ramp embankment, the two billboards on the west 
side of the freeway would be visible to drivers entering Milpitas for a shorter distance. 
 
(b) Transportation.  With only one billboard instead of three on the east side of I-880, there 
would be a substantial decrease in potential Project effects on driver attention. 
 
(c) Other Impacts.  Alternative 6 would have similar less-than-significant impacts with respect 
to all other environmental topics included in CEQA Guidelines Appendix G and evaluated in 
Section 6.4, Effects Found Not to be Significant, of this EIR. 
  
7.6.3  Attainment of Project Objectives 
 
Alternative 6 would achieve most of the basic Project objectives by erecting three new freeway 
digital billboards, as well as providing benefits to the applicant and City in terms of local 
business promotion and generation of associated advertising revenue. 
 
 
7.7  ALTERNATIVE 7:  ALTERNATIVE LOCATION--ALL THREE BILLBOARDS ON WEST 
SIDE OF INTERSTATE 880 
 
7.7.1  Principal Characteristics 
 
Under Alternative 7, All Three Billboards on West Side of Interstate 880, all three billboard 
structures would be installed along the west side of I-880 rather than along the east side of the 
freeway, either on:  the three west side Site Options 5 through 7 shown on Figure 7.1, or on 
undeveloped land west of N. McCarthy Boulevard, or on some combination of these various 
options.  All other design and operational characteristics would be similar to the Project. 
 
7.7.2  Impacts and Mitigations   
 
(a) Aesthetics.  Billboards located on the west side of I-880 south of Dixon Landing Road 
would result in similar significant and unavoidable impacts on the Dixon Landing Road 
interchange gateway to Milpitas.  Due to the interchange overpass and southbound on-ramp 
embankment, billboards at these west side locations would be visible to drivers entering Milpitas 
for a shorter distance. 
 
Billboards located on the west side of N. McCarthy Boulevard within the McCarthy Center office, 
industrial and commercial park areas and/or the adjacent WalMart site would be farther away 
from the Dixon Landing Road interchange gateway to Milpitas, and thus would have a less 
substantial impact on this important gateway view.  However, this reduction in impact would be 
offset by increased visibility from the SR 237 gateway to Milpitas.  Therefore, the impact on 
gateway visual character would still be significant and unavoidable.  As a result, impact and 
mitigation findings 4-1 ad 4-3 would continue to apply. 
 
(b) Transportation.  In general, digital billboards located on the west side of I-880 would have 
traffic safety effects similar to the proposed Project.  Billboards located on lands east or west of 
N. McCarthy Boulevard would be less distracting to drivers because they would be farther away 
from the freeway and, due to the interchange overpass and southbound on-ramp embankment, 
would be visible to approaching drivers for a shorter distance.  
 

Attachment D



  AGENDA ITEM: IX-1  

MILPITAS PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA REPORT 

 

PUBLIC HEARING Meeting Date: January 23, 2013 

 
APPLICATION: Site Development Permit No. SD12-0007: Electronic Freeway 

Orientated Signs 
 
APPLICATION  
SUMMARY: A request to allow two freeway billboard signs along the east side 

of Interstate 880. 
 

LOCATION: 1545 California Circle (APN: 22-37-049) and 1301 California 
Circle (APN: 22-38-002) 

APPLICANT: Milpitas Sign Company, LLC; 555 12th St. #950, Oakland, CA 
94607 

OWNER: APN: 22-37-049: Westcore Greenfield LLC; 1761 South Hotel 
Cir., Ste. 100, San Diego, CA 92122 

 APN: 22-38-002: A1 Pak CA LLC; 480 Gianni St., Santa Clara, 
CA 95054 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Planning Commission adopt 

Resolution No. 13-004 recommending approval of project to 
the City Council. 

 
PROJECT DATA: 

General Plan/ 
Zoning Designation: Industrial Park (INP)/Industrial Park (MP) 
 
Overlay: Site and Architectural (-S) 
 
CEQA Determination: Certify the Final EIR (SC#201062083) pursuant to Section 15090 

of the CEQA Guidelines. 
  
PLANNER: Sheldon S. Ah Sing, Senior Planner 
 
PJ:        3221 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  A. Resolution No. 13-004 

B. Project Plans 
C. Final Environmental Impact Report 

Attachment E



Site Development Permit No. SD12-0007  Page 2 

 
  
 
 

LOCATION MAP 

1545 
California 
Circle 

1301 
California 
Circle 

Attachment E



Site Development Permit No. SD12-0007  Page 3 

BACKGROUND 
There has been an interest by the City of Milpitas and private entities to develop off site 
advertising displays or digital billboards, also known as “changeable copy or static copy freeway 
signs” along Interstates 880 and 680. The purpose of these signs is to promote economic 
development, expand the communication of community services, and provide a reliable and 
ongoing source of revenue for the City of Milpitas. 
 
In November 2006, the City certified an Environmental Impact Report that summarized and 
identified the impacts of locating three new signs along Interstate 680 and Interstate 880 for the 
purposes of offsite advertising. Of those signs, two of them would be capable of transmitting 
electronic changeable media. 
 
The City’s Municipal Code includes a process for off-site advertising displays adjacent to 
interstate highways and state routes. The Code identifies specific criteria to ensure that the 
development of off-site advertising displays in the city does not create visual clutter or create 
other operational impacts on surrounding uses, and that it promotes the public health, safety and 
general welfare.  The provisions are consistent with state and federal laws that govern such signs 
and with the accepted standards of the Outdoor Advertising Association of America.  
 
This application for the Site Development Permit and the Development Agreement are submitted 
pursuant to the Municipal Code ordinance [Title XI, Chapter 10, Section 24.05(G)].  A 
Development Agreement is also required that requires only City Council approval and is not a 
part of this Site Development Permit application.  The Planning Commission will make a 
recommendation on the Site Development Permit to the City Council. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Discussion 
The project includes the following two components: 
 

(1) A Site Development Permit is submitted to consider the design and compliance of the 
signs with the zoning ordinance regulations; and 

(2) A Development Agreement between the City and Milpitas Sign Co., LLC proposes to 
identify the timeframe for responsibilities, obligations and shared benefits of erecting an 
off-site advertising display.   

 
Site Development Permit 
The applicant proposes two off-site advertising displays on private property along the east side of  
Interstate 880.  The Code provisions and development standards are as follows: 
 
Review Process 
Two sign vendors were chosen by the City through a competitive selection process. Each sign 
vendor will enter into an agreement with the City regarding the location, construction, 
maintenance and define the public benefit of the signs. The design of the signs requires 
consideration of a Site Development Permit by the Planning Commission and the City Council. 
It is the intent that the signs by the two vendors are to be compatible in design, but not 
necessarily identical.    

Attachment E



Site Development Permit No. SD12-0007  Page 4 

 
Zoning Development Standards for Off-Site Advertising Signs 
Maximum Height 
The overall height of the sign shall not exceed seventy (70) feet. 
 
Distance between other off-site advertising displays. 
No off-site advertising display shall be placed within one-thousand (1,000) feet from another 
advertising display on the same side of any portion of the interstate. 
 
Maximum sign area 
The maximum sign area shall not exceed one-thousand, two-hundred (1,200) square feet on each 
side.  Ancillary fixed signs or logos may be permitted on the sign’s supporting structure that 
would not count towards the maximum allowed sign area. 
 
Illumination 
The two-sided displays would use LED technology.  Light intensity would be in compliance with 
state laws. An automatic dimming device or light sensors must be integrated into the sign and 
illumination must be designed to reduce glare or casting on adjacent properties. 
 
Analysis of the Two Proposed Signs 
 
1545-1547 California Circle Sign Location and Design 
The sign is proposed to be located within the parking lot of the retail parcel shown on the 
attached site plan (Attachment B).  
 
The main support column of the sign is 50 feet tall from grade. The dimension from the grade to 
the underside of the display is 46’-3”. The total display area is 672 square feet for each side (14 
feet by 48 feet) and includes panels on the support structure for “City of Milpitas” and the 
adjacent retail tenants. The structure includes a stone veneer base, and multiple panels for 
ancillary signs. The trim and structure have earth tone colors.  Refer to the project plans for 
detailed information. 
 
Illumination of the sign is by Light Emitting Diodes (LED) technology. As required by the Code, 
the sign will include automatic dimming circuitry or light sensors to reduce glare or casting on 
adjacent properties. The light intensity will be consistent with state and federal laws. 
 
At the base of the sign, drought tolerant plants will be used to form the planter as required by the 
sign code. 
 
1301 California Circle Sign Location and Design 
The sign is proposed to be located within the parking lot of the industrial building shown on the 
attached site plan (Attachment B). 
 
The main support column of the sign is 60 feet tall from grade. The dimension from the grade to 
the underside of the display is 46’-3”. The total display area is 672 square feet for each side (14 
feet by 48 feet) and includes panels on the support structure for “City of Milpitas”. The structure 

Attachment E



Site Development Permit No. SD12-0007  Page 5 

includes a stone veneer base, and multiple panels for ancillary signs if necessary. The trim and 
structure have earth tone colors.  Refer to the project plans for detailed information. 
 
Illumination of the sign is by Light Emitting Diodes (LED) technology. As required by the Code, 
the sign will include automatic dimming circuitry or light sensors to reduce glare or casting on 
adjacent properties. The light intensity will be consistent with state and federal laws. 
 
At the base of the sign, drought tolerant plants will be used within the base planter as required by 
the sign code. 
 
ADOPTED PLANS AND ORDINANCES CONSISTENCY 
 
General Plan 
The table below outlines the project’s consistency with applicable General Plan Guiding 
Principles and Implementing Policies: 
 

Table 1  
General Plan Consistency 

 
Policy Consistency Finding 
2.a-I-3 Encourage economic pursuits 
which will strengthen and promote 
development through stability and 
balance.  

Consistent.  The proposed development agreement 
and signs promote and balances economic 
development by creating a medium for local businesses 
to advertise and ensures quality identification. 

2.a-I-4 Publicize the position of 
Milpitas as a place to carry on 
compatible industrial and commercial 
activities with special emphasis directed 
toward the advantages of the City’s 
location to both industrial and 
commercial use. 

Consistent. The proposed development agreement and 
signs allow the City to position itself for appropriate 
identification for businesses and projects a positive 
quality image for Milpitas. 

 2.a-I-7 Provide opportunities to expand 
employment, participate in partnerships 
with local business to facilitate 
communication, and promote business 
retention. 
 

Consistent. The proposed development agreement and 
signs provide a partnership and provides an opportunity 
to promote businesses. 
 

 
Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed sign is consistent with the zoning ordinance regarding development and 
operational standards. The design, scale, size and materials of the sign as depicted in the project 
plans are consistent with the requirements of the sign ordinance. The sign complements the 
architectural theme of buildings along the I-880 corridor within Milpitas.  
 

Attachment E



Site Development Permit No. SD12-0007  Page 6 

The development of the sign will result in a public benefit to the City outweighing any adverse 
impacts that may be caused by the displays. The proposed display will present a positive image 
of the City of Milpitas and increase its visibility and presence to the traveling public, thereby 
informing travelers of amenities and products available in the redevelopment project area.  The 
proposed display will also provide opportunities for advertising or information regarding 
community events and programs.   
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
Staff conducted an initial environmental assessment of the project in accordance with the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Staff determined that because the proposal was 
not entirely covered by the previous Supplemental Environmental Impact Report (EIR), another 
subsequent EIR be drafted. 
 
The scope of the EIR included the installation of three separate billboards containing a total of 
six advertising facings, two per structure, along the east side of I-880 south of Dixon Landing 
Road.  While the EIR includes four possible locations where three of the billboards could be 
located, the signs will only be located two of the locations based on leasing negotiations with 
property owners and distance limitations imposed by State law. The Notice of Preparation for the 
EIR was circulated for public review between July 25, 2010 and August 25, 2010. The 
responsible agency was identified as Caltrans at the time. 
 
The Draft EIR was circulated for public review for 45 days beginning May 18, 2011. The 
impacts identified in the EIR affect aesthetics at the project and cumulative levels.  
 
The EIR concludes that the three billboards may be perceived as degrading the visual character 
and quality of the General Plan identified I-880 “gateway” to Milpitas. Implementation of 
suggested mitigation measures may reduce the impact, but cannot guarantee that the impacts can 
be reduced to a level of less than significant and therefore, the impact remains “significant and 
unavoidable”.  The EIR also identifies that the electronic displays may cause spill over glare and 
glow impacts in the vicinity. Suggested mitigation measures, such as built in dimming 
mechanisms and periodic review will reduce the impact to “less than significant”.  Taking into 
account the previous EIR and that there are other billboards proposed for the Interstate 880 
corridor, the cumulative impact on the community visual character would be “significant and 
unavoidable” because any of the suggested mitigation measures may reduce the impacts of the 
signs, but it cannot be assured that the impacts would be reduced to a level of less than 
significant. 
 
Staff notes that while the EIR discusses the project’s billboard structures being 70 feet in height, 
the proposed project’s billboard heights are 50 and 60 feet respectively, which corresponds 
closely with Alternative 2 (Lower Height) within the EIR (Chapter 7), thus reducing the 
anticipated impacts of the project. 
 
The City Council will need to make findings of overriding considerations for any significant and 
unavoidable impacts of this EIR. Those findings would consider economic benefits that 
outweigh the physical impacts of the billboard signs. 
 

Attachment E



Site Development Permit No. SD12-0007  Page 7 

The project’s Final EIR was drafted and responds to the four responders to the EIR. The Final 
EIR, which includes the Draft EIR, any revisions to the Draft EIR and the response to comments 
are included at Attachment C. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT/OUTREACH 
Staff publicly noticed the application in accordance with City and State law.  As of the time of 
writing this report, there have been no inquiries from the public. 
 
CONCLUSION 
The City has expressed a desire to allow off-site advertising displays to promote economic 
development. The project’s EIR identifies potential impacts to the environment and statements of 
overriding consideration are necessary. Specific provisions and development and operational 
standards ensure compatibility with surrounding uses and acknowledge that the public benefits 
outweigh adverse impacts. The proposed sign is consistent with the provisions of the sign 
ordinance. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
STAFF RECOMMENDS that the Planning Commission close the public hearing and adopt 
Resolution No. 13-004, recommending approval of the project to the City Council. 
 
Attachments: 

A. Resolution No. 13-004 
B. Project Plans 
C. Final Environmental Impact Report 

 
 

Attachment E



PC 1-23-13 Meeting Minutes  Attachment E 
 

IX.   PUBLIC HEARING 

 1.   SITE DEVELOPMENT 
PERMIT NO. SD12-
0007 

Sheldon Ah Sing, Senior Planner, presented a request to allow two 
electronic freeway billboard signs along the east side of I-880, located at 
1545 California Circle and 1301 California Circle, zoned Industrial Park 
with Site and Architectural Overlay. Applicant:  Clear Channel Outdoor, 
Inc.   

The purpose of the billboards is to promote economic development, 
expand communication of community services, and provide a source of 
revenue for the City.   An Environmental Impact Report (EIR) 
summarized impacts of signs in 2006.  A sign program was approved in 
2008, and a zoning code amendment to allow off-site billboards was 
approved in 2010. The project includes a subsequent EIR to address 
impacts of the four possible locations (two of which are being considered 
this evening).  A Site Development Permit considers the design and 
compliance with the sign ordinance.  There will also be a development 
agreement to consider revenue sharing with the City.   

Staff reviewed the applicant’s proposal, which includes two of the four 
possible locations (options 3 & 4) and the design of the structures.  Site 
option 3: The sign height at the 1301 California Circle location would be 
60 ft.  Site option 4: The sign height at the 1545 California Circle 
location would be 50 ft.  At site option 4 there is currently a 45 ft high 
sign which will be replaced by one of the new billboard signs.   

These two proposed signs are below the identified sign height in the EIR 
of 70 ft. The signs would be double panels in a “V” shape, illuminated 
by LED lighting directed towards the freeway and away from residents’ 
views.  The signs need to be located 1,000 ft from each other and both 
signs are 672 sq. ft.  

Some unavoidable impacts are identified. I-880 gateway visual character 
and cumulative impact on community aesthetic character. There was 
public outreach with noticing regarding the EIR.  Staff heard back from 
CalTrans and received comments from some residents and from the 
adjacent Chevron Station.  

The City Council has expressed a desire to allow billboards to promote 
economic development.  Conditions of approval and the development 
agreement assure operational compliance. 

 (Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution No. 13-004 recommending 
approval of the project to the City Council.)   
 
Staff clarified some concerns of the Commissioners: 

The operator of the sign will have the authority to select the advertising 
vendors on the sign and negotiate the price.  There would be an 
allocation of time for City community advertising in a standard rotation. 

When staff drafted the sign ordinance they researched other cities, 
ordinances in place and federal regulations to determine what would be 
safe and feasible for the development of billboard signs.  The applicant 
would need to adhere to the State Outdoor Advertising Act and apply for 
a permit from CalTrans.  Ongoing maintenance of the sign will be the 

Attachment E



PC 1-23-13 Meeting Minutes  Attachment E 

2 

responsibility of the sign provider, not the City.   

Staff stated that the alternative locations are a result of the EIR process, 
but the two locations presented are the project locations to be evaluated, 
not the other locations.  The height is a result of view sheds and power 
line limitations.  The location of the signs depends on the ability to lease 
the property as well as meeting the requirements of the sign code and 
CalTrans.  The distance between site options 2 & 3 is less than 1,000 ft. 
This would preclude using one site or the other.   

Of the four possible site options, staff recommends sites 3 & 4 because 
they are spaced out enough to allow drivers to view the advertisements 
with enough time and those are the locations proposed by the applicant.  
The signs have two panels at a “V angle” that would be visible from both 
northbound and southbound traffic and directed away from residents.  

The Council has certified the EIR in 2006 which identified locations of 
signs.  The Council has given direction that there be six signs. 

Commissioner Madnawat – Would like to recommend the Commission 
put a condition to limit the operation time of the lighted sign between 
certain hours.  Additionally, he feels that signs should not be so high and 
is not beneficial.   

Bruce Qualls, representing Clear Channel Outdoor.  Mr. Qualls 
confirmed that the distance between signs needs to be a minimum of 
1,000 ft.  The 1,000 ft. regulation is based on one side of the freeway. 
There will be a rotation of advertisement on the billboards with eight (8) 
separate advertisements lasting eight (8) seconds each.   64 second cycle 
of the advertisements. 

They ensure the brightness of signs (increase & ambient light) is limited 
to 0.3 ft candles at less than 250 ft. away, which can be analyzed with a 
light meter.  There are 9 light meters built into the sign that measures the 
ambient light and adjusts automatically.  There is no movement, motion 
or flashing of the advertisement.   

Commissioner Barbadillo referred to a traffic safety concern from the 
Dept of Transportation in the attached letter dated June 2011. They state 
that the recommendations from the City of Milpitas fall short by saying 
that it is not a traffic concern. The Department of Transportation state 
that studies from different agencies indicate that shorter messages are a 
major traffic safety concern.  Commissioner Barbadillo asked if the 
proposed ad duration of 64 seconds is considered to be a short message.   

Sheldon Ah Sing, Senior Planner – Stated that the operator of the signs 
will need to follow the CalTrans outdoor advertising act to be consistent 
with their regulation and that what is proposed is safe.   
 
Open the Public Hearing: 
 
Mr. Sanga, representing Chevron Gas Station on California Circle – 
In 2008 this Chevron location requested from the City permission for 
their own sign, which was denied.  The City informed the Chevron 
station to place their signage on the sign that had been erected on the 

Attachment E



PC 1-23-13 Meeting Minutes  Attachment E 

3 

Starbucks location.  Mr. Sanga feels they are being extorted by the sign 
owner on the Starbucks property and that they need to have their own 
separate sign.   They are against the proposed new sign and will be 
seeking legal remedy.  

Chevron Station speaker expressed concern if the sign at site option #4 
next to the Dixon Landing exit will be safe.  He feels that drivers will be 
distracted trying to read the sign as they exit.  If the Chevron Station 
property owner removes their name from this sign program, will the 
proposed sign be legal? 

Kristen Valus, City of Milpitas resident –  Ms. Valus is not in favor of 
the proposed billboard signs and she was not in favor of the prior sign 
program back in 2008.   Ms. Valus emailed pictures taken from her 
residence third floor where the current 45 ft high can be seen.  She 
questions why it is necessary to erect an even higher and bigger sign, and 
why the signs can’t be placed on the other side of the freeway where 
there are no residences.  She feels the applicant is not concerned about 
the needs of the residents that will be able to see the light glow from the 
signs.  

Kelly Alexander City of Milpitas resident – Mr. Alexander drives the 
237 corridor every day and he will be impacted by the light from the 
proposed signs.  Even though studies may say that certain light levels are 
safe, does not mean that it should be done.  The light is annoying to 
drivers and the City should not make this section of the freeway like 
other highway areas. 

 

Motion to close the public hearing. 

M/S:           Sandhu / Ciardella 

AYES:        5    

NOES:        0    

ABSENT:   2   (Mohsin, Luk) 

ABSTAIN:  0 

 

Clarifications / Deliberations: 

Sheldon Ah Sing, Senior Planner – The Commission will make their 
recommendation on the proposal for sites 3 & 4. The City Council will 
make the final decision on the selected alternative sites.  At that time 
they will have the development agreement.  A notice was sent to 
CalTrans regarding the final EIR study from the state; and as yet they 
have not responded to us.  Staff briefly went over the EIR process and 
approval.  The land where the signs will be erected is owned by 
Westcore Greenfield and Al Pak CA.  The Chevron Station may apply to 
withdraw from their current sign program, and apply for their own sign, 
which would be based on the City sign ordinance. 
 
Commissioner Barbadillo – Addressed the concerns of the two Milpitas 

Attachment E



PC 1-23-13 Meeting Minutes  Attachment E 

4 

residents and provided information on ways they could seek relief.  
 
Commissioner Madnawat – Feels that the Commission can approve 
both sign, but only allow one sign be erected first, with a nighttime 
curfew, get public feedback and observe if the sign impacts traffic or 
accidents.  Thereafter, the second sign can be erected if there is no 
impact.  He also feels that the signs should not be so close together. 
 
Commissioner Barbadillo – Also feels that the signs should be 
approved one at a time and that the public should be more informed 
about what will take place. 
 
Chair Mandal – If we approve the signs as a package, the two signs 
would have consistency. Maybe we could consider site options 1 & 3 in 
order to have more distance between signs. It would be difficult placing 
restricted hours of sign operation.  He is concerned about the public 
concerns heard tonight, but also concerned about business needs to have 
a sign. 
 
Commissioner Ciardella – Would like to adopt the resolution as stated, 
adding that City Staff to work with the applicant and owner of the 
property to work something out for the Chevron Station sign problem. 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 13-004 recommending approval of the 
project to the City Council with City staff to work with the applicant. 
 
M/S:           Ciardella / Sandhu 

AYES:        3   (Ciardella, Mandal, Sandhu) 

NOES:        1   (Barbadillo) 

ABSENT:   2   (Mohsin, Luk) 

ABSTAIN:  1   (Madnawat) 

 

Attachment E



1  

M E M O R A N D U M 
Department of Planning and Neighborhood Services 
 

To: Planning Commission 
 
From: Sheldon S. Ah Sing, Senior Planner  

Subject: Item IX-1, Freeway Billboard Signs 

Date: January 23, 2013 
 
 
The correspondence below was sent to Planning Staff today: 
 
From: Kristen Valus [mailto:klvalus@yahoo.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, January 22, 2013 7:58 PM 
To: Joann DeHerrera 
Cc: Kelly Alexander 
Subject: 1/23/13 Public Hearing re: Billboard comments 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
We are writing in opposition of the request by Clear Channel Outdoor to allow two freeway billboard signs on the east side of 880 at 
1545 and 1301 California Circle.  We live at 464 Cascadita Terrace  and our bedroom and living room windows face the direction of 
the freeway.    
 
We opposed the billboards for several reasons.    First, the freeway corridor is relatively free of signage and has no billboards in this 
area.    It is a notable difference from the area along 880 just south of us in San Jose which has billboard after billboard and is very 
unsightly.   What is to stop other companies following suit wanting billboards along our section of freeway?  What will these 
billboards be advertising?  Will they be lighted?    How high will they be?   Please be thoughtful about the can of worms you are 
opening up for minor additional revenue to the city as well as furthering the industrial "look" of our neighborhood. 
 
We are concerned that the needs of the neighborhoods which are extremely close to the light industrial areas around California Circle 
are not being taken into consideration.   We have already endured Solyndra's building being abandoned perhaps left with industrial 
waste, extremely bright lights in the Solyndra parking lots that shine all night into our bedroom, several very large churches adding 
major structures in the back of their property (which faces our neighborhood) and now additional signage.    
 
Several years ago, we also objected to the signage request by the 1545 California Circle property but the sign was built and remains 
empty except for Starbucks.   Our concerns at the time were that this signage would be tall enough to be seen from our property but 
were told by the engineers and the developers that that would be impossible.   Well, we CAN see it from our property, out of our 
bedroom windows and it is lighted and very annoying!    We do not want any more signage on that property that can be seen, 
especially ugly billboards!     
 
If this request is approved to go to the City Council as the Planning Commission has indicated they are likely to, we request that great 
care is taken to place these billboards where they cannot be seen from the neighborhoods at all and they are are not lighted! 
 
We are sorry we cannot attend the meeting tonight to express our opposition in person.    
 
Mr. Kelly Alexander 
464 Cascadita Terrace 
415-867-9673 

 
 

Attachment F



 1 Resolution No. _____ 

RESOLUTION NO. ____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MILPITAS ADDING A RECREATION  
PROGRAMS AND SERVICES TRANSACTION FEE COVERING THE COST OF IMPLEMENTING 

RECREATION SERVICES REGISTRATION SOFTWARE 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Milpitas Municipal Code Section IV-3-2.00, the City Manager is directed to 
calculate and propose adjustments to fees and charges imposed by various City of Milpitas departments to assure 
recovery of all or part of costs “reasonably borne” in providing the facilities, products or services provided by said 
City departments; and 

 
WHEREAS, modest increases are proposed herein and being passed through by the City’s contracted 

provider, Active Network, directly to the recreation services participant and the City is not adding additional 
charges to those pass-through increases; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has conducted a diligent service and cost analysis related to the provision of 

recreation customer services registration, the costs reasonably borne by the City in providing those services, the 
beneficiaries of those services, and the revenues produced by those paying fees for such services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed added Transaction Fee of 1.5.% is a de minimus addition to the overall fees and 

does not materially affect compliance with the percentage limitations of Milpitas Municipal Code Section IV-3-
4.00 (Listing Percentage of “Costs Reasonably Borne” to Be Recovered for Various Service Centers); and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed Transaction Fee shall ensure that general fund monies are not unfairly and 

inequitably used to subsidize certain services and facilities usage to the detriment of other vital and important 
public needs; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code Sections 66016, 66017, and 66018, the specific fees to be 
charged for certain services must be adopted by the City Council by ordinance or resolution, after providing notice 
and holding a public hearing; and 

 
WHEREAS, a notice of public hearing has been provided per California Government Code Sections 6062a 

and 66016, and the required public hearing was held on April 2, 2013, at which time oral and written presentations 
were made and received; and 
 

WHEREAS, an update of certain fees and charges to be paid by those requesting such services needs to be 
adopted so that the City might ensure that fees for services rendered do not exceed the cost of providing the 
services for which they are imposed; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed fee update is supported by records and calculations based upon past 

performance; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Administrative Report regarding this item has been made available to the public and has 

been made an official part of the record and justification for the fees proposed in this Resolution; and 
 
WHEREAS, the cost recovery of vendor charges through the fees authorized herein are dependent upon 

City Manager execution of an agreement with vendor Active Network providing for the installation and utilization 
of registration services software enabling the application of a 1.5% fee on all Recreation Programs and Services 
registered through that Active Network system; and 

 
WHEREAS, the nature of the fees and the total amounts thereof, including the added 1.5% Transaction 

Fee, which are described and listed in Exhibit A, are hereby determined to be reasonable in that the amounts thereof 
are not in excess of the estimated reasonable costs of providing the services for which the fees are proposed to be 
charged. The basis upon which this finding is made is set forth in the Staff Report and any attachments submitted 

2



 2 Resolution No. _____ 

for consideration of this Resolution at the April 2, 2013 public hearing of the City Council and the supporting 
documentation kept on file at the Office of the City Clerk, the latter of which was made available at least ten (10) 
days in advance of the April 2, 2013 City Council public hearing; and 

 
WHEREAS, all requirements of California Government Code Sections 66016, 66017, and 66018 are 

hereby found to have been complied with; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Milpitas hereby finds, determines, and resolves as 
follows: 
 

1. The City Council has considered the full record before it, which may include but is not limited to 
such things as the staff report, testimony by staff and the public, and other materials and evidence 
submitted or provided to it.  Furthermore, the recitals set forth above are found to be true and 
correct and are incorporated herein by reference. 

 
2. The Transaction Fee of 1.5% shall be assessed and added to all existing fees for programs and 

services listed in Exhibit A and the total fees after such addition are hereby determined to not 
exceed the estimated reasonable costs of providing said services. 

 
3. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Resolution is for any reason 

held invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions 
of this Resolution. 

 
4. The Recreation Programs and Services Transaction Fee shall become effective on January 1, 2014 

or at such other time as the ActiveNet software is put in operation. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this ________ day of ____________, 2013, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  
 

ATTEST: APPROVED: 
 
 
___________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Mary Lavelle, City Clerk Jose S. Esteves, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________________ 

Michael J. Ogaz, City Attorney 
 



File:  Recreation FEE SCHEDULE_3-26-13 Page 1 Finance Department 

 

CITY OF MILPITAS – RECREATION MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
* All fees, as listed in the Recreation Master Fee Schedule, will be subject to a 1.5% Transaction Fee. 

DEPARTMENT 
OR 

DIVISION 
DESCRIPTION OF FEE, RATE OR CHARGE 

CURRENT FEE 
and 

FEE STRUCTURE 

OBJECTIVE 
1= Recover Cost 

2= User Fee 
3= Penalty 

4= Tax 

DATE FEE 
LAST 

CHANGED 

Recreation GENERAL RENTAL INFORMATION See below 1,2 
Res No. 7426 

7/6/04 

 
GENERAL RENTAL INFORMATION 
1. Rental facilities may be viewed during regular business hours, by appointment only, provided no other functions are scheduled.  To make an appointment please call the desired 

rental facility. 
 
2. No phone, mail or fax reservations are accepted.  Rental permits available for 

Community Center, City Hall, Sal Cracolice, Special Events & Equipment, Higuera Adobe building & Parks: Community Center, 457 East Calaveras Blvd., Monday-
Thursday, 8:00 am to 6:00 pm, Friday, 8:00 am to 5:00 pm., 408-586-3210. 
Barbara Lee Senior Center , 40 N. Milpitas Blvd. Monday - Friday, 9:00 am to 4:00 pm., 408.586.3400. 
Sports Center, Sports Fields and Teen Center:  Sports Center, 1325 E. Calaveras Blvd., Monday - Thursday, 6:00 am to 9:00 pm, Fridays, 6:00 am to 2:00 pm, Saturday, 
8:00 am to 1:00 pm., 408-586-3225. 
Milpitas Police Department Community Room:  Police Department, 1275 N. Milpitas Blvd., Monday-Friday, 8:00 am to 5:00 pm., 408-586-2400, resident use only. 
 
Entertainment Event permits must be obtained in person at the Planning Department office, located at 455 E. Calaveras Blvd., Monday - Friday, 8:00 am to 5:00 pm.   

 
3. Facilities may be reserved for use anytime from 7:00 am to 12 midnight with the exception of the Police Department Community Room, which is available for residents only from 

8:00 am to 11:00 pm.  Rental fees are charged from the time you or your caterers, florists, etc. enter the facility until your function is over.  When planning your rental times, be 
sure to include setup time for decorating, caterers, florist, etc.  Please note:  the Barbara Lee Senior Center is not available Monday – Friday, 9:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m. 

 
RESERVATIONS TIMELINE 
1. The City of Milpitas must receive a Facility Use Application, a cleaning & damage deposit and an application fee before any function may be scheduled (at the appropriate 

location above).  All fees must be paid in the form of a cashier’s check, money order, cash or VISA/MC.  Cashier’s check or money orders must be payable to: City of Milpitas.  No 
personal checks will be accepted.  Final rental fees, set-up diagram, proof of insurance (if applicable) are due 30 days prior to the rental date and must be paid in person. 

 
2. Reservations can be made according to these timelines: Milpitas Residents – (two forms of proof of residency required, photo ID & current utility bill) Up to 1 year in advance; Non 

Residents – Up to 6 months in advance; Resident Non-Profits, See guidelines below. 
 
RESIDENT NON-PROFITS/ORGANIZATION TIMELINE (Applies only to meeting room, does not include Auditorium) 
Organizations may reserve up to three dates on one application.  Resident non-profits must submit, every January, the following: 

a A current roster with 51% or more Milpitas Residents and a letter verifying  current non-profit status. 
b A  letter listing two (2) individuals authorized to make reservations, changes or cancellations.     
c A mission statement of the organizations purpose. 

 
For Non-Profit Meetings In    Non -Profit Application Accepted 
January-March     December 1 
April-June     March 1 
July-September     June 1 
October-December     September 1 



File:  Recreation FEE SCHEDULE_3-26-13 Page 14 Finance Department 

 

CITY OF MILPITAS – MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
 

DEPARTMENT 
OR 

DIVISION 
DESCRIPTION OF FEE, RATE OR CHARGE 

CURRENT FEE 
and 

FEE STRUCTURE 

OBJECTIVE 
1= Recover Cost 

2= User Fee 
3= Penalty 

4= Tax 

DATE FEE 
LAST 

CHANGED 

Recreation 
FACILITY USE RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR INDOOR & OUTDOOR 
FACILITIES, continued 

See below 1,2 
Res No. 7426 

7/6/04 
 
 
The purchase cost of special event insurance from the City per day according to classification of hazard is as follows: 
 
Please Note:  All permits requiring insurance will be assessed a $15 insurance processing fee. 
 
 

TENANT/USER EVENT RATES PER DAY* 
 

 
 Hazard Class I Hazard Class II Hazard Class III 

Attendance Premium Premium Premium 

1-100 $  83.32 $122.46 $194.42 
101-500 $116.15 $213.36 $342.13 
501-1500 $174.32 $252.50 $451.97 
1501-3000 $225.98 $420.41 $710.78 
3001-5000 $342.13 $536.56 $872.38 
Add Liquor 
Liability if applicable 

65.65 Must obtain company’s prior 
approval for liquor liability 

Must obtain company’s prior 
approval for liquor liability 

*fees subject to change 
 

EXAMPLE OF PREMIUM CALCULATION: 
Wedding with 300 serving alcohol:   
Hazard Class I 
Total Attendance: 300 

Attendance Category: 
101-500 

Total Premium: 
$116.15 + $65.65 = $181.80 

 
 

TENANT/USER EVENT RISK CLASSIFICATIONS 

Hazard Class I Hazard Class II Hazard Class III 

Plays  Animal Training **Baseball 

Bazaars *  Block Parties/Street Closures  *  Carnivals (no rides) 

Gymnastic Competitions *  Concerts Outdoor (under 1,500) **Karate Meets 

*  Concerts  indoor (under 1,500) Dance Parties **Softball 

Fishing Events Dog Shows Animal Acts/Shows 

Private parties/meetings serving alcohol Food Concessions Zoos 
Notes: 
* Requires prior insurance company’s approval dependent upon the number of attendance and/or liquor 
** Athletic Event’s coverage requires prior company’s approval and signed waiver(s) by participant. 
 The City reserves the right to classify any other non-listed event. 



File:  Recreation FEE SCHEDULE_3-26-13 Page 17 Finance Department 

 

CITY OF MILPITAS – MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
 

DEPARTMENT 
OR 

DIVISION 
DESCRIPTION OF FEE, RATE OR CHARGE 

CURRENT FEE 
and 

FEE STRUCTURE 

OBJECTIVE 
1= Recover Cost 

2= User Fee 
3= Penalty 

4= Tax 

DATE FEE 
LAST 

CHANGED 

Recreation SPECIAL EVENT RULES AND REGULATIONS, continued See below 1,2 
Res No. 7426 

7/6/04 
 
 

V. EQUIPMENT RENTAL 
 
5.1 A Special Events Application must be completed and submitted to Parks and Recreation Services Customer Services staff to request the use of any City 

equipment and/or supplies at least two (2) months prior to the organizations/groups event. 
 
5.2 A deposit is required of all rented equipment and is refundable upon the return of the equipment provided no damage has occurred to any of the items.  Milpitas 

Parks and Recreation Services will review the request and upon approval or denial a letter will be mailed to the address listed on the Special Event application, 
which will include the necessary rental fee.  All equipment availability is based on Milpitas Parks and Recreation Services events schedule.  (See below for fee 
schedule) 

 
5.3 Special detailed inspections should be well documented for the mobile stage and related equipment, stage rigging, etc.  Special attention should be paid to paths 

and walkways in and around facilities and sports fields.   
 
5.4 All outdoor equipment (i.e. bleachers, picnic tables, barbecue pits, etc.) are not moveable and shall remain in designated locations. 
 
5.5 Additional equipment (i.e. bounce houses, chairs, additional seating, staging/platforms, etc.)  must be noted on the application and pre approved by staff.  All 

additional event features must be obtained independently by the applicant, including rental costs, fees, insurance and delivery. 
 
5.6 Equipment Fee Schedule: 
 

 Fee   Deposit (refundable) 
 

 *Mobile Stage Actual Cost of towing**   $1,000/day 
   (according to fee schedule) 
 White Fencing N/A 
 PA System N/A 
 Field Lights  N/A 
 Platforms N/A 

 
 
Please Note: 
The rental fee of equipment/supplies NOT listed is to the discretion of Parks and Recreation Services. 
N/A = Not Available 
 
*The Mobile Stage is not allowed outside Milpitas City limits. 
**Plus 2 hours of staff time 

 



File:  Recreation FEE SCHEDULE_3-26-13 Page 25 Finance Department 

 

CITY OF MILPITAS – MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
 

DEPARTMENT 
OR 

DIVISION 
DESCRIPTION OF FEE, RATE OR CHARGE 

CURRENT FEE 
and 

FEE STRUCTURE 

OBJECTIVE 
1= Recover Cost 

2= User Fee 
3= Penalty 

4= Tax 

DATE FEE 
LAST 

CHANGED 

Recreation Facility Fees See below 1,2 
Res No. 7426 

7/6/04 
 

City Hall Building Plaza and Grounds 

Facility / Service 

Milpitas Schools, 
Chamber, and Gov 

Agencies 
(Priority II) 

Resident 
Non- 

Profits 
(Priority III) 

Milpitas 
Residents 

(Priority IV) 

Non- 
Residents 
(Priority V) 

Reservations Accepted 
9 months to 
proposed 

date 

9 months to 
proposed 

date 

1year to 
proposed 

date 

6 months to proposed 
date 

Rental Damage Deposits: Council Chambers None $250.00 $500.00 $1,000.00 
Rental Damage Deposits: Other rooms/outdoor areas None $150.00 $500.00 $600.00 

Application Fee (non-refundable) 
$20 per 

application 
$20 per 

application 
$20 per 

application 
$20 per 

application 
Insurance Processing Fee $15.00 $15.00 $15.00 $15.00 
Council Chambers – no food/drink allowed in room     

Council Chambers (2 hr. min)/160 capacity with fixed 
seating 

No Fee $75.00/hr $250.00/hr $1,000.00/hr 

Rotunda Area & Committee Room     

Rotunda Area (2 hr. min) 284 capacity No Fee $37.50/hr $75.00/hr $1,000.00/hr 
Committee Room (2 hr. min) 55 capacity without tables No Fee $37.50/hr $75.00/hr $150.00/hr 
Patios – no tables and chairs are provided     

City Council 2nd Floor Balcony/Patio (2 hr. min) 55 capacity No Fee $25.00/hr $50.00/hr $100.00/hr 
Front Patio (2 hr. min) 49 capacity No Fee $25.00/hr $50.00/hr $100.00/hr 
Back Patio (2 hr. min) 180 capacity No Fee $37.50/hr $75.00/hr $150.00/hr 
Outdoor Areas (no tents, chairs, or structures allowed 
on the grass) 

    

Flag Plaza Area/Grass Amphitheatre (2 hr. min) 230 
capacity 

No Fee $37.50/hr $75.00/hr $150.00/hr 

Personnel Costs (per person)     

Information Services Staff (required for Council Chambers) $50.00/hr $50.00/hr $50.00/hr $50.00/hr 
Maintenance Staff $50.00/hr $50.00/hr $50.00/hr $50.00/hr 

NOTE:  All City Hall facility rentals require City Staff.  The type and number of staff (Maintenance, Information Services, Building 
Maintenance, etc) will be determined by the City Manager (or his/her authorized representative) on a per event basis.  Personnel 
costs are based on over-time + benefits. 



File:  Recreation FEE SCHEDULE_3-26-13 Page 26 Finance Department 

 

CITY OF MILPITAS – MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
 

DEPARTMENT 
OR 

DIVISION 
DESCRIPTION OF FEE, RATE OR CHARGE 

CURRENT FEE 
and 

FEE STRUCTURE 

OBJECTIVE 
1= Recover Cost 

2= User Fee 
3= Penalty 

4= Tax 

DATE FEE 
LAST 

CHANGED 

Recreation Facility Fees, continued See below 1,2 
Res No. 7426 

7/6/04 
 

Community Center 

Facility / Service 
Milpitas Schools, Chamber, 

and Gov Agencies 
(Priority II) 

Resident 
Non- 

Profits 
(Priority III) 

Milpitas 
Residents 

(Priority IV) 

Non- 
Residents 
(Priority V) 

Reservations Accepted 
1year to 

proposed 
date 

1year to 
proposed 

date 

1year to 
proposed 

date 

6 months to proposed 
date 

Rental Deposits: Community Hall None $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 
Rental Deposits: All other rooms None $75.00 $100.00 $150.00 
Auditorium (3 hr minimum) No fee $50.00/hr $115.00/hr $145.00/hr 
Conference Room (2 hr minimum) No fee $20.00/hr $50.00/hr $73.00/hr 
Dance Studio/ Craft Classroom (2 hr minimum) No fee $14.50/hr $21.50/hr $28.00/hr 
Facility Attendant Fees $30.00/hr $30.00/hr $30.00/hr $60.00/hr 
Piano No fee $17.50 / day $17.50 / day $35.00 / day 

Application Fee (non-refundable) 
$20.00 / 

application 
$20.00 / application $20.00 / application $20.00 / application 

Mobile Stage     

• Reservation 
1month to 
proposed 

date 

1month to 
proposed 

date 

1month to 
proposed 

date 
Not Available 

• Deposit $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 Not Available 

• Rental (Actual Cost of towing plus 2 
hours of staff time) 

(within City of Milpitas city limits, 
maximum 8 hours of use) 

$Actual cost of towing plus 
2 hours of staff time* 

$Actual cost of towing plus 2 
hours of staff time* 

$Actual cost of towing plus 2 
hours of staff time* 

Not Available 

• At least 51% of the non-profit agency’s members must be Milpitas residents. 
• **Facility attendant fee included 



File:  Recreation FEE SCHEDULE_3-26-13 Page 27 Finance Department 

 

 

DEPARTMENT 
OR 

DIVISION 
DESCRIPTION OF FEE, RATE OR CHARGE 

CURRENT FEE 
and 

FEE STRUCTURE 

OBJECTIVE 
1= Recover Cost 

2= User Fee 
3= Penalty 

4= Tax 

DATE FEE 
LAST 

CHANGED 

Recreation Facility Fees, continued See below 1,2 
Res No. 7426 

7/6/04 

 
Teen Center  

Facility / Service 
Milpitas Schools, Chamber, and 

Gov Agencies 
(Priority II) 

Resident 
Non- 

Profits 
(Priority III) 

Milpitas 
Residents 

(Priority IV) 

Non- 
Residents 
(Priority V) 

Reservations Accepted 
90 days to 

proposed date 

90 days to 
proposed 

date 

1 year to 
proposed 

date 

6 months to 
proposed 

date 
Rental Deposits None $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 
Large gathering room w/kitchen  (2 hr 
minimum) 

No fee $28.00/hr $50.00/hr $60.00/hr 

Facility Attendant Fees (per attendant) $30.00/hr $30.00/hr $30.00/hr $60.00/hr 
Application Fee (non-refundable) $20.00 / application $20.00 / application $20.00 / application $20.00 / application 
     

Sal Cracolice Building   

Facility / Service 
Milpitas Schools, Chamber, and 

Gov Agencies 
(Priority II) 

Resident 
Non- 

Profits 
(Priority III) 

Milpitas 
Residents 

(Priority IV) 

Non- 
Residents 
(Priority V) 

Reservations Accepted 
9 months to  

proposed date 

9 months to 
proposed 

date 

1 year to 
proposed 

date 

6 months to 
proposed 

date 
Rental Deposits: Auditorium None $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 
Rental Deposits: Classrooms None $75.00 $100.00 $150.00 
Auditorium (3 hr minimum) No fee $28.00/hr $70.00/hr $120.00/hr 
Small Meeting Room (2 hr. minimum) No fee $14.50/hr $25.00/hr $35.00/hr 
Facility Attendant Fees (per attendant) $30.00/hr $30.00/hr $30.00/hr $60.00/hr 
Application Fee (non-refundable) $20.00 / application $20.00 / application $20.00 / application $20.00 / application 
     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



File:  Recreation FEE SCHEDULE_3-26-13 Page 28 Finance Department 

 

CITY OF MILPITAS – MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
 
 

DEPARTMENT 
OR 

DIVISION 
DESCRIPTION OF FEE, RATE OR CHARGE 

CURRENT FEE 
and 

FEE STRUCTURE 

OBJECTIVE 
1= Recover Cost 

2= User Fee 
3= Penalty 

4= Tax 

DATE FEE 
LAST 

CHANGED 

Recreation Facility Fees, continued See below 1,2 
Res No. 7426 

7/6/04 
 

Milpitas Sports Center 

Facility/Sports Fields / Service 
Milpitas Schools, Chamber, and 

Gov Agencies 
(Priority II) 

Resident 
Non- 

Profits 
(Priority III) 

Milpitas 
Residents 
(Priority IV) 

Non- 
Residents 
(Priority V) 

Reservations Accepted 
90 days to 

proposed date 

90 days to 
proposed 

date 

90 days to 
proposed 

date 

60 days to 
proposed 

date 
Rental Deposits None $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 
Large Gymnasium (3 hr minimum) $55.00 $50.00 $50.00 $100.00 

Training Pool (2hr minimum) No fee 
$50.00/hr +  

2 guards 
$50.00/hr +  

2 guards 
$100.00/hr +  

2 guards 

Yard Pool (2 hr minimum) No fee 
$60.00/hr +  

2 guards 
$60.00/hr +  

2 guards 
$120.00/hr +  

2 guards 

Meter Pool (2 hr minimum) No fee 
$70.00/hr + 

2 guards 
$60.00/hr +  

2 guards 
$140.00/hr +  

2 guards 

Tiny Tot Pool (2 hr minimum) No fee 
$40.00/hr +  

2 guards 
$40.00/hr +  

2 guards 
$80.00/hr +  

2 guards 
Football / Soccer Field w/o lights (2 hr 
min) 

No fee $30.00/hr $30.00/hr $60.00/hr* 

Football/Soccer Field w/lights (2 hr min) No Fee $40.00/hr $40.00/hr $80.00/hr 
Softball / Baseball Field w/o lights (2hr 
min) 

No fee $20.00/hr $20.00/hr $40.00/hr* 

Softball / Baseball Field w/ lights (2 hr 
min) 

No fee $30.00/hr $30.00/hr 
$6 

0.00/hr* 
Facility Attendant / Scorekeeper (per 
attendant) 

$30.00/hr $30.00/hr $30.00/hr $60.00/hr* 

Lifeguard Fees (per Lifeguard) $15.00/hr $15.00/hr $15.00/hr $30.00/hr 

Application Fee (non-refundable) $20.00 / application $20.00 / application $20.00 / application 
$20.00 /  

Application 
* At least 51% of the non-profit agency’s members must be Milpitas residents. 



File:  Recreation FEE SCHEDULE_3-26-13 Page 29 Finance Department 

 

CITY OF MILPITAS – MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
 

DEPARTMENT 
OR 

DIVISION 
DESCRIPTION OF FEE, RATE OR CHARGE 

CURRENT FEE 
and 

FEE STRUCTURE 

OBJECTIVE 
1= Recover Cost 

2= User Fee 
3= Penalty 

4= Tax 

DATE FEE 
LAST 

CHANGED 

Recreation Facility Fees, continued See below 1,2 
Res No. 7426 

7/6/04 
 

Picnic Areas 

Facility/Fields / Service 
Milpitas Schools, Chamber, 

and Gov Agencies 
(Priority II) 

Resident 
Non-Profits 
(Priority III) 

Milpitas 
Residents 

(Priority IV) 

Non- 
Residents 
(Priority V) 

Reservations Accepted 
90 days to 

proposed date 

90 days to 
proposed 

date 

1 year to 
proposed 

date 

6 months to 
proposed 

date 
Small Parks with Restrooms Picnic Area – 50 
or less capacity Peak Hours (Friday – Sunday) 

No fee $60/day/area $60/day/area $90/day/area 

Small Parks with Restrooms Picnic Area – 50 
or Less Capacity Non Peak Hours (Monday - 
Thursday 

No fee $40/day/area $40/day/area $70/day/area 

Small Parks Without Restrooms Monday – 
Sunday) 

No fee $40/day/area $40/day/area $54/day/area 

Large Parks – More than 50 capacity Peak 
Hours (Friday – Sunday) 

No fee $120/day/area $120/day/area $160/day/area 

Large Parks More than 50 capacity Non Peak 
Hours (Monday – Thursday)  

No fee $80/day/area $80/day/area $120/day/area 

Rental Deposit: Large Picnic Areas $250 $250 $250 $250 
Softball Field w/ lights (2 hr min) No fee $9.00/hr $30.00/hr $60.00/hr 
Attendant Fee (per attendant) $30.00/hr $30.00/hr $30.00/hr $60.00/hr* 
Application Fee (non-refundable) $20.00 / application $20.00 / application $20.00 / application $20.00 / application 

 

Senior Center Building 

Facility / Service 
Milpitas Schools, Chamber, 

and Gov Agencies 
(Priority II) 

Resident 
Non- 

Profits 
(Priority III) 

Milpitas 
Residents 

(Priority IV) 

Non- 
Residents 
(Priority V) 

Reservations Accepted Not Available 
90 days to 
proposed 

date 

1 year to 
proposed 

date 

6 months to 
proposed 

date 
Rental Deposits: Auditorium Not Available $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 
Rental Deposits: Classrooms Not Available $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 
Community Room Auditorium (3 hr min) Not Available $110.00/hr $220.00/hr $320.00/hr 
Classroom 140 and 141 (Full) Not Available $35.00/hr $70.00/hr $90.00/hr 
Classroom 140 or 141 (Half) Not Available $17.50/hr  $35.00/hr $55.00/hr 
Facility Attendant Fees (per attendant) Not Available $30.00/hr $30.00/hr $60.00/hr 
Application Fee (non-refundable) $20.00 / application $20.00 / application $20.00 / application $20.00 / application 

* At least 51% of the non-profit agency’s members must be Milpitas residents. 
 



File:  Recreation FEE SCHEDULE_3-26-13 Page 30 Finance Department 

 

CITY OF MILPITAS – MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
 

DEPARTMENT 
OR 

DIVISION 
DESCRIPTION OF FEE, RATE OR CHARGE 

CURRENT FEE 
and 

FEE STRUCTURE 

OBJECTIVE 
1= Recover Cost 

2= User Fee 
3= Penalty 

4= Tax 

DATE FEE 
LAST 

CHANGED 

Recreation Facility Fees, continued See below 1,2 
Res No. 7426 

7/6/04 
 

Higuera Adobe 

Facility/Fields / Service 
Milpitas Schools, Chamber, and 

Gov Agencies 
(Priority II) 

Resident 
Non- 

Profits 
(Priority III) 

Milpitas 
Residents 
(Priority IV) 

Non- 
Residents 
(Priority V) 

Reservations Accepted 
90 days to 

proposed date 
90 days to 

proposed date 
1 year to 

proposed date 

6 months to 
proposed 

date 
Rental Deposits None $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 
Auditorium No fee $15.50/hr $50.00/hr $72.50/hr 
Facility Attendant Fees (per attendant) $30.00/hr $30.00/hr $30.00/hr $60.00/hr 
Application Fee (non-refundable) $20.00 / application $20.00 / application $20.00 / application $20.00 / application 

 

Tournament Field 

Facility / Service 
Milpitas Schools, Chamber, and 

Gov Agencies 
(Priority II) 

Resident 
Non- 

Profits 
(Priority III) 

Milpitas 
Residents 
(Priority IV) 

Non- 
Residents 
(Priority V) 

Tennis Court Reservations (per court) No fee $8.00/hr $8.00/hr $12.00/hr 
Tennis Court Lights No fee $10.00/hr $10.00/hr $14.00/hr 
Application Fee (non-refundable) $20.00 / application $20.00 / application $20.00 / application $20.00 / application 

* At least 51% of the non-profit agency’s members must be Milpitas residents. 



File:  Recreation FEE SCHEDULE_3-26-13 Page 31 Finance Department 

 

CITY OF MILPITAS – MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
 

DEPARTMENT 
OR 

DIVISION 
DESCRIPTION OF FEE, RATE OR CHARGE 

CURRENT FEE 
and 

FEE STRUCTURE 

OBJECTIVE 
1= Recover Cost 

2= User Fee 
3= Penalty 

4= Tax 

DATE FEE 
LAST 

CHANGED 

Recreation Facility Fees, continued See below 1,2 
Res No. 7426 

7/6/04 
 

Festival Rental Fees 

Facility/Fields / Service 

Milpitas Schools, 
Chamber, and Gov 

Agencies 
(Priority II) 

Resident 
Non- 

Profits 
(Priority III) 

Milpitas 
Residents 

(Priority IV) 

Non- 
Residents 
(Priority V) 

Football Field / Open Space Fee w/o lights No fee $500.00 / day $500.00 / day $500.00 / day 
Staff Fees $30.00/hr $30.00/hr $30.00/hr $60.00/hr 
Application Fee (non-refundable) $20.00 /appli-cation $20.00 / application $20.00 / application $20.00 / application 

* At least 51% of the non-profit agency’s members must be Milpitas residents. 
 



File:  Recreation FEE SCHEDULE_3-26-13 Page 32 Finance Department 

 

CITY OF MILPITAS – MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
 

DEPARTMENT 
OR 

DIVISION 
DESCRIPTION OF FEE, RATE OR CHARGE 

CURRENT FEE 
and 

FEE STRUCTURE 

OBJECTIVE 
1= Recover Cost 

2= User Fee 
3= Penalty 

4= Tax 

DATE FEE 
LAST 

CHANGED 

Recreation  Fitness Passes – Visit Books 

5 uses: $15 
10 uses: $30 
15 uses: $45 
20 uses: $60 

Drop-in fee: $5 
Annual Non-resident fee: $50/year* 
Valid 1 year from date purchased 

2 

Mar 03 
*Res. 8088 

5/10/11 (non 
resident fee) 

  Adult Sports Programs 
Time & Materials (within the policy ranges 

established by the Council) 
1,2 

Res 6449 
7/18/95 

  Softball League (full season) 
$500 per team + $10 per non 

resident/season 
2 

Res. 8088 
5/10/11 

  Basketball League (full season) 
$500 per team + $10 per non 

resident/season 
2 

Res. 8088 
5/10/11 

  Youth Sports Programs 
Time & Materials (within the policy ranges 

established by the Council) 
1,2 

Res 6449 
7/18/95 

  Youth Sports User Fee $10/player/season 1,2 
Res. 8008 

5/10/11 
  Youth Sports Camps Negotiated with instructor 2 Mar 03 

  

Adult/Youth Recreation Classes 
Varies by Instructor 

• 75/25 split – Golf, Tennis * 
• 70/30 split 
• 65/35 split 
• Hourly per class/student 

Recreation retains lower amount of split. 

Fee negotiated by City staff with instructor 
for competitive rates 

2  

 



File:  Recreation FEE SCHEDULE_3-26-13 Page 33 Finance Department 

 

CITY OF MILPITAS – MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
 

DEPARTMENT 
OR 

DIVISION 
DESCRIPTION OF FEE, RATE OR CHARGE 

CURRENT FEE 
and 

FEE STRUCTURE 

OBJECTIVE 
1= Recover Cost 

2= User Fee 
3= Penalty 

4= Tax 

DATE FEE 
LAST 

CHANGED 

Recreation  Trips 
Actual cost to City  
+ Trip Admin Fee 

1,2 Dec 91 

  Private Contract Admin Fee $15/person 2 Dec 91 
  Adult Trip Admin Fee $10/person 2 Dec 91 
  Youth Trip Admin Fee $5/person 2 Dec 91 
      
      

  General Non-resident Fees 
$20/person/class/month 

program or trip. 
2 Mar ‘07 

  Brochure First Class mailing fee (3 per year) $5/year 2 Dec 91 

  
Milpitas Non-resident Senior Citizen Discount  
(50 years +) 

25% off any Senior  
class or trip 

2 Dec 91 

  City-wide Events 
No charge to the public.  Booth 

participants will  range from no charge to 
time & materials 

1,2 
Res 6449 
7/18/95 

  4th of July Entrance Fee 
$2.00/person age 12 and older 

Free/person under age 12 
1,2 

Res. 8088 
5/10/11 

  4th of July Craft Faire space $30 per space 2 Dec 91 
  4th of July Food Booth (non-profit) $125/booth 2 Dec 91 
  4th of July Food Booth (profit) $275/booth 2 Dec 91 

  Recreation Services T-shirt 
Actual cost to City  

+ $7 per shirt 
1,2 Dec 91 

  Pre-school Program    
  Pre-school Program $6.50/hour 2 Mar 03 
  Late fee for Pre-school $10/10 minutes 3  
  After-school Program – After the Bell    

  After-school Program (After the Bell) 
$7.00/day for residents; 

$7.00/day  for non-residents with 
additional $20/year 

2 
Res. 8088 

5/10/11 

  Late fee for After-School Programs $10/10 minutes 3  

  Day Camp (Regular Day) $175/week 2 
Res. 8088 

5/10/11 

  Extended Care Day Camp  $40/week 2 
Res. 8088 

5/10/11 
Recreation      
  Community Garden Plot    
  Senior residents (50+ years of age Resident Non-resident  
  $15.00/year $60.00/year $90.00/year  



File:  Recreation FEE SCHEDULE_3-26-13 Page 34 Finance Department 

 

CITY OF MILPITAS – MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
 

DEPARTMENT 
OR 

DIVISION 
DESCRIPTION OF FEE, RATE OR CHARGE 

CURRENT FEE 
and 

FEE STRUCTURE 

OBJECTIVE 
1= Recover Cost 

2= User Fee 
3= Penalty 

4= Tax 

DATE FEE 
LAST 

CHANGED 

Recreation  Teen Programs 
Range from no charge  

to time & materials 
1,2 

Res 6449 
7/18/95 

  Teen Center Events $3-$10 2  
  Teen Center Snacks $0.50-$2.00 2  
  Teen Center Drop-in Programs $2/visit 2  

 

Recreation  Aquatics Program    

  Recreational Swim $2 per person 2 Mar 03 

  Swimming Lessons Group 
$69.00 Residents 

$89.00 Non Residents 
2 

Res. 8088 
5/10/11 

  Private Swimming Lessons $30/half hour 2 Mar 03 

  Parent-tot Drop-in swim pass – 5 visits 
$10 plus $10 annual non-resident fee if 

applicable 
2  

  Swim Team Support Time & Materials 1,2 
Res 6449 
7/18/95 

  Monthly Swim Team Fee (Tidal Waves) See table below 2 
Res. 8008 

5/10/11 
 

Family Member Resident Non-resident 
Developmental Group $68/month $108 per month* 
Juniors/Intermediate Group $78.00/month $118 per month* 
Senior Group $88.00/month $128 per month* 
*Plus yearly $60 USS registration fee. 
** Multiple Child Discount (child must be of the same family):  $10 off 2nd child, $20 off 3rd child or more 

 

Recreation  Sports Center Membership Card replacement fee $5 2  

  Lost Locker Key $20 2  
  Kid Fit $2/2 hours 2  

  
Open Gym Drop in Use only (no use of locker, shower 
or fitness center) 

$5/visit 2  

 

 
 



File:  Recreation FEE SCHEDULE_3-26-13 Page 35 Finance Department 

 

CITY OF MILPITAS – MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
 

DEPARTMENT 
OR 

DIVISION 
DESCRIPTION OF FEE, RATE OR CHARGE 

CURRENT FEE 
and 

FEE STRUCTURE 

OBJECTIVE 
1= Recover Cost 

2= User Fee 
3= Penalty 

4= Tax 

DATE FEE 
LAST 

CHANGED 

Recreation  Rainbow Theatre    

  • Cast 
$100 resident/play 

$150.00 non-resident/play 
2 

Res. 8088 
5/10/11 

  • Tickets Ages 0-12 $6.00/child 2 
Res. 8088 

5/10/11 

  • Ages 13-17 $12.00/child 2 
Res. 8088 

5/10/11 

  • 18+ $12/adult 2 
Res. 8088 

5/10/11 

  • Season Ticket Holder 
$100 (3 shows, reserved seating, and 

acknowledgement) 
2 

Res. 8088 
5/10/11 

  • Costume Fee $100.00  2  

  • Picture/CD Fee $5.00-10.00 2  

  Costume/Prop Rentals $20.00-$100.00 2 
 
 

 

Recreation  Senior Citizen Programs   
 
 

  Senior Citizen Programs-Classes $2.00/ - $4.00/hour 2 
Res. 8088 

5/10/11 

  Senior Citizen Programs-Activity Card 
$12.00 resident 

$30.00 non-resident Membership fee 
2 

Res. 8008 
6/15/10 

  Senior Citizen Trip Admin Fee 
$5.00-10.00/activity (depending upon trip 

costs) 
2 

Res. 8088 
5/10/11 

  Senior Citizen Trips 
Actual cost to city + 

Trip Admin/Transportation Fee 
1,2 Dec 91 

  Senior Dances Free-$15.00 1,2  

  
Misc. Staff-run Programs (e.g., Holiday Dinner, Tea 
Parties, Cooking Classes, Misc. Activities) 

Free-$15.00 1,2 
 
 

  Non Resident Fee $10/class 2 
Res. 8088 

5/10/11 

  Senior Center Fitness Access Fee $1.50/visit 2 
Re. 8088 
5/10/11 

 
Late Fee Policy 
 
For the safety of our participants, it is required that they are picked up on time at the end of each class.  Should the participant be picked up late, a $10 late fee starting 
one (1) minute after the end of the class will be charged, wth an additional $10 for every ten (10) minutes thereafter.  Should the participant not be picked up within thirty 
(30) minutes at the end of the class the Milpitas Police Department will be contacted. 
 
 
Contract Instructor Percentage Splits 
 



File:  Recreation FEE SCHEDULE_3-26-13 Page 36 Finance Department 

 

The following percentage splits and criteria were implemented for Summer 2007: 
 

a) 60/40 – All new instructors offering programs in City facilities recruited for Summer 2007 and into the future would be paid at a 60/40 split.  This percentage provides us 
a clear definition of what we need to do to ensure the success of their programs and the benefits they receive by contracting with us.  This will require more negotiation 
with future instructors.  

 
b) 65/35 – We currently have one instructor at 65/35 split, a large number of instructors at 70/30 and a few at 75/25.  Those that are at 70/30 will be renegotiated to 65/35 

unless they fit into the criteria outlined in the 70/30 section.  After one year, the 65/35 level will be re-evaluated.  If the current economic climate improves, contract will 
be re-negotiated to 70/30. 

 
c) 70/30 – Majority of current instructors falls under this level.  At this level longtime instructors with programs that continually meet the maximum enrollment are 

recognized for their loyalty and providing outstanding programs. 
 

d) 75/25 – This level would only be used for “unique programs” that we do not have the ability to offer without the contractor’s facility or equipment.  Current examples 
include the Jensen School for the Performing Arts, Funakoshi Shotokan Karate, Bay Area Golf Learning Center, City Beach Rock Club, Mark Dorcak School of Golf.  
High-risk programs that require a large amount of additional insurance or overhead could be considered for this level on a case-by-case basis. 

 
 

 
 



  Resolution No. ____ 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 
 

A JOINT RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MILPITAS HOUSING AUTHORITY AND THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF MILPITAS AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL OF A LOAN FROM THE HOUSING 

AUTHORITY TO THE CITY OF MILPITAS FOR THE DEMOLITION OF BUILDINGS AT  
1650-1690 AND 1740-1830 McCANDLESS DRIVE 

 
WHEREAS, on February 19, 2013, City Council adopted Resolution No. 8227 delegating the Public Works 

Director the authority to take emergency action and to allow emergency contracts to be executed without giving notice 
soliciting competitive bids; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Milpitas desires to enter into a contract agreement with DR Horton for the demolition of 
City buildings at 1650-1690 and 1740-1830 McCandless Drive pursuant to the findings stated in Resolution No. 8227; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Milpitas Housing Authority desires to authorize a loan in the amount of $621,500.00 to 
the City of Milpitas to pay for the demolition of said City buildings and the City of Milpitas desires to repay the loan to 
the Housing Authority with interest at a rate of five percent (5%) upon the City of Milpitas collecting park-in-lieu fee 
from developers within the Transit Area Specific Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Milpitas Housing Authority and the City of Milpitas are agreeable to the terms and 
conditions of said loan in the amount of $621,500.00 with five percent (5%) interest which shall be paid back to the 
Milpitas Housing Authority by the City of Milpitas within one year of the date of this Resolution (April 2, 2014). 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Housing Authority and the City Council of the City of Milpitas hereby find, 
determine, and resolve as follows:  
 

1. The Authority and the City Council have considered the full record before them, which may include but is 
not limited to such things as the staff report, testimony by staff and the public, and other materials and 
evidence submitted or provided to them.  Furthermore, the recitals set forth above are found to be true and 
correct and are incorporated herein by reference.  

 
2. The Housing Authority agrees to provide the City of Milpitas with a loan in the amount of $621,500.00 

for the demolition of the above-referenced City buildings on McCandless Drive, subject to the terms and 
conditions stated hereinabove.  

 
3. The City of Milpitas agrees to repay said loan under the terms and conditions stated hereinabove. 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this    day of    2013__, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

ATTEST:        APPROVED: 
 
            
Mary Lavelle, Housing Authority Secretary/City Clerk   Jose S. Esteves, Chair/Mayor 
     
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
   
Michael J. Ogaz, Housing Authority Counsel/City Attorney 

*HA1



PROJECT NAME Milpitas Bidder: Bidder: Bidder:

TRADE PROJECT # Bid Date: Bid Date: Bid Date:

DESCRIPTION Cost Code QTY Unit Unit Price Total Price QTY Unit Unit Price Total Price QTY Unit Unit Price Total Price

Demolish Site 1520. 25050 1               ls 521,198.00$   521,198.00$      1               ls 422,500.00$   422,500.00$      1               ls 415,000.00$   415,000.00$      

Utility Allowance 1520. 25050 1               ls 75,000.00$     75,000.00$        1               ls 75,000.00$     75,000.00$        1               ls 75,000.00$     75,000.00$        

Asbestos Removal Allowance 1520. 25050 1               ls 75,000.00$     75,000.00$        1               ls 75,000.00$     75,000.00$        1               ls 75,000.00$     75,000.00$        

Sub-Total 1520. 25050 -$               671,198.00$      -$               572,500.00$      -$               565,000.00$      

AWARDED TO: 

REASON FOR AWARD: Notes: Notes: Notes:

APPROVED BY:

DENNIS HUDSPETH, VP LAND DEVELOPMENT

DATE:

Items in red are plug in numbers for items not bid

Gilroy Construction inc.

3/5/2013 3/12/2013

Buccaneer Demolition R&B Equipment

2/28/2013

3/27/2013

9:00 AM



March 5, 2013 

DR Horton 
6630 Owens Drive 
Pleasanton, CA 94588 

Attention: Mr. Daryl Bauman 

RE: 1690,1830 and 1768 McCandless" Dr, Milpitas 

Dear Mr. Bauman: 

Buccaneer Demolition, Inc. is pleased to provide a proposal for the 'demolition for the 
above referenced project per site visit on 2/27/13 

SITE DEMOLITION SCOPE OF WORK: 

1. Mobilize the project with required prevailing wage labor and equipment 
2. Remove refrigerant from all ail' conditioners . 
3. Remove and properly dispose of all fluorescent light tubes 
4. Demolish 3 commercial tilt up buildings 

' 5. Demolish loading docks 
6. Demolish all trees on si te· 
7. Demolish all on site flat work induding asphalt parking lot and concrete 

curbs/walkways 
8. Grind asphalt, crush concrete and leave stockpiled on site for u~e by others 
9. Haul all additional debris to an appropriate facility and provide recycling tags to 

GC 

Base Bid Price: $521,198.00 
Add alternate for underground utility demolition and Cttl/cap: $75,000.00 allowance 

QUALIFICATIONS: 

1. OthGrs to put in place temporary fences, barricades,- dust barriers etc as needed 
2. Others to complete disconnection, safe-off and capping of all utilities in such a 

marmer to allow reasonable production by the demolition C01)tractor 

SELECTIVE DEHOLITIO~l SHORltlG 'I SITE WORK BUILDING D E HOLITION ARCHITECTUR1I.L SALVAGE 

618 S. FmST S TR EET S Ail JOSE . Ch 95 1 13 ~ P 40S . 977 . 7Q"/9 F 1,08 . 977.798:5 LI CE ti SE #836 2 03 



3. Temporary power, water, and sanitary facility will be available at site, we will 
provide a hydrant meter 

4. GC to provide sufficient area to crush and stockpile AC and Concrete on site 
5. All work to be completed in one mobilization 
6. There are assumed to be no basements 
7. All buildings arc assumed to have foundations no deeper than 3' 
8. Asphalt and concrete slabs assumed to be no thicker than 4" 

STANDARD EXCLUSIONS: 

1. All permits, bonds, fees, deposits unless noted otherwise 
2. Testing and abatement of hazardous contaminated or asbestos-containing 

materials, ballasts containing PCBs, Freon, lead paint, hazardous chemicals, 
fluorescent tubes, or soils unless noted otherwise 

3. Salvage and layouts unless noted 
4. Clearing and grubbing 
5. Removal and I or relocation of under ground utilities, basins & vaults unless 

noted otherwise 
6. Earthwork - excavation, backfilling, compaction and grading unless noted 

otherwise 
7. Removing base rock 
8. Removing contaminated soils 
9. O.T. or off hours work. 
10. Any thing that is not specifically included in the scope of work above 

Buccaneer Demolition Inc., as a part of it's performance under this proposal, has the right, at it's option to possess, retain, sell, 
distribute, rccycle, use, or otherwise utilize, all, or a portion, of the salvageable materials, if any, which may [es\llt from the \'\'ork of 
Buccaneer Demolition on any structures or other fixhu(>s located on the customer's premises as a result of this proposal becoming a 
5ub-contract agreement, unless other arrnngements arc made arc made in <ldvance of this bid proPOS,)!. 

Signahtre Authorizing Acceptance: _________________ _ 

We Recycle Above Industry Standards 

PAYMENTS IN FULL NET 30 DAYS NO RETENTIONS 
THIS PROPOSAL IS GOOD FOR 30 DAYS 

All payments 5h<111 beiH inten:sl <11 the mlc of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month if nol paid whE.'n due. In the ('\'t~nt any 
I<:,ga\ action or arbitration is commenced 10 collect any SUIllS due hcrCltnOer the prevailing party in nny slich proceeding shall be 
entitled to reasonable nHorneys fees and associated costs in addition to any other relief awarded 

Sincerely, 
BUCCANEER DEMOLITION, INC. 

Arturo Ramirez 
Division Manager 

2 



2/28/13 

D. R. Horton 

Atten: Dennis EOUIPMENT, 
CA LIC ENSE 669008 

Re : 1680,1690, 1768,1788, 1810 & 1830 McCandless Blvd. 

Dennis, 

R & B Equipment Is pleased to submit our proposal to furnish all labor, equipment, materials and 

supplies necessary to complete the demolition and site clearing on the above referenced project. 

1) Pull BAAQMD permit for demo and clearing. 

2) Demo and off haul all demo debris and recycle per City requirements. 

3) Clear site of all trees and vegetation and recycle per City requirements . 

4) Demo all existing concrete and asphalt and crush on site to W' class 2 spec. 

5) Remove all underground utilities and cap at limit of demolition. 

6) Backfill and compact voids left from demolition with on site material so as to be able to stock 

pile both concrete rubble and W' base rock. 

7) Areas not used for concrete crushing activity to be left open for back fill by others. 

Exclude: 

1) Demo permits. 

2) Hazardous materials handling or removal. 

3) Backfill or compaction other than concrete crushing areas. 

4) Hand picking of roots. 

5) Utility relocation. 

6) Removal of stumps in areas of utilities to remain . 

7) Removal of asphalt with petrlmat, if any. 

8) Retention. 

Pricing: 

Lump sum demo and clearing ...... ... ...... ........ ................ ............................................................. . $497,500 

Includes allowance for underground removal, crushing of approx. 12,500 tons of base rock and the 

paying of prevailing wage. Thank you for the 9Pportunlty to quote this project. Please feel free to 

contact me If you have any questions regarding this proposal. 

2215 DUNN ROAD • HAYWARD, CA 94545-2205 • (510) 782-3774 • FAX (510) 782-4917 



VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 

Tuesday, March 13, 2012 

Dennis Hudspeth 
VP Land Development 
DR Horton, America's Builder 
6630 Owens Drive 
Pleasanton, Ca. 94588 
MB: (925) 575-4228 
PH: (925) 225-7453 
FX: (925) 225-7405 
EM: DHudspeth@drhorton.com 

Rc: DEMOLITION PROPOSAL 
MCCANDLES AT MONTAGUE - MILPITAS, CA 
BUILDINGS 1680, 1690, 1768, 1788, 1810 & 1830 

Deal' Dennis: 

Attached herewith please find a copy of Gilroy Construction, Inc.'s Exhibit A - Proposal for mass 
demolition and rough grading of City owned Building in Milpitas, CA 

We are prepared to start work immediately and we look forward to working with you on this project. If 
you have any questions 01' comments please feel free to contact myself directly @ (408) 639-2528 01' 

Vince Giacalone@ (408) 722-8913. 

Sincerely; /'" 

t~ }> 

Michael McDermott 
Gilroy Construction, Inc. 
Lic. #: 892638 A&B 

Page lof2 



Exhibit A 
PROPOSAL 

Gilroy Construction, Inc. is pleased to provide the following quotation for the demolition and rough grade 
for the above mentioned project. 

SCHEDULE A - DEMOLITION 

Demolish Superstructures -
1. Mobilization 
2. Demolish North Buildings (±52,000 sf) 
3. Demolish South Buildings (±40,000 sf) 
4. Demolish loading docks 
5. Demolish pavers feeding existing buildings (± 6,000 sf) 
6. Demolish trees within project boundary (± 120 ea) 
7. Demolish AC within project boundary (± 100,000 sf) 
8. Crush all AC and concrete generated on site to Class material (± 8,000 ton) 
9. Recycle of all materials to appropriate landfill(s) 
10. Traffic control/traffic plan as required for our portion of work 
II. Dust control including water 
12. Protection of decorative pavers where required 
13. Rough Grade-

a. Upon completion of demolition, rough grade, high track and back drag site smooth 
b. Existing depressions to be smoothed over with fill on site, bid assumes no import 
c. Traffic control as required for our p0l1ion of work 
d. Dust control including water 

SCHEDULE B - EXCLUSIONS 

We are excluding the following for all above described work items: 
I. Testing of hazardous, contaminated and/or asbestos containing materials, PCB ballasts, mercury 

light tubes, oils and/or Freon 
2. Winterization, pumping, mud work or temporary roads 
3. Dewatering 
4. Storm Water Run-Off Plan 

SCHEDULE C - PRICE 

Gilroy Construction, Inc. proposes to perform the above-described work for the price of FOUR 
HUNDRED FIFETEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS & 00/100 ($415,000.00). 

SCHEDULE D - ALTERNATE PRICING 

A. Removal of underground utilities; includes capping and backfill. 
I. Total Cost: SEVENTY FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS & 00/1 00 ($75,000.00). 

B. Removal of asbestos related material. 
I. Total Cost: SEVENTY FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS & 00/100 ($75,000.00). 

Page 2 of2 



Milpitas Complaints
Received by BAAQMD From2/01/201

Comolaint# Received Occured

213607 2/6/13 ll:09 2/ó/13 ll:00

213619 2/8113 7:49 218/13 '7:30

213627 2/10/13 t8:4t 2/t0/t3 17:00

213641 2ll2/13 15:54 2/10/13 15:54

213644 2/12/13 17:46 2/12/13 17:00

213645 2/l2tl3 18:29 2/12/13 18:29

213ó51 2/13/13 ll:43 2/13/13 ll:30
213655 2/13/13 t7:30 2/t3/13 16:30

2t3656 2/13/13 t8:47 2/13/13 l8:15

213657 2/13/13 18:36 2ll3ll3 17:00

213ó58 2/13/13 l8:18 2/13/13 t8:15

213659 2/t3/13 19:31 2ll3/13 19:00

213660 2/t3tl3 20:2t 2ll3tl3 20:21

2t3661 2/13/13 18:31 2/13/13 0:00

to 02/28/2013

Alleged Source

lntemational Disposal
Corporation of Calif
NONE

NONE

NONE

BFI - The Recyclery

\¡y'almart

BFI - The Recyclery

NONE

San JosdSanta Clara Water
Pollution Control
San Jose/Santa Clar¿ Water
Pollution Control
San Jose/Santa Clara Water
Pollution Control
BFI - The Recyclery

BFI - The Recyclery

San Jose/Santa Clara Water
Pollution Control

Descriotion
garbage

bad sewage

sewage

foul air
garbage

garbage

compost

garbagey'compost

sewage

sewage

Honible

garbage

garbage

very bad

landfill
garbage

garbagee

bad

compost

rotten eggs

garbage

chemical

strong

garbage

garbage

bad compost

strong

bad

bad

bad

General Loc¡tion
I3OO ELKV/OOD DR

I5OO PLATT AVE
I5OO PLATT AVE
4OO GEMMA DR

4OO MARLYN DR

xxx xxxxxxx

IOOO CAMERON PLACE

2IOO AGUILAR CT

I'5OO PLATI AVE

I 5OO PLATT AVE

2OOO SKYLINE DR

I2OO NORTH ABBOTT

IOO BEAUMERE WAY
xxx xxxxxxx

2OO INDIAN HILL RD

2IOO AGUILAR CT
4OO MARLYN DR

xxx xxxxxxx

4OO MARLYN DR

4OO ALVAREZCOMMON
IOOO VIDA LARGA LOOP

IOO BEAUMERE WAY
8OO CLARIDAD LOOP

9OO LUZ DEL SOL TOOP

2OO SUMMERWIND DR

4OO MARLYN DR

xxx xxxxxxx

ITOO ROCKY MOUNTAIN AVE
22OO SKYLINE DR

4OO MARLYN DR

Stâtus

Unconfirmed

Pending

Unconfirmed

Unconfirmed

Unconfirmed

Unconfirmed

Unconfirmed

Unconfirmcd

Unconfirmed

Unconfirmed

Unconfirmed

Unconfirmed

Unconfirmed

Unconfirmed

Unconfirmed

Unconfirmed

Confirmed

Unconfìrmed

Unconfirmed

Unconfirmed

Unconfirmed

Unconfirmed

Confirmed

Unconfirmed

Unconfirmed

Unconfirmed

Unconfirmed

Unconfirmed

Unconfirmed

Unconfirmed

Attr¡buted
Site# Referr¡l Comments

2 r 3683

2t3689
2 l 3ó90

2 I 3695

213718

2t37t9
2t373t
2t3"135

213738

2t3740
2t3741

2t3742
2t3743
213747

2t3759
2t376t

Total:

2/t8/t3 9:36 2/18/13 0:00 NONE
2/19/13 t6:40 2tl9/13 t2:00 NONE
2120/13 8:52 2120/13 7:00 NONE
2/21/13 9:31 2l2l/13 9:30 NONE
2/25/13 7:47 2/25/13 'l:00 NONE
2/24/t3 18:42 2/24/t3 18:30 NONE
2/25/13 t7:52 2/25113 17:00 NONE
2/26/13 12:48 2/26/13 12:40 NONE
2/26/13 17:28 2/26113 9:00 NONE
2/26113 19:42 2126/13 19:00 NONE
2/26/13 20:22 2/26/13 20:00 BFI-TheRecyclery
2/27/13 8:44 2127/13 8:00 NONE
2/27/13 8:57 2127/13 8:40 NONE
2/27/13 9:33 2l27ll3 9:00 NONE
2/28/13 16:08 2l28ll3 15:00 NONE
2/28/13 19:05 2/28/13 19.00 BFt-TheRecyclery

30

3/t4t2013

*3
Milpitas Complaints 
Received by BAAQMD From 2/011201 to 02/2812013 

Attributed 
COITIQiaint# Received Occured Alleged Source Dcscrigtion General Location Status Site# Referral Comments 

213607 2/6/13 11:09 2/6113 11,00 International Disposal garbage 1300 ELKWOOD DR Unconfinned 
Corporation of Calif 

213619 2/8/13 7:49 2/8/13 7:30 NONE bad sewage 1500 PLAIT AVE Pending 

213627 211 0/13 18:41 2!JOJl 3 INO NONE sewage 1500 PLAIT AVE Unconfinned 

21364l 2il2/13 15:54 2/10113 15:54 NONE foul air 400 GEMMA DR Unconfinned 

213644 211 2!l J 17:46 211 2/13 IHO SFI - TIle RecycleI)' garbage 400 MARLYN DR Unconfinncd 

213645 2/12113 18:29 2!12!l3 18:29 Walmart garbage xxx xxxxxxx Unconfilmcd 

213651 2/13/13 11:43 2/13113 IUO SFI - The RL'CyclcIY compost 1000 CAMERON PLACE Unconfilmed 
213655 2!l 3!l 3 1730 2!l3/J 3 1630 NONE garbage/compost 2100 AGUILAR CT Unconfinned 
213656 2/1 3!l 3 18:47 2113/13 18: 15 San Jose/Santa Clara Water sewage [500 PLAIT AVE Unconfirmed 

Pollution Control 
213657 2/l 3!l 3 18:36 2/13/13 INO San Jose/Santa Clara Water scwage 1500 PLAIT AVE Unconfinned 

Pollution Control 
213658 2113/13 18,18 2!131l3 18: 15 San Jose/Santa Clara Watcr Horrible 2000 SKYLINE DR Unconfirmed 

Pollution Control 
213659 2/13/13 1931 2!l 3!l 3 19,00 SF! - The RecycleI)' garbage 1200 NORTH ABBOIT Unconfinned 
213660 2/13/13 20:21 2113113 20:21 BFI - TIle RecycleI)' garbage 100 BEAUMERE WAY Unconfirmed 
213661 2/13/1 3 1831 2!!3/13 0,00 San Jose/Santa Clara Water very bad xxx xxxxxxx Unconfinned 

Pollution Control 
213683 2/1811 3 9:36 2!! 8/13 0,00 NONE landfill 200 INDIAN HILL RD Unconfirmed 
213689 2/19/13 16:402/19113 INO NONE garbage 2100 AGUILAR CT Unconfinned 
213690 2i20/13 8:52 2/20/13 7,00 !'JONE garbagee 400 MARLYN DR Contirmed 
213695 2/21/13 9:31 2/21113 9:30 NONE bad xxx xxxxxxx Unconfinm .. 'tl 
213718 2/25/13 H7 2/25113 HO NONE compost 400 MARLYN DR Unconfinned 
213719 2/24/13 18:42 2/24113 18,30 NONE rotten eggs 400 ALVAREZ COMMON Unconfinned 
213731 2/25! 13 17:52 2/25113 17,00 NONE garbage 1000 VIDA LARGA LOOP Unconfirmed 
213735 2/26/13 12:48 2/26/13 INO NONE chemical 100 BEAU MERE WAY Unconfinned 
213738 2/26/! 3 17:28 2/26/13 9,00 NONE strong 800 CLARIDAD LOOP Confirmed 
213740 2/26/13 19:42 2/26113 19,00 NONE garbage 900 LUZ DEL SOL LOOP Unconfirmed 
213741 2/26113 20:22 2/26/13 20:00 BFI - The RecycleI)' garbage 200 SUMMERWIND DR Unconfinned 
213742 2/27/13 8A4 2127113 8,00 NONE bad compost 400 MARLYN DR Unconfinned 
213743 2/27/13 857 2/27113 8AO NONE strong xxx xxxxxxx Unconfinned 
213747 2i27/13 9:33 2/27113 9,00 NONE bad 1700 ROCKY MOUNTAIN AVE Unconfirmed 
213759 2/28/13 16:08 2/28/13 15,00 NONE bad 2200 SKYLINE DR Unconfinned 
213761 2/28/13 19:05 2/28113 19,00 BFI - TIle RecycleI)' bad 400 MARLYN DR Unconfirmed 

Total: 30 

3114120 l3 



BAAQMD Odor Complaint Locations (February 19 through March 18,2013) - Google Maps Page I of 4 

Go()gIe 

Gf~at MaW Pk"", • 
. ", . 
:;, 
¢-4 

I Get Google Maps on your phonl 

Text the word "GMAPS" to 466453 

Morr 

BAAQMD Odor Complaint Locations (February 19 through March 18,2013) 

Unlisted· 0 views 

https:llmaps.google.com/maps/ms?msid=20077707773 97792567 66.0004d7ff093dc840 1487b&msa=0&hl=... 3/18/2013 



*4CITY OF MILPITAs MAR I g 2013 

COMMISSIONfCOMMITTEEAPPLICATIOtll E C to ~ ~1 E D 

PROVIDE COMPLETEINI"OFlMATION (in black ink) 

br~MI"':4- \)ev<o( Vr)jI....t."~ 
COMIVJIS§loN APPLYIN.G FOR l' 

~Mr. 
o Mrs.fMs. 

Name: First 

laZb 
Number 

Middle last • 

Street (apt. # if needed), MilpltasCA 95035 

II1'\"'rk~'\:l (c 

lIo ' <J-3' 1lf:q 
B\lslness Telephone 

I 

,"'(;, vn:~{V62 
Occupation 

"/ {I"'''<NC/I'l 

sar v; 'c..e ' 

Education: If Youth Advisory Commission applicant, indicate yourgrade/school: ______ -,-________ _ 

College. Professional. Vocational, or other schools attended Maior Sublect Date Degree 

List community organizations to which you belongor have belonged (additional inlorm~tion maybe attached). Ifapplication is for 
Veterans Commission, Indicate branch and service' In any U.S. military organization (retired or active duty). 

D t ae N ameo If.Qamza l.on br fO . r ranc 0 II ary B h fMTt leer em er Offi 1M b 

I have sufficiimt Ume to d.6vote to thi.s responsibility"nd will attend the required meetings if I am appointed to fill a future vacancy. 
hereby certj~ tate~ts ontained in thO 'catlon are true. /. 

~ . '3/{~T"13 
lDala 

ApPOintments to Commi~sions ()r Committees are made by the Mayorwith the con. rrence of the City Council. Applications not 
acted upon will expire after· one vear from the date submitted unless renewed by the applicant. 

NOTE: ALL COMMISSION ApPLICATIONS ARE PUBLIC RECORD 
Mail, fax (586-3030), a-mail (mlavelle@ci.mllpltas.ca.gov)ordrop off your completed application to 

City Cieri<. 455 E. Cillaveras Blvd .. Milpitas, CA 95035 

C:\Oocuments and Settings\trneyercalve'rt.MILPITAS\Local Settings\Tempotsfy Internet Files\OLK63\Commisslon Appllcatlon_Dec 2009,doc 1210712009 

. 



y 152013 9:05PM MDFG Investments (408) 957-0872 p.l 

CltV Clerl('s O'ff/ce 

CITY OF MILPITAS MAR 182013 

COMMISSION/COMMITTEE APPLICATION R Ii:. C u::. U V Ii: III 
JiLt Comrnirh~ 

GOMMISSION APPLYING FOR 'It .. 
o Mr, . 

~€PI. 
Nemlil: Middle 

pro 
Street (apt. ~ ~ .o;(fod). Mllpftn C~ . Address: 

i/?ttW£f~ V~. am 
•. ma" .ddr~s ' T·eoneNumbe'I'l ... ' . ' 

S.L.O.r 

Education: Ifyov!b A~ldloryCarnml"lon applioent. Indl""'tII your 9rad"'00hool: em prWonionolCtlonal. or other ""hools sUend.. j]t su~ot Det. 

IF 
liar community o",onlZllllono to whloh you belong or hove belong"; (addillonalinformalion Imy be 81loched), I' .pplleetlon 10 for 
V.,.rone Comml.elon. Indloste bronoh ond "'IVico in .ny U.S. mll~.(y organization (retired 01 ,olive duly), 

Cote anlzatloo or Branch of Milifa 

f~~2i§ir~ ,~ ?t.k.;r Ad_"..<f:p, ..... "'t"",Jq" """n~~. 
I hova ou1llclont lime to devote·to this responsibility and will sUend the required meeting. if I.'T) .ppointed 10 fill' fulur. va .. noy,1f' u,.....~ 
ha",by ""rilly thol all ollie Ints oonlelned In Ihla applloatlon .r. true, 

/ 

3/if/eo13 
c.te 

AppointmenlslO Comml ... lonaor Comml" .... ore mode b~ the Moyor with tho ooncurrence 01 the .Clty CounciL Appltcatlon8 not 
acled upon will txplre after oO.Nr lrom Ihe dlII. submll1.d ""Its$ ... n.wlld by tho applicant. 

ll/.QIlii: ALI. COMMISSION APPUCATIONS ARE PI.ISLIC IIECORO 
Mall, felx (!See.scaO), e~m",11 {mla>ml!a@gi.mjlpgmgll gpyl or drcp off ycur cClmpleted spplioation to 

City Clerk, 465 E, C.I.voro. Blvd" Milpitas. CA 9S:n;5 

1210712009 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
COMMISSION/COMMITTEE APPLICATION 

PROVIDE COMPLETE INFORMA TlON (in black ink) 

D Mr. 

D Mrs.IMs.lMiss 

¥f ~itll~~~ Name: 

Address: 

Otf: 
Telephone Number s) 

~A~ 

Middle 

City Clerk's mfiee 
MAR - 8 2013 

REcm::~VeD 

Present Employer Business Telephone 

Business Address Occupation 

Education: If Youth Advisory Commission applicant, indicate your grade/school: _______________ _ 

De ree 

·~istc6mlT1unifybrganizationsto which you belong or have belonged (additional infonmation maybe attached). If application is for 
Veterans Commission, indicate branch and service in any U.S. military organization (retired or active duty). 

Date Name of Organization or Bran.ch of Military' Officer I Member 

Briefly describe the personal qualifications you possess which you believe would be an asset (additional information maybe attached): 

I have sufficient time to devote to this responsibility and will attend the required meetings if I am appointed to fill a future vacancy. 
hereby certify th tall statemen s contained in this application are true. 

t I Date 

Appointments to Commissions or Committees are made by the Mayor with the concurrence of the City Council. Applications not 
acted upon will expire after one year from the date submitted unless renewed by the applicant. 

NOTE: ALL COMMISSION APPLICA TIONS ARE PUBLIC RECORD 

Fax (586-3030), e-mail (mlavelle@cLmilpitas.ca.gov), mail or drop off your completed application to: 

City Clerk, 455 E. Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas, CA 95035 

J:\On!ine and other Forms\Commission Related Forms\Commission Application_Sept 2011.doc 09/2012011 



City Cleri{is Office 
MAR _. 3 2013 CITY OF MILPITAS 

RECeH¥ED 
COMMISSION/COMMITTEE APPLICATION. f:\ 

S i ~-f:::er- C)t ie.d.-!.~JMM'Ss;c>.I1 
PRJVIDE COMPLETEINFORMA TlON (in black ink) 

lJZl Mr. 

D Mrs./Ms.lMiss 

Name: ~ First 
!JArRleK 

Address: Number 

(fog ) (Jl~ -81J8 L 
Telephone Number(s), 

!?/;YT/KE]) 
Present Employer 

Business Address 

COMMISSION APPLYING FOR ... 

:: Ii/V( 0 IL- /fbV1StPf '/ 

Middle Last 

Street (apt. # if needed) City & Zip Code 

Business Telephone 

Occupation 

Education: If Youth Advisory Commission applicant, indicate your grade/school: ___________ ----

College, Professional, Vocationa , or other schools: attended Maior Subiect D ate Deqree 

!30IJ-2AIA c!;VI'l/ilGsrfj . !iJv &/11/ ;;;;I!I ,.vk /7+ 15'.6, 
. 

List community organizations to which you belong or have belonged (additional information may be attached): If application is for 
Veterans Commission, indicate branch and service in any U.S. military organization (retired or active duty). 

Date Name of Oraanization or ranch of Mi Itarv B r Offi Icef I M b em er 

i$- £X - #1£e'/ CtlAJ6- CONI115Slo!V 

Briefly describe the personal qualifications you possess which you believe would be an asset (additional information may be attached): 

I have sufficient time to devote to this responsibility and will attend the required meetings if I am appointed to fill a future vacancy. 
hereby certify that all statements contained in this application are true . 

. 7 igt13tUe ~ , Date 

Appointments to Commissions or Committees are made by the Mayor with the concurrence of the City Council. Applications not 
acted upon will expire after one year from the date submitted unless renewed by the applicant. 

NOTE: ALL COMMISS/ON APPLICA nONS ARE PUBLIC RECORD 

Fax (586-3030), e-mail (mlavelie@cLmilpitas.ca.gov), mail or drop off your completed application to: 

City Clerk, 455 E Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas, CA 95035 

J:\Online and other Forms\Commission Related Forms\Commission Application_Sept 2011.doc 09/20/2011 



City Clark's Office CITY OF MILPITAS 
COMMISSION/COMMITTEE APPLICATION OCT - 4 l012 

PROVIDE COMPLETE INFORMATION (in black ink) 

L1M'. 
0 MrsJMs. \<WOI 
Name: First 

401\ 
Address: Number 

Telephone Number(s) 

Present Employer 

Address 

\k 
Middle Last 

Street (apt. # if needed), Milpitas CA 95035 

e-mail address 

Business Telephone 

Occupation 

Education: If Youth Advisorv Commission applicant, indicate your grade/school: _______________ _ 

College Professional, Vocational, or other schools attended Major Subject Date Degree 

Sc VI :\0>1:.- >.6\-(.. \)1!\'v<m'.(\.,{ Q,\'Ylj) v't«- ~'wtCt> <;/2cil7. \?'.S. , 

List community organizations to which you belong or have belonged (additional information may be attached). If application is for 
Veterans Commission, indicate branch and service in any U.S. military organization (retired or active duty). 

D t ae N ame of Organization or ranc of Iltary B h Ml Icer em er Offi 1M b 

Briefly describe the personal qualifications you possess which you believe would be an asset (additional information may be attached): 

1:. &\ (; . (\') '2>\- '2.<:.<:>' 'Mi ::r: \\ \f~ 
\M~\" id 

20 \I're;.., . 

I have sufficient time to devote to this responsibility and will attend the required meetings if I am appOinted to fill a future vacancy. 
hereby certify that all statements contained in this application are true. 

7 Signature Date 

ApPOintments to Commissions or Committees are made by the Mayor with the concurrence of the City Council. Applications not 
acted upon will expire after one vear from the date submitted unless renewed by the applicant, 

NOTE: ALL COMMISSION APPLICA TlONS ARE PUBLIC RECORD 
Mail, fax (586-3030), e-mail (mlavelle@cLmilpitas.ca.gov) or drop off your completed application to 

City Clerk, 455 E. Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas, CA 95035 

C:\Oocuments and Seffings\tmeyercalvert.MILPITAS\Local Settings\Temporary Internet FUes\OLK63\Commission Application_Dec 2009.doc 1210712009 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  1 

     
                          

 

MILPITAS  
Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) 

 
 

 
 
 

8/13/12 
               
 
Sean Simonson 
Milpitas Office of Emergency Services 
ssimonson@ci.milpitas.ca.gov 
408-586-2810

5

mailto:ssimonson@ci.milpitas.ca.gov


City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  2 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS  
 

PART ONE - GENERAL INFORMATION 
The Plan ...................................................................................................................................................  3  
Purpose, Objectives, Goals, Assumptions  ..............................................................................................  4 
Concept of Operations  ............................................................................................................................  5 
Emergency Management Organization & Responsibilities .......................................................................  8 
SEMS and NIMS ......................................................................................................................................  8 
Mutual Aid .................................................................................................................................................  11 
Volunteer Resources ................................................................................................................................  13 
MILPITAS Emergency Operations Center (EOC) ....................................................................................  15 
EOC Position Descriptions and Responsibilities ......................................................................................  21  

Emergency Proclamations........................................................................................................................  22 
Continuity of Government .........................................................................................................................  22 
 

PART TWO - THREAT SUMMARY AND ASSESSMENTS 
General .....................................................................................................................................................  25 
Potential Hazards and Threats Summary.................................................................................................  26 
Threat Assessment 1: Earthquake ...........................................................................................................  27 
Threat Assessment 2: Flood ....................................................................................................................  31 
Threat Assessment 3: Wildland Fire ........................................................................................................  33 
Threat Assessment 4: Tsunami ...............................................................................................................  34 

Threat Assessment 5: Landslide ..............................................................................................................  35 
Threat Assessment 6: Public Health Crisis  .............................................................................................  36 
Threat Assessment 7: Hazardous Materials Incident  ..............................................................................  37 
Threat Assessment 8: Transportation Accident  ......................................................................................  38 
Threat Assessment 9: Energy Disruption .................................................................................................  40 
Threat Assessment 10: Radiological Incident ..........................................................................................  41 
Threat Assessment 11: Terrorism  ...........................................................................................................  42 
Threat Assessment 12: Civil Disturbance ................................................................................................  44 
Threat Assessment 13: National Security Emergency .............................................................................  45 
 

PART THREE –REFERENCES AND ACRONYMS 
Operational Area Annexes .......................................................................................................................  46 
Authorities and References ......................................................................................................................  46 
Acronyms ..................................................................................................................................................  49 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  3 

PART ONE 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
  
THE PLAN 
 
The MILPITAS Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) addresses the planned response to extraordinary 
emergency situations associated with disasters affecting MILPITAS. The plan also addresses 
integration and coordination with other governmental agencies when required.  This plan is not 
intended to address the normal day-to-day emergency or well-established emergency procedures. 
 
This plan accomplishes the following:  
 
 Establishes the emergency management organization required to mitigate any significant 

emergency or disaster affecting MILPITAS 
 Establishes the overall operational concepts associated with MILPITAS‟ Emergency Operations 

Center (EOC) activities and the recovery process  
 
This plan is based on the functions and principles of the California Standardized Emergency 
Management System (SEMS), the National Incident Management System (NIMS), and the California 
Incident Command System (ICS). It identifies how the MILPITAS emergency operational system fits 
into the overall California and National risk-based, all-hazard emergency response and recovery 
operations plan.   
 
This document serves as a planning reference and as a basis for effective response to any hazard 
that threatens MILPITAS.  Departments within MILPITAS and other agencies that have roles and 
responsibilities identified by this plan are encouraged to develop plans, detailed Standard Operating 
Procedures (SOPs), and emergency response checklists based on the provisions of this plan.   
 
This document serves as the legal and conceptual framework for emergency management in 
MILPITAS and is divided into the following parts: 
 
Part 1 – General Information 
The "basic plan" which describes the emergency management organization, its roles, responsibilities, 
and operational concepts 
 
Part 2 – Threat Summaries and Assessments 
A general description of MILPITAS and a brief analysis of how hazards might affect the City. 
 
Part 3 – References 
EOP Annexes, Authorities and References, Acronyms  
 
 
 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  4 

Emergency Operations Plan Requirements 
 
The MILPITAS EOP requires approval by MILPITAS City Council. The City Council is responsible for 
its periodic review, updates, re-publishing and re-distribution. Records of revision to this plan will be 
maintained by Sean Simonson in the MILPITAS Office of Emergency Services.   The plan may be 
modified as a result of post-incident analyses and/or post-exercise critiques.  It may be modified if 
responsibilities, procedures, laws, rules, or regulations pertaining to emergency management and 
operations change. Those agencies or departments having assigned responsibilities under this plan 
are obligated to inform MILPITAS when changes need to be made.  
 
MILPITAS agencies and organizations may separately publish documents that support this EOP.  

 
 
 
PURPOSE/OBJECTIVES/GOALS/ASSUMPTIONS 
 
Purpose  
 
This EOP establishes policies and procedures and assigns responsibilities to ensure the effective 
management of emergency operations within MILPITAS. It provides information on MILPITAS 
emergency management structure and how and when the EOC staff is activated. 
 
 
Objectives 
 
The overall objective of emergency management is to ensure the effective management of response 
forces and resources in preparing for and responding to situations associated with natural disasters, 
technological incidents and national security emergencies.  To carry out its responsibilities, the 
emergency management organization will accomplish the following objectives during a 
disaster/emergency: 
 
 Maintain overall coordination of emergency response and recovery operations, including on-scene 

incident management as required 
 
 Coordinate and liaise with appropriate other local government agencies, as well as applicable 

segments of private sector entities and volunteer agencies 
 
 Establish priorities and resolve conflicting demands for support 
 
 Prepare and disseminate emergency public information to alert, warn, and inform the public 
 
 Disseminate damage information and other essential data 
 
 
Goals 
 
 Provide effective life safety measures and reduce property loss and damage to the environment 
 
 Provide for the rapid resumption of impacted businesses and community services 
 
 Provide accurate documentation and records required for cost recovery efforts 
 
 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  5 

Assumptions 
 

 MILPITAS is primarily responsible for emergency actions and will commit all available resources 
to save lives, minimize injury to persons, and minimize damage to property and the environment 

 
 MILPITAS will utilize SEMS and NIMS in emergency response and management operations 
 
 The Milpitas Office of Emergency Services will coordinate MILPITAS disaster response in 

conformance with its Emergency Organization and Functions. 
 
 The resources of MILPITAS will be made available to local agencies and citizens to cope with 

disasters affecting this area 
 
 MILPITAS will commit its resources to a reasonable degree before requesting mutual aid 

assistance 
 
 Mutual aid assistance will be requested when disaster relief requirements exceed MILPITAS‟s  

ability to meet them 
 
 
 
CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS       
 
The emergency management organization in MILPITAS will identify potential threats to life, property 
and the environment, and develop plans and procedures to protect those assets.  These plans and 
procedures will direct emergency response and recovery activities and will be validated by the 
conduct of actual response or exercising.  The goal is to maintain a robust emergency management 
organization with strong collaborative ties with other local government, community-based 
organizations and volunteers, public service agencies, and the private sector under SEMS/NIMS.   
 
Actions are often categorized by four emergency management phases indicated below.  However, 
not every disaster necessarily includes all indicated phases. 
 
1. Preparedness Phase 
 
The preparedness phase involves activities taken in advance of an emergency.  These activities 
develop operational capabilities and effective responses to a disaster.  Preventative actions might 
include mitigation activities, emergency/disaster planning, training, exercises and public education.  
Members of the emergency management organization should prepare Standard Operating 
Procedures (SOPs), Emergency Operating Procedures (EOPs), and checklists detailing personnel 
assignments, policies, notification rosters, and resource lists.  Personnel should be acquainted with 
these SOPs, EOPs and checklists through periodic training in the activation and execution 
procedures. 
 

Training and Exercising 
MILPITAS will inform its departments of training opportunities associated with emergency 
management. Those with responsibilities under this plan must ensure their personnel are properly 
trained to carry out these responsibilities. 
 
The best method of training emergency responders is through exercises.  Exercises allow 
emergency responders to become familiar with the procedures, facilities and systems that they 
will actually use in emergency situations.  
 
Exercises will be conducted on a regular basis to maintain readiness.  Exercises should include 
MILPITAS EOC Staff and City Council.  MILPITAS will document exercises by conducting a 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  6 

critique, and using the information obtained from the critique to complete an After Action Report 
(AAR) and to develop a Corrective Action Plan (CAP) plan, revising standard operating 
procedures as necessary. 

 
 
2. Response Phase 

 
Pre-Emergency       
When a disaster is inevitable, actions are precautionary and emphasize protection of life.  Typical 
responses might be: 
 
 Alerting necessary agencies, placing critical resources and personnel on stand-by 
 
 Evacuation of threatened populations to safe areas 
 
 Advising threatened populations of the emergency and apprising them of safety measures to 

be implemented 
 
 Identifying the need for mutual aid 
 
 Proclamation of a Local Emergency by local authorities 

 
Emergency Response 
During this phase, emphasis is placed on saving lives and property, control of the situation and 
minimizing effects of the disaster.  Immediate response is accomplished within the affected area 
by local government agencies and segments of the private sector. 

 
Sustained Emergency 
In addition to continuing life and property protection operations, mass care, relocation, public 
information, situation analysis, status and damage assessment operations will be initiated.  

 
 
3. Recovery Phase 
 
At the onset of an emergency, actions are taken to enhance the effectiveness of recovery operations.  
Recovery is both short-term activities intended to return vital life-support systems to operation, and 
long-term activities designed to return infrastructure systems to pre-disaster conditions.  Recovery 
also includes cost recovery activities. 
 
The recovery period has major objectives which may overlap, including: 
 

 Reinstatement of family and individuals‟ autonomy 
 

 Provision of essential public services 
 

 Permanent restoration of private and public property 
 

 Identification of residual hazards 
 

 Plans to mitigate future hazards 
 

 Recovery of costs associated with response and recovery efforts 
 

 Coordination of state and federal, private and public assistance 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  7 

 
 
As the immediate threat to life, property and the environment subsides, the rebuilding of MILPITAS 
will begin through various recovery activities.  Recovery activities involve the restoration of services to 
the public and rebuilding the affected area(s).  Examples of recovery activities include: 
 

 Restoring all utilities 
 

 Establishing and staffing Local Assistance Centers and Disaster Assistance Centers 
 

 Applying for appropriate assistance programs 
 

 Conducting hazard mitigation analysis 
 

 Identifying residual hazards 
 

 Determining recovery costs associated with response and recovery 
 
 
4.  Prevention/Mitigation Phase 
 
Preventing damage and losses from disaster includes those efforts known as mitigation activities. 
Mitigation efforts occur both before and following disastrous events.  Post-disaster mitigation is part of 
the recovery process. Preventing, eliminating or reducing the impact of hazards that exist within 
MILPITAS and are a threat to life and property are part of the mitigation efforts.  Mitigation tools 
include: 
 

 Local ordinances and statutes (zoning ordinance, building codes and enforcement, etc.) 
 

 Structural measures 
 

 Tax levee  
 
 Public information and community relations 

 
 Land use planning 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  8 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION & RESPONSIBILITIES  
 
MILPITAS –City Manager  
 
The City Manager is supported by MILPITAS and has overall responsibility for the following: 
 

 Organizing, staffing and operating the EOC 
 
 Operating communications and warning systems 
 
 Providing information and guidance to the public and elected officials 
 
 Maintaining information on the status of resources, services, and operations 
 
 Directing overall operations 
 
 Identifying and analyzing potential hazards and recommending appropriate counter-measures 
 
 Collecting, evaluating and disseminating damage assessment and other essential information 

 
MILPITAS Disaster Council (City Council)  
 
The MILPITAS Disaster Council reviews, evaluates, and communicates decisions on all matters 
pertaining to disaster preparedness. The Council is responsible for the following: 
 

 Review and evaluate disaster preparedness progress in the public and private sectors. 
 Promote disaster preparedness through communication and education 
 Harness the power of every resident through education and outreach, training, and volunteer 

service to make their families, homes and communities safer from natural and/or man-made 
disasters or emergencies 

 
Santa Clara County Operational Area Emergency Management 
 
When a disaster occurs and two or more of the county‟s local jurisdictions‟ EOCs (or at the request of 
one local jurisdiction) within the Santa Clara County Operational Area (OA) are activated, the 
Operational Area EOC serves as the focal point for information transfer and supports requests by 
cities such as MILPITAS.   
 
 
 
 
SEMS and NIMS 
 
Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) 
 
After the 1991 Oakland East Bay Hills Fire, State Senator Petris passed the Senate Bill 1841 
(SB1841) introducing the Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS).  Since 1994 SEMS 
has been required by Government Code Section 8607(a) for managing response to multi-agency and 
multi-jurisdiction emergencies in California.  SEMS consists of five organizational levels that are 
activated as necessary: field response, local government, operational area, regional and state. 
 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  9 

SEMS has been used throughout the State of California to manage and coordinate any emergency 
response involving more than one agency or jurisdiction. Local governments must use SEMS to be 
eligible for reimbursement of their personnel-related costs under state disaster assistance programs. 
A local government under SEMS is a county, city/town, or special district.  Special districts under 
SEMS are units of local government with authority or responsibility to own, operate or maintain a 
project (as defined in California Code of Regulations 2900(s) for purposes of natural disaster 
assistance).  This may include joint powers authority established under Section 6500 et seq. of the 
Code. 
 
Cities are responsible for emergency response within their boundaries, although some cities contract 
for some municipal services from other agencies.   
 
Special districts are primarily responsible during emergencies for restoration of services that they 
normally provide.  They may also be responsible for safety of people at their facilities or on their 
property and for warning of hazards from their facilities or operations.   
 
All local governments are responsible for coordinating with other local governments, the field 
response level and the operational area.  Local governments are also responsible for providing 
mutual aid within their capabilities. 
 
 
National Incident Management System (NIMS) 

 
In response to the September 11th 2001 attacks on the World Trade Center in New York City, the 
Pentagon and Flight 93, President Bush issued Homeland Security Presidential Directive-5 (HSPD-5).   
Released on February 28, 2003, HSPD-5 directed the Secretary of the Office of Homeland Security 
(OHS) to develop and administer a National Incident Management System (NIMS).  NIMS includes 
the following components: 
 

 Command and Management, including the Incident Command System (ICS) 
 
 Communications and Information Management 
 
 Preparedness 
 
 Resource Management 
 
 Supporting Technologies 
 
 Joint Information System (JIS) 
 
 NIMS Management and Maintenance 

 
Relationship to SEMS and NIMS: 
 
MILPITAS is responsible for emergency response within its geographical boundaries. 
 
Under SEMS and NIMS, MILPITAS has responsibilities at two levels: The Field Response and the 
Local Government level.   
 
At the field response level, all agencies will use the Incident Command System (ICS) to standardize 
the emergency response.   
 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  10 

At the MILPITAS level, the designated EOC is used as the central location for gathering and 
disseminating information, coordinating all jurisdictional emergency operations, and coordinating with 
the Santa Clara County Office of Emergency Services (OES) and the Santa Clara County Operational 
Area EOC level during events outside the scope of MILPITAS.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Organization Flexibility – Modular Organization 
 
The five essential ICS functions in SEMS and NIMS are identified as “sections” in the EOC.  All other 
functions are organized as branches, groups or units within these sections.  Only functional elements 
that are required to meet current objectives will be activated.   
 
Management of Personnel - Hierarchy of Command and Span-of-Control 
 
Management of personnel within the EOC will be accomplished through the assignment of Section 
Chiefs for Operations, Planning/Intelligence, Logistics, and Finance/Administration functions.  Section 
Chiefs will report to the EOC Director  
 
Multi-Agency or Inter-Agency Coordination 
 
Multi-agency or inter-agency coordination is important for establishing priorities for response and 
allocating critical resources.  Strategies for handling multi-agency response problems need to be 
developed while jurisdictional and agencies‟ objectives are not compromised. MILPITAS departments, 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  11 

agencies and possibly affiliated special districts, volunteer agencies and private organizations 
coordinate emergency response at the EOC. 
 
EOC Action Plans 
 
At local, operational area, regional and state levels, the use of EOC action plans provide designated 
personnel with knowledge of the objectives to be attained and the steps required for achievement.  
Action plans give direction and provide a basis for measuring achievement of objectives and overall 
system performance.  
 
Special District Involvement 
 
Special districts are defined as local governments in SEMS/NIMS.  The emergency response role of 
special districts is generally focused on the return to normal services.  During disasters, some types 
of special districts may be more extensively involved in the emergency response by assisting other 
local governments when the disaster extends beyond MILPITAS.  
 
Coordination and communications should be established among special districts that are involved in 
emergency response, other local governments and the operational area.   This may be accomplished 
in various ways depending on the local situation.  Relationships among special districts, cities/towns, 
county government and the OA are complicated by overlapping boundaries and by the multiplicity of 
special districts.  Special districts need to work with the local governments, as in MILPITAS, in their 
service areas to determine how best to establish coordination and communication in emergencies. 
 
When a special district is wholly contained within the City, the special district should have a liaison at 
the city/town EOC to provide direct support.   An exception may occur when there are many special 
districts within the city/town 
 
When there are many special districts within a city/town, it may not be feasible for their EOC to 
accommodate representatives from all special districts during area-wide disasters.  In such cases, the 
city/town should work with the special districts to develop alternate ways of establishing coordination 
and communication.  
 
 
MUTUAL AID 
 
Introduction 
 
The foundation of California's emergency planning and response is a statewide mutual aid system 
which is designed to ensure adequate resources, facilities and other support is provided to 
jurisdictions whenever their own resources prove to be inadequate to cope with given situation(s).  
The basis for the system is the California Disaster and Civil Defense Master Mutual Aid Agreement, 
as provided in the California Emergency Services Act.  This Agreement was developed in 1950 and 
has been adopted by the state, all 58 counties and most incorporated cities in the State of California.  
The Master Mutual Aid Agreement creates a formal structure wherein each jurisdiction retains control 
of its own facilities, personnel and resources, but may also receive or render assistance to other 
jurisdictions within the state.  State government is obligated to provide available resources to assist 
local jurisdictions in emergencies.  It is the responsibility of the local jurisdiction to negotiate, 
coordinate and prepare mutual aid agreements. 
 
Mutual aid agreements exist in: 
 
 Law Enforcement  
 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  12 

 Fire Services  
 
 Medical 
 
 Public Health  
 
 Emergency Managers  
 
 Hazardous Materials 
 
 Public Utilities 
 
 Engineers 
 
 Coroner, and others 
 
 
Mutual Aid System  
 
A statewide mutual aid system, operating within the framework of the Master Mutual Aid Agreement, 
allows for the progressive mobilization of resources to and from emergency response agencies, local 
governments, operational areas, regions and state with the intent to provide requesting agencies with 
adequate resources.  
 
The statewide mutual aid system includes several discipline-specific mutual aid systems, such as fire 
and rescue, law, medical and public works.  The adoption of SEMS does not alter existing mutual aid 
systems.  These systems work through local government, operational area, regional and state levels 
consistent with SEMS/NIMS and the Incident Command System (ICS). Mutual aid may also be 
obtained from other states.  Interstate mutual aid may be obtained through direct state-to-state 
contacts, pursuant to interstate agreements and compacts, or may be coordinated through federal 
agencies. 
 
Mutual Aid Coordinators 
 
To facilitate mutual aid, discipline-specific mutual aid systems work through designated mutual aid 
coordinators at the operational area, regional and state levels.  The basic role of a mutual aid 
coordinator is to receive mutual aid requests, coordinate the provision of resources from within the 
coordinator's geographic area of responsibility and pass on unfilled requests to the next level. 
 
Mutual aid requests that do not fall into one of the discipline-specific mutual aid systems are handled 
through the emergency services mutual aid system by emergency management staff at the local 
government, operational area, regional and state levels.  
 
Mutual aid coordinators may function from an EOC, their normal departmental location or other 
locations depending on the circumstances.  Some incidents require mutual aid but do not necessitate 
activation of the affected local government or operational area EOCs because of the incident's limited 
impacts.  In such cases, mutual aid coordinators typically handle requests from their normal work 
location.  When EOCs are activated, all activated discipline-specific mutual aid systems should 
establish coordination and communications with the EOCs as follows: 
 
 
Volunteer and Private Agencies in Mutual Aid 
 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  13 

Volunteer and private agencies may participate in the mutual aid system along with governmental 
agencies.  For example, the disaster medical mutual aid system relies heavily on private sector 
involvement for medical/health resources.  Some volunteer agencies such as the American Red 
Cross, Salvation Army and others are an essential element of the statewide emergency response to 
meet the needs of disaster victims.  Volunteer agencies mobilize volunteers and other resources 
through their own systems.  They also may identify resource needs that are not met within their own 
systems that would be requested through the mutual aid system.  Volunteer agencies with extensive 
involvement in the emergency response should be represented in EOCs. 
 
Some private agencies have established mutual aid arrangements to assist other private agencies 
within their functional area.  For example, electric and gas utilities have mutual aid agreements within 
their industry and established procedures for coordinating with governmental EOCs. In some 
functional areas, services are provided by a mix of special district, municipal and private agencies.  
Mutual aid arrangements may include both governmental and private agencies. 
 
A liaison should be established between activated EOCs and private agencies involved in a response.  
Where there is a need for extensive coordination and information exchange, private agencies should 
be represented in activated EOCs at the appropriate SEMS level. 
 
 Number and type of personnel needed 
 Type and amount of equipment needed 
 Reporting time and location 
 To whom forces should report 
 Access routes 
 Estimated duration of operations 
 Risks and hazards 
 
 
 
VOLUNTEER RESOURCES 
 
In response to disaster, management of resources requires integration of material, as well as 
personnel, into the existing Emergency Management System of MILPITAS.   Volunteer groups trained 
in emergency response can greatly enhance and supplement emergency response personnel. Jobs 
for all personnel assigned to emergency response must be trained, equipped, and aligned with a 
qualified organization. Spontaneous volunteers, when trained and managed appropriately, can 
provide valuable resources to the community.  
   
Radio Amateur Civil Emergency Service (RACES/ACS) 
 
RACES  
RACES (Radio Amateur Civil Emergency Services) is made up of FCC licensed Amateur Radio 
Operators who have volunteered their services and equipment for use in times of emergency to 
support civil defense activities.  RACES is supported by the Federal Emergency Management Agency 
(FEMA).  When a governmental entity (such as the City of Milpitas or Santa Clara County) requests 
amateur radio assistance, the response is through RACES. This is because governmental activation 
alters several aspects of disaster-response funding, including insurance coverage.  RACES operators 
are covered in California by Disaster Service Worker (DSW) insurance--this is a type of Worker's 
Compensation.  All RACES operators are registered as Disaster Service Workers by the City of 
Milpitas. 

RACES operators using pre-positioned communications equipment at the Main EOC, or Alternate 
EOC, can provide a backup communications capability when city resources are overloaded during an 
emergency.  Police, fire, and public works radio frequencies are usually saturated with tactical or 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  14 

operational traffic in emergencies.  RACES personnel and frequencies can be used to provide an 
administrative frequency for use in coordination of the relief effort and to provide a backup to other 
city communications channels.   RACES personal can thus free up public-safety officers and other 
city employees for other more pressing duties. 

RACES operators using their own personal radios can also be positioned at locations throughout the 
city, such as with SAFE Teams (CERT) or care shelters, to provide additional situational awareness 
for the EOC staff. 
 
 
Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) 
Following a major disaster, first responders who provide fire and medical services will not be able to 
meet the demand for these services.  Factors as number of victims, communication failures, and road 
blockages will prevent people from accessing emergency services they have come to expect at a 
moment‟s notice through 911. The CERT program in MILPITAS presents citizens training with the 
facts about what to expect following a major disaster and also in life saving skills with emphasis on 
decision-making skills and rescuer safety.  It organizes teams so that certified CERT members are an 
extension of first responder services offering immediate help to victims until professional services 
arrive.    
 
CERT includes education topics such as earthquake survival, fire prevention and suppression, search 
and rescue, disaster first aid, and general emergency preparedness.  CERT courses and information 
on organizing neighborhood teams is available at MILPITAS public building and online at 
www.ci.milpitas.ca.gov. 
 

 
Other MILPITAS Volunteers 
 
There are additional volunteer groups who contribute significantly during both disaster and non-
disaster times. Volunteers may be called upon for their specialized training and professional skills in 
the following areas: 
 

 Fire Explorers 
 

 Police Explorers 
 

 Citizen Volunteers 
 

 Spontaneous Unaffiliated Volunteers 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  15 

MILPITAS EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER (EOC) 
 
Introduction 
 
Day-to-day operations are conducted from departments and agencies that are widely dispersed 
throughout MILPITAS.  An EOC is a location from which centralized emergency management can be 
performed during a major emergency or disaster. This facilitates a coordinated response by the 
Coordinator of Emergency Services and Emergency Management Staff. The level of EOC staffing will 
vary with the specific emergency situation. 
 
An EOC provides a central location of authority and information. It allows for face-to-face coordination 
among personnel who must make emergency decisions.  The following functions are performed in 
the MILPITAS EOC: 
 
 Managing and coordinating emergency operations 
 
 Receiving and disseminating warning information 
 
 Developing emergency policies and procedures 
 
 Collecting intelligence from, and disseminating information to, the various EOC 

representatives, and, as appropriate, to county, other cities/towns, special districts, and 
political representatives 

 
 Preparing intelligence/information summaries, situation reports, operational reports, and other 

reports as required 
 
 Maintaining general and specific maps, information display boards, and other data pertaining 

to emergency operations 
 
 Continuing analysis and evaluation of all data pertaining to emergency operations 
 
 Directing, controlling and coordinating, within established policy, the operational and logistical 

support of MILPITAS resources committed to the emergency 
 
 Maintaining contact and coordination with support to other local government  EOCs and the 

Santa Clara County Operational Area EOC 
 
 Providing emergency information and instructions to the public, making official releases to the 

news media and the scheduling of press conferences as necessary 
 
EOC Location and Description 
 
The MILPITAS EOC is located at the Milpitas Police Department (1275 North Milpitas Boulevard)    
 
The EOC is well supplied and serves as a place for the collection and dissemination of information.  
Staffing pattern is SEMS based, and operational periods are determined during the initial stages of an 
event.    
 
 
Alternate EOC Location and Description 
 
The MILPITAS Alternate EOC is located at Milpitas Fire Station #1 (777 North Main Street) in the 
Training Room.    
 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  16 

The Alternate EOC is well supplied and also serves as a place for the collection and dissemination of 
information.  Staffing pattern are, as well, SEMS based and operational periods are determined 
during the initial stages of an event.    
 
 
When to Activate the EOC: 
 
The EOC can be activated when deemed necessary by the Activation Personnel listed below.  This 
can be for events as simple as a festival or as complex as an earthquake.   
 
Who Can Activate the EOC: 
 
The following individuals, either acting as the EOC Director or on behalf of the EOC Director, or their 
appointed representatives are authorized to activate the EOC: 
 

 City Manager 
 Police Chief 
 Fire Chief 

 
How to Activate the EOC: 
 
 Contact the MILPITAS  Police/Fire Dispatch 

 Communicate the purpose of the activation 

 Respond to the EOC 

 Direct dispatch to notify all EOC participant of the activation 

 Verify participants response to the EOC 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  17 

 

 

 
MILPITAS EOC Activation Levels Examples  

 
Trigger Event/Situation 

 
Activation 

Level 

 
Staffing 

 
Activities 

 
Severe Weather Watch 

 
Stand-By 

 
None 
Limited to office or other 
location. 

 
None 
EOC is configured;   
All systems ready. 

 
Severe Weather or Tsunami Warning 

 
Minimal 

 
EOC Director 
EOC Coordinator 
Liaison Officer 
PIO and Deputy PIO 
Section Chiefs 
Law, Fire, Personnel, 
Supply, Communications, IT 
Support 

 
Situation analysis 
Public Information 
Response coordination 
Resource coordination 
Liaison  
Logistics support 
Financial support 

 
Significant incidents involving two or 
more cities 
 
Earthquake Advisory Level I  
 

 
Severe Weather or Tsunami Warning 

 
Partial 

 
All Minimal Level staff plus: 
 
Branches and Units as 
appropriate to situation 
 
Liaison/Agency reps as 
appropriate 
 

 
Situation analysis 
Public Information 
Response coordination 
Resource coordination 
Liaison  
Logistics support 
Financial support 

 
Earthquake with substantial damage 
reported 
 
Earthquake Advisory Level II or III 
 
Major wind or rain storm with damage 
 
Two or more large incidents involving 
two or more cities 
 
Wildfire affecting developed area 
 
Major scheduled event 
 
Incident involving large-scale or 
possible large-scale evacuations 
 
Major city or regional emergency - 
multiple areas with heavy resource 
involvement 

 
Full 

 
All positions 
 
Liaison/Agency reps as 
Appropriate 

 
Situation analysis 
Response coordination 
Resource coordination 
Logistics support 
Public Information 
 
Sustained Operations 

 
Earthquake with severe damage 

 
Status Boards  
 
Because the EOC‟s major purpose is accumulating and sharing information to ensure coordinated 
and timely emergency response, status boards for tracking emergency activities will be made 
available for use in both the primary and alternate EOCs.  All EOC sections must maintain display 
devices so that other sections can quickly comprehend what actions have been taken, what 
resources are available, and to track damage in MILPITAS. The Planning/Intelligence Section is 
responsible for coordinating the display of information.  All display charts, boards, and materials are 
stored in the EOC. 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  18 

 
At the onset of any disaster, a log will also be compiled for the duration of the emergency situation.  
Key disaster related information will be recorded in the log; e.g., casualty information, health 
concerns, property damage, fire status, size of risk area, scope of the hazard to the public, number of 
evacuees, etc.  The posting of the log is the responsibility of the Planning/Intelligence Section staff. 
 
 
Communications 
 
Communications are provided for in the EOC by the Logistics Section.  
  
 
EOC Coordination with Volunteer and Private Agencies 
 
Local jurisdictions‟ EOCs will generally be a focal point for coordination of response activities with 
many non-governmental agencies and should establish communication with private and volunteer 
agencies providing services within their jurisdiction.  
 
Agencies that play key roles in the response should have representatives in the EOC.  If an agency 
supports several functions and has only one representative in the EOC, the agency representative 
should be located in the liaison area.  If an agency is supporting one function only, its representative 
may be located with that functional element.  Some agencies may have several personnel 
participating in functional elements in the EOC.  For example, American Red Cross (ARC) personnel 
may be part of the staffing for the Care and Shelter element of the EOC. 
 
During large events, agencies that have countywide response roles and cannot respond to numerous 
local jurisdictions‟ EOCs should be represented at the OA level. 
 
Coordination with volunteer and private agencies that do not have representatives at the EOC may be 
accomplished through telecommunications, liaison with community councils that represent several 
agencies or involvement of agencies in special multi-agency groups on specific issues. 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  19 

 
 
Coordination Links 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Emergency Operations Center (EOC) Management Structure 
 
SEMS regulations require local governments to provide five functions: management, operations, 
planning/intelligence, logistics and finance/administration.  These functions are the basis for 
structuring the EOC organization 
 
Management - Responsible for overall emergency policy and coordination through the joint efforts of 
governmental agencies and private organizations 
 
Operations - Responsible for coordinating all jurisdictional operations in support of emergency 
response through implementation of the local government's EOC Action Plan 
 
Planning/Intelligence - Responsible for collecting, evaluating and disseminating information; assist in 
developing the County OA‟s EOC Action Plan, After Action Report,  and Corrective Action Report,  in 
coordination with the EOC Emergency Services Coordinator 
 
Logistics - Responsible for supporting operations, providing facilities, services, personnel, equipment 
and materials 
 
Finance/Administration - Responsible for financial activities and other administrative aspects 
 
The EOC organization may include representatives from special districts, volunteer agencies, and 
private agencies with significant response roles 

Field Level Response 
 

 
Police/ Fire 

 
Public Works 

 
Local Government EOCs 

 
 

EOC 
Alternate 

EOC 
 

Santa Clara Operational Area EOC 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Governor’s Office of Emergency Services 

Coastal Region/Mutual Aid Region II 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Governor’s Office of Emergency Services 

 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  20 

 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  21 

EOC POSITION DESCRIPTIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES   
 
Management Section  
 
The Management Section is responsible for overall management and administration of the incident. 
Management also includes certain support staff functions required to support the EOC Management 
function and the field command function. 
 
Operations Section 
 
The Operations Section is under the supervision of the Operations Section Chief who is in charge of 
all functions within the Operations Section. The Operations Section directs the MILPITASX 
operational resources and coordinates mutual aid resources.  In addition, the Operations Section is 
responsible for coordinating with the County field incident commanders. 
 
 
Planning/Intelligence Section  
 
The Planning/Intelligence Section is under the supervision of the Planning Section Chief.  The duties 
and responsibilities of the Planning Section are to gather and analyze all data regarding the incident 
and the assigned resources.  The Planning Section maintains an incident log, EOC display maps, and 
charts.  The Planning Section is also responsible for preparing situation reports, assessing damage, 
conducting planning meetings, documenting all EOC activities, and assisting in the preparation of the 
Action Plan. 
 
 
Logistics Section 
 
The Logistics Section is under the supervision of the Logistics Section Chief and provides all 
emergency support needs.  The Logistics Section orders all resources, manages volunteer personnel, 
and provides communications, facilities, transportation, supplies, equipment, fuel, food, and shelter. 
 
Finance/Administration Section 
 
The Finance/Administration Section provides for the tracking of the time worked by all emergency 
personnel involved in the incident, provides cost analysis and projections, and records any and all 
injury claims for compensation. 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  22 

EMERGENCY PROCLAMATIONS  
  
Local Emergency 
 
At the local government level an emergency may be proclaimed by the Director of Emergency 
Services or his designee. MILPITAS shall advise the Santa Clara County Sheriff‟s Office of 
Emergency Services (OES) of the declaration.  The proclamation of a Local Emergency provides the 
governing body with the legal authority to: 
 
 Promulgate or suspend orders and regulations necessary to provide for the protection of life 

and property, including issuing orders or regulations imposing a curfew within designated 
boundaries 

 
 Exercise full power to provide mutual aid to any affected area in accordance with local 

ordinances, resolutions, emergency plans, or agreements 
 
 Require the emergency services of any local official or employee   
 
 Requisition necessary personnel and materials from any local department or agency 
 
 Obtain vital supplies and equipment and, if required, immediately commandeer the same for 

public use 
 
 Impose penalties for violation of lawful orders  
 
 Conduct emergency operations without incurring legal liability for performance, or failure of 

performance.   Note:  Article 17 of the Emergency Services Act provides for certain privileges 
and immunities 

 
 
CONTINUITY OF GOVERNMENT 
 
Purpose 
 
A major disaster or an enemy attack could result in great loss of life and property, including the death 
or injury of key government officials.  At the same time, there could be partial or complete destruction 
of established seats of government, and the destruction of public and private records essential to 
continued operations of government and industry. 
 
In the aftermath of a major disaster, law and order must be preserved and essential government 
services must be maintained.  Civil government accomplishes this best. To this end, it is particularly 
essential that local units of government continue to function. 
 
Applicable portions of the California Government Code and the State Constitution (cited in the next 
paragraphs) provide authority for the continuity and preservation of state and local government. 
 
 
Responsibilities 
 
Government at all levels is responsible for providing continuous, effective leadership and authority 
under all aspects of emergency services operations (preparedness, response, recovery, and 
mitigation).  Under California's concept of mutual aid, local officials remain in control of their 
jurisdiction's emergency operations while others may provide additional resources upon request.   
 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  23 

Preservation of Local Government 
 
Article 15 of the California Emergency Services Act (Chapter 7 of Division 1 of Title 2 of the 
Government Code) provides the authority, as well as the procedures to be employed, to ensure 
continued functioning of political subdivisions within the State of California.   Article 15 provides for 
the succession of officers who head departments responsible for maintaining law and order, or in 
furnishing public services relating to health and safety. 
 
Article 15 also outlines procedures to ensure continued functioning of political subdivisions in the 
event the governing body, including standby officers, is unavailable to serve. 
 
Lines of Succession for Officials Charged with Discharging Emergency Responsibilities 
 
The first step in ensuring continuity of government is to have personnel who are authorized and 
prepared to carry out emergency actions for government in the event of a natural, technological, or 
national security disaster. 
 
Article 15, Section 8637 of the Emergency Services Act authorizes political subdivisions such as 
MILPITAS to provide for the succession of officers (department heads) having duties related to law 
and order and/or health and safety.   
 
Article 15, Section 8643 Emergency Services Act describes the duties of a governing body during 
emergencies as follows: 
 

 Ascertain the damage to the jurisdiction and its personnel and property 
 Reconstitute itself and any subdivisions 
 Perform functions in preserving law and order and furnishing local service 

 
 
Service/Department      Title/Position 

 

Director of Emer. Serv. City Manager 
Liaison Officer OES  
PIO Information Officer 
PIO Information Officer 
PIO Information Officer 
Safety Officer Senior Maint. Supv. 
Safety Officer City Attorney 
Fire Operations Fire Chief 
Fire Operations  Fire Marshal 
Fire Operations  Battalion Chief 
Fire Operations  Battalion Chief 
Fire Operations  Battalion Chief 
Fire Operations  Battalion Chief 
Law Enforcement  Police Chief 
Law Enforcement Commander 
Law Enforcement  Commander 
Law Enforcement  Commander 
Public Works  PW Director 
Public Works  Senior Maint. Supv. 
Public Works  Sr. Maint. Supv. 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  24 

Public Works  Maint. Supervisor 
Public Works  Acting Maint. Sup. 
Care & Shelter  Recreation Serv Dir 
Care & Shelter  Public Serv. Supv. 
Care & Shelter  Sports Center Supv. 
Care & Shelter  Comm. Center Supv 
Care & Shelter  Maint. Supervisor 
Care & Shelter  Sr. Center Supv. 
Care & Shelter  Rec. Supervisor 
Care & Shelter  Program Coor. 
Care & Shelter  Program Coor. 
Care & Shelter  Program Coor. 
Planning/Intel.  Planning Director 
Planning/Intel.  Chief Bldg Official 
Planning/Intel.  Sr. Planner 
Planning/Intel.  Acting City Engr. 
Planning/Intel.  Sr. Bldg Inspector 
Planning/Intel.  Sr. Public Works Ins 
Planning/Intel.  Permit Center Mgr 
Planning/Intel.  Principal Engineer 
Planning/Intel.  Acting CIP Manager 
Planning/Intel.  Assoc. Civil Engr. 
Logistics  Human Res. Dir 
Logistics  Purchasing Agent 
Logistics  Buyer 
Logistics  Admin Analyst 
Logistics  I.S. Operations Mgr. 
Finance/Admin.  Finance Director 
Finance/Admin.  Accounting Mgr. 
Finance/Admin.  Budget Manager 
Finance/Admin.  Senior Accountant 
Finance/Admin.  Accountant 
Finance/Admin.  Accountant 

 
 
Preservation of Vital Records 
 
 In MILPITAS‟s, the City Clerk‟s Office is responsible for the preservation of vital records:  
 
Each department within MILPITAS should identify, maintain and protect its own essential records. 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  25 

PART TWO  
THREAT SUMMARY AND ASSESSMENTS  
 
GENERAL 
 
This section of the MILPITAS EOP consists of a series of threat summaries. Within MILPITAS, not all 
threats are considered to be a critical concern.  However, threats that may seem unlikely to affect 
MILPITAS directly, will indirectly impact our community.  
 

 

 

 

 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  26 

Transportation and Infrastructure 
  

(Janice Spuller) 
 
 
POTENTIAL HAZARDS AND THREATS SUMMARY 
 

 
There are three broad categories of hazards: natural, technological and man-made threats.   
 
Natural 
 
 Earthquake 
 Flood 
 Wildland Fire 
 Winter Storm 
 Tsunami 
 Landslide 
 Drought 
 Public Health Crisis 
 
Technological 
 
 Hazardous Materials Incident 
 Transportation Accident 
 Dam Failure 
 Energy Disruption 
 Radiological Incident 
 
Manmade 
 
 Terrorism 
 Civil Disturbance  
 National Security Emergency 
 
  



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  27 

 
THREAT ASSESSMENT 1:  EARTHQUAKE 
 
General Situation 
 
Varying in type and intensity, earthquakes are perhaps the least predictable of any of the potential 
hazards.  They may cause no real damage or the area could be heavily impacted.  Often, the main 
earthquake is followed by a series of aftershocks.  Aftershocks can be larger than the original quake 
and pose a significant threat to those responding to the first event. 
 
Located within and next to Santa Clara County are several known active and potentially active 
earthquake faults, including the Calaveras and the Hayward Faults.  
 
 The Calaveras Fault is a major branch of the San Andreas Fault located in northern California in 

the San Francisco Bay Area. To the east of the Hayward-Rodgers Creek fault, the Calaveras fault 
extends 123 km, splaying from the San Andreas Fault near Hollister and terminating at Danville at 
its northern end. 

 The Hayward Fault is about 74 mi (119 km) long and is situated mainly along the western base 
of the hills on the east side of San Francisco Bay. It runs from Richmond to San Jose. 

 
A major earthquake occurring in or near these areas could result in deaths, casualties, property and 
environmental damage, and disruption of normal government and community services and activities.  
The effects could be aggravated by collateral emergencies such as fires, flooding, hazardous material 
spills, utility disruptions, landslides, dam failures, and transportation emergencies.  The location of the 
epicenter, as well as the time of day and season of the year, would significantly influence the number 
of casualties and the amount of damage. 
 
Such an event would exceed the response capability of MILPITAS‟   emergency management 
organization, requiring assistance from volunteer and private agencies, the Santa Clara County OES, 
the Governor's Office of Emergency Services and the federal government.  Response efforts will be 
significantly hampered by the loss of communications and transportation systems.   
 
A major effort would be needed to remove debris and clear roadways, demolish unsafe structures, 
assist in reestablishing public services and utilities and provide continuing care and temporary 
housing for affected citizens.   
 
The economic impact of a major earthquake may also be significant.  Employment may decline, 
businesses may suffer or even fail, tourism will drop, and a corresponding reduction in tax revenues 
will strain the basic financial systems in local communities.  Additionally, costs for basic services and 
supplies can be expected to increase along with additional infrastructure maintenance, replacement, 
or repair expenses.  Effects can last for months and years unless addressed quickly and 
aggressively.   
 
Specific Situation 
 

Freeways and Major Highways 
 

Freeways and critical highways pass through key parts of Milpitas. Alternate routes need to be 
identified.   Should overpasses or bridges collapse or become unsafe, or roads close due to 
landslides, communities could be isolated for days.  The opening of crossings and traffic control 
will be a major factor for emergency services personnel.  
 

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/San_Andreas_Fault
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/California
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/San_Francisco_Bay_Area
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/San_Francisco_Bay
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Richmond,_California
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/San_Jose,_California


City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  28 

Railroads 
 

Many railroad bridges are susceptible to seismic damage because of age, design and 
construction.  Large lengths of line are vulnerable to landslide.  

 
  

Hazardous Sites 
 

Underground fuel pipelines, chemical storage tanks, and manufacturing locations may be 
damaged or destroyed and the resulting leaks may constitute a considerable threat to individual 
areas.  Additionally, the area is crossed with many high voltage lines which supply power to the 
majority of the area.  Should they fall, roadways will be blocked and the potential for fire and 
shock hazards will be significant until Pacific Gas and Electric can shut them off. 

 
Population Control 

 
In addition to caring for their own citizens, the City may also have to support seasonal visitors in 
the area at the time of the event or evacuees from other Bay Area jurisdictions.  Local agencies 
may have to restrict access and dedicate large numbers of resources to traffic management and 
transportation.  Such populations may place excessive demands upon any established mass 
care facilities or shelters. 

 
Damage to Vital Public Services, Systems and Facilities  
 

Medical Facilities    
 

Approximately half of the beds in the county‟s medical facilities could be lost during a major 
earthquake due to the age and type of construction of some of the hospitals and rehabilitation 
centers in Santa Clara. These hospitals will have services limited by damages, staff shortages, 
and lack of supplies.  Local clinics, surgical facilities, and field treatment sites may be needed to 
handle the initial demand.  Santa Clara‟s Mass Casualty Incident (MCI) plan will be implemented 
but may be overwhelmed by the number of victims.      

  
 The most common injuries will be glass cuts on hands and feet.  The most serious injuries will be 
 crush or burn.  It may be necessary to transport many injured to out-of-county facilities.     
 
 Fire Operations 
 

Although total collapse of fire stations is not expected, possible disruption of utilities, damaged 
doors and loss of power can create major problems.  Numerous fires due to disruption of power 
and natural gas networks can be expected. Many connections to major water sources may be 
damaged and storage facilities would have to be relied upon.  Water supplies could be 
inadequate or non-existent.  Rescuers should expect loss of power and water, jammed doors, 
restricted mobility due to debris, possible loss of communications capability and delays in 
reaching maximum effectiveness due to personnel shortages. 
 
Communications 

 
The use of telephones will be limited. Traditional and cellular systems will be affected by 
infrastructure failure, overloads, and loss of electrical power.  Immediately following an event, 
numerous failures will occur, compounded by system use overloads.  

 
Electrical Power 

  
Extra-high-voltage transmission equipment is generally the most susceptible component of the 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  29 

electrical system.  Repairs may require physically clearing roadways, bringing in special 
equipment, and safeguarding against aftershocks and other hazards.  Close coordination is 
required with regional and local utility representatives.  Power restoration may take days or even 
weeks.  

  
 Natural Gas 
 

Damage to natural gas facilities serving Milpitas‟ communities will consist primarily of isolated 
breaks in major transmission lines.  Breaks in mains and individual service connections within the 
distribution system will be significant.  Leaks pose a fire threat in these susceptible areas of 
intense ground shaking and/or poor ground.  

   
 Propane Gas 
 

Some residents and businesses rely upon propane or bottled gas.  Many of these tanks are not 
secured and will likely tip over or become disconnected.  The leaking tanks will pose a 
fire/explosion hazard.  Re-supply and repair of this service will be delayed until roads can be 
cleared and outside assistance is brought into the area by the vendors.   Priority for repair and re-
supply will be given to critical facilities such as medical sites, shelters, and emergency generators 
at remote radio repeater sites.  

 
Water 

 
Primary water sources may be incapacitated due to damage to the chlorine treatment stations  
and/or the pipelines that distribute potable water. 
 
Priority for water distribution will go to fire suppression, life support, medical facilities, 
decontamination, and shelter operations.  This may result in significant rationing.  The use of 
surface-laid pipes and water tanker trucks to maintain a minimal supply to some areas will be 
almost certainly required. 
 
 
Sanitation Systems 
 
These systems will be generally affected in the same manner and degree as potable water.  
However, there is limited storage capacity in the wastewater plants.  This could result in releases 
of minimally treated or even untreated sewage.  Damaged or un-powered pumping stations and 
sewer line breaks may result in small spills of untreated sewage.  Household sewer connections 
may break and plug.  

 
  



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  30 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Earthquake Faults 
 
 
 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  31 

THREAT ASSESSMENT 2:  FLOOD  
 
 
General Situation 
 
Floods are generally classed as either slow-rise or flash floods.  Slow-rise floods may be preceded by 
a warning time measured in hours or days.  Evacuation and sandbagging for a slow-rise flood may 
lessen flood-related damage.  Conversely, flash floods are the most difficult to prepare for, due to the 
extremely short warning time, if any is given at all.  Flash flood warnings usually require immediate 
evacuation within the hour. 
 
The National Weather Service issues flash flood watches and warnings.  A flash flood “Watch” is 
issued when flash flooding is possible within the designated watch area -- all persons should be alert.  
A flash flood “Warning” is issued when a flash flood has been reported or is imminent -- all persons 
should take necessary precautions. 
 
No area is immune to flash floods.  In small streams, especially near the headwaters of river basins, 
water levels may rise quickly in heavy rainstorms, and flash floods can begin before the rains stop.  
There is little time between the detection of flood conditions and the arrival of the flood crest.  Swift 
action is essential to protect life and property.  
 
All low lying areas are subject to flood conditions.  Urban development in flood plain areas are often 
subject to seasonal inundation.  The flood plain is a natural extension of any waterway, although 
infrequently used.  Storm water runoff, when exceeding the capabilities of the physical channel 
characteristics of a stream, results in the natural flooding of a localized area, inundating vehicles and 
causing considerable damage to residential and industrial properties located near stream and 
drainage channels.   
 
Once flooding begins, personnel will be needed to assist in rescuing persons trapped by flood water, 
securing utilities, evacuating residents, moving equipment, cordoning off flooded areas and 
controlling traffic.  These actions may overtax local agencies, and additional personnel and resources 
may be required.  
 
Specific Situation 
  
Key areas of Milpitas are subject to flash flooding, urban flooding (storm drain failure/infrastructure 
breakdown), and river channel overflow.   
 
Winter storms can generate heavy wave action along the coast which, either by itself, or when 
combined with high tides and/or high winds, can cause localized flooding in low-lying areas. 
 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  32 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  33 

THREAT ASSESSMENT 3:  WILDLAND FIRE 
 
General Situation 
 
Wildland fire hazards exist in varying degrees in Milpitas.  The fire season generally lasts from five to 
six months.  The wildland fire hazard is caused by a combination of factors including rugged terrain, 
highly flammable vegetation and forest, long summers, and human activity.   
 
In several areas, an “Urban Interface” fire hazard is created as older neighborhoods directly border 
wild lands, parks, or forests.  These areas often have mature vegetation which could cause fire to 
spread quickly.   
 
Specific Situation 
 
Fire Causes 
 
People, and their activities, may cause wildland fires.  Since the heaviest concentrations of people are 
found along Highway 880.  Use of equipment, people playing with fire, arson, mowing, and debris 
burning are among the most common causes of wildland fires. 
 
Wildland Fire in Combination with Other Threats 
  
The fire hazard can be significantly affected by other hazards such as an earthquake.  One worst-
case scenario could involve a major earthquake during fire season.  Broken gas lines or downed 
electrical wires could spark multiple fires.  Firefighters would be hampered by disrupted 
communications, impassible roads, and the need to perform rescue/medical operations. 

   
 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  34 

THREAT ASSESSMENT 4:  TSUNAMI 
 
General Situation 
 
A tsunami is a series of traveling ocean waves generated by earthquake or underwater landslides. As 
the tsunami crosses the deep ocean, its length from crest to crest may be one hundred miles or 
more, its height from the bottom of the wave to the crest only a few feet.  It cannot be felt aboard 
ships in deep water and cannot be seen from the air, but in deep water, tsunami waves may reach 
forward speeds exceeding 600 miles per hour. 
 
As the tsunami enters the shallow water of coastlines in its path, the velocity of its waves diminishes 
and wave height increases.  It is in these shallow waters that tsunamis become a threat to life and 
property, as they can crest to heights of more than 100 feet, and strike with devastating force.  This 
danger is not over until the entire wave-series has passed.  All tsunamis, like hurricanes, are 
potentially dangerous, even though they may not damage every area they strike.  At present, there is 
no way to determine, in advance, the amplitude or size of tsunamis in specific locations.  A small 
tsunami at one beach can be a giant one a few miles away. 
   
Tsunamis may also be generated by earthquakes or underwater landslides just off shore.  These 
“near-shore tsunamis” can also be very large but may arrive with little or no warning.  In addition to 
the initial event, additional - and even larger - waves may continue to arrive for hours.  
 
Damage 
 
The great waves of a tsunami may crush buildings, smash vehicles and boats, uproot trees, and 
disrupt vital public services, systems and facilities.  The effects may be aggravated by the secondary 
effects of fire.  In Milpitas the biggest threat is the flooding caused by the event.  Efforts may be 
required to remove debris and clear roadways, reestablish public services and utilities and provide 
temporary housing for displaced persons. 
 
Evacuation 
 
It is essential to evacuate persons in low-lying areas for these areas consistently sustain the greatest 
damage by tsunamis. 
 
Tsunami Warning System 
 
The National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) maintain the international Tsunami 
Warning System.  The occurrence of a major earthquake anywhere in the Pacific Ocean area brings 
an immediate response from the system. 
 
Tsunami Watch 
 
When an earthquake of sufficient magnitude to generate a tsunami occurs, Tsunami Warning System 
staff determines the location of the earthquake epicenter.  If the epicenter is under or near the ocean, 
a tsunami is possible.  The Warning System issues a TSUNAMI WATCH, which tells recipients that 
an earthquake has occurred, its location, and that the possibility of a tsunami exists.  A TSUNAMI 
WATCH constitutes the System's first alerting action.   
 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  35 

THREAT ASSESSMENT 5:  LANDSLIDE 
 
General Situation 
 
Landslides include all movements of soil, rock or debris as a result of falling, sliding or flowing.  
Landslides are categorized according to the types of motion and material involved.  They can be 
directly caused by earthquakes or be completely independent of them. 
 
Falls describe the sudden movement of material from vertical or near-vertical slopes, and are 
generally labeled by the type or material displaced (e.g., soil fall, rock fall). 
 
Slides refer to movements in which the material moves more or less as a unit along recognizable 
shear surfaces.  If the shear surface is concave, the slide movement will be rotational, and is denoted 
by the term "slump".  If the shear surface is flat, the term "slide" is used alone.  
 
Flows describe the movement of material in which small-scale movements, rather than massive 
sliding, is the dominant mechanism of transport.  Flows are described by the type of material involved 
and the rate at which it moves (e.g., debris flow, mudflow).  
 
Landslides can occur due to both natural and human factors.  Natural factors include the cohesive 
strength and characteristics of the affected minerals, the orientation of joints and planes of weakness 
between slide material and bedrock, the steepness of slopes, seismic activity, the degree of 
saturation of ground materials (highly affected by rainfall), and the density of vegetation.  Human 
factors include the creation of excessively steep and overloaded slopes, the removal of natural 
vegetation, and the addition of water to the soil by watering lawns and septic system drain fields, and 
onsite creations of ponds for storm runoff. 
 
Landslides will usually be associated with earthquakes or heavy rainfall. There are many identified 
sites within the county.  Many threaten key highways.  Some jurisdictions may be directly affected or 
simply isolated.  Landslides will normally be associated with some other incident such as winter storm 
or earthquake. 
 
Landslides and debris flowing can damage or destroy buildings, block roads, sever utilities, disrupt 
water supplies, and injure or kill people.  Damage control and emergency response operations may 
be seriously hampered by road closures and loss of communications.  Evacuation of dangerous 
areas may become necessary.  Extensive efforts may be needed to rescue trapped people, recover 
bodies, remove debris, and restore utilities and services. 
 
(Move to the end?) 
 
 
 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  36 

THREAT ASSESSMENT 6:  PUBLIC HEALTH CRISIS 
 
General Situation  
 
One of the gravest threats to the life safety of Milpitas residents and visitors is posed by biological 
agents that occur naturally.  Bacteria and viruses continue to evolve and spread.  Drug-resistant 
strains of these pathogens also pose serious challenges to modern medicine.  A public health crisis 
will immediately impact the width and breadth of emergency medical services. 
 
In order to reduce costs, the medical community has worked to increase its efficiency by reducing or 
closing facilities, reducing staff, and relying on just-in-time inventory systems for medical supplies.  
This has resulted in an indirect reduction in the capacity to handle large-scale health events and an 
increased reliability on crisis response systems. 
 
Public Health events are likely to impact whole regions and nations.  Resources from outside Milpitas 
may not be available.  American society has not had to respond to a major health crisis in modern 
times.  Existing concepts and response systems may be overwhelmed. 
  



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  37 

THREAT ASSESSMENT 7:  HAZARDOUS MATERIALS INCIDENT  
 
General Situation 
 
A hazardous material is any substance that may be explosive, flammable, poisonous, corrosive, 
reactive, radioactive, or any combination thereof, because of its quantity, concentration or 
characteristics.   Hazardous materials require special care and handling because of the threats they 
pose to public health, safety and the environment.  The production, transportation, and use of 
hazardous materials have become a normal part of society. 
 
Accidental releases of hazardous materials can be especially damaging when they occur in highly 
populated areas or along transportation routes used simultaneously by commuters and hazardous 
materials transports.   Incidents are more likely to occur along highways and railways.  Fixed facilities, 
such as manufacturing and light industrial facilities release hazardous materials incidents; however 
stringent safety requirements help to limit these. 
 
Hazardous materials incidents in the urban areas of the county may require precautionary 
evacuations, or may have residents do shelter-in-place.  Such an event may produce many victims 
suffering from exposure to the agent or burns and require implementation of the County‟s Mass 
Casualty Incident (MCI) Plan.    
  
 
Transportation Routes or Fixed Hazardous Materials Facilities 
 
Hazardous materials incidents in Milpitas would most likely occur on the transportation routes or at 
fixed hazardous materials sites within the various cities.  Hazardous materials are often moved 
through the area on Highway‟s 880 and 237.  Surface streets are used for the local transportation of 
hazardous materials. 
 
 
Oil Spill 
 
An oil spill can be a significant hazard to Milpitas‟ ecosystems including wildlife and environmentally 
sensitive sites  
 
 
Sewage Spills 
 
Sewage spills into the City‟s waterways or the San Francisco Bay may cause significant 
contamination causing sickness people who come in contact with those waters as well as distressed 
and sick wildlife.  Sewage spill is often caused by waste treatment facilities pump and alarm failures 
as well as human errors. 
 
 
Other Sources 
 
Another source of hazardous materials incidents is the illegal manufacturing of drugs in clandestine 
laboratories.  The residue and hazardous waste from these laboratories are usually dumped illegally, 
posing a public health and safety hazard and a threat to the environment.  In many cases, criminals 
will conduct their activities in the midst of residential or commercial neighborhoods to remain hidden. 
 
 
 
 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  38 

THREAT ASSESSMENT 8:  TRANSPORTATION ACCIDENTS 
 
A major incident involving an airplane, truck, or train could result in numerous casualties and could 
significantly impact Milpitas‟ transportation systems. The ability of emergency response teams to 
respond and transport victims to hospitals will be affected by the time of day and traffic congestion. 
 
A major incident on any of the primary routes will produce road closures of at least four or more 
hours. Extensive search and rescue operations may be required to assist trapped and injured 
persons. Emergency medical care and temporary shelter would be required for injured or displaced 
persons. Identification, movement and temporary storage of any significant number of dead will be 
difficult. Families may be separated, particularly if the incident should occur during working hours. In 
some instances, the loss of communications and disruption of other essential services may hamper 
emergency operations.  
 
Under certain circumstances, government effort will be required to remove debris and clear 
roadways, demolish unsafe structures, and assist in re-establishing public services. It may be 
necessary to provide continuing care and welfare for the affected population.  
 
Each of these hazards could produce several secondary threats, such as a hazardous materials 
incident, fire, severe damage to nearby buildings or vehicles, loss of life in either adjacent buildings or 
vehicles and pedestrians. 
 
Major accidents could involve an airplane crash, trucking incident or a train crash.  The following 
assessments provide additional details unique to each type of incident: 
 
Airplane Crash 
 
General Situation 
 
Often the impact of a disabled aircraft as it strikes the ground creates the potential for multiple 
explosions, resulting in an intense fire.  Wherever the crash occurs, the resulting explosion and fires 
have the potential to cause injuries, fatalities and the destruction of property.  The time of day when 
the crash occurs may have a profound effect on the number of dead and injured.  As well, an airplane 
crash produces profound mental health issues for survivors, surrounding residents, and emergency 
responders.     
 
Specific Situation 
 
Milpitas has no commercial service airports with regularly scheduled air carrier passenger service, 
however, the San Jose International Airport is home to several airlines.  Milpitas lies along the north 
end of air traffic flight path from this airport.  The crash of an aircraft would result in obvious issues if 
the incident took place near heavily-populated areas. In remote areas, the rugged terrain could make 
access and communications difficult.  A large area could be affected with falling parts, burning fuel 
and destroyed buildings.  Many state and federal agencies would respond to the scene in a very short 
period and media attention would be intense. 
 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  39 

Trucking Incident 
 
General Situation 
 
A major truck incident that occurs in a heavily-populated industrial area or residential area can result 
in considerable loss of life and property.  Potential hazards could be overturned tank trailers, direct 
impact either into a residence or industrial building, or cutting into the normal flow of traffic. 
 
Specific Situation 
 
The main transportation arteries through Milpitas are Interstates 880 and 680.  These routes are 
heavily used most hours of the day and the control of vehicular traffic in and around the affected area 
of a multi-casualty or hazardous materials incident will be the primary problem at any time.   
 
In many areas there are few, if any, good alternate routes.  During commute hours, the problem will 
be severely compounded.  It will be essential to expedite the flow of essential emergency response 
vehicles through the area and divert nonessential traffic.  In a major accident, it is not uncommon for 
these roads to close for most of a day to support rescue, recovery and accident investigation 
activities. 
 
In a major disaster, increased reliance on goods and equipment being trucked into the county and 
into MILPITAS combined with restricted or damaged roads could result in a greater chance for a 
major accident.   
 
Train Crash 
 
General Situation 
 
A major train derailment that occurs in a heavily populated industrial area can result in considerable 
loss of life and property.  As a train leaves its track, there is no longer any control as to the direction it 
will travel.  Potential hazards could include overturned rail cars, hazardous materials incidents, and 
impact to an industrial building or entering into normal street traffic.  
 
Train accidents could be caused by derailment, an accident with a vehicle at a crossing, an accident 
with a pedestrian at a crossing, a collision with another train, or an explosion or fire in or near the 
train.  Any hazardous materials carried as freight or in another impacted vehicle could substantially 
complicate response actions and require that the situation be monitored until all debris is removed.   
 
There would be a great number of agencies responding to the scene. Traffic control and resource 
management will be difficult but essential to maintain.  Schools near the site may be isolated or called 
upon to evacuate immediately.  Media attention can be expected to be significant.



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  40 

THREAT ASSESSMENT 9: ENERGY DISRUPTION 
 
General Situation 
 
Modern society has increasingly grown dependent on technologies which use various sources of 
energy.  Events in the last 30 years have underscored the major impacts that a disruption in the 
energy supply can have:   
 
 The major Arab Oil Embargo in 1973 led to significant economic and political changes including 

increased domestic oil production, additional investment in alternative energy sources, inflation, 
and a marked reduction in the Gross National Product.  

 The California electrical shortages of 2001 resulted in the use of rotating electrical outages, also 
known as rolling blackouts. This crisis created a great deal of confusion, loss of power, increased 
utility rates, and negatively impacted the state budget.   

 
Fossil Fuels 
   
This includes natural gas, oil, and gasoline.  Disruptions in the supply of these resources would 
immediately cause serious problems in transportation, electrical generation, business, 
communications, and would cause prices for most goods and services to rise dramatically.  
 
Electrical Power 
 
A power failure is any interruption or loss of electrical service due to disruption of power generation or 
transmission caused by an accident, sabotage, natural hazard, equipment failure, or fuel shortage. 
These interruptions can last anywhere from a few seconds to several days.  Power failures are 
considered significant problems only if the local emergency management organization is required to 
coordinate the provision of food, water, heating, etc. as a result.  Power failures are common when 
severe weather and winter storm activity occur.  Critical systems including telecommunications will fail 
unless provided with alternate or redundant power sources.  
 
Specific Situation 
 
Petroleum products are imported to Milpitas via highways from Bay Area refineries.  A natural gas 
pipeline feeds the majority of the population along the U.S. Highway 880 corridor.   
 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  41 

THREAT ASSESSMENT 10: RADIOLOGICAL INCIDENT 
 
General Situation 
 
Depending upon the type, location, and quantity released, nuclear (radiological) materials can 
damage human health, the environment, and property.  Such an accidental release is extremely rare.  
Commercial nuclear plants began generating power in 1957.  The United States has had only one 
major incident that occurred at the Three Mile Island facility near Harrisburg, Pennsylvania in 1979.  
Other minor incidents have occurred, but these have been infrequent and have caused few off-site 
consequences.   
 
Common sources of radiological materials include those used in medical procedures, research, 
industrial production, and construction.   
 
It is important to note that a radiological event differs from a regular Hazardous Materials spill in that 
the affected area could be large; radioactivity is difficult to detect; specialized equipment is required to 
pinpoint sources; and clean up may require tremendous resources.  Long-term effects may be 
difficult to determine. Public perception will play a critical role in the incident.  Media coverage of such 
an event will be massive.  Federal agencies will play a key role in managing response and recovery 
efforts.  
 
Generally, shielding, limited exposure time, and increased distance from the source are the keys to 
effective mitigation and response. 
   
Specific Situation 
 
Milpitas is a combination suburban/rural area. Only a few sites (mostly medical facilities) use such 
materials - and these are considered a relatively low-level threat.  As U.S. Highway 880 is the primary 
north/south corridor for Santa Clara County, some industrial and medical grade radiological materials 
are transported on this route.  
 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  42 

THREAT ASSESSMENT 11:  TERRORISM 
 
General Situation 
 
The Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) defines terrorism as “the unlawful use of force against 
persons or property to intimidate or coerce a government, the civilian population, or any segment 
thereof, in the furtherance of political or social objectives.” 
 
Since the events of September 11, 2001, a significant increase in the assessment and preparation for 
terrorism has been a national priority.   
 
Terrorism can be state-sponsored or the outgrowth of a frustrated, extremist fringe of polarized 
and/or minority groups of people.  Extremists have a different concept of morality than the 
mainstream society. Terrorist groups include:  
 

 Ethnic separatists and political refugees  
 Leftwing radical organizations 
 Rightwing racists, anti-authority survivalist groups 
 Extremist issue-oriented groups such as animal rights, environmental, religious, anti-                            

abortionists  
 
Events could typically be expected in urban areas near public gatherings, government facilities, or 
highly visible areas, but no one area is less likely to be a target than any other. Communities are 
vulnerable to terrorist incidents and most have high visibility and vulnerable targets. These facilities, 
sites, systems, and special events in the community are usually located near routes with high 
transportation access. Examples include: 
 

 Government office buildings, courthouses, schools, hospitals, and shopping centers 
 Dams, water supplies, power distribution systems  
 Military installations  
 Railheads, interstate highways, tunnels, airports, ferries, bridges, seaports, pipelines 
 Recreational facilities such as stadiums, theaters, parks, casinos, concert halls  
 Financial institutions and banks  
 Sites of historical and symbolic significance  
 Scientific research facilities, academic institutions, museums  
 Telecommunications, newspapers, radio and television stations  
 Chemical, industrial, and petroleum plants, business offices, and convention centers  
 Law, fire, emergency medical services facilities, and operations centers  
 Special events, parades, religious services, festivals, celebrations  
 Family planning facilities  

 
 
Weapons of Mass Destruction 
 
Experts generally agree that there are five categories Weapons of Mass Destruction (WMD) which 
terrorists could use: Chemical, Biological, Radiological, Nuclear, and Explosive (CBRNE).  It is 
important to note that developing and properly employing such weapons is very difficult - but not 
impossible.  Each category of weapon is discussed below: 
 

 Chemical agents are compounds with unique chemical properties that can produce lethal or 
damaging effects in humans, animals, and plants. Chemical agents can exist as solids, 
liquids, or gases depending on temperature and pressure. Most chemical agents are liquid 
and can be introduced into the unprotected population relatively easily using aerosol 
generators, explosive devices, breaking containers, or other forms of covert dissemination. 
Dispersed as an aerosol, chemical agents have their greatest potential for inflicting mass 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  43 

casualties.  
 

 Biological agents pose a serious threat because of their accessible nature and the rapid 
manner in which they spread. These agents are disseminated by the use of aerosols, 
contaminated food or water supplies, direct skin contact, or injection. Several biological agents 
that could be adapted for use by terrorists include anthrax, tularemia (rabbit fever), cholera, 
the plague, botulism, and pandemic flu. A biological incident will most likely be first recognized 
in the hospital emergency room, medical examiner‟s office, or within the public health 
community long after the terrorist attack. The consequences of such an attack will present 
communities with an unprecedented requirement to provide mass protective treatment to 
exposed populations, mass patient care, mass fatality management, and environmental health 
clean-up procedures and plans.   

 
 A radiological weapon involves the detonation of a large conventional explosive that 

incorporates nuclear material or detonation of an explosive in close proximity to nuclear 
materials in use, storage, or transit.   

 
 A nuclear threat is the use or threatened detonation of a nuclear bomb or device. At present, 

there is no known instance in which any non-governmental entity has been able to obtain or 
produce a nuclear weapon.   

 
 Explosive incidents account for 70 percent of all terrorist attacks worldwide. Bombs are the 

terrorist's weapon of choice. The Internet and local libraries provide ample information on the 
design and construction of explosive devices. The FBI reported that 3,163 bombing incidents 
occurred in the United States in 1994, 77 percent were due to explosives. Residential 
properties are the bombers' most common targets. 

 
Cyber terrorism 
 
In addition to WMD attacks, cyber terrorism is a relatively new phenomenon used to potentially 
disrupt our society and exploit our increasing reliance on computers and telecommunication 
networks.  Cyber terrorism threatens the electronic infrastructure supporting the social, health, and 
economic well being of our communities. Interlinked computer networks regulate the flow of power, 
water, financial services, medical care, telecommunication networks, and transportation systems. 
 
Specific Situation 
 
The San Francisco Bay Area contains many high profile sites and buildings which are considered 
potential terrorist targets.  Even if Santa Clara County and MILPITAS don not suffer an attack, it is 
likely that we will be asked to provide support to other metropolitan areas that has been impacted.  
Another consideration is the potential for large numbers of the public to move from the impacted area 
due to actual or perceived dangers. 
 
The federal and state response to terrorist activities has been intense since the attack of September 
11, 2001.  Emergency Management actions have centered on terrorist threat assessment, planning, 
grant administration, and training.  Detailed terrorism threat assessments for the County and the 
State of California have been completed and are considered confidential. 
 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  44 

THREAT ASSESSMENT 12:  CIVIL DISTURBANCE 
 
Civil disturbance includes incidents that are intended to disrupt a community to the degree that law 
enforcement intervention is required to maintain public safety.  Civil disturbances are generally 
associated with controversial political, judicial, or economic issues and/or events.  The effects of civil 
disturbances could include traffic congestion or gridlock, illegal assemblies, disruption of utility 
service, property damage, injuries and potential loss of life.  This is in contrast to Civil Disobedience.  
  
 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  45 

THREAT ASSESSMENT 13: NATIONAL SECURITY EMERGENCY 
 
A national defense emergency will normally be announced by the Federal government; however, 
unless there is a sudden, unprovoked attack, there should be some time available for planning and 
initiation of evacuation procedures.  It is not the duty of civil authorities to fight the war, but rather to 
control and care for the local population.  Local and state authorities under a “State of War” have not 
been exercised since World War Two.     
 
Potential impacts of a national security emergency include: 
 
Military Call-up and Activity 
 
A major national defense emergency would require the activation of the Military Reserve Forces and 
the National Guard.  Members of those organizations would be called to duty.  Their service in the 
federal government takes precedence over local authority. There would be no trained replacement 
personnel immediately available.  This would affect government agencies at all levels and 
organizational restructuring might be necessary.  There are very few military installations in the region 
which would be deploying troops.  However, movement through the area could place a great deal of 
strain on major highways and local resources. 
 
Civilian Activity 
 
The civilian population may also be immediately affected by a declaration of a national emergency.  
Most certainly there will be a significant portion of the population which would try to evacuate the area 
in advance.  This could produce some civil disobedience.  Employee safety could become a 
significant concern. 
 
 
Outright War or Attack 
An attack upon the United States (either conventional or nuclear) is extremely unlikely. The potential 
for such an event, however, does not exist. Although the chances of a massive nuclear strike on the 
U.S. have greatly diminished, several countries throughout the world have developed, or are seeking 
to develop the capability of deploying nuclear weapons, either on a tactical basis or a strategic one. 
Additionally, the possibility exists that a terrorist organization might acquire the capability of creating a 
small nuclear detonation. A single nuclear detonation in the United States would likely produce fallout 
affecting an area many times greater than that of the blast itself. 
 
In the event of a conflict involving the major world powers, an attack on the Bay Area would be an 
almost certainty.  In most probability, the attack would be from missiles with nuclear warheads. An 
attack on the coast by amphibious forces is unlikely.  This is normally the responsibility of the federal 
agencies; however, protection of municipal facilities and resources would be an important 
consideration.  
      
There are several "strategic" targets in the Bay Area which are/would be targeted for a nuclear strike.  
In addition to the military installations, defense production and communications-related civilian 
activities may be designated as targets.  Destruction would be complete in many areas and all normal 
sources of power and water will cease to exist. The surviving population would flee the area by any 
means possible.  Areas not directly affected by the blast of weapons will suffer the effects of 
radioactive particulate dispersed into the atmosphere.   
 
In the event of a massive attack, there would be no help from outside agencies for a prolonged 
period. It would be the responsibility of law enforcement to restore order and the job of the entire 
government to re-assert its authority and re-establish any systems possible to aid in the placement 
and care of refugees as well as local citizens.   



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  46 

PART THREE 
REFERENCES AND ACRONYMS 
 
OPERATIONAL AREA ANNEXES 
 
Available reference material includes annexes that supplement the Santa Clara County Operational 
Area EOP. These documents provide information or additional detail for hazards or response 
functions.  The list below indicates current Santa Clara County Annexes. Additional annexes will be 
developed. All current annexes are available to all agencies within the Santa Clara County 
Operational Area.   
 

 Care and Shelter Annex        
 Spontaneous Volunteer Annex       
 Tsunami Annex           
 Vulnerable/Special Needs Populations Annex   

 
 
 
AUTHORITIES AND REFERENCES  
 
The California Emergency Services Act (Chapter 7 of Division 1 of Title 2 of the Government Code), 
hereafter referred to as, “The Act”, provides the basic authorities for conducting emergency 
operations following a proclamation of Local Emergency, State of Emergency or State of War 
Emergency by the Governor and/or appropriate local authorities, consistent with the provisions of the 
Act. 
 
The Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) Regulations (Chapter 1, Division 2 of 
Title 19 of the California Code of Regulations), establishes SEMS to provide an effective response to 
multi-agency and multi-jurisdiction emergencies in California.  
 
Homeland Security Presidential Directive (HSPD-5) gives the Secretary of Homeland Security the 
responsibility of developing and administering the National Incident Management System (NIMS).  
 
The California Emergency Plan, which is promulgated by the Governor, is published in accordance 
with the Act and provides overall statewide authorities and responsibilities, and describes the 
functions and operations of government at all levels during extraordinary emergencies, including 
wartime.  Section 8568 of the Act states, in part, that "the State Emergency Plan shall be in effect in 
each political subdivision of the state, and the governing body of each political subdivision shall take 
such action as may be necessary to carry out the provisions thereof".  Local emergency plans are, 
therefore, considered to be extensions of the California Emergency Plan. 
 
The National Response Plan (NRP) establishes a single, comprehensive approach to domestic 
incident management to prevent, prepare for, respond to, and recover from terrorist attacks, major 
disasters, and other emergencies. The NRP is an all-hazards plan built on the template of the 
National Incident Management System (NIMS). The NRP can be partially or fully implemented in the 
context of a threat, anticipation of a significant event, or in response to an incident requiring a 
coordinated Federal response. The NRP applies to all incidents requiring a coordinated Federal 
response as part of an appropriate combination of Federal, State, local, tribal, private-sector, and 
nongovernmental entities. The NRP is always in effect; however, the implementation of NRP 
coordination mechanisms is flexible and scalable. 
 
The California Civil and Government Codes contain several references to liability release (Good 
Samaritan Act) for those providing emergency services.  
 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  47 

 
Federal 
 
Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act of 1988 (Public Law 93-288, as 
amended) 
 
Federal Civil Defense Act of 1950 (Public Law 920), as amended 
 
Federal Response Plan (FEMA) 
 
Federal Departments and agencies HSPD-5 requirements for adoption of NIMS by State and local 
organizations 
 
NRT-1, Hazardous Materials Emergency Planning Guide and NRT-1A Plan Review Guide 
(Environmental Protection Agency's National Response Team) 
 
 
State 
 
Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) Regulations (Chapter 1 of Division 2 of Title 
19 of the California Code of Regulations) and (Government Code Section 8607(a). 
Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) Guidelines. 
 
California Emergency Services Act (Chapter 7 of Division 1 of Title 2 of the Government Code).  
 
„Good Samaritan‟ Liability 
 
California Emergency Plan 
 
California Natural Disaster Assistance Act (Chapter 7.5 of Division 1 of Title 2 of the Government 
Code) 
 
Preservation of Local Government, Article 15 of the California Emergency Services Act (Chapter 7 of 
Division 1 of Title 2 of the Government Code) 
 
Temporary County Seats, Section 23600, Article 1 of Chapter 4 of Division 1 of Title 3 of the 
Government Code 
 
California Hazardous Materials Incident Contingency Plan 
 
California Health and Safety Code, Division 20, Chapter 6.5, Sections 25115 and 25117, Chapter 
6.95, Sections 2550 et seq., Chapter 7, Sections 25600 through 25610, dealing with hazardous 
materials 
 
Orders and Regulations which may be Selectively Promulgated by the Governor during a State of 
Emergency 
 
Orders and Regulations Promulgated by the Governor to Take Effect upon the Existence of a State of 
War Emergency 
 
California Master Mutual Aid Agreement 
 
California Law Enforcement Mutual Aid Plan 
 
California Fire and Rescue Operations Plan 
 
Judicial System, Article VI, Section 1, 4, 5, and 10, of the Constitution of California 
 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  48 

Local Government, Article XI, of the Constitution of California 
 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act 
 
All operations and facilities involved in the disaster response activities shall take special note of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).  Appropriate efforts shall be made to insure that necessary 
considerations are given to accommodate victims with disabilities.  Public warning, emergency 
communications, transportation, and sheltering are areas that require special attention. 



City of Milpitas    Emergency Operations Plan
  

08/13/12                                                                  49 

ACRONYMS  
 
AAR   After Action Report 
ADA   Americans with Disabilities Act 
ARC   American Red Cross 
C&S   Care and Shelter 
CAD   Computer Aided Dispatch 
CalFire  California Fire 
CalTrans  California Department of Transportation 
CAO   Chief Administrative Officer 
CAP   Corrective Action Plan 
CBRNE  Chemical, Biological, Radiological, Nuclear and Explosive  
CDF   California Department of Fire 
CERT   Community Emergency Response Team 
CHP   California Highway Patrol 
DC3   Disaster & Citizens Corps Council 
DPW   Department of Public Works 
EAS   Emergency Alert System 
EDIS   Emergency Digital Information System 
EMS   Emergency Medical Services 
EOC   Emergency Operations Center 
EOP   Emergency Operations Plan/Emergency Operating Procedures 
EPA   Environmental Protection Agency 
FBI   Federal Bureau of Investigation 
FCC   Federal Communications Commission 
FEMA   Federal Emergency Management Agency 
HSPD-5  Homeland Security Presidential Directive -5 
ICS   Incident Command System 
JIC   Joint Information Center 
MACC   Multi-Agency Coordination Center 
MCI   Mass Casualty Incident 
NIMS   National Incident Management System 
NOOA   National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration 
NRP   National Response Plan 
OA    Operational Area 
OHS   Office of Homeland Security 
PHO   Public Health Officer 
PIO   Public Information Officer 
RACES  Radio Amateur Civil Emergency Services 
REOC   Regional Emergency Operations Center 
RIMS   Response Information Management System 
SEMS   Standardized Emergency Management System 
SOC   State Operations Center 
SOP   Standard Operating Procedures 
TSA   The Salvation Army 
TENS   Telephone Emergency Notification System 
WMD   Weapons of Mass Destruction 



    

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MILPITAS APPROVING THE  
PURCHASE OF 25 COPVU WEARABLE CAMERAS AND APPROVING SOLE SOURCE AND 

STANDARDIZATION OF THE PRODUCT 
 

 WHEREAS, Section I-2-3.07 of the Milpitas Municipal Code authorizes the City Council to enter into contracts 
without competitive bid when the Purchasing Agent determines that there is only one source for the product, the purchase 
of which is in the City’s best interest; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Milpitas already went through the evaluation process that resulted in the purchase of 16 
CopVu Wearable Cameras from Watch Guard, which also wrote special programming specifically to be compatible with 
that of the City of Milpitas; and  
 
 WHEREAS, there are no local suppliers or contractors who provide the same product at competitive rates; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City’s purchase of 25 more CopVu Wearable cameras will match with the equipment already on 
hand, thus reducing inter-operability issues, training time, and maintenance expenses. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Milpitas hereby finds, determines, and resolves as follows:  
 

1. The City Council has considered the full record before it, which may include but is not limited to such 
things as the staff report, testimony by staff and the public, and other materials and evidence submitted or 
provided to it. Furthermore, the recitals set forth above are found to be true and correct and are 
incorporated herein by reference.  

 
2. The City Manager is authorized to execute a separate contract with Watch Guard for the not-to-exceed 

amount of $22,000.00.  
 

3. Watch Guard is hereby designated as a sole source vendor under section I-2-3.09 “Sole Source 
Procurement” of the Municipal Code, and CopVu Wearable Cameras are hereby standardized under 
section I-2-3.13 “Standardization” of the Municipal Code. 
 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED this ________ day of __________ 2013, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  
 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 APPROVED: 
 
______________________________________ _______________________________ 
Michael J. Ogaz, City Attorney Jose S. Esteves, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 
Mary Lavelle, City Clerk  

*6



415 Century Parkway, Allen, TX 75013 
(972) 423-9777 Fax: (972) 423-9778 

National Toll-Free 1-800-60S-MPEG (6734) 
www.watchguardvideo.com 

Customer ) \ 

Milpitas Police Department 

Attn: Daniel Nam 

1275 N Milpitas Blvd, Milpitas, CA, 95035 

Comments: 

CAMERA QUOTE 

Quote #: QUO-11587-GBRF Rev #: 1 

Quote Information ( " \' ~ I" ,\ r" _ 

Quote Valid From: 

Quote Presented By: 

I PreSE'"t'" Contact: 

To: 4/13/2013 

Fran Judge 

FJudge@WatchGuardVideo.com 

1 of 1 



*7Project Name: 
Project No. : 
Bid Date: 

CITY OF MILPITAS 
ENGINEERING DIVISION 
BID SUMMARY{Revised*) 

2011 Park Pathways 
5091 
March 20, 2013 

r-----~--------_,------------r---------_,----------~----------_.--------__, 

BASED BID Engineer's Estimate DRT R& M Paving Wattis Construction Co. 
Guerra Construction 

Group 
McNabb Construction 

liTEM I DESCRIPTION Qty. IUNllI Unit Cost I Extension I Unit Cost I Extension I Unit Cost I Extension Unit Cost I Extension I Unit Cosli Extension I Unit Cost I Extension I 

, Park 

I· 1 I 

2 Traffic Control 
3 Water I I 1 Control Work 
4 'and 

5 ,-Inch AC Base Repair 
, & \1\ edge Cuts 

-1/2 Inch Ac I Jverlay 
"ype ' : Curb lamp 

10 I 

,CracK Seal 

I Park 

11 Traffic Control 
12 Water I I I Control Work 
13 , and I , at totlot 
14 ;rlnd Pcc at tot lot 

:-Inch Base Repair 
, & Replace asphalt 

-1/2 Inc Asphalt Overlay 
\ledge Ind & 

,,;raCK ~eal 
,t::~ 

, & Replace,: I 
, & , Header Board 

* Mathmatical summation error and a 
unit extension error 

1 LS 
1 LS 
1 LS 

100 I SF 

2,S04 I SF 
520 ,F 

116,00 'F 
A 

1 
1 L 
1 L 

35 SF 
200 SF 

1,329 SF 
3,500 'F 
6,00( ,F 

151 'f 
.5 
A 

S( 'F 
190 L 

List of Sub Cont actors - r 

Description 
Trip Hazard repair 

Concrete Work 

$12.00 

:5.00 
O. 

$12.00 
$10.00 

;5.00 
'S.OO 
:3.00 

$12.0 
$15.00 

, 
,500.0C 
,500.0C 
,200.00 

sU,n,n nn 

$15.00 

'5.30 
:5.30 
:1.70 

10.00 
$1,500.00 

$14,S61.20 

$27,200.0C 

:,500. 
$15. 

$2.50 
$6.UU 

$2. 

J!440., 

~M¢I.OC ~,O,~OO~~ 
1,500.00 10.00 

$30.00 

$20.00 
$23.94 

:7.50 
:2.60 
:1.S5 
:7.50 

,700.00 
:4,7SS.00 '5. 
:9,967.50 

.UU 

$1 !.50 
$1,125.00 ;.001 

~1 

$ . 

+-~$~1~~: __ ~~=: ~ 
$1 •• nnn nn $109,510.20 

Apparent Low Bidder 

$700. 

16. 
$ 

DRT R& M Paving 

Trip Stop 

Innovate Engineering, Inc 

125.00 
,100.00 
$41.70 

:5.00 
:3.25 
,1.60 

~OO 

$54.70 
$20.00 

,6.00 
,3.00 
;1.75 
,9.25 

$1,4' ".ua 

$4' i.50 
1.60 

.00 

$14,n'n.n' ,6.00 

$ 

$1,690.0C ,2.50 

',410. 

$ 

;2.25 

i=' .. ~ooo. 
~.OO 1.914. 

~. 38(.50 

145.UO 

:9.00 
:5.00 
,3.00 
,4.00 

$25.00 
, $7.00 

S1R,.,,,.nn 
:1..dQQ.:00 

$ f,'666:00 

$910. ~ 
$9.S ~ 

:S.40 so. "" Rn 
:S.40 
,4.90 $7S,400.00 

I . 

,9. 
1.961. 'S. .163. 

:1. >5.60 
,4.90 
'S.40 

$9.80 
$17.50 

:26~~ 

'~ 

SUi .M nn * $205,279.20 

Wattis Construction Co. 
GUerra Construction 

McNabb Construction 
Group 



---------

City of Milpitas, California 

BUDGET CHANGE FORM 

From To 
Type of Change 

Account Amount Account Amount 
Check one: 

250-2940 $ 77,778 250-3940 $ 77,778 
00 Budget Appropriation 321-9515091- 321-95150917-

D 
3834 77,778 4800 77,778 

Budget Transfer 

Explain the reason for the budget change: 

Background: On May 1, 2012, the City Council approved the project plans and specifications and authorized the 
advertisement for construction bid proposals for the "Pathways" Park Renovation 2011. The project provides for repairs 
to pathways at Pinewood Park and Albert J. Augustine Jr. Memorial Park. The installation of new Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) compliant curb ramps connecting the pathways to City sidewalks is also included. The 
Engineer's Estimate for the base bid project work is $165,000. 

On April 17, 2012, the City Council approved grant funding for this project in the amount of $77,778 through the Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) program. These funds now need to be appropriated into Project No. 5091. 

The project was advertised and five (5) sealed bid proposals were received on March 20, 2013. Bid proposals ranged 
from $109,510 to $205,279, with the lowest responsible base bid submitted by DRT Grading & Paving Inc. in the amount 
of $ 109,510. The construction contingency established for this project is $30,000, and the change order authority would 
not exceed this amount and would not require additional appropriation. 

Fiscal Impact: A budget appropriation to add the CDBG funding obtained in the amount of $77,778 is required in order 
to award this project. The remainder of the funds are available in the project budget. 

Recommendations: 

1. Award Construction Contract to DRT Grading & Paving Inc. for the Park Renovation 2011, Project No. 5091, in 
the amount of $109,510. 

2. Approve a budget appropriation of $77,778 from the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) into the 
Park Renovation 2011 Project No. 5091. 

3. Authorize staff to execute change orders up to $30,000 for the Park Renovation 2011, Project No. 5091. 

[8] Check if City Council Approval required. Meeting Date: April 2, 2013 

Requested by: Department Head: Kathleen Phalen Date: March 25, 2013 

Reviewed by: Finance Director: ~c.~ Date: :5 />({-/I ) 
Approved by: City Manager: Date: 

Date approved by City Council, if required: Confirmed by: 

FII24786N Form 30-222 (Rev. 1/92) 



THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT 

FOR CONSULTATION AND OTHER SERVICES 

 
This  Amendment  is  entered in to on Apr i l  2 ,  2013,  by  and between the Ci ty  of  Mi lp i tas,  a 
munic ipal  corporat ion of  the State of  Cal i forn ia (hereaf ter  referred to as "CITY")  and 
CalRecovery,  Inc.  (hereaf ter  referred to as "CONSULTANT") .   
 

RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the part ies  entered in to a Consul t ing Serv ices Agreement  on Apr i l  14,  2009 for  
general  odor-re lated analys is  work;  and 
 
WHEREAS, the part ies  amended the Agreement  on May 18,  2010 and on June 19,  2012 to 
a l low the CONSULTANT to perform addi t ional  profess ional  serv ices;  and 
 
WHEREAS, the part ies  des i re to fur ther  amend the Agreement  to  prov ide for  addi t ional  
CONSULTANT serv ices.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, in  cons iderat ion of  the mutual  covenants  and condi t ions here in 
conta ined,  the part ies  agree to amend the Agreement  as fo l lows:  
 

1 .  Sect ion 1,  ent i t led “Serv ices”  is  amended to extend the contract  term by 
exerc is ing the second of  two 1-year opt ions for  an expi rat ion date of  June 30,  
2014.  
 

2 .  Sect ion 2,  ent i t led “Compensat ion”  is  amended to add $20,000.   Sect ion 2 is  fur ther  
amended by changing the fo l lowing at  the beginning of  the sect ion:  
 
Ci ty  agrees to pay Consul tant  a guaranteed maximum pr ice not  to  exceed $49,000 
for  a l l  serv ices to be performed and re imbursable costs  incurred under th is  
Agreement .  
 

3 .  Al l  o ther  prov is ions of  the Agreement  shal l  remain in  fu l l  force and ef fect .    
 

 
This  Amendment  is  executed as of  the date wr i t ten above.  
 
CITY OF MILPITAS     CONSULTANT 
 
 
    
Thomas C.  Wi l l iams,  Ci ty  Manager   George Savage,  Execut ive Vice Pres ident  
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT 
 
  
Kath leen Phalen,  Act ing Ci ty  Engineer/  
Publ ic  Works Di rector  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
  
Mike J .  Ogaz,  Ci ty  At torney 

*8



*9
FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT FOR COUNTYWIDE HOUSEHOLD 

HAZARDOUS WASTE COLLECTION PROGRAM 

The Agreement for Countywide Household Hazardous Waste Collection Program 
(AGREEMENT) by and between the City of Milpitas (CITY) and the County of Santa 
Clara (COUNTY) previously entered into on.July 1,2012, is hereby amended as set 
forth below. 

The COUNTY and the CITY agree that: 

II 
II 
II 
II 

1. Section 18. ADDITIONAL SERVICES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT is 
amended in full to read: 

18. ADDITIONAL SERVICES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT 

CITY may elect to augment funding provided for in this Agreement with' 
CITY funds. Additional services shall be made available upon written 
agreement between the CITY's authorized representative and the Director 
of the Department of Agriculture and Environmental Management. 
Additional services may include, but are not limited to, additional 
appointments (charged at the variable cost per car rate), door-to-door 
HHW collection, universal waste collection, and abandoned waste 
collection. 

CITY agrees to augment up to an additional $ 5,000 to the 
Countywide HHW Program during Fiscal Year 2014 for the purpose of 
increased resident participation above the 4% service level at the 
scheduled collection dates listed in Attachment C. Augmentation will be 
calculated at the Variable Cost per Car rate which is $62.00 per car. 
Other services will be charged based on a cost recovery basis. CITY 
authorizes the COUNTY to use CITY'S Available Discretionary Funding 
portion of the AB939 HHW Fee, if available, to pay for the above agreed 
additional augmentation amount. 

At the end of each fiscal year, a final annual cost statement shall be 
prepared by COUNTY and issued to CITY by November 30th. The 
annual cost statement will take into consideration costs incurred on behalf 
of CITY for additional services and all payments made by CITY to 
COUNTY. If any balance is owed to COUNTY, it will be due within 30 
days following receipt of the annual cost statement. If any credit is owed 
to CITY, COUNTY will refund that amount to CITY within 30 days 
following delivery of the annual cost statement. 



2. Attachment C to the AGREEMENT is replaced in full by the Exhibit C 
"HHW Schedule For Collection Events for Fiscal Year 2013/2014" 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

Except as provided herein, all terms and cQ,[1ditions of the AGREEMENT shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, COUNTY and CITY, through their duly authorized 
representatives, have entered into this First Amendment to the AGREEMENT on the 
last date shown below: 

COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA 

Signature: 

Amy Brown 
Director of Department of Agriculture and 
Environmental Management 

Date: __ '3-=-.L..{ ,,-' J-I-I.l-/ 3=--___ _ 

OF 

Signature: 

Name: _________ _ 

Title: 

Date: ___ -.-_____ _ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY APPROVED BY THE OFFICE 
OF THE C NTY E CUTIVE 

Mark Bernal 
Deputy County Counsel 

Date: e.- 2 '7-/3 



EXHIBITC 
HHW SCHEDULE FOR COLLECTION EVENTS FISCAL YEAR 2013/2014 

2013/Month Day Date Location Type of Event County Holidays! Notes 
July '\' Satu~d"y ·>'6,>'< NO Event",'" . ",'\'NocEliijnF' ... , <i·, FOURTl:FOE'JULYi""· 

Thurs,Fri,Sat 11,1213 San Jose Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 18,19,20 San Jose Permanent 

Saturday 20 Sunnyvale Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 25,26,27 San Jose , Permanent 

Saturday 27 Santa Clara Temporary 
August Fri,Sat 2,3 San Martin Permanent 

Thurs,Fri,Sat 1,2,3 San Jose Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 8,9,10 San Jose Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 15,16,17 San Jose Permanent 

Saturday 17 Sunnyvale Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 22,23,24 San Jose Permanent 

Thurs,Fri 29,30 San Jose Permanent 
Saturday ::>3.1" .. :,·. No'Evifiif,':; ;:'\;::·,:.NO',:Ev~iit,::' "".LABOR .. DAYWEEKEND.:. 

September Fri,Sat 6,7 San Martin Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 5,6,7 San Jose Permanent { 

Thurs,Fri,Sat 12,13,14 San Jose Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 19,20,21 San Jose Permanent 

Saturday 21 Sunnyvale Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 26,27,28 San Jose Permanent 

Saturday 28 Santa Clara Temporary 
October Fri,Sat 4,5 San Martin Permanent 

Thurs,Fri,Sat 3,4,5 San Jose Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 10,11,12 San Jose Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 17,18,19 San Jose Permanent 

Saturday 19 Sunnyvale Permanent I 

Thurs,Fri,Sat 24,25,26 San Jose Permanent 
November Fri,Sat 1,2 San Martin Permanent 

Thurs,Fri,Sat 31,1,2 San Jose Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 7,8,9 San Jose Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 14,15,16 San Jose Permanent 

Saturday 16 Sunnyvate Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 21,22,23 San Jose Permanent 

Saturday ·'30'; No Ev".tlf, , ;;,'.NoEY"i1tt' ····':THANKSGll(I.N!>.',···,··· 
December Fri,Sat 6,7 San Martin Permanent 

Thurs,Fri,Sat 5,6,7 San Jose Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 12,13,14 San Jose Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 19,20,21 San Jose Permanent 

. ,Saturday·.·,·. 1",.28',· , '.,', .. 'No Eyerit ,; I ".,;,No. EY"rit<OC; ",;CHRI$;rMAS;',',,··'" 
2014/Jan Fri,Sat 3,4 San Martin Permanent 

Thurs,Fri,Sat 2,3,4 San Jose Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 9,10,11 San Jose Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 16,17,18 San Jose Permanent 

Saturday 18 Sunnyvale Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 23,24,25 San Jose Permanent 



HHW SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013/2014-continued 

2014/Month Day Date Location Type of Event County Holidaysl Notes 
February Fri,Sat 31,1 San Martin Permanent 

Thurs,Fri,Sat 30,31,1 San Jose Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 6,7,8 San Jose Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 13,14,15 San Jose ~ Permanent 

Saturday 15 Sunnyvale Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 20,21,22 San Jose Permanent 

March Fri,Sat 28,1 San Martin Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 27,28,1 San Jose Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 6,7,8 San Jose Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 13,14,15 San Jose Permanent 

Saturday 15 Sunnyvale Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 20,21,22 San Jose Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 27,28,29 San Jose Permanent 

April Fri,Sat 4,5 San Martin Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 3,4,5 San Jose Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 10,11,12 San Jose Permanent 

Saturday 12 Los Altos Temporary 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 17,18,19 San Jose Permanent 

Saturday 19 Sunnyvale Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 24,25,26 San Jose Permanent 

Saturday 26 Santa Clara Temporary 
May Fr.i,Sat 2,3 San Martin Permanent 

Thurs,Fri,Sat 1,2,3 San Jose Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 8,9,10 San Jose Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 15,16,17 San Jose Permanent 

Saturday 17 Sunnyvale Permanen 
'i"Sat"rday' I"" ·'····,·.,"NOEvi'>hl,:,,·,,· 'fI!!iEvi'>n EMO~IALOAYWEE~EfI!D 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 29,30,31 San Jose Permanent 

June Fri,Sat 6,7 San Martin Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 12,13,14 San Jose Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 19,20,21 San Jose Permanent 

Saturday 21 Sunnyvale Permanent 
Thurs,Fri,Sat 26,27,28 San Jose Permanent 

Saturday 28 Milpitas Temporary 
* SUBJECT TO CHANGE 



*10
Pyro Spectaculars North, Inc. 
5301 Lang Avenue 
McClellan, CA 95652 
Tel: 909-355-8120 :::: Fax: 909-355-9813 

PRODUCTION AGREEMENT 
(Speeial) 

City of Milpitas 
PROGRAM # A - Ver. # 2 

July 4, 2013 
Page I ofel 

This agreement ("Agreement") is made this day of ,2013 by and between Pyro Spectaculars North, Inc., a California 
corporation, hereinafter referred to as ("PYRO"), and City of Milpitas, hereinafter referred to as ("CLIENT"). PYRO and CLIENT are sometimes referred to as 
"Party" or collectively as "Parties" herein. 

I. . Engagement M CLIENT hereby engages PYRO to provide to CLIENT one fireworks production ("Production"), and PYRO accepts such engagement 
upon all of the promises, terms and conditions hereinafter ~et forth. The Production shall be substantially as outlined in Program "A", attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

1.1 PYRO Duties - PYRO shall provide all pyrotechnic equipment, trained pyrotechnicians, shipping, pyrotechnic products, application for 
specific pyrotechnic permits (the cost of which, including standby fees, shall be paid by CLIENT) relating to the Production, insurance covering the 
Production and the other things on its part to be performed as more specifically set forth below in this Agreement and in the Scope of Work ("Scope of 
Work"), attached hereto, incorporated herein by this reference, and made a part of this Agreement as though set forth fully herein. 

1.2 CLIENT Duties - CLIENT shall provide to PYRO a suitable site ("Site") for the Production, security for the Site as set forth in Paragraph 
6 hereof, access to the Site, any permission necessary to utilize the Site for the Production, and the other things on its part to be performed as more 
specifically set forth below in this Agreement and in the Scope of Work. All Site arrangements are subject to PYRO's reasonable approval as to 
pyrotechnic safety, suitability, and security. All other conditions of the Site shall be the responsibility of CLIENT, including, but not limited to, access, 
use, control, parking and general safety with respect to the public, CLIENT personnel and other contractors. 

2. Time and Place ~ The Production shall take. place on July 4. 2013, at approximately 9:30PM, at Milpitas Sports Center Football Field and 
surrounding area. 1367 E. Calaveras Blvd, Milpitas. CA, Site. 

3. Fees. Interest. and Expenses ~ 

3.1 Fee - CLIENT agrees to pay PYRQ a fee of$21.600.00USD (TWENTY- ONE THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED DOLLARS) ("Fee") for 
the Production. CLIENT shall pay to PYRO $10.800.00 USD (TEN THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED DOLLARS) of the Fee plus estimated permit and 
standby fees, specified production costs, and other regulatory costs approximated at $00.00, for a total of$10.800.00, as a deposit ("Deposit") upon the execution 
of this Agreement by both parties but no later than April 4. 2013. The balance of the Fee shall be paid no later than July 5. 2013. CLIENT authorizes PYRO to 
receive and verify credit and financial information concerning CLIENT from any agency, person or entity including but not limited to credit reporting agencies. 
The "PRICE FIRM" date, the date by which the executed Agreement must be delivered to Pyro, is set forth in paragraph 20, 

3.2 Interest ~ In the event that the Fee is not paid in a timely manner, CLIENT will be responsible for the payment of 1.5% interest per month 
or 18% annually on the unpaid balance. If litigation arises out of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable costs incurred in connection 
with the litigation, including, but not limited to attorneys' fees. 

3.3 Expenses - PYRO shall pay allnormai expenses directly related to the Production including freight, insurance as outlined, pyrotechnic 
products, pyrotechnic equipment, experienced pyrotechnic personnel to set up and discharge the pyrotechnics and those additional items as outlined as PYRO's 
responsibility in the Scope of Work. CLIENT shall pay all costs related to the Production not supplied by PYRO including, but not limited to, those items 
outlined as CLIENT's responsibility in this Agreement and Scope of Work. 

4. Proprietary Rights ~ PYRO represents and warrants that it owns all copyrights, including performance rights, to this Production, except that PYRO 
does not own CLIENT ~owned material or third~party~owned material that has been included in the Production, and as to such CLIENT ~owned and third~party~ 
owned material, CLIENT assumes full responsibility therefore. CLIENT agrees that PYRO shall retain ownership of, and all copyrights and other rights to, the 
Production, except that PYRO shall not acquire or retain any ownership or other rights in or to CLlENT~owned material and third-party~owned material and shall 
not be responsible in any way for such material. If applicable, CLIENT consents to the use ofCLIENT~owned material and represents that it has or will obtain 
any permission from appropriate third parties sufficient to authorize public exhibition of any such material in connection with this Production. PYRO reserves the 
ownership rights in its trade names that are used in or are a product of the Production. Any reproduction by sound, video or other duplication or recording process 
without the express written permiSSion ofPYRO is prohibited. 

5. Safety ~ PYRO and CLIENT shall each comply with applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations and employ safety programs and measures 
consistent with recognized applicable industry stan'dards and practices. At all times before and during the Production, it shall be within PYRO's sole discretion to 
determine whether or not the Production may be safely discharged or continued. It shall not constitute a breach of this Agreement by PYRO for fireworks to fail 
or malfunction, or for PYRO to determine that the Production cannot be discharged or continued as a result of any conditions or circumstances affecting safety 
beyond the reasonable control ofPYRO. 

6. Security ~ CLIENT shall provide adequate security personnel, barricades, and Police Department services as may be necessary to preclude individuals 
other than those authorized by PYRO from entering an area to be designated by PYRO as the area for the set~up and discharge of the Production, including a 
fallout area satisfactory to PYRO where the pyrotechnics may safely rise and any debris may safely fall. PYRO shall have no responsibility for monitoring or 
controlling CLIENT's other contractors, providers or volunteers; the public; areas to which the public or contractors have access; or any other public or contractor 
facilities associated with the Production. 

7. Cleanup - PYRO shall be responsible for the removal of all equipment provided by PYRO and clean up of any live pyrotechnic debris made necessary 
by PYRO. CLIENT shall be responsible for any other clean up which may be required of the Production or set-up, discharge and fallout areas including any 
environmental clean-up. 

City of Milpitas 
PNV 1·2e-SPECIAL- Ver. # 2 
July 4,2013 



Pyro Spectaculars North, Inc. 
5301 Lang A venue 
McClellan, CA 95652 
Tel: 909-355-8120 :::: Fax: 909-355-9813 

City of Milpitas 
PROGRAM # A - Ver. # 2 

July 4, 2013 
Page:2 of Ij 

8. Permits - PYRO agrees to apply for permits required for the firing of pyrotechnics only from the MILPITAS FIRE DEPARTMENT, FAA, and 
USCG, ifrequired. CLIENT shall be responsible for any fees associated with these permits including standby fees. CLIENT shall be responsible for obtaining 
any other necessary permits, paying associated fees, and making other appropriate arrangements for Police Departments, other Fire Departments, road closures, 
event/activity or land use permits or any permission or permit required by any Local, Regional, State or Federal Government. 

9. Insurance - PYRO shall at all times during the performance of services herein ensure that the following insurance is maintained in connection with 
PYRO's performance of this Agreement: (1) commercial general liability insurance, including products, completed operations, and contractual liability under this 
Agreement; (2) automobile liability insurance, (3) workers' compensation insurance and employer liability insurance. Such insurance is to protect CLIENT from 
claims for bodily injury, including death, personal injury, and from cJaims of property damage, which may arise from PYRO's performance of this Agreement, 
only. The types and amounts of coverage shall be as set forth in the Scope of Work, on page 4 of this Agreement. Such insurance shall not include claims which 
arise from CLIENT's negligence or willful conduct or from failure of CLIENT to perform its obligations under this Agreement, coverage for which shaH be 
provided by CLIENT. 

The coverage of these policies shall be subject to reasonable inspection by CLIENT. Certificates of Insurance evidencing the required general liability coverage 
shall be furnished to CLIENT prior to the rendering of services hereunder and shall include that the following are named as additionally insured: City of Milpitas, 
it's officers, officials, employees and volunteers; and Permitting Authorities, with respect to the operations ofPYRO at the Production. Pyrotechnic 
subcontractors or providers, if any, not covered under policies of insurance required hereby, shall secure, maintain and provide their own insurance coverage with 
respect to their respective operations and services. 

10. Indemnification ~ PYRO represents and warrants that it is capable of furnishing the necessary experience, personnel, equipment, materials, providers, 
and expertise to produce the Production in a safe and professional manner. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, PYRO shall indemnity, 
hold harmless, and defend CLIENT and the additional insureds from and against any and all claims, actions, damages, liabilities and expenses, including but not 
limited to, attorney and other professional fees and court costs, in connection with the loss of life, personal injury, and/or damage to property, arising from Or out 
of the Production and the presentation thereof to the extent such are occasioned by any act or omission ofPYRO, their officers, agents, contractors, providers, or 
employees. CLIENT shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend PYRO from and against any and all claims, actions, damages, liability and expenses, including 
but not limited to, attorney and other professional fees and court costs in connection with the loss of life, personal injury, and/or damage to property, arising from 
or out of the Production and the presentation thereof to the extent such are occasioned by any act or omission of CLIENT , its officers, agents, contractors, 
providers, or employees. In no event shall either party be liable for the consequential damages of the other party. 

11. Limitation of Damages for Ordinary Breach ~ Except in the case of bodily injury and property damage as provided in the insurance and 
indemnification provisions of Paragraphs 9 and 10, above, in the event CLIENT claims that PYRO has breached this Agreement or was otherwise negligent in 
perfonning the Production provided for herein, CLIENT shall not be entitled to claim or recover monetary damages from PYRO beyond the amount CLIENT has 
paid to PYRO under this Agreement, and shall not be entitled to claim or recover any consequential damages from PYRO including, without limitation, damages 
for loss of income, business or profits. 

12. Force Majeure ~ CLIENT agrees to assume the risks of weather, strike, civil unrest, terrorism, military action, governmental action, and any other 
causes beyond the control ofPYRO which may prevent the Production from being safely discharged on the scheduled date, which may cause the cancellation of 
any event for which CLIENT has purchased the Production, or which may affect or damage such portion of the exhibits as must be placed and exposed a 
necessary time before the Production. If, for any such reason, PYRO is not reasonably able to safely discharge the Production on the scheduled date, or at the 
scheduled time, or should any event for which CLIENT has purchased the Production be canceled as a result of such causes, CLIENT may (i) reschedule the 
Production and pay PYRO such sums as provided in Paragraph 13, or (ii) cancel the Production and pay PYRO such sums as provided in Paragraph 14, based 
upon when the Production is canceled. 

13. Rescheduling Of Event ~ If CLIENT elects to reschedule the Production, PYRO shall be paid the original Fee plus all additional expenses made 
necessary by rescheduling plus a 15% service fee on such additional expenses, Said expenses will be invoiced separately and payment will be due in full within 5 
days of receipt. CLlENT and PYRO shall agree upon the rescheduled date taking into consideration availability of permits, materials, equipment, transportation 
and labor. The Production shall be rescheduled for a date not more than 90 Days subsequent to the date first set for the Production. The Production shall not be 
rescheduled to a date, or for an event, that historically has involved a fireworks production. The Production shall not be rescheduled between June 15th and July 
15th unless the original date was July 4th of that same year, or between December 15th and January 15th unless the original date was December 31st of the earlier 
year unless PYRO agrees that such rescheduling will not adversely affect normal business operations during those periods. 

14. Right To Cancel- CLIENT shall have the option to unilaterally cancel the Production prior to the scheduled date. If CLIENT exercises this option, 
CLIENT agrees to pay to PYRO, as liquidated damages, the following percentages of the Fee as set forth in Paragraph 3.1. 1) 50% if cancellation occurs 30 to 90 
days prior to the scheduled date, 2) 75% if cancellation occurs 15 to 29 days prior to the scheduled date, 3) 100% thereafter. In the event CLIENT cancels the 
Production, it will be impractical or extremely difficult to fix actual amount ofPYRO's damages. The foregoing represents a reasonable estimate of the damages 
PYRO will suffer if CLIENT cancels the Production. 

15. No Joint Venture ~ It is agreed, nothing in this Agreement or in PYRO's performance of the Production shall be construed as forming a partnership or 
joint venture between CLIENT and PYRO. PYRO shall be and is an independent contractor with CLIENT and not an employee of CLIENT. The Parties hereto 
shall· be severally responsible for their own separate debts and obligations and neither Party shall be held responsible for any agreements or obligations not 
expressly provided for herein. 

l6. Applicable Law ~ This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the Parties hereunder shall be construed in accordance with the laws ofCalifomia. 
In the event that the scope of the Production is reduced by authorities having jurisdiction or by either Party for safety concerns, the full dollar amounts outlined in 
this Agreement are enforceable. 

17. Notices ~ Any Notice to the Parties permitted or required under this Agreement may be given by mailing such Notice in the United States Mail, 
postage prepaid, first class, addressed as follows: PYRO - Pyro Spectaculars North, Inc., P.o. Box 2329, Rialto, California, 92377, or for overnight delivery to 
3196 N. Locust Avenue, Rialto, California 92377. CLIENT - City of Milpitas 457 East Calavaras Blvd, Milpitas CA 95035-541 1. 

City of Milpitas 
PN V 1-2<:-- SPECIAL - Vcr. # 2 
July 4, 2013 



Pyro Spectaculars North, Inc. 
5301 Lang Avenue 
McClellan, CA 95652 
Tel: 909-355-8120 :::: Fax: 909-355-9813 

City of Milpitas 
PROGRAM #A - VeL # 2 

July 4, 2013 
Page] of4 

18. Modification or Terms - All terms of the Agreement are in writing and may only be modified by written agreement of both Parties hereto. Both 
Parties aclmowledge they have received a copy of said written Agreement and agree to be bound by said terms of written Agreement only. 

19. Severability - If there is more than one CLIENT, they shall be jointly and severally responsible to perfonn CLIENT's obligations under this 
Agreement. This Agreement shall become effective after it is executed and accepted by CLIENT and after it is executed and accepted by PYRO at PYRO's 
offices in Rialto, California. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, including faxed and emailed copies, each one of which shall be deemed an 
original against the Party executing same. This Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties hereto and upon their heirs, successors, executors, administrators and 
assigns. 

20. Price Firm If any changes or alterations are made by CLIENT to this Agreement or if this Agreement is not executed by CLIENT and delivered to 
PYRO on or before the PRICE FIRM date shown below, then the price, date, and scope of the Production are subject to review and acceptance by PYRO for a 
period of 15 days following delivery to PYRO of the executed Agreement. In the event it is not accepted by PYRO, PYRO shall give CLIENT written notice, and 
this Agreement shall be void. 

PRICE FIRM through April 4, 2013 
EXECUTED AGREEMENT MUST BE DELIVERED TO PYRO BY THIS DATE. 

EXECUTED as of the date first written above: 

PYRO SPECTACULARS NORTH, INC. 

SHOW PRODUCER: Jeff Thomas 

City of Milpitas 
PN V 1-2,- SPECIAL- Ver. # 2 
July 4, 2013 

See PRICE FIRM conditions, paragraph 20, above. 

CITY OF MILPITAS 

By: ____________________________________ __ 

Its: ________________________ _ 

Print Name 



Pyro Spectaculars North, Inc. 
530 I Lang A venue 
McCleIlan, CA 95652 
Tel: 909-355-8120 :::: Fax: 909-355-9813 

SCOPE OF WORK 
PYRO SPECTACULARS NORTH, INC. ("PYRO") 

and 
CITY OF MILPITAS ("CLIENT',) 

Pyro shaIl provide the following goods and services to CLIENT: 

City of Milpitas' 
PROGRAM # A - Ver. # 2 

July 4, 2013 
Page 4 of4 

• One Pyro Spectaculars North, Inc., Production on July 4. 2013, at approximately 9:30pm at Milpitas Sports Center 
Football Field. 1367 E. Calaveras Blvd. Milpitas. CA. 

• All pyrotechnic equipment, trained pyrotechnicians, shipping, and pyrotechnic product. 
• Application for specific pyrotechnic permits relating to the Production. 
• Musical soundtrack for the Production supplied in agreed upon format. 
• Insurance covering the Production as set forth in the Agreement with the following limits: 

Insurance Requirements 

Commercial General Liability 

Business Auto Liability-
Owned. Non-Owned and Hired Autos 

Workers' Compensation 

Employer Liability 

$5,000,000.00 

$5,000,000.00 

Starutory 

$1,000,000 

CLIENT shall provide to PYRO the following goods and services: 

Combined Single Limit- Each Occurrence 
(Bodily Injury & Property Damage) 
Combined Single Limit- Each Occurrence 
(Bodily Injury & Property Damage) 

Per Occurrence 

• All on-site labor costs, if any, not provided or performed by PYRO personnel including, but not limited to, local union 
requirements, all Site security, Police and Fire Dept. standby personnel, stagehands, electricians, audio and fire control monitors, 
carpenters, plumbers, clean-up crew. All these additional personnel and services shall be fully insured and the sole responsibility 
of CLIENT. 
• Coordination and any applicable non-pyrotechnic permitting with the local, state or federal government that may hold 
authority within the Production. 
• Costs of all permits required for the presentation of the Production and the event as a whole. 
• Provision of a Safety Zone in accordance with applicable standards and all requirements of the authorities having jurisdiction 
throughout the entire time that the pyrotechnics are at the Site or the load site (if different) on the date of the Production and all 
set-up and load-out dates, including water security to keep unauthorized people, boats, etc. from entering the Safety Zone. 
• A professional grade Audio System including all necessary equipment, installation of such equipment and trained audio 
engineers for operation based on audio and communications requirements provided by PYRO. 
• 24-hour on-site security for any time that pyrotechnic worksites are unattended by PYRO personnel. 
• General Services including, but not limited to, Site and audience security, fencing, adequate work light, dumpster 
accessibility, a secure office for PYRO personnel within the venue, secure parking for PYRO vehicles, access to washrooms, 
tents, equipment storage, hazmat storage, electrical power, fire suppression equipment, access to worksites, necessary 
credentialing, etc., will be required as necessary. 

City of Milpitas 
PN V 1·2e- SPECIAL - Ver. # 2 
July 4, 2013 


	Agenda
	Draft Minutes (March 19, 2013)
	Schedule of Meetings - Council Calendar - April 2013
	Item 01 - I880 Billboard Project Ordance 38.807
	Resolution - I880 Billboards
	1B-Ex D to Resolution - I880 Billboard - Mitigation Monitoring Program
	Ordinance 38.807 - I880 Billboards DA 1st Reading
	Exhbit A - Development Agreement
	Legal Description of Real Property

	Attachment C - Plans
	Attachment D - Milpitas 880 Billboards Final EIR
	Attachment E - Planning Commission Agenda Report (January 23, 2013)
	Attachment D - Planning Commission Minutes

	Attachment F -Public Comment

	Item 02 - Recreation Software Upgrade
	Resolution Recreation Software
	Master Fee Schedule

	Item HA1 - Housing Authority Demo-DR Horton
	Bid Spread - LD - City of Milpitas Demo
	Bid Spread Attachment

	Item 03 - Odor Complaint Report
	BAAQMD February Confirmed Complaint Report
	BAAQMD Odor Complaint Map

	Item 04 - Commission Appointments
	Mark Wong - EDC
	Marsha Tran - AC
	Willy Wong - CAC
	Patrick Yung - SAC
	Khoi Ha - Not Appointed

	Item 05 - Milpitas Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)
	Cover Page
	Table of Contents
	Part One - General Information
	The Plan
	Purpose, Objectives, Goals, Assumptions
	Concept of Operations
	Emergency Management Organization & Responsibilities
	SEMS and NIMS
	Mutual Aid
	Volunteer Resources
	MILPITAS Emergency Operations Center (EOC)
	EOC Position Descriptions and Responsibilities
	Emergency Proclamations
	Continuity of Government

	Part Two - Threat Summary and Assessments
	General
	Potential Hazards and Threats Summary
	Threat Assessment 1: Earthquake
	Threat Assessment 2: Flood
	Threat Assessment 3: Wildland Fire
	Threat Assessment 4: Tsunami
	Threat Assessment 5: Landslide
	Threat Assessment 6: Public Health Crisis
	Threat Assessment 7: Hazardous Materials Incident
	Threat Assessment 8: Transportation Accident
	Threat Assessment 9: Energy Disruption
	Threat Assessment 10: Radiological Incident
	Threat Assessment 11: Terrorism
	Threat Assessment 12: Civil Disturbance
	Threat Assessment 13: National Security Emergency

	Part Three - References and Acronyms
	Operational Area Annexes
	Authorities and References
	Acronyms


	Item 06 - CopVu
	Reso Watch Guard-CopVu Cameras.pdf
	Watch Guard Quote.pdf

	Item 07 - Park Renovation Project 5091
	Park Renovation 2011 Pathways CIP 5091 Bid Results
	Budget Change Form

	Item 08 - Cal Recovery
	Cal Recovery Agreement Amendment #3

	Item 09 - Countywide Haz Waste Agreement
	HHW Amendment No  1 FY14

	Item 10 - Pyro Spectaculars Contract



